HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL REN‘L‘ AND‘;ﬁjRELoc:ATlou BOARD

1. CALL TO ORDER = 7
' == :T“,‘J ]
2. ROLLCALL oL
| W
3. CONSENTITEMS . = Lol
— ‘T?*‘-fr‘.m

D -

i. - Approval of Minutes o &

- 5

>

a. December 13, 2018

4.  OPEN FORUM
5. NEWBUSINESS

A.  Appeal Hearings in:
L17-0083, Abidi v. Tenants

L17-0018, Ghahyaz v. Tenants
T17-0421, Nanos v. Jefez

.
IR
Ik

SCHEDULING AND REPORTS

) Report regarding filling Board vacancies, process for removal of
board members, and current composition of the board

6.

7. ADJOURNMENT

Accessibility. This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request
disability-related accommodations or to request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or
aklandnet.com or call (510) 238-——

Spanish interpreter, please email sshannon@os
3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five wcrkmg days before the

meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a

001



courtesy to attendees ‘with‘chemicét'senﬁ'tivit‘iesk; e

is. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones
rprete de en espaﬁol

Esta reunion es accesible para sillas de ru
relacionadas con discapacidades
Cantones, Mandarin o'de !engu
electronico a sshannon@

menos cinco dias habiles
perfumes a esta reunién como col
productos qulmicos Gracias i

am#me%m&k&ﬁpﬁﬁ
BANEETERYE, mERRY
B (510) 236-3715 5% 711 Ca
service, Sﬁiﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ : %ﬂﬂ

" ﬁggﬁﬂ:gﬁjﬁ&ﬁ@o
“The City of Oakland Rent

full access to qualified persons
" er ;étiaha"t support animals.

Service Animallemational Sup| i ‘rt k
Adjustment Program is committ
with disabilities hwo use servicé al

If your service animal lacks visual ewdence that it is a service animal (presence
of an apparel item, apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably
establish that the animal does, in fact, perform a function or task that you cannot
otherwise perform

If you will be accompanled by an e?‘notlonal suppc rt*anlmal then you must
provide documentation on letterhead from: a licensed mental heaith professional,
not more than one year old, stating that you ‘have a mental health-related
disability, that having the animal al y you is necessary to your mental
‘health or treatment, and that you are under hns or her professional care.

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave
properly in public.” An animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or
aggressive manner (barks, growls, bites, jumps, urinates or defecates etc.) will
be removed.

002



1. CALL TO ORDER
The HRRRB was called to order at 7:04 p.m. by Board Chair Jessie Wamer
2. ROLL CALL

MEMBER STATUS PESENT  ABSENT  EXCUSED

D. Mesaros Tenant ‘ X
T. Hall Tenant»Alt,,

Ed Lai {or
R. Stone

M. Cook

J. Warner
K. Blackburn.
K. Friedman Landlord

B. Scott Landlord Alt,

XX X XXX

b
JO:0I WY €- NVI 6102

Staff Present

Kent Qian Deputy City Attorney ;
Maimoona Ahmad Hearing Officer

3. CONSENT ITEMS ; ;
a. Board Minutes for Approval, November 289, 2018

J. Warner requested that the minutes be changed by removing the sentence
“The Board discussed the character of the lease, which had expired from a one
year lease to month to month tenancy, -that a lease cannot be orally amended but
- this does not apply to a term&j” less than one year, which constituted a defacto
amendment of the lease” on Bate' Stamp 4 and raplacmg it with “After discussion
by the Board”. R. Stone a uested to remove the sentence “The Board
distinguished this case because there was no net addition of new units, simply a

003



one for one replacement” on Bate Stamp 5 E Lai moved to approve the minutes
with the requested changes. R. Stone secon ,ed The Board voted as follows:

Aye: - B. Scott, T. Hall R Stona, J Wérner K. Frledman E. Lai
Nay: 0
Abstain: 0

The motnon was approved by consensus T
b. Board Panel Minutes for Review, November 15, 2018

- The Board revivewed the mmutes from the'Novernber 185, 2018 panel meeting.

4. OPEN FORUM

None

5. NEW BUSINESS
a. Appeal Hearings in: ,

renewed her motion to dasm:ss B Scdtt seconded The Board voted as follows

Aye:  B.Scott, T. Hall R. StOne, J Warner, E. Lai
Nay: K. Friedman
Abstain: 0

The motion carried.,
ii. T17-0274, Petets v. Su ivan Mgmt.

Appearances: David Martin, OWn‘er Representative
- Ben Peters, Tenant

The owner appealed the hearing decision, which invalidated a rent
increase and granted restltution for decreased housing services. The heanng

2 .

004



decision did not address the issue of éx’ef,

tion for a Single-'“family residence

professronal management cornpahg cahrrot c aim ignorance of the process The
Board voted as follows: ‘

Aye: B. Scott, T. Halfl,R.’k'Stbhéy, J. Warher, K. Friedman, E. Lai
Nay: 0 e : o
Abstain: 0

~ The motion was approved bycnSénsus o

il. T17-0201, §
T17-0202, Jot
T17-0282, Wa

Appearances: James Vann, Ter nt“Representative
Brian Warwick, Ter _i .
Robert Herl o; ‘er

The owner appeatéd the hearrng decrsron, whrch denied rent increases
based on capital improvements because the owner drd not provide a finaled permit
for the capital rmprovements project ;

The owner argued that the caprtal improvements project was physically
completed and paid for, and therefore the rent increases based on the capital
improvements should have been granted. He stated that there was a delay in
obtaining the finaled permit: due 1o a new regu!atrcn issued by the planning
department, which required a sewer lateral test for all projects over a $100,000.00,
but this sewer lateral work was unrelated to the capital improvements being
claimed.

The tenant representatrve argued that a finaled permit provrdes a uniform
and transparent process of determing when a construction project is complete and
it ensures the safety of all occupants. In addition, he argued that the Rent
Adjustment Program has relied on a finaled permit for determrning completion of
construction for over 38 years. .

005



ions and an in-depth Board
the hearing decision without
'same capital improvements J.

After arguments made by the parti
discussion of the issues, B. Scoft mo
prejudice to the owner to filea |
Warner seconded. The Board vc

Aye: B. Scott T. Hall RV
Nay: 0
Abstain: 0 .

. K. Friedman, E. Lai

The motion Was:approvedby}qé‘ﬁé

6. SCHEDULING & REPORTS

a. The city attorney provided
council ratified the vote on:
Y. He stated that council will d :
buildings at the next council m nd hé;summanzed the lmpact this may

have for the Rent F’rogram

g pbhcy commtttee responszble
ns ds well as prcposing new

9 policy c '
illy appointed memb“rs, both
' the reoonvened ggmm:ttee

>

Friedman seccnded The Bd [

Ave: B. Scott, T. Hall, R.
Nay: 0 -
Abstain: 0

c. J. Warner also requested a report from staﬂ‘ at the next meeting about steps
being taken to fill vacancies on the Board, as well as the process in place for the
removal of Board members and an update on the current composstion of the

Board.
7. ADJOURNMENT

ne JWarner K. Friedman, E. Lai

The meeting was adjourned by consensus at 9:14 p.m.

006



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case Nos.: L.17-0083
Case Name: Abidi v. Tenants
Property Address: 4714 — 4716 — 4718 Bond Street, Oakland, CA
Parties: No appearances by Tenants
Keivan Abidi (Property Owner)
OWNER APPEAL:
Activity Date
Owner Petition filed May 1, 2017

No Tenant Responses filed
Corrected Hearing Decision issued

Owner Appeal filed

February 8, 2018

March 5, 2018

007



mw@mgm

CITY OF OAKLAND For date starmp. s bmn B
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 MAY 01 2017
Oakland, CA 94612 RENT ADJjer
(510) 238-3721 MENT PROGRA
AKLAND "
LANDLORD PETITION
FOR CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
(OMC §8.22.030.B)

Please Fill Out This Form Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may result

in your petition being rejected or delayed. Attach to this petition copies of the documents that prove
your claim. Before completing this petition, please read the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, section
8.22.030. A hearing is required in all cases even if uncontested or irrefutable.

Section 1. Basic Information

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone
Keivan Abidi 8332 Creekside Drive Day:
Dublin CA 94568 510-333-3384
Your Representative’s Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone
Day:
Property Address > Total number of units in bldg
4714, 16, 18 Bond Street or parcel. 3
’B
Type of units (circle Single Family Residence Condominium @t or Room
one) (SFR)
If an SFR or condominium, can the unit be sold and
deeded separately from all other units on the property? Yes @)

Section 2. Tenants. You must attach a list of the names and addressés, with unit numbers, of all tenants
residing in the unit/building you are claiming is exempt.

Section 3. Claim(s) of Exemption: A Certificate of Exemption may be granted only for dwelling units that
are permanently exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

New Construction: This may apply to individual units. The unit was newly constructed and a
certification of occupancy was issued for it on or after January 1, 1983,

n

Substantial Rehabilitation: This applies only to entire buildings. An owner must have spent a
minimum of fifty (50) percent of the average basic cost for new construction for a rehabilitation
project. The average basic cost for new construction is determined using tables issued by the Chief
Building Inspector applicable for the time period when the Substantial Rehabilitation was completed.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 1/23/07 1

008



Single-Family or Condominium (Costa-Hawkins): Applies to Single Family Residences and

condominiums only. If claiming exemption under the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Civ. C.
§1954.50, et seq.), please answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being a notice of rent increase under Civil Code Section 8277

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

Are there any outstanding violations of building, housing, fire, or safety codes in the unit or

building? '

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

7. If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase
the entire building?

8. When did the tenant move into the unit?

b i

S

I (We) petition for exemption on the following grounds (Check all that apply):

New Construction

Substantial Rehabilitation

Single Family Residence or Condominium
(Costa-Hawkins)

Section 4. Verification Each petitioner must sign this section.

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that
everything I stated and responded in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached
to the petition are correct and complete copies of the originals.

Ay April 17, 2017
Owner’s Signature Date
Owner’s Signature Date

Important Information

Burden of Proof The burden of proving and producing evidence for the exemption is on the Owner. A
Certificate of Exemption is a final determination of exemption absent fraud or mistake.

File Review Your tenant(s) will be given the opportunity to file a response to this petition within 35 days of
notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the tenant’s Response. Copies of
attachments to the Response form will not be sent to you. However, you may review any attachments in the
Rent Program Office. Files are available for review by appointment only. For an appointment to review a file,
call (510) 238-3721. Please allow six weeks from the date of filing for notification processing and expiration
of the tenant’s response time before scheduling a file review.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 1/23/07 2

009



GOLDEN CALIFORNIA

e G0 oMz P o N
21988 Foothill Bivd.
Hayward, CA 94541
(610) 582-1660 * FAX (510) 582-8777

GOLDEN CALIFORNIA TITLE COMPANY IS LICENSED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

v Y '
g "BUYER’S INSTRUCTIONS .
ESCROW NO.: 181088-TB & 181110-TB DATE%

ESCROW OFFICER: TONY BARBOSA, ESCROW OFFICER

PROPERTY: 4714-4716-4718 BOND STREET OAKILAND CA 94601 (PARCEL A) and 3514 LIBBY COURT, OAKLAND, CA
94619 (PARCEL B g

The undersigned hand you the following documents, loan papers showing terms and conditions, funds, (loan funds deposited or to be
deposited with you included) and other required papers to be delivered or recorded or disbursed in accordance with the instructions

and statement herein when you can issue:

Standard Coverage for Title Insurance Policy in the amount of $43,000.00, msurmg title as vested in the name of’, KEIVAN REZA
ABIDI, an Unmarried Man (PARCEL A) ’?"

SUBJECT TO: COUNTY and/or CITY TAXES, not delinquent; BONDS, and/or ASSESSMENTS, not delinquent; and
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, RIGHTS OF WAY, EASEMENTS and RESERVATIONS now of record, shown
as EXCEPTIONS NUMBERED 1 AND 3, on Preliminary Report dated APRIL 9, 1997. (PARCEL A) and EXCEPTIONS 1,2,3 &

5 on Preliminary Report 181110 dated JUNE 27, 1997 (PARCEL B).

1st Deed of Trust in the amount of $100,000.00
Deed of Trust in favor of: ARLINGTON INVESTMENT COMPANY A LTD. PARTNERSHIP

Prorate as of CLOSE OF ESCROW
X-Real Property Taxes (based on the most recent official information obtainable in the office of the proper taxing authority.)

It is understood by the parties signing the above or attached instructions that the instructions are complete instructions between this
firm as escrow agent and you as a principal to the escrow transaction. These instructions may not include all the terms of the agreement
which is the subject of this escrow. Read these instructions and do not sign them unless they are acceptable to you.

7
P 3
/J—;ﬁ ﬁ/oéfr é///ffi
=

IVAN REZA ABIDI

ADDRESS: 3514 LIBBY COURT, OAKLAND, CA, 94619
TELEPHONE: (510)-482-8288

P el //\,
REC'D BY: /T ,/ 6Lgnt cd gt fy) /
4

010



Esc;row No.: 181088-TB

Pa@_?: )

DEBITS CREDITS
FROM: TO:
TOTAL CONSIDERATION $ 43,000.00 § £ purc hse
: AYnorg”
NEW 1ST Trust Deed to:

ARLINGTON INVESTMENT COMPANY 100,000.00
PRORATIONS/ADJUSTMENTS: ;
Taxes for 6 months @ $703.15 07/01/97 07/17/97 62.50
TITLE CHARGES:

Owners Title Policy for $43,000.00 385.75

CLTA Lenders Policy for $100,000.00 635.40

One half City Transfer Tax 322.50

RECORDING CHARGES:

Deed 20.00

Trust Deed(s) 50.00

REQUEST FOR NOTICE 10.00

ESCROW CHARGES:

Escrow Fee 305.00

Drawing Trust Deed/Note 100.00

Messenger Fee 20.00

FED-X FEE 20.00

NEW LOAN CHARGES:

BROKERS FEE SUSAN PEICK 2.5000% 2,500.00

LOAN & PROCESSING TO RAF MORTGAGE 3,000.00 _ _—
FUNDS TO DRAW UPON 50,000,004~ Tro8 7
ADDITIONAL DISBURSEMENTS:

Fire Insurance Premium to NOURSE INSURANCE BROKERS 680.00

Notary Fees to AS REQUIRED 30.00

BALANCE DUE ESCROW (ESTIMATED) 1,016.15
. *ESTIMATED TOTALS* $ 101,078.65 § 101,078.65

011



Page1 QN

Address History

ADDR_PARTIAL Begins With 4714 bond
APN = (blank)

DATE_OPENED >= 1/1/1980

DATE_OPENED <= 12/31/2020
RECORD_TYPE_SUBTYPE <> Soft Story Retrofit Validation

4714, BOND, ST

APN Unit# RecordID Date Opened Status Status Date Description
035 RE9702243 8/4/1997 Final 1/30/1997 Electrical for Fire repair to duplex. -~

239901200 12:00:00 AM

035 - ~ RM9700971 5&53 _ Final  1/14/1998

239900000, T el ooiooan S , S L

035 RP9701321 w\No\wa Final 1/30/1997 Plumbing for Fire repair to duplex. ="

239901200 12:00:00 AM

03575 i REG709033 o Fing 30/1997 ..,x...;m_.mm:uowm?, vmim;o umwimm.m:.‘_o,, ion for fire «mum_ﬂm =

239901200 it 0 S e i

035 L003118 7/14/1997 Lien M\K\SS PER WING LOO OWNER <<o¥mo AS xmo%ﬂm_u =

239901200 Created  12:00:00 AM

0350 T e RESZ01534 . 4221997 Findl L 1RRjT00. i Fire aum_;o%%x =

239901200 . - Bk 1200:008M S

035 mmom&m 10/3/1996 Closed  12/1/1997 VACANT UNSECURE FIRE DAMAGED TRASH & DEBRIS —

239901200 12:00:00 AM ,

035 . . 9603117 6/11/1996 Closed  8/16/199%6 | SOMETHING IS BITING MY, m>m<>P OVER HER BODY (19 MOS.) TOOK TO DR.NO SCREENS ON WINDOWS AND

239901200 S ee e B e (A2100:00 AME. | REFRIGERATOR DOESN'T WORK. e

035 UPPER 9602253 5/3/1996 Closed  5/21/1996 SCREENS MISSING ON WINDOWS, EXPOSED <<Hazm

239901200 12:00:00 AM

(ELTEe .wfox% ; ..m::m.ﬁ - n_owma | 7/19/1999 a:ﬁkm

239901200 - S 112:00:00AM

For real-time, &32 access to EmoH.Em:o: via ﬂrm 5852 24 hours a mm% :Eom \\mom moom_m ooE\owEmsm



4714, BOND, ST

APN Unit #
035
239901200
035, s
239901200
035
239901200

For real-time, direct access to information via the Internet, 24 hours a day - https://aca.accela.com/oakland

Record ID
P8802274

. M8800136

 P8703942

Date Opened Status Status Date

6/24/1988 Final 7/21/1988
i ‘kuoo‘_,oo AM
2/8/1988 10/11/1988
s - 12:00:00AM
12/1/1987 1/12/1990
12:00:00 AM

Description

 REPLACE WALL HEATER

Page 2




Address History
CITY OF OAKLAND
ADDR _PARTIAL Begins With 4718 bond
APN = 95:5
DATE OPENED >= 1/1/1980
DATE OPENED <= 12/31/2020
RECORP TYPE SUBTYPE < Soft Story Retrofit Validation
4718, BOND, ST
APN Unit# RecordID DateOpened Status Status Date Description
0475 10711996 Closed  11/17/2000 12:00:00 AM NEEDS BOARDING UP. TRASH AND DEBRIS FROM FIRE (SINCE JULY) —
. 9603825 ' 7/12/1996 = (Closed ' 8/16/199612:00:00 AM NUMERGOUS CODE VIOLATIONS;ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING & BUILDING. =~
9601220 3/13/1996 Abated 5/31/1996 12:00:00 AM LEAK IN THE BATHROOM GOES THROUGH m_.oow INTO THE BASEMENT, S\HZDOS\mUOz.._. MIC._..

For real-time, direct access to information via the Internet, 24 hours a day - https://aca.accela.com/oakland

Page 1

4



Page 1

Address History

CITY OF OAKLAND

ADDR_PARTIAL Begins With 4716 bond

APN = (blank)

DATE_OPENED >= 1/1/1980

DATE_OPENED <= 12/31/2020
RECORD_TYPE_SUBTYPE <> Soft Story Retrofit Validation

4716, BOND, ST

APN Unit# RecordID DateOpened Status Status Date Description
9603370 . _m\NA\Bmm _ Abated  8/7/1996 12:00: 00 AM_ DOES NOT HAVE ACCES PGS E BOX,  LOCATED ON PROPERTY NEXT DOOR BEHINDLOCKED GATE.
omooﬁm , .,;n_oma _ Al ,_s\>§<<>< EF OF s\ﬁmm >zo _<_co PLACED A mo% o<mx >zo Szor%o >o<Hmmo: RTO

S ey il o P e e REMOVE.

035 meooam N\mhmmm m:m_ 5\:\5% 12:00:00  REPLACE WALL :mﬁmx

239901200 : M T e MM o

035 .. .o . P8703942 . 12/1/1987 .  Expired = 1/12/199012:00:00 AM

239901200 gl i AR e

For real-time, direct access to information via the Internet, 24 hours a day - https://aca.accela.com/oakland



PTSLLE-0n APPL ATION FEE PAYMENT HISTORY ) .. 3/03/16 @8:25:547
’ Next Option: 112

Appl#: RB9701534
Est Cost: 1,000 Rev Cost: 0 New Cost: 40,000
Type: 2 Filed: 04/22/97 # Plans: 0 Disposition: 01/30/97 FINALED
Addrl: 4714 BOND ST Suite: Parcel: 035 -2399-012-00
Descr: Fire repair to duplex.
X Nbr Type Amount Eff Date Dlg . Paid = Req Rept# NSF Inve$  Refunded
— 001 FIL 132.88 -04/22/97 04/22/97 RO2 014259
—. 002 1Iss 925.65 08/04/97 08/04/97 RO1 016620

Fl=Hlp F3=Ext F7=Fwd F8=Bck Fll=Fnd F1l2=Prv F13=Export F24=Com

016



’ PTS106-01 APPLICA DN LOCATION CROSS REFERENCE } - o/03/16 0B:123:41
- Next Option: 113

Nbr': 47914 .-  Street:. BOND Sk ST

or Parcel#: Active Only? Y/N N Appl. Types. ...
———————————— ADDRESS-======—=———-—— T

* Nbr Street Name Sfx _Parcel Nbr Bpplic# P Disposition Pln

— 4714 BOND ST 035 =2399-012-00 :M8800136 2 F 10/11/88 0
Desc: REPLACE WALL HEATER

o LA BOND ST - 03552390012 00 P8703942 - 2 EX 01/12/90 .0
Desc: :

— 4714 BOND ST 035 =-2399-012-00:p08802274. 2 F .  07/21/88 0
Desc: }

— 4714 BOND ST 035 -2399-012-00RB9701534 2 F 01/30/97 O
Desc: Fire repair to duplex.

— 4914 BOND : ST .- 035:22399-012=-00 RE9702033+5 & 07/307/97 0
Desc: Temporary power to permanent location for fire repairs.

— 4714 BOND ST 035 -2399-012-00 RE9702243 2 F 01/30/97 O
Desc: Electrical for Fire repair to duplex.

— 4714 BOND ST . 035.-2399-012-00 RMS700971 5 & 01/14/98 0
Desc: Mechanical for Fire repair to duplex.

I BOND ST 0352239901000 RP9701321 2 &= 01/30/97 0
Desc: Plumbing for Fire repair to duplex. T

Fl=Hlp F3=Ext F4=More/Less F5=Chg F12=Prv Fl3=Export to Excel Page: il

017



. 'PTS106-01 APPLICA N LOCATION CROSS REFERENCE ) 3/03/16 08:23:41
oNextoptiont 113

Nbr: -4714 ' . Street: BOND Sfx* ST

or Parcel#: Active Only? Y/N N Appl Byper .
———————————— ADDRESS-~—-—-—=——==~——- T

* Nbr = . Street Name Sfx _Parcel Nbr Applic# P Disposition Pln

— 4016 BOND ST M8800136 2 F 10/11/88 0
Desc: REPLACE WALL HEATER

— P46 BOND Sm 8703947 2 EX 01/12/90 .0
Desc: :

— AR BOND ST 035 -2399-011-00 RB0505367 5 F 04/18/06 O
Desc: REPLACE APPROX 144LF OF FOUNDATION

I e BOND ST 035 -2399-011-00 RB0602913 2 F 07/24/06 2
Desc: Replace front stairs.

B 1 0k) BONP— ST 035 -2399-011-00 RB9603341 5 F 09/10/97 O
Desc: Install vinyl siding on two sides and front.

— 4422 BOND ST 035 -2399-011-00 RB9900978 2 F 05/06/99 0
Desc: Repairs per termite report item #10A

— 422 TEBOND: ST 035 -2399-011-00 RE0504102 5 F 04/21/06 O
Desc: 100 amp service, 1 fixture, 3 switches, 14 recept.

=472 BOND ST 035 -2399-011-00 RE9900972 5 F 05/06/99 O
Desc: Electrical for bath repair. &

Fl=Hlp F3=Ext F4=More/Less F5=Chg F12=Prv F13=Export to Excel Bageg.itl

018



250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313, OAKLAND, cA 94612 CITY OF OAKLAND

Department of Housing and Commimity Development TEL (510) 238-3721

Rent Adjustment Program FAX (5610) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254

CORRECTED HEARING DECISION

CASE NUMBER: L17-0083, Abidi v. Tenants

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 4714, 4716, 4718 Bond St., Oakland, CA (3 units)
DATE OF HEARING: September 6, 2017

DATE OF DECISION: February 8, 2018

APPEARANCES: Keivan Abidi, Owner

REASON FOR CORRECTED HEARING DECISION

In the Hearing Decision, issued-on December 28, 2017, the Hearing Officer
determined that the owner did not spend sufficient amount on a rehabilitation project to
qualify for exemption based on substantial rehabilitation. On January 29, 2018, the
owner filed an appeal, which stated that the Hearing Officer applied the wrong square
footage and the wrong cost per square foot in the calculation. This Hearing Decision
addresses these errors and provides for new appeal period.

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption is denied.

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES

On May 1, 2017, the owner filed a petition for Certificate of Exemption based on
substantial rehabilitation.

No responses to the owner’s petition were filed and no tenants appeared for the
hearing.

019



ISSUE

1. Is the property exempt from the Rent Adjustment Program?

EVIDENCE

Background

The subject property consists of three (3) residential units. Two of the three units
are two-bedrooms each (4714 and 4716) and the third unit (4718) is a one-bedroom
unit. The owner’s petition lists all three addresses. However, at the hearing, the owner
testified that he is only applying for exemption on the duplex (4714 and 4716) because
the unit 4718 is a single family residence on the same parcel.

Notice to all units

On May 9, 2017, a notice of the owner petition and a notice of hearing was mailed
to the “residents” in all three units with a proof of service. The mail was not returned as
non-delivered. The notices were properly served. No response to the owner's petition
was filed and no tenant appeared for the hearing. i

Square Footage of the Building

The owner submitted one page from an appraisal report which shows the floor
plan of the three units and states that the square footage of all three buildings is 2421
and the square footage of the duplex is 1,820 (910 each).!

Construction Expenses and Payments

The owner acquired the subject property in 1997 for the purchase price of
$43,000.00. The property was not habitable because it was damaged from a fire. The
owner obtained a loan for $50,000.00 when he purchased the property. It is shown on
the report from the Golden California Title Company.? Page 2 of the report shows the
purchase price of $43,000.00 and additional available funds of $50,000.00.3

The owner testified that he spent all $50,000.00 on the rehabilitation project plus
additional $50,000.00 he had in cash. He testified that the project began in 1997 and
was completed in mid-1998. The owner did not submit any invoices and evidence of
payments made for expenses spent on the rehabilitation project.

! Exhibit A
2 Exhibit B
3 Exhibit B, page 2

020



Permits

The owner submitted “Address History” and “Fee Payment History” relating to
permits obtained from the City of Oakland Building Department (7 pages).*

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Substantial Rehabilitation

O.M.C. §8.22.030(A)(6) states that dwelling units located in “substantially
rehabilitated buildings” are not “covered units” under the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

a. In order to obtain an exemption based on substantial
rehabilitation, an owner must have spent a minimum of
fifty (50) percent of the average basic cost for new
construction for a rehabilitation project and performed
substantial work on each of the units in the building.

b. The average basic cost for new construction shall be
determined using tables issued by the chief building
inspector applicable for the time period when the
substantial rehabilitation was completed.®

The applicable rules of evidence in an Administrative Hearing are stated in
Government Code Section 11513:% “Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the
sort of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of
serious affairs . . .”

In a precedent decision,’ the Board held that “[I]n order for a landlord to establish
an exemption for a substantially rehabilitated building . . . a landlord must provide
evidence independent of his own testimony or summaries prepared in anticipation of the
hearing to substantiate the costs of new construction . . ."

An owner has the burden of proving his or her case by a preponderance of the
evidence. Although the owner may no longer have access to the bank records from ten
years ago, this fact does not diminish the owner's burden of proof. Solid evidence of
costs, including contracts, invoices and proof of payment of invoices and contracts, is
required.

The owner provided no contracts, invoices, proof of payments of invoices and no
evidence of expenses. The owner testified that he spentthe entire loan of $50,000.00
plus another $50,000.00 in cash on the project. The loan is not sufficient evidence that

4 Exhibit C

> O.M.C. §8.22.030(B)(2)

¢ Regulations, Section 8.22.110(E)(4)
7T04-0158, Ulman v. Breen & Orton

021



the funds were spent on the rehabilitation project. There is no evidence about the
scope of work done on the building and no proof of payment for the cost of the work.
The owner’s estimate without proof of payment that he spent $50,000.00 in cash is not
a solid evidence of cost of the project. Guesswork and estimates will not suffice. The
evidence presented is simply not “the sort of evidence on which responsible persons
are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs.” Therefore, the owner’s petition
is denied.

ORDER
1. The petition L17-0083 is denied.
2. The subject property is not exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal
using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received
within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is shown on
the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to
file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

Ly,

Dated: February 8, 2018 Ao ALy,
Linda M. Moroz, Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

022



PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number 1.17-0083

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to
the Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda
County, California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th
Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

Today, I served the attached Corrected Hearing Decision by placing a true copy of
it in a sealed envelope in a City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on
the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California, addressed to:

Tenants Owner

Resident Keivan Abidi
4718 Bond St 8332 Creekside Dr
Oakland, CA 94601 Dublin, CA 94568

Resident
4716 Bond St
Oakland, CA 94601

Resident
4714 Bond St
Oakland, CA 94601

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S.
Postal Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the
ordinary course of business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above
is true and correct. Executed on February 20, 2018 in Oakland, CA.

Maxine Visaya

023



CITY OF OAKILAND
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

(\ Oakland, CA 94612
510) 238-3721
CITY OF OAKLAND @10} APPEAL

Appellant’s Name

Keivan Abidi

Property Address (Include Unit Number)
4714, 4716, 4718 BondStreet

B Owner [ Tenant

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) CaseNumber

8332 Creekside Drive, Dublin CA 94568 L17-0083 REVISED
Date of Decision appealed

February 8, 2017
Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)

Name of Representative (if any)

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)
2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) [ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

b) HE The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

¢) [ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) [ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.)

e)  H The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/22/17

024



f) [ I'was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (In
Yyour explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) B Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board are limited to 25 pages from each party. Pleasenumber attached pages consecutively.
Number of pages attached: /

I declare under penalty of peljury under the laws of the State of Cahforma that on
March 2 ,2018___, I'placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or

deposited it with a commercial carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all
postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Name
Address
C.l SI l Zc

Name
Address

tate Zi

/\’,_,4/—‘ o Z/ e MR 2, 207

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/22/17

025



J

Appeal of Corrected Hearing acision

City of Oakland
Department of Housing and Community Development
Rent Adjustment Program (RAP)

March 2, 2018

Case Number: L17-0083

Property Address: 4714,16,18 Bond Street
Original Hearing Decision: December 28, 2017
Revised Hearing Decision: February 8, 2018

To whom it may concern:

The following is my formal appeal to your denial of my landlord petition for
Certificate of Exemption, per my meeting with Michele Byrd, Director of Housing
and Community Development on March 1, 2018 whom | have discussed the
details of my case with.

ltem 1: Evidence:

Background: The subject property is not correctly identified. it consists of one (1)
duplex, with two 2-bedroom units and one (1) detached single-family one
bedroom dwelling. The single-family dwelling is exempt under Costa Hawkins
Rental Housing Act (Cal. Govt. C. §1954.50, et seq.) and was not included in the
scope of work. |

On or about September 12, 2017 | spoke with Mr. Keith Mason from RAP who
advised that RAP would not include the single-family home in the calculations
and that the single family home was exempt.

Item 3: Evidence:

Construction Expenses and Payments: | have previously provided my Federal
Tax Depreciation Schedule that reflects a purchase price of $43,875 and
$102,375 in construction expenses. (Exhibit 1)

The contractor who performed this work has provided copies of receipts
reflecting payments of $102,375. This contractor is nolonger in business and has
gone through extreme lengths and time to produce these documents. (Exhibit 2)

ltem 4: Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law:

Substantial Rehabilitation and Calculation: O.M.C. 8.22.030(A)(6) b. states that
the average basic cost for new construction shall be determined using tables
issued by the chief building inspector applicable for the time period when the
substantial rehabilitation was completed.

Ms. Moroz had mistakenly applied new construction costs of $127.00 per square
foot from year 2009 for three or more units in her December 28, 2017 denial
letter.

026



This was rehabilitation work for two units and should . , under the remodel
category of 1997 valuation per O.M.C. 8.22.030(A)(6).

In Ms. Moroz’s revised denial letter, she states that “Guesswork and estimates
will not suffice”, but calculated an estimation to favor her December 28, 2017
denial decision. When | corrected the estimation based upon city of Oakland
provided documents that support my claim, it was disallowed.

(Exhibits 3, and 4)

Ms. Moroz's revised denial is inconsistent as she has removed estimations from
my first appeal, but used them in her first denial. She used year 2009 valuations,
while the work was performed in 1997-1998, to illustrate her decision.

The following is the corrected calculation using the City of Oakland provided
Comparative Cost Indexes form provided to me via e-mail on January 26, 2018
from Thomas Jull, Senior Specialty Combination Inspector for the City of Oakland
Planning and Building Department:

Multiple the square footage of 1,820 by the adjusted remodel price for two units
in the amount of $50.55* and divide by 2.

1,820 x $50.55* = $92,001 / 2= $46,000.50

Additionally, when | purchased this property in 1997, the formula was that at least
50% of the purchase price must have been spent to rehabilitate the property, not
50% of the valuation. Based upon my repair costs, | have met the requirement.

*Determined from Occupancy R3 Single Family and Duplex Remodel valuation,
level ground, in the amount of $75.12 per 2009 valuation basis provided by Ms.
Moroz. This amount was adjusted for inflation using the Comparative Cost
Indexes form used by the City of Oakland and provided to me via e-mail on
January 26, 2018 by Thomas Jull, Senior Specialty Combination Inspector for
City of Oakland Planning and Building Department, and revised to reflect the
correct 1997 cost of $50.55 per square foot. (Exhibit )

Ms. Moroz also states that “ although the owner may no longer have access to
the bank records from ten years ago...” This statement is deceptive and
misleading. The work was completed in 1998 and payments were made in 1997
and 1998, which would require me to keep bank records for twenty years, not
ten.

To expect an individual to maintain cancelled checks and related documents for
more than twenty years is beyond reasonable.

| have met the requirement for the Certificate of Exemption based upon
substantial rehabilitation.

Sincerely,
flemipir”

Keivan Abidi
Owner

027



£ L

12131/03 2003 Federal Depreciation Schedule Page 1}
Client 0030ABID KEIVAN R. ABIDI 563-65-2747
1728118 12:38PME
Priar
Cur Special 178/ Prior-  Salvage
Date Date Cost/ Bus. 179 Depr. Bonus/ Dec. Bal.  /Basis Depr. Prior Current

Schedule E - RESIDENTIAL RENTAL

Amortization

3 LOAN FEE - refiin 1999

& LOANFEE
7 | GLOSING COSTS

Total Amortization

Total Buildings

Firniture and m.xeﬁ

5 BLINDS

Total Furniture and Fixtures

improvements

8 NEW ROOF

Total Improvements

Land.

Total Land

ATIGATBBONDST

220/B EFENSED TE 255 2,559 2589000 Sa - 0
2078 New w99 1950 1,950 195 SIL B 6
12730799 ML NES T 5058 325% 327 sce 30 03
7,765 0 0 0 0 0 7,765 3,081 7

T L : 102,375 17525 S/L MM 275 0%3% 372

102,375 0 0 0 8 0 102,375 17,525 3722

10/31/58 519 _ 519 389 DBMQ 7 08730 85
519 0 0 0 0 o 519 389 a5

10/01/03 4500 4,500 S/L MM 275 00758 u
4,50 9 0 0 0 0 4,500 0 %

s : . 43,875 0

43875 0 it 0 0 0 43,875 0 0

028



EXMIB/ ) 2.

N’

MONTCILAIR TERMITE
CONTROL
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Recelpt
Customer Name Keivan Abidi
2445 Rampart Street,
Address Oakland CA 94602
Date July 7,.:1897
Balance Due

Contract Amount $102,375
Progress Payment 1
Received 30,000 $-30,000
Remaining Balance $72+375

For construction
rehabilitation
services for fire
damaged property
located at 4714-16
Bond Street, Oakland
CA 94601

Balance
Due $72,375

y Morrie Abi%i

(N~L— / \/}L‘V

Owner

Thank you for your business

——————

3940 High Street, Suite B o Oakland CA 94619 o (510) 482-8288 o Fax (510)@2&64]




ERMBITY 2

Sl

£

v
MONTCLAIR TERMITE

CONTROL
S
GENERAIL CONTRACTORS

Receipt
Customer Name Keivan Abidi
: 2445 Rampart Street,
Address Oakland CA 94602
Date October 6; 1997
Balance Due

Contract Amount $102,375
Previous Payment 30,000 $-30,000

Balance Due $72,375

Progress Payment 2
30,000 $-30,000

For construction
rehabilitation
services for fire
damaged property
located at 4714-16
Bond Street, Oakland
CA 94601

Balance
Due $42,375

Morrie Abid%>

e

"‘vq/SL,—éézﬁ

Owner ¢

Thank you for your business

3940 High Street, Suite B o Oakland CA 94619 o (510) 482-8288 ¢ Fax (5'!0)0!39364]



Nt

MONTCLAIR TERMITE

Esf/13)7 2.

CONTROL
S
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Receipt
Customer Name Keivan Abidi

2445 Rampart Street,
Address Oakland CA 94602
Date January 5, 1998

Contract Amount
Previous Payments
Balance Due
Progress Payment 3

For construction
rehabilitation
services for fire
damaged property
located at 4714-16
Bond Street, Oakland
CA 94601

s Morrie Abidi}

Ownerxr

Thank you for your business

60,000

30,000

Balance
Due

Balance Due
$102,375
$~60,000
$42,375
~-$30,000

§12,375

3940 High Street, Suite B o Oakland CA 94619 o (510) 482-8288 o Fax (5310) &3-13641



ExMIBIT 2.

L

MONTCLAIR TERMITE
CONTROL

&
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Receipt
Customer Name Keivan Abidi
2445 Rampart Street,
Address Oakland CA 94602
Date February 2, 1998
Balance Due

Contract Amount , $102,375
Previous Payments 90,000 $-90,000
Balance Due $12,375
Final Payment 12,375 -$12,375

For construction
rehabilitation
services for fire
damaged property
located at 4714-16
Bond Street, Oakland
CA 94601

Paid in Full

Morrie Abid:u>
- //é%l,

Owner

Thank yvou for your business

==

3940 High Street, Suite B o Oakland CA 94619 o (510) 482-8288 o Fax (510) k32641




EX )13/ 57— g

b. The average basic cost for new construction shall be
determined using tables issued by the chief building
inspector applicable for the time period when the
substantial rehabilitation was completed.®

The rehabilitation work must be completed within a two (2) year period after the
issuance of the building permit for the work unless the Owner demonstrates good cause
for the work exceeding two (2) years.®

Calculation

The Table “A” (attached), issued by the Building Services Agency on August 1, T
2009, refers to a dollar amount per square foot. It shows $127.00 per square foot for a
wood-frame construction (Category V) for more than two units. To determine if the
owner is entitled to the exemption, the following calculation is necessary.

multiply the square footage of 2421 by $127.00 and divide that by 2
2421 x $127.00 = 307,467.00 : 2 = $153,733.50

To satisfy the requirement for the exemption, the owner must show that he spent
at least $153,733.50 on the rehabilitation project. The owner provided no proof of
payments and no evidence of expenses. The owner testified that he spent the entire
loan of $50,000.00 plus another $50,000.00 on the project. While the loan is not
considered evidence of expenses, the total of $100,000.00 is still well below the
minimum of $153,733.50. Therefore, the owner did not satisfy the requirement for the

exemption based on substantial rehabilitation.
ORDER

1. The petition L17-0083 is denied.

2. The subject property is not exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinanbe.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed
appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be
received within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is
shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the
last day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next busmess day.

Dated: December 28, 2017

Linda M. Moroz, Hearing Officer
City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

S0.M.C. §8.22.030(B)(2)
¢ RAP Regulations, §8.22.030 (B)(3)

033



EXHI IS/ 7

y—

the funds were spent on the rehabilitation project. There is no evidence about the
scope of work done on the building and no proof of paymentfor the cost of the work.
The owner's estimate without proof of payment that he spent$50,000.00 in cash is not
a solid evidence of cost of the project. Guesswork and estimates will not suffice. The
evidence presented is simply not “the sort of evidence on whic responsible persons

are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs.” Therefore, the owner's petition
is denied. ;

ORDER

1. The petition L17-0083 is denied.

2. The subject property is not exempt from the RentAdjustment Ordinance.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment

Program. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal
using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received
within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is shown on
the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to

file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

Dated: February 8, 2018 S A i .
Linda M. Moroz, Hearing Officer

Rent Adjustment Program

034




iy

Subject:

2017 Cost Indexe

From:
To:

TJull@oaklandnet.com
keivanabidi@yahoo.com
Friday, January 26, 2018, 8:16:50 AM PST

ExrBr7 S

Date:

See attached per your request

Thomas Jull

Permit Counter

Senior Specialty Combination Inspector

City of Oakland

Planning & Building Department

510-238-6280

tjiull@oaklandnet.com

MVS Section 98 Construction Cost Tables 2-21-17.pdf
925.6kB

035



]

e

R L

-

(ZX/77 )5/ 7 2N
i e
COST INDEXES (1926 = 100)
2016 2047 2014 2013 2012 201t i Macw ©.2002 2001 2000 1996 1984
A : Firgproofed steel frame 30968 30963 . 30517 268782 20112 28207 19684.2 190894 18777 18588 18565 . 15723
8 - Reinforced concrele frame. 3118.2 ' 30889 30355 29634 ' 2886.1 27953 16964.7 19095 18726 1853.0 16467 1566.3
C..-Masonry bearing walls 30885 30728 30200 29335 28412 27584 1982.0. 19232  1883.0 . 18639 16538 15787
D Weod feams 30420 30361 2080.9 28894 27774 26838 19943 19302 18843 18725 16406 15745
S @ Matal frame and walls 2\228 28153 27748 27255 26742 26023 18449 17935 1767.3 17524 15803 M9
BUILDINGS — CENTRAL DISTRICT
A Fireproofed steel rame 27624 277H7 27496 27041 26405 25676 24836 25507 24686 23552 22388 21173 19598 1749,7 16769 18304 15792 15312 15312 14539
8 - Reinforced concrete frame - 27844 27813 27458 26955 2617.7 25458 24682 25167  2447.9 23465 22366 21230 1975.8 17565 16834 16340 15776 15288 15288 14556
C : Masonry. unua:n ,iu:m 27782 27782 27451 206874 25915 25280 24560 24772 24243 23632 22526 21243 19923 17736 168685 . 16381 1587.3 15360 15380 1469.9
O Wood frame! 27649 27745 27387 26688 25438 2477.9 24085 249430 23071 23540 22741 21458 201486 X ! 15182 14657
S : Metal frame and walls 24780 24890 24666 24436 24045 23454 22859 23798 23154 22088 21619 4 i 1468.5 13858
RO S AR
A : Fireproofed steel frame 3030.8 30434 30075 29413  2868.8 27846 26894 27795 0 22797 A X 17827 B A 16562 1656.2 157B.9
B - Reinforced concrete frame 3040.2 30302 2984.0 20147 28302 27504 26622 mqwﬁ 4 Q22814 & 1786.7 § J A 18531 15794
bea 30534 0 -3048.1 30006 20250 28221 27485 26613 2265.9 & 17861 3.4 R 1671.8 . 16718 16037
30040 30104 29583 2B¥23 27421 PBEBT 25775 m 23571 . 17759 §irsns 4117028 16441 16441 15931
S | Metal frame and walls 27117 27200 28893 26458 25944 25244  2456.1 b 25558 32360 210412 1934.4 17268 16583 “16225° 15987 15691 15631 14886
INDUSTRY mcc:vgmz._.  NATIONAL AVERAGE
Average of all 1580.9 19937 15788 19587 18459 19032 14574 14686 14273 aaﬂu J0A302.3 144,89 1157.9 111886 110900 10934 . 10843 10650 10618, 10527 1036.C . 10204 285.0
Alcplane mig, 1857.2 18859 1878.5 1860.6 1859.2 1206.4 AT4ANE 1770.4 AT21.2 16537 1568.6 1489.2 1375.5 1325.1 1301.4 1296.7 1287.8 9264.7 1263.2 1252.4 12386 1221.8 1174.G
Apartment 11401 11394 11238 31087 10885 10604 10328 - 1027.0° 10051 9768 8424 - 8037 856.7 = 536.1 826.3 8183 8124 797.8 7831 7871 7741 7635 738.5
Bakery 1581.2 15535 ¢ 15373 - 15876.0 1 15025 1461 14158 | 94266 0 13921 13383 12497 - 11847 11108 10706 10526 10457 10343 10440 10905 10003 9834 969.1 830.8
Bank 1163.8 11677 11525 11365 11285 11020 10732 10787 1050.7 10183 = 9794 8437 &87.3 8598 B47.6 842.1 837.0 822.9 8213 816.3 8036 794.9 734
Botiting 16188 1838.0 16225 16028 15954 15528 15036 1517.9 14798 14174 13369 12716 11728 11312 11113 11059 10963 10756 10735 J0654 10494 10336 994.3
Brawery & distilfery 20026 20140 19835 19668 19504 19000 18488 18600 1BOB.7 17357 16342 15546 14386 13908 13665 13577 13432 13186 13115 12087 12781 12543 12080
_nu:&_ 1990.8 20062 19826 19534 19356 18827 18237 B3¢9 17922 17221 16040 153300 14272 1377.5 13546 13462 13306 13048 13004 12865 12635 {2442 11947
162 19632 19422 19138 18976 18448 17860 18021 17558 16877 15757  1507.3 13984 13470 13233 13945 13008 127952 12714 12585 12358 12178 11699
?c.a 19329 19461 18225 18810 18898 18198 1T82.6 - 176U 17356 18724 1570.3 15046 14031 13530 0 13347 13222 13088 42821 12774 12662 12408 12751 11801
Cement mig. 1851.0 16815 16491 16286 16125 15591 15164 15367 14698 14074 13372 12745 11724 11276 11048 10881 10876 1089.6 10651 10541 10412 10223 9875
Chemical 15904, 16070 15941 15763 15¥25 15311 14909 15120 14607 13972 13195 12561 11577 11187 10966 10906 10803 10830 10578 10470 10339 10140 9779
Church' 13130 13136 12022 12693 12458 12154 11866 11856 11576 11276 10925 10538 2934 9624 w484 9393 9332 9147 0Du6 8016 8815 8708 878
Clay products AB47.2 16543 16304 18173 15986 15483 15036 15148 Y4483 13887 13178 12580 1853 11250 11035 10955 10838 10661 10622 10532 10351 10i58 9818
Contractor’s aquip. 1831.8 18321 18125 17880 17543 16881 1650.9 1657.3 1B0GE 15601 15066 14419 13497 13117 12818 12815 12740 12521 12422 42783 12046 11851 11534
Creamery & dairy 17114 17232 17025 16791 16634 16187 15684 15750 15406 14780 13809 13157 12228 11815 11823 11546 11421 11191 11146 11035 10849 10664 102386
Dwelling 10986 1097.5 10830 10702 1051.1  1024.8 9991 9934 89738 948.2 913.0 8745 831.8 8135 8042 796.9 790.2 776.2 7709 7644 753.0 7416 TI7.5
Elec, equip. mig. 15364 1573.2 15744 1566.0 15772 15373 14659 14860 14621 13944 13028 12272 11263 10804 - 10623 10634 10559 10368 10407 10360 10265 10151 a68.7
Elec. power equip. 18457 14888 14048 13628 15102 14772 14000 14112 14056 13323 12308 1147.3 . 10485 10026 9863 9900 9830 9639 9584 9667 9615 6536 Q058
Flaur, cereal & Teed 15084 16118 15852 15756 15628 15191 14710 . 14832 14450 13858 13007 12380 1147.0 11063 30878 1081.¢ 10703 10454 10450 10345 10194 10038 954
Garage 1702.2 17203 17103 16914 16796 16362 15877 0 16004 15884 5010 14341 0 13703 12808 12412 12236 12151 12050 11843 11808 11728 #1575 {1405 11020
Glass mig. 1522.8 ¢ 1539.1 0 15291 15124 1503.8 14601 14120 14271 13815 13205 42464 11823 10868 10453 . 1025.2. 10200 10109 9914 9891 981.1 {683 9522 914.9
Haspital 1464.2 14730 14868 14383 14267 13887 13449 13464 13122 12845 11958 11423 10708 10384 10223 10152 10052 9864 983 9744 9502 G440 9088
Hotel 13846 13844 13641 12434 13235 12900 12572 - 12542 12244 11859 11296 10849 10256 99v.7 9B40 9759 9657  B4ATE. 9417 9315 9151 8594 8698
Laundry & cleaning 13620 13747 13635 13457 13357 120811 1257 126889 12276 31787 1118.0° 10700 © 9818 9573 9400 . SM8 8271 8098 | 9084 9013 BBLY 8735 B30
4TET 14818 14781 14580 14499 141030 13668 0 13792 13389 12913 12317 11813 10867 10583 10394 10337 10264 1007.1 . 1007.0 959.4 2825 9586 V72
16064 16238 16125 15932 15771 158312 14885 15092 14607 14441 135401 12968 12083 11650 11470 11399 11334 11433 11090 10988 108285 10879 1034G
ATBLT 17549  APSBT 17273 17277 16769 16214 16532 15932  1534.0 14534 13923 < 12899 12503 ¢ 12300 12277 12195 12023 12031 11917 11768 11564 11134
17573 17612 17416 17163 16839 16128 15615 15628 14948 14343 13738 13098 12080 11642 41421 11287 11207 11022 10972 10854 . 10882 10513 10198
W28 17317 17482 16888 16823 16307 15801 15834 7 15592 {5048 14306 13635 12688 12253 12074 12016 11955 19732 11727 11671 11458 11351 10978
12514 12524 12365 12218 12187 11908 0 11613 1184.3 . 11324 . 0867 10531 10124 957.7 9336 92200 . 9185 w»?q 8981 $94.2 287.1 8768 8631 #38.6
1788.0 18027 17780 A747F 17150 16886 16201 18212 15899 15367 14B7.7 14093 3202 12761 12574 12461 123820 12104 12049 0 11953 11677 11535 11188
17074 17133 16910 16651 16462 15994 15533 15610 15125 14553 13861 13095 12221 1821 11623 11535 11413 112001 11146 11023 10829 10643 10258
16484 1664.7 16513 1630.7 16224 1574.8 15247 15423 14909 14276 ¢ 13492 12853 11848 11417 11188 11122 11022 10817 . 1078.8 10684 10527 - 10343 9957
15521 1567.7 15525 15310 15168 14725 14267 14420 13875 13435 12788 12233 11286 10865 1066.2 10573 . 105038 108302 10275 10188  9o8sE 9855 | 8532

036



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case Nos.: L17-0018
Case Name: Ghahyaz v. Tenants
Property Address: 517 — 519 Oakland Avenue, Oakland, CA
Parties: No appearances by Tenants
Faramarz Tabatabai-Ghahyaz (Property Owner)
OWNER APPEAL:
Activity Date
Landlord Petition filed February 1, 2017

No Tenant Responses filed
Hearing Decision issued February 26, 2018

Owner Appeal filed March 19, 2018

037



100018 felBe

CITY OF O AKL AND For date stamp.
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM s
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 017FEB-1 PH 3:20
Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721
LANDLORD PETITION
FOR CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION
(OMC §8.22.030.B)

Please Fill Out This Form Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may result
in your petition being rejected or delayed. Attach to this petition copies of the documents that prove
your claim. Before completing this petition, please read the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, section
8.22.030. A hearing is required in all cases even if uncontested or irrefutable.

Section 1. Basic Information

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone
f/VMt k —r GA(LI’; é{j : i T 4. Day: i R
Fr*eal T & !/.g,hgﬂv Opdzlar A, CA TS (?/emw%-/
Your Representative’s Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone / /
Day:
Property Address APAJ g OO -OF /2~ COS-~06 ‘ Total number of units in bldg
S/77 o 85/9 Ot apA A’Vd : or parcel.
Osklprd, CA Al _ -y
Type of units (circle " Single Family Residence J\ Condominium Apartment or Room
one) N (SFR) ey :
If an SFR or condominium, can the unit be sold and .
deeded separately from all other units on the property? Yes @ |

Section 2. Tenants. You must attach a list of the names and addresses, with unit numbers, of all tenants
residing in the unit/building you are claiming is exempt.

Section 3. Claim(s) of Exemption: A Certificate of Exemption may be granted only for dwelling units that
are permanently exempt from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

New Construction: This may apply to individual units. The unit was newly constructed and a
certification of occupancy was issued for it on or after January 1, 1983.

Substantial Rehabilitation: This applies only to entire buildings. An owner must have spent a

. minimum of fifty (50) percent of the average basic cost for new construction for a rehabilitation

" project. The average basic cost for new construction is determined using tables issued by the Chief
Building Inspector applicable for the time period when the Substantial Rehabilitation was completed.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 1/23/07 1

038



N

Single-Family or Condominium (Costa-Hawkins): Applies to Single Family Residences anq
‘condominiums only. If claiming exemption under the Costa-Hawkins Rental Housing Act (Civ. C.
§1954.50, et seq.), please answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being a notice of rent increase under Civil Code Section 8277
Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

Are there any outstanding violations of building, housmg, fire, or safety codes in the unit or
building?

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase
the entire building?

8. When did the tenant move into the unit?

S et

SN

I (We) petition for exemption on the following grounds (Check all that apply):

New Construction

‘>< Substantial Rehabilitation

Single Family Residence or Condominium
(Costa-Hawkins)

Section 4. Verification Each petitioner must sign this section.

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that
everything I stated and responded in this petition is true and that ail of the documents attached

to the pe‘tltlon are corre m copies of the originals.
9“”/ 3 i,

-

Owner’s Signature Date
ST \;QM(%Qt Jeu,30, 1%
Owner’s Signature ' ~ “Date

Important Information

Burden of Proof The burden of proving and producing evidence for the exemption is on the Owner. A
Certificate of Exemption is a final determmatlon of exemption absent fraud or mistake.

File Review_Your tenant(s) will be given the opportunity to file a response to this petition within 35 days of
notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. You will be sent a copy of the tenant’s Response. Copies of
attachments to the Response form will not be sent to you. However, you may review any attachments in the
Rent Program Office. Files are available for review by appointment only. For an appointment to review a file,
call (510) 238-3721. Please allow six weeks from the date of filing for notification processing and expiration
of the tenant’s response time before scheduling a file review.

Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption, rev. 1/23/07 2

039



H ’ 7 ?‘

A \ CALIFORNIA

% ASSOCIATION ADDENDUM RENT ¢ ‘
¥ OF REALTORS® (C.AR. Form ADM, Revised 12/15) f
¢ / Wires -1 PH 3

The following terms and conditions are hereby incorporated in and made a part of the: l:] Purchase Agreement, E Residential Legse
or Month-to-Month Rental Agreement, DTransfer Disclosure Statement (Note: An amendment to the TDS may give the Buyer a right
to rescind), [ ]Other :

dated Dciober 17, 2016 , on property known as 577 Qakiand Ave

Oakiand, CA 948711-5428
in which Andrew Barinov, Dan Kies, Joshua Encarnacion and Maurice Witkins is referred to as (“Buyer/Tenant")
and Mira Viste Properties is referred to as ("Seller/Landlord").
Tenanis will receive g one time credit of $1500 on their first month's rent in exchange for work fo be done on dining room.

Tepants agree fo acquire and produce proof of renters insurance for the duration of the fease and any subseguent leese

reneweals

Home rencvated more than 100% of purchase price and is nof supjfect fo Tity of Qafkfand Rent Board reguiation,

Uit shares a mefer and will be hilfed 66% af uysage on th

s 10t reter. Owier whif pay that 80% with a fimit of 8200 on the
2! bift, After that, fenants of 517 zre responsibie for 60% of the overage. :

Trash: 5%7 wilf be assigned 80% of trash BHL Qwner wiff pav that 60% o fo a foteé il of 3200, After that, tenants of 557 are
spensibie for 80% of the overage. .

3

The foregoing terms and conditions are hereby agreed to, and the undersigned acknowledge receipt of a copy of this document.

Date 10/21/2016 7:05:02 Date
10/21/2016 11:59
p PM GMT z Z 2 4D
Buyer/‘f‘enant % } 7 2 Seller/Landlord (W(zra r))m‘a (pro‘berfre.y 10/20/2016 1:48:56
Andrew Barinov, Dan Kics 1 Mira Vista Properties
Joshua | pssrice s g
Buyer/Tenant Encarmacion ¥ 'WHR01821640 e Seller/Landlord

Jashua Encarpacion and Maurice Wiikins

© 1986-2015, California Association of REALTORS®, Inc. United States copyright law (Title 17 U.S. Code) forbids the unauthorized distribution, display and reproduction of
this form, or any portion thereof, by photocopy machine or any other means, including facsimile cr computerized formats.

THIS FORM HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® (C.A.R.). NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY
OR ACCURACY OF ANY PROVISION IN ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. A REAL ESTATE BROKER IS THE PERSON QUALIFIED TO ADVISE ON REAL ESTATE
TRANSACTIONS. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE, CONSULT AN APPROPRIATE PROFESSIONAL.

This form is made available to real estate professionals through an agreement with or purchase from the California Association of REALTORS®. It is not intended to identify
the user as a REALTOR®. REALTOR® is a registered collective membership mark which may be used only by members of the NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®
who subscribe to its Code of Ethics.

t ] Published and Distributed by:

- J REAL ESTATE BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

8 subsidiary of the California Association of REALTORS® |
» 525 South Virgil Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90020 Reviewed by Date RQUAL NOUSING

<

ADM REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 1 OF 1)
ADDENDUM (ADM PAGE 1 OF 1)

O |
Mira Yista Properties, 305 Camelia Street Berkeley, CA 94710 g Phone: (510)315—?526 1 Fax: (866) 240-1819 517 Oakuid Hve. i
Chad Shepard Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com i

040



RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR
MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT

(C.A.R. Form LR, Revised 12/15)

Hifra Vista Properties ("Landlord") and

- = .
Andrew Barinoy, Dan Klos, Joshea Encarnacion and Maurice Witisins ("Tenant") agree as follows:

PROPERTY:

A. Landlord rents to Tenant and Tenant rents from Landlord, the real property and improvements described as: 577 Qakfand Ave. Qaiiand, \;"/
04671-5428 (_Premlses ).

B. The Premises are for the sole use as a personal residence by the following named person(s) only: Andrew Bzrirev, Das Kigs, Joshus
Encarnacion and Maurice Witkins

C. The following personal property, maintained pursuant to paragraph 11, is included: e

or[_](if checked) the personal property on the attached addendum.
D. The Premises may be subject to a local rent control ordinance . ;
TERM: The term begins on (date) Qctober 29, 2015 ("Commencement Date"), (Check 4 or B):

L__IA Month-to-Month: and continues as a month-to-month tenancy. Tenant may terminate the tenancy by giving written notice at least 30 days

prior to the intended termination date. Landlord may terminate the tenancy by giving written notice as provided by law. Such notices may be
given on any date.

B. Lease: and shall terminate on (date) October 28, 2057 at i _pdAawr[Jpm.

Tenant shall vacate the Premises upon termination of the Agreement, unless: (i) Landlord and Tenant have extended this Agreement in
writing or signed a new agreement; (ii) mandated by local rent control law; or (iii) Landlord accepts Rent from Tenant (other than past due
Rent), in which case a month-to-month tenancy shall be created which either party may terminate as specified in paragraph 2A. Rgnt.shall
be at a rate agreed to by Landlord and Tenant, or as allowed by law. All other terms and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full

force and effect.

RENT: "Rent" shall mean all monetary obligations of Tenant to Landlord under the terms of the Agreement, except security deposit.

A. Tenant agrees to pay $ 4.506.0¢ per month for the term of the Agreement.

B. Rentis payable in advance on the 1st (or[_] ) day of each calendar month, and is delinquent on the next day. )

C. If Commencement Date falls on any day other than the day Rent is payable under paragraph 3B, and Tenant has paid one full month’s Rent in
advance of Commencement Date, Rent for the second calendar month shall be prorated and Tenant shall pay 1/30th of the monthly rent per day
for each day remaining in prorated second month.

R. PAYMENT: Rent shall be paid by [ | personal check, [ ] money order, [ ] cashier's check,or [X]other onfine via tenant portal 1o
(name) Mira Wists Propertiss (phone) (576}542-28%2 at
(address) 805 Camelia Street. Berkeley, CA 34710 , (or
at any other location subsequently specified by Landlord in writing to Tenant) (and [ ]if checked, rent may be paid personally, between the hours
of and on the following days ). If any payment
is returned for non-sufficient funds (“NSF”) or because tenant stops payment, then, after that: (i) Landlord may, in writing, require Tenant to pay
Rent in cash for three months and (ji) all future Rent shall be paid by [ | money order, or [ ]cashier's check.

E. Rent payments received by Landlord shall be applied to the earliest amount(s) due or past due.

SECURITY DEPOSIT:

A. Tenantagreestopay$ 4,500.00 as a security deposit. Security deposit will be [X]transferred to and held by the
Owner of the Premises, or[ ] held in Owner's Broker's trust account.

B. All or any portion of the security deposit may be used, as reasonably necessary, to: (i) cure Tenant's default in payment of Rent (which includes
Late Charges, NSF fees or other sums due); (ii) repair damage, excluding ordinary wear and tear, caused by Tenant or by a guest or licensee of
Tenant; (iii) clean Premises, if necessary, upon termination of the tenancy; and (iv) replace or retum personal property or appurtenances.
SECURITY DEPOSIT SHALL NOT BE USED BY TENANT IN LIEU OF PAYMENT OF LAST MONTH'S RENT. If all or any portion of the
security deposit is used during the tenancy, Tenant agrees to reinstate the total security deposit within five days after written notice is delivered to
Tenant. Within 21 days after Tenant vacates the Premises, Landlord shall: (1) furnish Tenant an itemized statement indicating the amount of any
security deposit received and the basis for its disposition and supporting documentation as required by California Civil Code § 1950.5(g); and (2)
return any remaining portion of the security deposit to Tenant.

C. Security deposit will not be returned until all Tenants have vacated the Premises and all keys returned. Any security deposit returned
by check shall be made out to all Tenants named on this Agreement, or as subsequently modified.

D. No interest will be paid on security deposit unless required by local law.

E. If the security deposit is held by Owner, Tenant agrees not to hold Broker responsible for its return. If the security deposit is held in Owner's
Broker's trust account, and Broker's authority is terminated before expiration of this Agreement, and security deposit is released to someone
other than Tenant, then Broker shall notify Tenant, in writing, where and to whomn security deposit has been released. Once Tenant has been
provided such notice, Tenant agrees not to hold Broker responsible for the security deposit.

MOVE-IN COSTS RECEIVED/DUE: Move-in funds made payable to fire Vistz Properties viz opfine tenant portal

shall be paid by [ ] personal check, [ ] money order, or[ ] cashier's check.

Category Total Due Payment Received Balance Due Date Due
Rent from __ 76/29/20¢§
to_ §0/37/2¢16 _ (date) $443.82 5443.83
*Security Deposit 34,500.00 $4,560.00
Other
Other
Total 34,943.83 $4,9£3.33

*The maximum amount Landlord may receive as security deposit, however designated, cannot exceed two months' Rent for unfurnished premises, or

three months' Rent for furnished premises.

Tenant's Initials (70 ) lE Landiord's Initials ( <ALV Py )
© 2015, California Association of REALTORS®, Inc.
LR REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 1 OF 6) QUL HousiG

RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT (LR PAGE 1 OF 6)

Mira Vista Properties, 805 Cameclia Strcet Berkeley, CA 94710
Chad Shepard

Phone: (510)325-8526 Fax: (866) 240-1819 517 Oakland Ave.

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zIpLogix.com




Premises: 577 Qakiand Ave, Qakiand, CA 84617-542

e
i

Date: Qcieber 77, 2076

<

6. LATE CHARGE; RETURNED CHECKS: . ; t
A. Tenant acknowledges either late payment of Rent or issuance of a returned check may cause Landlord to incur costs and expenses, the exac

amounts of which are extremely difficult and impractical to determine. These costs may include, but are not limited to, pracessing, enfarcement
and accounting expenses, and late charges imposed on Landlord. If any installment of Rent due from Tenant is not received by Landlord wr_thln 5
(or[] ) calendar days after the date due, or if a check is returned, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, respectively, an additional
sum of § or 5.00¢ % of the Rent due as a Late Charge and $25.00 as a NSF fee for the first retumed
check and $35.00 as a NSF fee for each additional returned check, either or both of which shall be deemed additional Rent. .
Landlord and Tenant agree that these charges represent a fair and reasonable estimate of the costs Landlord may incur by reason of Tenant's
late or NSF payment. Any Late Charge or NSF fee due shall be paid with the current installment of Rent. Landlord's acceptance of any Late
Charge or NSF fee shall not constitute a waiver as to any default of Tenant. Landlord's right to collect a Late Charge or NSF fee shall not be
deemed an extension of the date Rent is due under paragraph 3 or prevent Landlord from exercising any other rights and remedies under this
Agreement and as provided by law.

7. PARKING: (Check A or B)

[JA.  Parking is permitted as follows:

The right to parking U is Dis not included in the Rent charged pursuant to paragraph 3. If not included in the Rent, the parklpg rental fee
shall be an additional $ per month. Parking space(s) are to be used for parking properly lsc_enseq and
operable motor vehicles, except for trailers, boats, campers, buses or trucks (other than pick-up trucks). Tenant shall park in assigned
space(s) only. Parking space(s) are to be kept clean. Vehicles leaking oil, gas or other motor vehicle fluids shall not be parked on the
Premises. Mechanical work or storage of inoperable vehicles is not permitted in parking space(s) or elsewhere on the Premises.

OR[]B. Parking is not permitted on the Premises.

8. STORAGE: (Check A or B)
A

Storage is permitted as follows: :
The right to separate storage space [ ]is, [ ]is not, included in the Rent charged pursuant to paragraph 3. If not included in the Rent, storage
space fee shall be an additional $ per month. Tenant shall store only personal prope{ty Tenant owns, and
shall not store property claimed by another or in which another has any right, title or interest. Tenant shall not store any 'lmproperly packaged
food or perishable goods, flammable materials, explosives, hazardous waste or other inherently dangerous material, or illegal substances.

OR[x]B. Except for Tenant's personal property, contained entirely within the Premises, storage is not permitted on the Premises.

2. UTILITIES: Tenant agrees to pay for all utilities and services, and the following charges: BSee acifendumn 1

10.

11.

LR REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 2 OF 6)

Pl

except , which shall be paid for by Landlord. If any utilities are not separately metered,
. Tenant shall pay Tenant's proportional share, as reasonably determined and directed by Landlord. If utilities are separately metered, Tenant s.hall
place utilities in Tenant's name as of the Commencement Date. Landlord is only responsible for installing and maintaining one usable telephone jack
and one telephone line to the Premises. Tenant shall pay any cost for conversion from existing utilities service provider. ) :
CONDITION OF PREMISES: Tenant has examined Premises and, if any, all furniture, furnishings, appliances, landscaping and fixtures, including
smoke detector(s).

(Check all that apply:)

l:]A. Tenant acknowledges these items are clean and in operable condition, with the following exceptions:

]

B.  Tenant's acknowledgment of the condition of these items is contained in an attached statement of condition (C_.A.R. Fo_rm MIMO). ;
C. (i) Landlord will Deliver to Tenant a statement of condition (C.A.R. Form MIMO) [ within 3 days after execution of this Agreement; [ ] prior

to the Commencement Date; [ ] within 3 days after the Commencement Date. g P
(if) Tenant shall complete and return the MIMO to Landlord within 3 (or [ ] ) days after Dehyery. Tenant's failure to return the
MIMO within that time shall conclusively be deemed Tenant's Acknowledgement of the condition as stated in the MIMO.

[JD. Tenant will provide Landlord a list of items that are damaged or not in operable condition within 3 (or [] ) days after

[JE. Other:

Commencement Date, not as a contingency of this Agreement but rather as an acknowledgement of the condition of the Premises.

MAINTENANCE USE AND REPORTING:

A

o w

m.g

Tenant shall properly use, operate and safeguard Premises, including if applicable, any landscaping, furniture, furnishings and applignces, and
all mechanical, electrical, gas and plumbing fixtures, carbon monoxide devices and smoke alarms, and keep them and the Premises clean,
sanitary and well ventilated. Tenant shall be responsible for checking and maintaining all carbon monoxide detectors and any additional phone
lines beyond the one line and jack that Landlord shall provide and maintain. Tenant shall immediately notify Landlord, in writing, of any problem,
malfunction or damage with any item including carbon monoxide devices and smoke alamms on the property. Tenant shall be charged for all
repairs or replacements caused by Tenant, pets, guests or licensees of Tenant, excluding ordinary wear and tear. Tenant shall be charged for all
damage to Premises as a result of failure to report a problem in a timely manner. Tenant shall be charged for repair of drain blockages or
stoppages, unless caused by defective plumbing parts or tree roots invading sewer lines.

[]Landlord DTenant shall water the garden, landscaping, trees and shrubs, except:

[ JLandlord [>] Tenant shall maintain the garden, landscaping, trees and shrubs, except:

[_JLandlord [ ] Tenant shall maintain el
Landlord and Tenant agree that State or local water use restrictions shall supersede any obligation of Landlord or Tenant to water or maintain

any garden, landscaping, trees or shrubs pursuant to 11B, 11C, and 11D. g
Tenant's failure to maintain any item for which Tenant is responsible shall give Landlord the right to hire someone to perform such maintenance

and charge Tenant to cover the cost of such maintenance.

- The following items of personal property are included in the Premises without warranty and Landlord will not maintain, repair or replace them:

Tenant's Initials ( ALI// ) ( ]-E ) Landlord's Initials ( VP )( )

RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT (LR PAGE 2 OF 6) EQUAL HOLSING

OPPORTUNITY
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipl ogix.com 517 Oakland Ave.

042



Premises: 577 Qa&fsnd Ave, Ozkiand, CA 04811-5428

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

Y ‘;,\,
> 7

Date: Qctober 77, 2016

NEIGHBORHOOD CONDITIONS: Tenant is advised to satisfy him or herself as to neighborhood or area conditions, including schools, proximity and
adequacy of law enforcement, crime statistics, proximity of registered felons or offenders, fire protection, other governmental services, availability,
adequacy and cost of any wired, wireless internet connections or other telecommunications of other technology services and installations, proximity
to commercial, industrial or agricultural activities, existing and proposed transportation, construction and development that may affect noise, view, or
traffic, airport noise, noise or odor from any source, wild and domestic animals, other nuisances, hazards, or circumstances, cemeteries, facilities
and condition of common areas, conditions and influences of significance to certain cultures and/or religions, and personal needs, requirements and
preferences of Tenant. :
PETS: Unless otherwise provided in California Civil Code §54.2, no animal or pet shall be kept on or about the Premises without Landlord's prior
written consent, [_] except as agreed to in the attached Pet Addendum (C.A.R. Form PET).
[X] (If checked) NO SMOKING: No smoking of any substance is allowed on the Premises or common areas. If smoking does occur on the Premises
or common areas, (i) Tenant is responsible for all damage caused by the smoking including, but not limited to stains, burns, odors and removal of
debris; (ii) Tenant is in breach of this Agreement; (jii) Tenant, guests, and all others may be required to leave the Premises; and (iv) Tenant
acknowledges that in order to remove odor caused by smoking, Landlord may need to replace carpet and drapes and paint the entire premises
regardless of when these items were last cleaned, replaced, or repainted. Such actions and other necessary steps will impact the return of any
security deposit. The Premises or common areas may be subject to a local non-smoking ordinance.

RULES/REGULATIONS:

A. Tenant agrees to comply with all Landlord rules and regulations that are at any time posted on the Premises or delivered to Tenant. Tenant shall
not, and shall ensure that guests and licensees of Tenant shall not, disturb, annoy, endanger or interfere with other tenants of the building or
neighbors, or use the Premises for any unlawful purposes, including, but not limited to, using, manufacturing, selling, storing or transporting illicit
drugs or other contraband, or violate any law or ordinance, or commit a waste or nuisanceon or about the Premises.

B. (If applicable, check one})

EL Landlord shall provide Tenant with a copy of the rules and regulations within days or

OR|_|2. Tenant has been provided with, and acknowledges receipt of, a copy of the rules and regulations.

[] (if checked) CONDOMINIUM; PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT:

A. The Premises are a unit in a condominium, planned unit development, common interest subdivision or other development governed by a
homeowners' association (“HOA"). The name of the HOA is - Tenant agrees
to comply with all HOA covenants, conditions and restrictions, bylaws, rules and regulations and decisions ("HOA Rules"). Landlord shall provide
Tenant copies of HOA Rules, if any. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for any fines or chaiges imposed by HOA or other authorities, due to any
violation by Tenant, or the guests or licensees of Tenant.

B. (Check one)

[:] 1. Landlord shall provide Tenant with a copy of the HOA Rules within days

or
OR I___I 2. Tenant has been provided with, and acknowledges receipt of, a copy of the HOA Rules.

ALTERATIONS; REPAIRS: Unless otherwise specified by law or paragraph 29C, without Landlord's prior written consent, (i) Tenant shall not make
any repairs, alterations or improvements in or about the Premises including: painting, wallpapering, adding or changing locks, installing antenna or
satellite dish(es), placing signs, displays or exhibits, or using screws, fastening devices, large nails or adhesive materials; (i) Landlord shall not be
responsible for the costs of alterations or repairs made by Tenant; (iii) Tenant shall not deduct from Rent the costs of any repairs, alterations or
improvements; and (iv) any deduction made by Tenant shall be considered unpaid Rent.

KEYS; LOCKS:

A. Tenant acknowledges receipt of (or Tenant will receive[ ] prior to the Commencement Date, or[] ):
4 key(s)to Premises, ] remote control device(s) for garage door/gate opener(s),
7 key(s) to mailbox, 0 )
0 key(s) to common area(s), .

B. Tenant acknowledges that locks to the Premises[ ] have, [ ] have not, been re-keyed.

C. If Tenant re-keys existing locks or opening devices, Tenant shall immediately deliver copies of all keys to Landlord. Tenant shall
pay all costs and charges related to loss of any keys or opening devices. Tenant may not remove locks, even if installed by Tenant.

ENTRY:

A. Tenant shall make Premises available to Landlord or Landlord's representative for the purpose of entering to make necessary or agreed repairs,
(including, but not limited to, installing, repairing, testing, and maintaining smoke detectors and carbon monoxide devices, and bracing,
anchoring or strapping water heaters), decorations, alterations, or improvements, or to supply necessary or agreed services, or to show
Premises to prospective or actual purchasers, tenants, mortgagees, lenders, appraisers, or contractors.

B. Landlord and Tenant agree that 24-hour written notice shall be reasonable and sufficient notice, except as follows: (1) 48-hour written notice is
required to conduct an inspection of the Premises prior to the Tenant moving out, unless the Tenant waives the right to such notice. (2) If
Landlord has in writing informed Tenant that the Premises are for sale and that Tenant will be notified orally to show the premises (C.A.R. Form
NSE), then, for the next 120 days following the delivery of the NSE, notice may be given orally to show the Premises to actual or prospective
purchasers. (3) No written notice is required if Landlord and Tenant orally agree to an entry for agreed services or repairs if the date and time of
entry are within one week of the oral agreement. (4) No notice is required: (i) to enter in case of an emergency; (ii) if the Tenant is present and
consents at the time of entry; or (iii) if the Tenant has abandoned or surrendered the Premises.

€. [](if checked) Tenant authorizes the use of a keysafe/lockbox to allow entry into the Premises and agrees to sign a keysafe/lockbox addendum
(C.A.R. Form KLA).

SIGNS: Tenant authorizes Landlord to place FOR SALE/LEASE signs on the Premises.

ASSIGNMENT; SUBLETTING: Tenant shall not sublet all or any part of Premises, or assign or transfer this Agreement or any interest in it, without

Landlord's prior written consent. Unless such consent is obtained, any assignment, transfer or subletting of Premises or this Agreement or tenancy,

by voluntary act of Tenant, operation of law or otherwise, shall, at the option of Landlord, terminate this Agreement. Any proposed assignee,

transferee or sublessee shall submit to Landlord an application and credit information for Landlord's approval and, if approved, sign a separate
written agreement with Landlord and Tenant. Landlord's consent to any one assignment, transfer or sublease, shall not be construed as consent to
any subsequent assignment, transfer or sublease and does not release Tenant of Tenant's obligations under this Agreement.

Tenants Initials Aﬁ ) ]E ) Landiord's Initials ( VP )
LR REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 3 OF 6) i

RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT (LR PAGE 3 OF 6)
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026  vwwww.ziplogix.com 517 Oakland Ave.

043



Premises:- 577 Qakland Ave, CGakland, CA 94617-5428
22.

23.(%]

Date: Qctober 17, 28¢5

JOINT AND INDIVIDUAL OBLIGATIONS: If there is more than one Tenant, each one shall be individually and completely FeSponS.ibIe for the
performance of all obligations of Tenant under this Agreement, jointly with every other Tenant, and individually, whether or not in possession.
LEAD-BASED PAINT (If checked): Premises were constructed prior to 1978. In accordance with federal law, Landlord gives and Tenant
acknowledges receipt of the disclosures on the attached form (C.A.R. Form FLD) and a federally approved lead pamphlet.

24. [:] MILITARY ORDNANCE DISCLOSURE: (If applicable and known to Landlord) Premises are located within one mile of an area once used for

military training, and may contain potentially explosive munitions.

25.] PERIODIC PEST CONTROL: Landlord has entered into a contract for periodic pest control treatment of the Premises and shall give Tenant a

copy of the notice originally given to Landlord by the pest control company.

26.[] METHAMPHETAMINE CONTAMINATION: Prior to signing this Agreement, Landlord has given Tenant a notice that a health official has issued

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

an order prohibiting occupancy of the property because of methamphetamine contamination. A copy of the notice and order are attached.

MEGAN'S LAW DATABASE DISCLOSURE: Notice: Pursuant to Section 290.46 of the Penal Code, information about specified registered sex

offenders is made available to the public via an Internet Web site maintained by the Department of Justice at www.meganslaw.ca.gov. Depending on

an offender's criminal history, this information will include either the address at which the offender resides or the community of residenf;e and ZIP

Code in which he or she resides. (Neither Landlord nor Brokers, if any, are required to check this website. If Tenant wants further information, Tenant

should obtain information directly from this website.)

POSSESSION:

A. Tenant is not in possession of the Premises. If Landlord is unable to deliver possession of Premises on Commencement Date, such Date shall
be extended to the date on which possession is made available to Tenant. If Landlord is unable to deliver possession within 5 (or i

) calendar days after agreed Commencement Date, Tenant may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Landlord,
and shall be refurided all Rent and security deposit paid. Possession is deemed terminated when Tenant has returned all keys to the Premises
to Landlord.

B. []Tenantis already in possession of the Premises.

TENANT'S OBLIGATIONS UPON VACATING PREMISES:

A. Upon termination of this Agreement, Tenant shall: (i) give Landlord all copies of all keys or opening devices to Premises,
including any common areas; (ii) vacate and surrender Premises to Landlord, empty of all persons; (i) vacate any/all parking
and/or storage space; (iv) clean and deliver Premises, as specified in paragraph C below, to Landlord in the same condition as
referenced in paragraph 10; (v) remove all debris; (vi) give written notice to Landlord of Tenant's forwarding address; and (vii)

8. All alterations/improvements made by or caused to be made by Tenant, with or without Landlord's consent, become the property
of Landlord upon termination. Landlord may charge Tenant for restoration of the Premises to the condition it was in prior to any
alterations/improvements.

C. Right to Pre-Move-Out Inspection and Repairs: (i) After giving or receiving notice of termination of a tenancy (C.A.R. Form NTT), or before
the end of a lease, Tenant has the right to request that an inspection of the Premises take place prior to termination of the lease or rental (C.A.R.
Form NRI). If Tenant requests such an inspection, Tenant shall be given an opportunity to remedy identified deficiencies prior to termination,
consistent with the terms of this Agreement. (i) Any repairs or alterations made to the Premises as a result of this inspection (collectively,
“Repairs”) shall be made at Tenant's expense. Repairs may be performed by Tenant or. through others, who have adequate insurance and
licenses and are approved by Landlord. The work shall comply with applicable law, including governmental permit, inspection and approval
requirements. Repairs shall be performed in a good, skillful manner with materials of quality and appearance comparable to existing materials. It
is understood that exact restoration of appearance or cosmetic items following all Repairs may not be possible. (iii) Tenant shall: (a) obtain
receipts for Repairs performed by others; (b) prepare a written statement indicating the Repairs performed by Tenant and the date of such
Repairs; and (c) provide copies of receipts and statements to Landlord prior to termination. Paragraph 29C does not apply when the tenancy is
terminated pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure § 1161(2), (3) or (4).

BREACH OF CONTRACT; EARLY TERMINATION: In addition to any obligations established by paragraph 29, in the event of termination by
Tenant prior to completion of the original term of the Agreement, Tenant shall also be responsible for lost Rent, rental commissions, advertising
expenses and painting costs necessary to ready Premises for re-rental. Landlord may withhold any such amounts from Tenant's security deposit.
TEMPORARY RELOCATION: Subject to local law, Tenant agrees, upon demand of Landlord, to temporarily vacate Premises for a reasonable
period, to allow for fumigation (or other methods) to control wood destroying pests or organisms, or other repairs to Premises. Tenant agrees to
comply with all instructions and requirements necessary to prepare Premises to accommodate pest control, fumigation or other work, including
bagging or storage of food and medicine, and removal of perishables and valuables. Tenant shall only be entitied to a credit of Rent equal to the per
diem Rent for the period of time Tenant is required to vacate Premises.
DAMAGE TO PREMISES: If, by no fault of Tenant, Premises are totally or partially damaged or destroyed by fire, earthquake, accident or other
casualty that render Premises totally or partially uninhabitable, either Landlord or Tenant may terminate this Agreement by giving the other written
notice. Rent shall be abated as of the date Premises become totally or partially uninhabitable. The abated amount shall be the current monthly Rent
prorated on a 30-day period. If the Agreement is not terminated, Landlord shall promptly repair the damage, and Rent shall be reduced based on the
extent to which the damage interferes with Tenant's reasonable use of Premises. If damage occurs as a result of an act of Tenant or Tenant's
guests, only Landlord shall have the right of termination, and no reduction in Rent shall be made.

INSURANCE: Tenant's or guest's personal property and vehicles are not insured by Landlord, manager or, if applicable, HOA, against loss or

damage due to fire, theft, vandalism, rain, water, criminal or negligent acts of others, or any other cause. Tenant is advised to carry Tenant's own

insurance (renter's insurance) to protect Tenant from any such loss or damage. Tenant shall comply with any requirement imposed on Tenant
by Landlord's insurer to avoid: (i) an increase in Landlord's insurance premium (or Tenant shall pay for the increase in premium); or (ii) loss of
insurance.

WATERBEDS/PORTABLE WASHERS: Tenant shall not use or have waterbeds on the Premises unless: (i) Tenant obtains a valid waterbed

insurance policy; (i) Tenant increases the security deposit in an amount equal to one-half of one month's Rent; and (iii) the bed conforms to the floor

load capacity of Premises. Tenant shall not use on the Premises |%| Portable DishwasherlZ] Portable Washing Machine.

WAIVER: The waiver of any breach shall not be construed as a continuing waiver of the same or any subsequent breach.

Tenant's Initials ( AL )( IE ) Landord's Initials (- VP y( )

LR REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 4 OF 6) . QUL oSG

RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT (LR PAGE 4 OF 6)

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com 517 Oakland Ave.

044



Premises: 577 Qakiand Ave, Qakiond. CA 84877-5428

36

37.

38.

39.

40.

41,
42.

43.

44,

Date: October 17, 2048

NOTICE: Notices may be served at the following address, or at any other location subsequently designated:
Landlord: #frz Vistz FProperties Tenant: Andrew Barinov et al
805 Camefia Sireet 517 Cakiand Ave.

Berkeley, CA 84779 Ookiand, OA 84677

TENANT ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE: Tenant shall execute and retum a tenant estoppel certificate delivered to Tenant by Landlord or Landlord's agent
within 3 days after its receipt. Failure to comply with this requirement shall be deemed Tenant's acknowledgment that the tenant estoppel certificate
is true and correct, and may be relied upon by a lender or purchaser.

REPRESENTATION :

A. TENANT REPRESENTATION; OBLIGATIONS REGARDING OCCUPANTS; CREDIT: Tenant warrants that all statements in Tenant's reptal

application are accurate. Landlord requires all occupants 18 years of age or older and all emancipated minors to complete a lease rental application.

Tenant acknowledges this requirement and agrees to notify Landlord when any occupant of the Premises reaches the age of 18 or becomes an

emancipated minor. Tenant authorizes Landlord and Broker(s) to obtain Tenant's credit repott periodically during the tenancy in connection with the

modification or enforcement of this Agreement. Landlord may cancel this Agreement: (i) before occupancy begins; (ii) upon disapproval of the credit
report(s); or (iii) at any time, upon discovering that information in Tenant's application is false. A negative credit report reflecting on Tenant's record
may be submitted to a credit reporting agency if Tenant fails to fulfill the terms of payment and other obligations under this Agreement.

B. LANDLORD REPRESENTATIONS: Landlord warrants that, unless otherwise specified in writing, Landlord is unaware of (i) any recorded

Notices of Default affecting the Premise; (ii) any delinquent amounts due under any loan secured by the Premises; and (iii) any bankruptcy

proceeding affecting the Premises.

MEDIATION:

A. Consistent with paragraphs B and C below, Landlord and Tenant agree to mediate any dispute or claim arising between them out of this
Agreement, or any resulting transaction, before resorting to court action. Mediation fees, if any, shall be divided equally among the parties
involved. If, for any dispute or claim to which this paragraph applies, any party commences an action without first attempting to resolve the
matter through mediation, or refuses to mediate after a request has been made, then that party shall not be entitled to recover attorney fees,
even if they would otherwise be available to that party in any such action.

B. The following matters are excluded from mediation: (i) an unlawful detainer action; (if) the filing or enforcement of a mechanic's lien; and (iii) any
matter within the jurisdiction of a probate, small claims or bankruptcy court. The filing of a court action to enable the recording of & notice of
pending action, for order of attachment, receivership, injunction, or other provisional remedies, shall not constitute a waiver of the mediation
provision.

C. Landlord and Tenant agree to mediate disputes or claims involving Listing Agent, Leasing Agent or property manager (“Broker”), provided
Broker shall have agreed to such mediation prior to, or within a reasonable time after, the dispute or claim is presented to such Broker. Any
election by Broker to participate in mediation shall not result in Broker being deemed a party to this Agreement.

ATTORNEY FEES: In any action or proceeding arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party between Landlord and Tenant shall be entitled to

reasonable attorney fees and costs, collectively not to exceed $1,000 (or $ ), except as provided in paragraph 39A.

C.A.R. FORM: C.A.R. Form means the specific form referenced or another comparable form agreed to by the parties.

OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS; SUPPLEMENTS: [ ] Interpreter/Translator Agreement (C.A.R. Form ITA),

Keysafe/Lockbox Addendum (C.A.R. Form KLA); g} Lead-Based Paint and Lead-Based Paint Hazards Disclosure (C.A.R. Form FLD);

Landlord in Default Addendum (C.A.R. Form LID)

P

The following ATTACHED supplements are incorporated in this Agreement: Addendun:

TIME OF ESSENCE; ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES: Time is of the essence. All understandings between the parties are incorporated in this

Agreement. Its terms are intended by the parties as a final, complete and exclusive expression of their Agreement with respect to its subject matter,

and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior agreement or contemporaneous oral agreement. If any provision of this Agreement is held to

be ineffective or invalid, the remaining provisions will nevertheless be given full force and effect. Neither this Agreement nor any provision in it may

be extended, amended, modified, altered or changed except in writing. This Agreement is subject to California landlord-tenant law and shall

incorporate all changes required by amendment or successors to such law. This Agreement and any supplement, addendum or madification,

including any copy, may be signed in two or more counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same writing.

AGENCY:

A. CONFIRMATION: The following agency relationship(s) are hereby confirmed for this transaction:
Listing Agent: (Print firm name)
is the agent of (check one): [ the Landlord exclusively; or[_|both the Landlord and Tenant.
Leasing Agent: (Print firm name)
(if not same as Listing Agent) is the agent of (check one): [ ]the Tenant exclusively; or [Jthe Landlord exclusively; or [Jboth the Tenant and
Landlord.

B. DISCLOSURE: D (If checked): The term of this lease exceeds one year. A disclosure regarding real estate agency relationships (C.A.R. Form
AD) has been provided to Landlord and Tenant, who each acknowledge its receipt.

45.[] TENANT COMPENSATION TO BROKER: Upon execution of this Agreement, Tenant agrees to pay compensation to Broker as specified in a

separate written agreement between Tenant and Broker.

46.D INTERPRETER/TRANSLATOR: The terms of this Agreement have been interpreted for Tenant into the following language:

LR REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 5 OF 6)

. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge receipt of

the attached interpreter/translator agreement (C.A.R. Form ITA).

Tenant's Initials ( /)\{j ) ( JE ) Landlord's Initials ( (W(fup)( )

A

RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT (LR PAGE 5 OF 6) | el
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026  www.zipLogix.com 517 Oakland Ave. REQRIUNTY

045



-\
i ; ¥

Date: Qctober 17, 2018

Premises: 517 Ozkiand Ave, Qakiand, CA $4611-5428

47. NOTICE OF RIGHT TO RECEIVE FOREIGN LANGUAGE TRANSLATION OF LEASE/RENTAL AGREEMENTS: California Civil Code requires a
landlord or property manager to provide a tenant with a foreign language translation copy of a lease or rental agreement. If the agreement was
negotiated primarily in Spanish, Chinese, Korean, Tagalog or Vietnamese. If applicable, every term of the lease/rental needs to be tl:anslated except
for, among others, names, dollar amounts and dates written as numerals, and words with no generally accepted non-English translation. _ ‘

48. OWNER COMPENSATION TO BROKER: Upon execution of this Agreement, Owner agrees to pay compensation to Broker as specified in a
separate written agreement between Owner and Broker (C.A.R. Form LL or LCA).

49, RECEIPT: If specified in paragraph 5, Landlord or Broker, acknowledges receipt of move-in funds.

on of the Premises; (b) cannot verify representations
advice or information that exceeds the knowledge,
re not also acting as Landlord in this Agreement,
t; and (f) do not decide upon the length or other
d assistance from appropriate

Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree Brokers: (a) do not guarantee the conditi
made by others; (c) cannot provide legal or tax advice; (d) will not provide other

education or experience required to obtain a real estate license. Furthermore, if Brokers @
Brokers: {e) do not decide what rental rate a Tenant should pay or Landlord should accep!
terms of tenancy. Landlord and Tenant agree that they will seek legal, tax, insurance and other desire
professionals.

Tenant agrees to rent the Premises on the above terms and conditions. 1012112016 11:59
Tenant %’" =3 >_77 ": Andrew Barinoy, Dan Kios Date 1012112016 7:04:57 PM GMT
Address 517 Qakiand Ave City Cakland State CA __ Zip 9461%-5428
Telephon? = Fax : o 10/22/2016 12:22
Tenant oShua Tncarnacion 7 Maurice WLQ/(LV\.S , A inz Date 1072112016 23:16:33 AM GMT
Address 577 Qakiand Ave City Qakiand State CA__ Zip 94677-5428
Telephone Fax E-mail foshuzenc@gmailcom

D GUARANTEE: In consideration of the execution of this Agreement by and between Landlord and Tenant and for valuable
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned (“Guarantor’) does hereby: (i) guarantee
unconditionally to Landlord and Landlord's agents, successors and assigns, the prompt payment of Rent or other sums that
become due pursuant to this Agreement, including any and all court costs and attomey fees included in enforcing the Agreement;
(i) consent to any changes, modifications or alterations of any term in this Agreement agreed to by Landlord and Tenant; and (iii)
waive any right to require Landlord andfor Landlord's agents to proceed against Tenant for any default occurring under this

Agreement before seeking to enforce this Guarantee. :

Guarantor (Print Name)
Guarantor Date ‘
Address City State Zip
Telephone Fax E-mail :

Landlord agrees to rent the Premises on the above terms and conditions.

Landlord Mira Vita cpro[.mrl:’a Date /1o 14652 Landlord Date

fira Vistz Froperties

&
Address 285 Cametiz St, Berkeley, TA S4710-14%7
Telephone Fax E-mail cms.myvp@amail.com

REAL ESTATE BROKERS:

A. Real estate brokers who are not also Landlord under this Agreement are not parties to the Agreement between Landlord and Tenant.

B. Agency relationships are confirmed in paragraph 44.

C. COOPERATING BROKER COMPENSATION: Listing Broker agrees to pay Cooperating Broker (Leasing Firm) and Cooperating Broker agrees to
accept: (i) the amount specified in the MLS, provided Cooperating Broker is a Participant of the MLS in which the Property is offered for sale or
lease or a reciprocal MLS; or (i) [ ] (if checked) the amount specified in a separate written agreement between Listing Broker and Cooperating

Broker.

Real Estate Broker (Listing Firm) CalBRE Lic. #
By (Agent) : CalBRE Lic. # Date
Address City State Zip
Telephone Fax E-mail
Real Estate Broker (Leasing Firm) CalBRE Lic. #
By (Agent) CalBRE Lic. # Date
Address City State Zip
Telephone Fax E-mail
© 2015, California Association of REALTORS®, Inc. United States copyright law (Title 17 U.S. Code) forbids the unauthorized distribution, display and reproduction of this
form, or any portion thereof, by photocopy machine or any other means, including facsimile or computerized fomats.
ION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY

THIS FORM HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® (C.A.R.). NO REPRESENTAT
OR ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION IN ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. A REAL ESTATE BROKER IS THE PERSON QUALIFIED

TRANSACTIONS. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE, CONSULT AN APPROPRIATE PROFESSIONAL ; ; .
This form is made available to real estate professionals through an agreement with or purchase from the California Association of REALTORS®. It is not intended to identify

the user as a REALTOR®. REALTOR® is a registered collective membership mark which may be used only by members of the NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®
who subscribe to its Code of Ethics.
: Published and Distributed by:
REAL ESTATE BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.
a subsidiary of the California Association of REALTORS®
« 525 South Virgil Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90020 Reviewed by Date A‘\

LR REVISED 12/15 (PAGE 6 OF 6)
RESIDENTIAL LEASE OR MONTH-TO-MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT (LR PAGE 6 OF 6)

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com 517 Oakland Ave.

046

TO ADVISE ON REAL ESTATE

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY




et

,{% CAiiFGRN;A
%‘ﬂ% ASSCCIATION LEASE/RENTAL MOLD AND VENTILATION ADDENDUM

The following terms and conditions are hereby incorporated in and made a part of the Residential Lease or Month-to-Month

Rental Agreement, [ | Other :
dated 78/77/2218 , on property located at (Street Address) 577 Oakiand Ave

(Unit/Apartment) (City) Oakfand (State) _CA (Zip Code) 94611-5428 (“Premises”),
inwhich is referred to as “Tenant’ and
: Mira Vista Properties is referred to as “Landlord” (the term “Landlord”

includes Owner and agent). .
MOLD AND VENTILATION NOTIFICATION AND AGREEMENT: Except as may be noted at the time of Tena‘rit’s move
in inspection, Tenant agrees that the Premises is being delivered free of known damp or wet building materials (“mold”) or
mildew contamination. (If checked, [ ] the Premises was previously treated for elevated levels of mold that were detected.)
Tenant acknowledges and agrees that (i) mold can grow if the Premises is not properly maintained; (ii) moisture may
accumulate inside the Premises if it is not regularly aired out, especially in coastal communities; (iii) if moisture is allowed to
accumulate, it can lead to the growth of mold; and (iv) mold may grow even in a small amount of moisture. Tenant further
acknowledges and agrees that Tenant has a responsibility to maintain the Premises in order to inhibit mold growth and that
Tenant's agreement to do so is part of Tenant's material consideration in Landlord's agreement to rent the’Premises o
Tenant. Accordingly, Tenant agrees to:
1. Maintain the Premises free of dirt, debris and moisture that can harbor mold;
2. Clean any mildew or mold that appears with an appropriate cleaner designed fo kill mold;
3. Clean and dry any visible moisture on windows, walls and other surfaces, including personal property as quickly as
possible;
4. Use reasonable care to close all windows and other openings in the Premises to prevent water from entering the
Premises;
5. Use exhaust fans, if any, in the bathroom(s) and kitchen while using those facilities and notify Landlord of any
inoperative exhaust fans; !
6. Immediately notify Landlord of any water intrusion, including but not limited to, roof or plumbing leaks, drips or
“sweating pipes”;
7. Immediately notify Landlord of overflows from bathroom, kitchen or faundry facilities;
8. Immediately notify Landlord of any significant mold growth on surfaces in the Premises;
9. Allow Landlord, with appropriate notice, to enter the Premises to make inspections regarding mold and ventilation;
and
10.Release, indemnify, hold harmless and forever discharge Landiord and Landlord's employees, agents, successors
and assigns from any and all claims, liabilities or causes of action of any kind that Tenant, members of Tenant's
household or Tenant's guests or invitees may have at any time against Landlord or Landlord's agents resulting from
the presence of mold due to Tenant's failure t%/cz:%r(l)%y with this Lease/Rental Mold and Ventilation Addendum.

Tenant (Signature) Lo 07:08 AN GMT Date
— = 102112016
Tenant (Print name) TeZh v Tiser i)
JOSL\M PN " 10727172076 =
Tenant (Signature) vr HHGRM GMT Date
) 5 1072272016
Mauwrice Wilkins P 12:22 AM GMT

Tenant (Print name)

Landlord (Signature)  Mira Vista Properties

Landlord (Print name) &irz ¥istz Properties

7 1020/2016 1:48:57 Date

Landlord (Signature) Date

Landlord (Print name)

© 2005-2016, California Association of REALTORS®, Inc. United States copyright law (Title 17 U.S. Code) forbids the unauthorized distribution, display and reproduction of this
form, or any portion thereof, by photocopy machine or any other means, including facsimile or computerized formats.

THIS FORM HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®. NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR
ACCURACY OF ANY PROVISION IN ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. A REAL ESTATE BROKER IS THE PERSON QUALIFIED TO ADVISE ON REAL ESTATE

TRANSACTIONS. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE, CONSULT AN APPROPRIATE PROFESSIONAL.

; Published and Distributed by:

REAL ESTATE BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.
'S‘_
LRM REVISED 6/16 (PAGE 1 OF 1)

a subsidiary of the California Association of REALTORS®
LEASE/RENTAL MOLD AND VENTILATION ADDENDUM (LRM PAGE 1 OF 1)

» 525 South Virgil Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90020 Reviewed by Date oA e

OPPORTUNITY

Mira Vista Propertics, 805 Camelia Strect Berkeley, CA 94710 : :  Phone: (510)325-8526 Fax: (866) 240-1819 517 Oakland Ave.
Chad Shepard Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser. Michigan 48026 www.ziplogix.com

047




E

e CALIFORNIA LEAD-BASED PAINT AND LEAD-BASED PAINT HAZARDS
% % ASSOCIATION DISCLOSURE, ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND ADDENDUM
%% OF REALTORS? P
9 CF REA For Pre-1978 Housing Sales, Leases, or Rentals
(C.AR. Form FLD, Revised 11/10)
The following terms and conditions are hereby incorporated in and made a part of the: [ ] California Residential
Purchase Agreement, [X] Residential Lease or Month-to-Month Rental Agreement, or [ ]other:

W

.dated  October 17,2016, on property known as:

517 Oakland Ave. Oakland, CA 94611-5428 ("Property”) in

which Andrew Barinov, Dan Kios, Joshua Encarnacion and Maurice Wilkins is referred to as Buyer or

Tenantand Mira Vista Froperties is referred to as Seller or
Landlord.

LEAD WARNING STATEMENT (SALE OR PURCHASE) Every purchaser of any interest in residential real property on
which a residential dwelling was built prior to 1978 is notified that such property may present exposure to lead from
lead-based paint that may place young children at risk of developing lead poisoning. Lead poisoning in young children may
produce permanent neurological damage, including learning disabilities, reduced intelligent quotient, behavioral problems
and impaired memory. Lead poisoning also poses a particular risk to pregnant women. The seller of any interest in
residential real property is required to provide the buyer with any information on lead-based paint hazards from risk
assessments or inspections in the seller's possession and notify the buyer of any known lead-based paint hazards. A risk
assessment or inspection for possible lead-based paint hazards is recommended prior to purchase.

LEAD WARNING STATEMENT (LEASE OR RENTAL) Housing built before 1978 may contain lead-based paint. Lead
from paint, paint chips and dust can pose health hazards if not managed properly. Lead exposure is especially harmful to
young children and pregnant women. Before renting pre-1978 housing, lessors must disclose the presence of lead-based
paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the dwelling. Lessees must also receive federally approved pamphlet on lead
poisoning prevention.

EPA'S LEAD-BASED PAINT RENOVATION, REPAIR AND PAINTING RULE: The new rule requires that
contractors and maintenance professionals working in pre-1978 housing, child care fadilities, and schools with
lead-based paint be certified; that their employees be trained; and that they follow protective work practice
standards. The rule applies to renovation, repair, or painting activities affecting more than six square feet of
lead-based paint in a room or more than 20 square feet of lead-based paint on the exterior. Enforcement of the
rule begins October 1, 2010. See the EPA website at www.epa.gov/lead for more information.

1. SELLER'S OR LANDLORD'S DISCLOSURE v
| (we) have no knowledge of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the housing other than the following:

| (we) have no reports or records pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based péint hazards in the housing other
than the following, which, previously or as an attachment to this addendum, have been provided to Buyer or Tenant:

I (we), previously or as an attachment to this addendum, have provided Buyer or Tenant with the pamphlet “Protect Your
Family From Lead In Your Home” or an equivalent pamphlet approved for use in the State such as “The Homeowner's
Guide to Environmental Hazards and Earthquake Safety.”
For Sales Transactions Only: Buyer has 10 days, unless otherwise agreed in the real estate purchase contract, to
conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards.
I (we) have reviewed the information above and certify, to the best of my (our) knowledge, that the information
provided is true and correct.

(%t’m /))ésfa Lprobertz'es ~ 10/20/2016 1:48:59
Seller or Landlord Mira Vista Properties Date

Seller or Landlord Date

The copyright laws of the United States (Title 17 U.S. Code) forbid
the unauthorized reproduction of this form, or any portion thereof,

by photocopy machine or any other means, including facsimile or " R

computerized formats. Copyright © 1996-2010, CALIFORNIA Buyer's/Tenant's Initials ( AL ) E ) i

ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. osrresprrome
[Reviewed by Date OPPORTUNITY.

FLD REVISED 11/10 (PAGE 1 OF 2)
LEAD-BASED PAINT AND LEAD-BASED PAINT HAZARDS DISCLOSURE (FLD PAGE 1 OF 2)

Mira Vista Properties, 305 Camclia Street Berkeley, CA 94710 Phone: (510)325-8526 : : Fax: (866) 240-1819 517 Oakland Ave.j
Chad Shepard Praduced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser; Michigan 48026 _www.zipLogix.com

048



‘ 7
1 ] 7 7

4

Date October 77, 2616

Property Address: 577 Qakiand Ave, Qakfand, CA 94671-5428

2. LISTING AGENT'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Agent has informed Seller or Landlord of Seller's or Landlord's obligations under §42 U.S.C. 4852d and is aware of
Agent's responsibility to ensure compliance.

I have reviewed the information above and certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the information provided is

true and correct.
: By .
(Please Print) Agent (Broker representing Seller or Landlord) Associate-Licensee or Broker Signature  Date

3. BUYER'S OR TENANT'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| (we) have received copies of all information listed, if any, in 1 above and the pamphlet “Protect Your Family From Lead
In Your Home" or an equivalent pamphlet approved for use in the State such as “The Homeowner's Guide to
Environmental Hazards and Earthquake Safety.” If delivery of any of the disclosures or pamphlet referenced in
paragraph 1 above occurs after Acceptance of an offer to purchase, Buyer has a right to cancel pursuant to the
purchase contract. If you wish to cancel, you must act within the prescribed period.

For Sales Transactions Only: Buyer acknowledges the right for 10 days, unless otherwise agreed in the real estate
purchase contract, to conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based
paint hazards; OR, (if checked) D Buyer waives the right to conduct a risk assessment or inspection for the presence
of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards.

I (we) have reviewed the information above and certify, to the best of my (our) knowledge, that the information
provided is true and correct.

75‘,/‘/,/,._ = S = Z o mte ?%wa s Maurice Wilking & ig':zms
e ~uT Lo O s
Buyer or Tenant Date Buyer or Tenant Date
Andrew Barinov, Den Kios Joshua Encarnacion and Maurice Wilkins

4. COOPERATING AGENT'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Agent has informed Seller or Landlord, through the Listing Agent if the property is listed, of Seller's or Landlord's
obligations under §42 U.S.C. 4852d and is aware of Agent's responsibility to ensure compliance.

1 have reviewed the information above and certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the information provided is
true and correct.

By
Agent (Broker obtaining the Offer) Associate-Licensee or Broker Signature Date

THIS FORM HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® (C.A.R.). NO REPRESENTATION IS MADE AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR
ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION IN ANY SPEGIFIC TRANSACTION. A REAL ESTATE BROKER IS THE PERSON QUALIFIED TO ADVISE ON REAL ESTATE

TRANSACTIONS. IF YOU DESIRE LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE, CONSULT AN APPROPRIATE PROFESSIONAL.
This form is available for use by the entire real estate industry. It is not intended to identify the user as a REALTOR®. REALTOR® is a registered collective membership mark

which may be used only by members of the NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS® who subscribe to its Code of Ethics.

o Published and Distributed by:
84 | REAL ESTATE BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.
a subsidiary of the California Association of REALTORS®
¢ |» 525 South Virgil Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90020
‘@/iewed by Date J EQUAL HOUSING

FLD REVISED 11/10 (PAGE 2 OF 2) i

LEAD-BASED PAINT AND LEAD-BASED PAINT HAZARDS DISCLOSURE (FLD PAGE 2 OF 2)
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.cora 517 Oakland Ave.

049




CITY oF OAKLAND

250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721

Rent Adjustment Program FAX (5610) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254

HEARING DECISION

CASE NUMBER: L17-0018, Ghahyaz v. Tenants
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 517-519 Oakland Avenue, Oakland, CA

DATES OF HEARING: June 8, 2017, November 13, 2017, December 29,
2017

DATE OF DECISION: February 26, 2018
APPEARANCES: Faramarz Ghahyaz, Owner

No appearance by any tenant

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The owner’s petition is denied.

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES

The owner filed a Landlord Petition Jfor Certificate of Exemption on February 1, 2017,
The petition requests an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance on the
grounds of substantial rehabilitation.

No tenant filed a response to the petition.

THE ISSUE

Is the owner entitled to an exemption from the Ordinance based on substantial
~ rehabilitation?

/11
/1]

050



PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The case was set for Hearing on June 8, 2017. At some point before the Hearing, the
owner submitted 499 pages of documents related to his claim, which predominantly
consisted of invoices, cash receipts and checks. The documents were in no observable
order. They were not organized by date, or by category, or work performed on the
property. Some permit documents were produced, but they were illegible. At the
Hearing the documents were returned to the owner. He was informed that he had to
produce all invoices and proofs of payment for all work performed, along with readable
permits and evidence of square footage. (No evidence of square footage was originally
provided.)

An Amended Notice of Hearing setting the Hearing for October 17, 2017. On August 18,
2017, the owner submitted a Request to Change Date of Proceeding based on his plans
to be out of the country. His request was granted and a Hearing was set for November
13, 2017.

At the Hearing held on November 13, 2017, it was clear that the owner had again failed
to produce the requisite documents and many of the documents he produced were not
in order and were illegible. There was no square footage documentation provided
showing the new square footage after construction. There were also numerous invoices
that did not have proofs of payment and proofs of payment that did not have invoices.
Mr. Ghahyaz testified that there were not yet finaled permits and there was no
Certificate of Occupancy. Again the documents were returned to Mr. Ghahyaz . He was
told that he was required to produce “a finaled permit” and “for every invoice, a
corresponding proof of payment.”* An Order and Amended Notice of Hearing was sent
to the parties which said:

“The following documents are required:

1. A Certificate of Occupancy or finaled permit;

2. Proof of payment of the Oakland Business License;

3. Proof of payment of the Rent Program Service fee;

4. Organized, legible, documentation showing the invoices and proof of payment for
all expenses incurred; and,

5. Evidence of the square footage of the completed building.”

EVIDENCE

General information: The owner testified that he purchased the building in 2004. At the
time, it was a 2-story single family home with approximately 1,500 square feet of space.
When purchased, the building was considered “uninhabitable” by the City and had been
red tagged. He had the original permit to raise the house and add a unit for the planned
work issued in January of 2006. He is not a contractor. He owns other property but
testified that he did not have work being done on the other property at the same time as

! Tape Recording November 13,2017 at 16:00-16:26

2
051



he was working on this project. The work on this project was completed in 2015. The
owner later testified that he remodeled his own home at some point during the time that
the work on this project was taking place. He indicated that he did not provide the
invoices for the work he did on his home project in the stack of documents produced to
the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP).2 :

The owner produced the plans for the permit.s The plans show that the building, as
completed, is 3,377 sq. feet.

The owner additionally produced proof of payment from November of 2016 of payment
of his RAP fees and Business Tax, and proof of payment of his Business Tax and RAP
Jees in 2017.4

The owner produced photographs of before and after pictures of the property.5 The
photographs show that the building was in disrepair before the project started.6 The
owner testified that he had to excavate a substantial amount of soil to create parking
spaces for the units. This involved a substantial amount of exterior work done including
installing a 10-foot retaining wall in the rear of the building. The photographs show the
parking areas and retaining walls.”

Note that the invoices provided often show the method of payment, be it cash, credit
card or check. (For example, see invoice at Exhibit 16, p. 6, which shows a $632 cost
from Economy Lumber which was paid for by a credit card for $200 and cash of $432.
Additionally, there are many such invoices showing payments by some combination of
check and cash.)

The invoices produced are varied. Many of them clearly show the amount paid and how
it was paid and the payments are shown in typed form in the same general type of the
invoice itself. (See for example, all Economy Lumber invoices in Exhibit 17). However,
certain invoices are written on them as “paid cash” in handwriting. Additionally, many
of the invoices have notes that assumedly were written by the owner.

At the last Hearing, held on December 29, 2017, the owner was shown multiple illegible
invoices in the documents he had provided. He was given an opportunity to produce
clean copies of these unreadable invoices by January 4, 2018. On J anuary 4, 2018, the
owner produced a variety of legible invoices that were duplicate copies of prior illegible
invoices. These invoices were added to the Exhibits as Exhibit 18a. On J anuary 10, the
owner produced additional Exhibits, which were marked into evidence as Exhibits 57-
59. All of these invoices produced in Exhibit 18a were duplicate copies of illegible
receipts provided under the electrical or plumbing expenses category. The documents
produced in Exhibit 57 included permit information and the documents produced in

2 Tape recording December 29, 2017 at 50:00-50:30
3 Exhibit 1, p 1

* Exhibit 1, pp 2-3 and 10

3 Exhibit 56

¢ Exhibit 56, photos 1-5

7 Exhibit 56, photos 7 and 9

3
052



Exhibits 58 and 59 were more complete copies of invoices previously produced in the
windows and doors exhibit (Exhibit 11).

Additionally, throughout the Hearing the owner was sometimes unable to explain what
a particular cost was for or clearly explain the circumstances regarding the expenditures
made. The owner did not do any of the work on the project, and did not produce any
evidence from the main laborer on the project. He testified at first that he did not have a
finaled permit, when he actually did have a finaled permit. Because of his confusion
about what evidence was necessary, the owner was given multiple opportunities to
provide the requisite documentary proof.

Permits: The owner testified that permits were originally taken out soon after he bought
the property but he was not able to complete the work within two years because he ran
out of money. He went through a bankruptcy process in 2008 and he did not have
financial resources to complete the building. He sold a different property to complete
the work on this building. He kept the permits active during all the time the work was
ongoing. :

The permits and proofs of payment provided show a permit was taken out on March 12,
2004, to remove the garage structure on the property.8 Anadditional permit was taken
out on March 17, 2004. While it is not possible to read the whole permit taken out on
that date because of the way the owner copied it, the record appears to be to do work on
the foundation.9

The owner produced a Permit Job Card for this property which shows that initial work
was done on the permits received for this building in 2006 (slab and embed), 2008
(shear wall/roof), 2010 (piping and wiring) 2011, and 2012.1° The owner also produced a
Permit Inspection Record for the building. It shows that on September 30, 2014, a
permit was issued to “complete expired RBo503720-Raise (E) 2 story SFD to create unit
on lowest level, Add & remodel of kitch(en), bedrm, bath on main & upper levels. 2nd
egress stair, misc. Add 1415 sq. ft, 2 bedrooms.”** This permit was finaled on January 24,
2017.12 The associated mechanical, electrical and plumbing permits were also finaled.'3

Additionally, the owner produced a Record Detail with Inspection Log from the City of
Oakland, showing that on April 20, 2016, a permit was opened to complete RB1401801-
expired RB0503720, to do the work described above.4

The owner produced a variety of invoices from the City of Oakland for permit expenses.
(See Exhibit 29 and 30). The permit records are often unreadable, because the owner

8 Exhibit 29, page 3 shows the permit for the garage demolition. Exhibit 29, page 2 is an unreadable permit that
appears to be for the work done on the foundation of the whole building.

? Exhibit 29, page 2

101d.

1 Exhibit 57, p 2

12 Exhibit 57, p 1

13 Exhibit 57, p. 6

14 Exhibit 1, p. 4.

053



copied the proof of payment on top of the permit record such that the address and work
done is often obscured.’s In some cases, the owner also produced other documentation
showing the same charges from the City of Oakland. Additionally, the owner produced a
payment relating to a performance bond purchased from the City of Oakland. Some of
the transaction receipts from the City show that there was an additional charge
associated with the bond-processing fee.16

The owner additionally produced a bank record from the Bank of Alameda showing a
$2,500 withdrawal payable to the City of Oakland. There is no record as to what this
payment was for.17

Professional Expenses: The owner testified that he hired William Coburn as the
architect on the project. A handwritten Memorandum of Understanding dated June 2,
2009, was produced showing a cost of $10,000 for architecture services on the project
and an additional cost of $100 for architectural drawings.® The owner produced checks
to William Coburn in the amounts of $100 (1/7/11), $200(4/6/11), $100 (8/4/14),
$200 (10/6/14), $200 (1/16/15) and $100 (1/21/15).19

The owner also produced an unnamed invoice from December 16, 2014, for $560.2° The
document states that it was for “resourcing cabinetry, lighting, bathroom and kitchen
fixtures”. The total was for $560. The owner testified that this invoice was from Tom
Hemenway, a construction engineer. In the owner’s checkexhibits, there is a $560
check made payable to Carol Arnold on December 19, 2014.

The owner produced a check to Andreas Deak for $450.21 No invoice was provided. He
testified that Mr. Deak did a property survey on the property.22

The owner produced two invoices from CarolArnold for interior design services.23 He
produced proof of payment.24

Foundation Expenses: The owner produced invoices from Right Away Ready Mix,
Acapulco Rock and Soil, Rebar Inc., Jimmy’s Concrete Pumping, Perez Concrete
Pumping, Alco Iron & Metal, for foundation expenses.25 Some of the invoices were

15 For example, Exhibits 29, p. 1

16 See for example, Exhibit 30, p. 4

17 Exhibit 29, p. 19

18 Exhibit 3, p. 1-2

19 Exhibit 55

20 Exhibit 3, p. 3

21 Exhibit

22 Note that the survey costs are listed in the survey section below.

2 Exhibit 3, pp 5-6

24 The owner produced additional payments to Carol Arnold, see for example, Ex. 55, p 108, which is a $550 check
to Ms. Arnold dated July 17, 2014. Where there is no invoice, these amounts are not listed in the spreadsheet. (see
below.)

25 Exhibit 4

054



unreadable, and if they were not legible, they are not listed on the attached
spreadsheet.26

Plumbing Expenses: The owner produced invoices for work done on the plumbing
operations in the building. See Exhibit 5 and Exhibit 18a.27 Some of these invoices
included the costs of tools, like hole saws. The owner testified that some tools “wear out”
during the course of construction. Additionally, some of the invoices were illegible. The
owner produced some legible copies of the bills in Exhibit 18a. If no legible copies were
produced, the invoices are not listed on the spreadsheet.

The owner additionally testified that Pablo Richards installed two tankless water
heaters. There is a handwritten invoice.28 The invoice states the total is $2,700. There is
a notation on the invoice that states “Paid cash” and that a $1,000 deposit was paid and
that $1,700 was remaining. There is no proof of payment of the $1,700.

Additionally, the owner testified that Exhibits 45 and 46 were for plumbing expenses.
All the invoices provided show that they were cash sales or were paid by credit card.

Electrical Expenses: The owner testified that he had electrical expenses in the course of
the work done on the building. He produced multiple credit card charge slips that do not
show any detail as to what was purchased. These are not listed on the spreadsheet,
unless the detailed invoice page was also included.29

As noted above, the owner did produce additional legible copies of some of the
invoices.3° If legible copies were provided, they are listed on the spreadsheet.

Tile and Flooring Expenses: The owner testified that he put in new flooring in various
places throughout the building. He produced a variety of invoices and proofs of payment
from Import Tile and Carpet One. Some of the invoices are illegible.3* Where it is
impossible to read what was purchased or the amounts charged or paid, the costs are
not listed on the attached spreadsheet.

Sewer Lateral: The owner testified that a new sewer lateral was installed. He produced
checks to Drainline Plumbing.32 No invoices were provided. The owner testified he
“believes” he has a finaled permit for the sewer lateral. No sewer lateral permit was
provided.

Dirt Removal: The owner testified that Friendly Hauling was hired in 2015 to haul
away dirt for the creation of the exterior space for the retaining walls, parking area and
landscaping. He produced an undated invoice from Friendly for $12,100 to remove

%6 See for example, Ex. 4, pp. 5, 7, 14, and 15

27 Exhibit 18a was provided after the Hearing, It is duplicates of invoices previously provided that were illegible.
28 Exhibit 5, p. 11

%% See for example, Exhibit 6, pages 1

30 See Exhibit 18a

31 For example, See Exhibit 7, p. 8

32 Exhibit 8

055



dirt.33 The owner produced checks to Friendly Hauling for $1,000, dated November 18,
2010, for $700 dated December 3, 2010, for $400 dated, November 14, 2011; for $1,500
dated November 11, 2014, for $1,500 dated January 9, 2015, for $1,100 dated April 10,
2015, for $1,000 dated April 10, 2015, for $1,000 dated May 18, 2015, and for $500
dated January 23, 2016.34

The owner was asked what other invoice shows the evidence of the work done on the
retaining walls, and he had no other information. The owner was asked whether he did
any outside work and moving of dirt or building a driveway and he said “the excavation
we did was for the parking, so we can make parking because the....” He was then asked
“where was the excavation, was that part of something we have already looked at, the
excavation costs?” He responded: “Yes, the excavation costs.....Friendly Hauling.”
“Where was the parking area? It shows on the pictures, onthe back of the house.” (Tape
Recording December 29, 2017, 1:10-1:11)

Painting Expenses: The owner testified that he did interior and exterior painting of the
premises. He produced a variety of invoices for this work, including a charge from Home
Depot for the purchase of all-purpose sand.35 He did not know what the sand was used
for. Asin other categories, some of the exhibits were illegible.36

Windows, Doors and Stairs: The owner testified that the invoice provided in Exhibit 11
were for the cost of windows. He produced a September 3,2013, charge slip from Home
Depot showing a total charge of $13,024.46, paid by $12,864.45 in cash and a check
payment of $160.01.37 The Home Depot change order which was copied on the same
paid of the receipt, shows that the change order was for interior oak doors.38 This charge
order shows a “merchandise net change” of -$11,802.25, however, the entire charge is
not visible because the owner only produced one of a four page order form.

The owner also produced a charge slip from Home Depot for $1,079.08 for the purchase
of stair tread and other lumber.39 The owner produced a charge slip from Home depot
for $1,723.59 for the cost of several windows.4° He also produced one page of a 17-page
Special Services Customer Invoice from Home Depot for the purchase of windows. This
invoice shows a charge for $10,202.17, but since 16 of the pages are missing, it is
impossible to tell what the charges are for.4:

After the Hearing, pursuant to an Order allowing the owner to produce better copies of
the illegible invoices previously produced, the owner produced Exhibits 58 and 59.

3 Exhibit 9, page 1

3% Exhibit 55, multiple pages

3 Exhibit 10, p 10

% For example, see Exhibit 10, pp. 2-3. (Note that the owner writing in the total does not solve the illegibility
problem.)

37 Exhibit 11, p. 1

* Exhibit 11, p. 1

3 Exhibit 11, p. 2

4 Exhibit 11, p. 3

“! Exhibit 11, p. 4. The owner was given the opportunity to produce this entire document within 7 days of the last
Hearing. It was not provided.

7
056



Exhibit 58 is an invoice from Home Depot, for the purchase of Anderson Windows,
showing a cost and proof of payment of $10,202.07.42 Exhibit 59 is another invoice from
Home Depot for interior doors totaling $13,024.46. Proof of payment was provided.

Utility Expenses: The owner testified that he had to pay PG&E $10,645.34 to install a
new gas line and electric service.43 No proof of payment was provided.4+ He also had to
keep both water and electricity running during the course of the construction. He
provided one EBMUD bill for $929.55, dated March 13, 2015, with a note on it saying
that it was paid by check number 1251, for $1,117.10.45 He produced an additional
EBMUD bill for $316.63 with a billing date of October 8, 2015, along with proof of
payment.46Additionally, a check to PG&E for $1,500 was provided, with no explanation
as to what it was for and no comparable bill.

Framing and Wood Expenses: The owner produced 5 exhibits of expenses for framing,
wood and other supplies for the project. (See Exhibits 13-17). These are all listed in the
same category in the spreadsheet. Some of the documents show the same purchases, but
are duplicated in the documents produced. Each charge is only listed once. Additionally,
some of the invoices are virtually illegible or do not show the actual items purchased.+7 If
the invoice is completely illegible (as in Exhibit 16 page 2, it is not listed on the
spreadsheet.)

Additionally, where the owner produced a check without acorresponding invoice, it is
not listed in the spreadsheet. (For example, Ex. 16, p. 27, see discussion below on
required documentation.)

The owner produced several invoices from SF Victoriana. One was dated December 10,
2012 (Ex. 14, page 12) and an undated invoice (Ex. 15, p. 16). He produced a check to SF
Victoriana dated August 12, 2010, for $1,459.17, which does not line up with any invoice.
(Ex. 55, page 60).

Labor Expenses: The owner testified that Jaime Villasenor was the primary laborer on
the project. He did not provide any invoices for any of the work performed for Mr.
Villasenor. The checks to Mr. Villasenor were produced in Exhibits 18-21 and again in
Exhibit 55. Additionally, another worker Emilio Perez also did work on the project. He
was paid in cash. The owner produced receipts from Mr. Perez showing the cash
payments. (Exhibit 22, pp 1-2). The owner also produced written statements from
Tomas Arvizo, Juan Castaneda and Faustino Perez, regarding receipts of a variety of

42 The owner also produced this check in Exhibit 55 (see check number 253 at page 34.)

3 Exhibit 12, p.

4 The owner produced 165 pages of checks. However, this invoice was undated and it was not possible to know
where within these checks this payment would be. The entirety of Exhibit 55 was reviewed and no check to PG&E
in this amount was found.

4 Exhibit 12, page 1, and Exhibit 55, p. 143

46 Exhibit 12, p. 5

47 For example, see Exhibit 14, p. 10, Ex. 14, p. 18, Ex. 16, p. 2, Ex. 16, p. 30, Ex. 17, p 10, Ex. 17, p. 16-17

8

057



cash payments.48 These statements do not say on what project these men were working
nor is the year specified on any but one of the statements.

Steel Handrail and other expenses: The owner testified that he installed a steel handrail
on the premises and provided an invoice from Mission Iron Works at a cost of $2,200.49
He produced a checks to Mission Iron for $2,200.5° The photographs show iron railings
on the exterior of the premises.5!

He also produced an invoice from Acapulco Rock and Soil 52

Bathroom and Lighting Fixtures: The owner testified that Exhibits 24-26 were evidence
of purchases he made for the bathrooms, lighting and mirrors on the subject premises.
In Exhibit 24 there were several Lamps Plus invoices that were undated. Additionally,
pages 6 and 7 seem to be duplicates.

The owner produced an invoice from Bath Concepts Shower Enclosure for $991 dated
December 5, 2014, for a shower enclosure.53 The owner testified that this was paid by
check. There is no reference on the invoice to show that it was paid. In the owner’s
Exhibit 55, there is a check dated January 8, 2015, payable to Bath Concepts for
591.68.54 The subject line says “shower door”. No other check payment to Bath Concepts
was found in the relevant time period.

Insulation: The owner testified that he purchased materials for insulation. He provided
invoices showing these purchases.55

Appliances: The owner produced invoices showing the purchase of appliances.5¢ He
purchased two refrigerators, two ranges, two dishwashers, and one washer/dryer and a
stove hood. After he bought one refrigerator and an oven they were stolen, so he had to
purchase these appliances again.

Miscellaneous Expenses: The owner produced Exhibits 31-42 and 48-50, documenting
expenses on miscellaneous items purchased for the project. Some of the documents are
unreadable. Additionally, the owner testified that he purchased charcoal on various
occasions for his own personal use; that he purchased tools (for example a Makita drill
and an auger kit, a hose reel)s7; vegetables and manure and other plant matter for
planting outside; and that the sand he purchased was for the exterior landscaping work.
Some of the receipts reference food purchased as well as light bulbs. See the spreadsheet

for details.

48 Exhibit 22, pp. 4-5

4 Exhibit 23, p. 2

50 Exhibit 55, pp. 159 and 160
51 Exhibit 58 ‘

52 Exhibit 23, p. 1

53 Exhibit 26, page |

54 Exhibit 58, page 126

35 Exhibit 27

36 Exhibit 28

57 See Exhibit 31, page 8 and 9

058



The owner was asked whether he did any work installing sprinklers or watering system
outside and he said he did. Those costs were in 2016, and the items were purchased
from Home Depot and the work was done by Jaime.

The owner additionally testified that there were steer manure costs for landscaping and
that he did install several hundred dollars’ worth of plants on the property. The labor
charges for the landscaping are not set out separately. Additionally, the owner produced
invoices for the purchase of vegetable seeds and weed control products. He testified that
the vegetables were for his own personal use.58

Exhibit 31 contains unreadable receipts on pages 1, 12, and 15; multiple receipts that are
partially or entirely for landscaping (page 2, 5, and 6); receipts for the cost of bulbs or
tools (pages 2, 4, 8, and 9); receipts that include the purchase of charcoal (pages 3, 4
and 7); and receipts that include charges for soda (page 10.)

Exhibit 33 contains unreadable receipts on page 3, receipts that include charges for
lightbulbs on page 5 and receipts that include the purchase of tools (page 10).

Exhibit 34 includes receipts that show charges for the purchase of water (page 7, 8, 10
and 13); receipts that include landscaping costs (page 12 and 21); receipts that include
the cost of tools (page 14, 16, 20 and 22); and an unreadable receipt at page 20.

Exhibit 35 includes receipts that show the purchase of water or gum (page 1 and 3);
receipts for landscaping (page 2 and 7 and 9) and unreadable receipts (page 2, 5, 6, 8
and 10.)

Exhibit 36 includes receipts that are unreadable (pages 1, 7 and 14); receipts that are for
landscaping or the purchase of plants (page 1 and 3); receipts that are for lightbulbs or
tools, charcoal or water (pages 2, 4, 10 and 11.)

Exhibit 37 includes receipts that are unreadable (pages 10, 11, 15 and 16); receipts that
include the cost of water, snacks, tools and charcoal (pages 2, 12, and 16); and receipts
that include the costs of landscaping, sod and plants (page 14, 15 and 16.)

Additionally, the owner produced multiple pages of Home Depot receipts that contained
costs for tools, sod, manure, plants and other landscaping costs. Exhibit 37, page 15
contains a partially unreadable Home Depot receipt that includes costs for sod. The
section showing the charge of 4 pieces of sod at $7.27 eachis readable, although the
total is not shown. It is clear from the receipt that the total for that charge is $29.08
(before tax.) Exhibit 37, page 16 shows two Home Depot receipts. One is unreadable.
The other is for charges for multiple plants, soil and charcoal.

58 See for example, Exhibit 34, p 21

10

059



Exhibit 38 contains charges for charcoal and water (page 3, 4 and 5), kneepads (page 9),
a wet/dry vacuum (page 13), two unreadable receipts from the Berkeley Dump (page 14)
and an unreadable receipt from Yen Lin Company (page 15.)

Exhibit 39 contains charges for sod staples (page 1); weed control fabric (page 1); a tarp
used for landscaping (page 1); plants (page 2); manure and charcoal (page 2); an
unreadable invoice from the Berkeley dump (page 9); and more plants (page 10 both
sides and page 11). The owner testified that for the receipt that included the weed
control fabric, page 1, (left side), that all the other costs were for landscaping as well.

Exhibit 40 contains a receipt from Home Depot where the item purchased is not listed
(page 1), receipts that include the purchase of plants (page 5 and both sides of page 14),
receipts that include the purchase of beverages (pages 8, 9, 12), a receipt that included
the cost of a utility work light (page 11), receipts with unreadable dates which also
contain purchases involving drip irrigation, (page 13), completely unreadable receipts
(page 15), a check to Superglass for $200, without a corresponding invoice (page 16),
and the purchase of vegetables and foliage (page 18). Additionally, there are several
purchases made three or more months after the permits were finaled (page 3). The
owner testified that the receipt from Superglass was for glass that was purchased for
some windows.

Exhibit 41 contains receipts from Home Depot where the entire receipts are for the costs
of soil and landscaping (page 7 on right, both receipts on page 8), and a completely
unreadable receipt (page 10). The owner had crossed out the invoice on page 7 because
it was for his own personal use.

Exhibit 42 contains receipts for landscaping (pages 1 on right, both receipts on page 2,
page 9 and page 10 on left), unreadable receipts on pages 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 and a receipt
that included the cost of beverages on page 8. The owner testified that the receipts in
this packet for landscaping costs in 2007 were actually for his own personal use and that
the receipts got “mixed up” with the receipts from this project. The landscaping costs for
this project were actually done in 2016, and not 2007.

Exhibit 49 contains an invoice from Applied Materials Engineering (page 7) with a
charge of $844.16, dated October 29, 2006. No indication of what was purchased is
listed. This shows a 90-day overdue payment. No proof of payment was provided.
Additionally, in Exhibit 49 there are three pages of receipts from Berkeley/Oakland
Ready Mix at pages 9-11. Two of them are the same receipt showing the purchase of
cement for $2,349 (page 9 and 11). The owner produced a receipt showing that he paid
this charge in cash. (page 8). The additional receipt from Ready Mix is for $1,174.50.
There is no proof of payment of this receipt.

Cabinets and Marble: The owner testified that he purchased cabinets for the units from
Modern Cabinet Corp. He produced an invoice from Modern for $25,000, which shows
proof of payment of $12,000 and an additional $12,700 check paid on December 5,

11
060



2014.59 He produced another invoice from Modern showing an additional charge of
$265.%0 The owner additionally produced an invoice from Golden State Marble (Dal-
Tile) for granite for $2,478.58 with proof of payment.6: Additionally, a second invoice
from Golden State was provided for $7,500 with proof of payment.2

Surveying Costs: The owner testified that he hired Thomas Hemenway, PE, to do a site
inspection on the premises. He provided invoices for $400 and $150.63

Additionally, he provided an invoice from Andreas Deak for a boundary survey done
soon after he purchased the property in 2005.64 He produced proof of payment.

Concrete Costs: The owner produced two invoices for concrete purchased for the
foundation.®s These invoices were dated October of 2006, when the foundation work
was done, at the beginning of the project and both show a “balance due”. The owner
additionally produced two checks made payable to Berkeley/Oakland Ready Mix from
October of 2006. These invoices are combined together on the spreadsheet.

The owner also produced two additional concrete bills from January of 2007 (See
exhibit 49, pp 8-11). The owner testified that all concrete work was for the exterior walls
that were built for the parking area on the back of the property.

House Moving: The owner testified he had to lift the house up in order to do the work
on the project. He produced invoices for the cost of this work.66 He testified that he had
produced the checks for those payments paid by check in Exhibit 55.

Additional Labor Expenses: The owner produced two handwritten document listing all
his labor expenses (See Exhibit 53 and Exhibit 54). He testified that this is a compilation
of all the checks he has written, which are evidenced in Exhibit 55, for labor expenses.
He further testified that he does not have any invoices for any of these laborers. These
costs are not listed in the spreadsheet (see below regarding how expenditures without
invoices are not allowed.)

Other Checks and Account Statements Provided: The owner produced a 165 page
document (Exhibit 55) evidencing two credit card account statements (pages 1-3) and
then 161 pages of bank statements and checks beginning in 2006. The owner highlighted
those check payments he claims are check payments made on this project. The owner

39 Exhibit 32, page 1 and Exhibit 55, page 120

6 Exhibit 32, page 4

¢! Exhibit 32, page 2 and Exhibit 55, page 125

62 Exhibit 32, page 3 and Exhibit 55, pages 126 and 134

63 Exhibit 43, pages 1-2. The owner additionally produced payments to Hemenway for which there were no invoices.
See for example, Exhibit 55, p 129, which shows check number 1165 for $1,000, as well as others. As noted above,
if there was no invoice, it is not listed in the spreadsheet.

64 Exhibit 43, p. 4. The owner additionally produced other payments to Deak evidenced in the Exhibit of checks,
number 55.

85 See Exhibit 44, pp 1-2

% Exhibit 47

12
061



did not attach these payments to invoices. Since the invoices are required, only those
checks for which the owner produced an invoice are listed on the spreadsheet.67

The Spreadsheet: Attached as Exhibit “A” to this Hearing Decision is a spreadsheet that
lists those legible invoices provided by the owner. As noted above, a number of the
invoices were entirely illegible. Those were not included.68 69 (See discussion of
allowable expenses, below.)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Are the units exempt from the Rent Adjustment Program because they have
been Substantially Rehabilitated? :

1. The Ordinance and Legal Analysis:

0.M.C. § 8.22.030(A)(6) states that dwelling units locatedin “substantially rehabilitated
buildings” are not “covered units” under the Rent Ordinance. Additionally, the
Ordinance states that:

a. “In order to obtain an exemption based on substantial rehabilitation,
an owner must have spent a minimum offifty (50) percent of the
average basic cost for new construction for a rehabilitation project and
performed substantial work on each of the units in the building.

b. The average basic cost for new construction shall be determined using
tables issued by the chief building inspector applicable for the time
period when the substantial rehabilitation was completed.

¢. An Owner seeking to exempt a property on the basis of substantial
rehabilitation must first obtain a certificate of exemption after
completion of all work and obtaining a certificate of occupancy. If no
certificate of occupancy was required to be issued for the property, in
lieu of the certificate of occupancy an owner may provide the last
finalized permit. For any property that has a certificate of occupancy
issued on or before the date of enactment of this subparagraph O.M.C.
8.22.30B.2.c. for which an Owner claims exemption as substantially -

§7 For example, the owner produced check number 2549 at page 9 of Exhibit55. This is a $3,637.11 check to the
City of Oakland. No corresponding invoice (or even series of invoices ) was provided. Another example is check
number 2676 at page 13 of Exhibit 55. This is a $1,752.87 check to Build-Tek. No corresponding invoice was
provided. Therefore, these checks are not listed on the spreadsheet. There are multiple other examples.

68 The excluded invoices include certain invoices which were illegible except for a handwritten number (in all
likelihood written by the owner) purporting to show the invoice total.

8 It is possible to determine the missing invoices by looking at the spreadsheet. The “Evidence” column lists the
documents that were referred to in determining the numbers listed on the spreadsheet. These are in relative order to
the way they were produced. Therefore, if the Spreadsheet, under Foundation expenses, shows an entry in
“Evidence” for Exhibit 4 pages 1-4, and then Exhibit 4, page 6, then Exhibit 4, page 5 was left out as illegible.

13

062



rehabilitated, the Owner must apply for such exemption not later than
June 30, 2017 or such exemption will be deemed vacated.”7°

Subparagraph (c) to the Ordinance was enacted on February 7, 2017. Other than that
addition, the Ordinance enacted on February 7, 2017, is not different than the previous
version of the Ordinance. The owner filed its petition in this case on February 1, 2017.

Both the 2017 and the 2014 versions of the Rent Adjustment Regulations relevant to
substantial rehabilitation state:

“(a) In order to qualify for the substantial rehabilitation exemption, the
rehabilitation work must be completed within a two (2) year period after the issuance of
the building permit for the work unless the Owner demonstrates good cause for the
work exceeding two (2) years. : :

(b) For the substantial rehabilitation exemption, the entire building must qualify
for the exemption and not just individual units.” O.M.C. Regulations § 8.22.030(B)(3).

Here, the owner is seeking an exemption from the City of Oakland’s Rent Adjustment
Ordinance. The general rule of law about exemptions is that they are to be “strictly
construed.” See DaVinci v. San Francisco Residential Rent Board, (1992) 5 Cal. App. 4th
24, 27. In DaVinci the Court cited Barnes v. Chamberlain (1983) 147 Cal. App. 314 762
in stating that:

“In interpreting exceptions to the general statute courts include only those
circumstances which are within the words and reason of the exception. ... One
seeking to be excluded from the sweep of the general statute must establish that
the exception applies."

Additionally, the Court in DaVinci stated that the rules regarding the interpretation of a
municipal ordinance are the same rules as those that govern the construction of
statutes. DaVinci at 27, citing City of Los Angeles v. Los Olivos Mobile Home Park
(1989) 213 Cal. App. 3d 1427, 1433. In other words, an owner has the burden to prove an
exemption, and any attempt to exempt a property from the Ordinance must be strictly
construed.

In order to do the necessary mathematical calculation, it is necessary to look at the
tables issued by the Building Services agency which refer to a dollar amount per square
foot for new construction of a duplex. (Exhibit “B” attached). While this work was done
over a 13 year period, the available Construction Valuation table dated closest to the
permit completion date is the correct table to use. The Construction Valuation table for
January 1, 2017, shows that the square footage cost of new construction of a duplex was
$196.12 in the requisite time period.

/1]

70 0.M.C. § 8.22.030(B)(2)(a-c)

14
063



2. Square Footage:

At the hearing, the owner representative presented the plans that showed that the
square footage of the building, after the work was completed was 3, 377 square footage
The information contained in this document, together with the owner’s testimony, is
found to be reliable evidence.

In this case in order to qualify for the substantial rehabilitation exemption the owner
must establish that he has expended costs in excess of $331,149. (3,377 x $196.12 +2).

3. The owner’s petition for exemption is denied because the work was not done
within a two-year period of taking out the permits.

The owner testified that he purchased the property in 2004. While he testified that the
first permit was taken out in 2006, the evidence he produced shows that the first cost
expended was in March of 2004, when he purchased a permit for the garage demolition.
(See spreadsheet). Additionally, it appears that in March of 2004 he also took out the
first permit for the foundation work done to the building.” The last expense was in April
of 2017, when he purchased materials for the project, despite the fact that the permits
were signed off in January of 2017. As noted above, the Regulations state that for a
substantial rehabilitation project to be entitled to an exemption, the work must be done
within two years of the building permit being taken out, unless there is good cause
shown.

Here, the evidence establishes that the initial permit was taken out in 2004. It was
finally signed off in 2017, a thirteen year period. The job card shows that substantial
work was performed in 2006, 2008, 2010, and 2012. The spreadsheet shows that the
owner was seeking to use proof of payments for work done in every year since 2004.

While the owner testified that he kept the permits open by paying for inspections every
six months, the evidence is clear that this job took 13 years to complete. The financial
problems the owner testified to might have been sufficient to increase the requisite time
by a year; but there is no allowance in the law that giving an owner 6.5 times the length
of time expected for a project to be completed is warranted. There is no “good cause”
sufficient enough to allow a 13-year long project to qualify for a substantial
rehabilitation exemption Therefore, before any consideration of the actual expenses,
the owner’s petition is denied. The subject units are not exempt from the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance.

4. Even if there was good cause for the project to take 13 years, the owner did not
meet the requirement that he spent 50% of the basic cost of new construction.

While the owner’s petition is denied on the basis of the work not being done in a 2-year
period, even if this standard did not apply (or there was good cause to extend for 13

"I While Exhibit 29, page 2 is illegible, a permit was taken out on March 17,2004, for which the owner paid
$653.71. In all likelihood, this is the first permit for the work on the building remodel.

13

064



years), the owner has not provided evidence to establish the requisite funds were
expended.

a. What expenses can be considered?

In a precedent decision, the Housing, Residential, Rent and Relocation Board held that:

“[I]n order for a landlord to establish an exemption for a
substantially rehabilitated building . . . a landlord must
provide evidence independent of his own testimony or
summaries prepared in anticipation of the hearing to
substantiate the costs of new construction”72

The applicable rules of evidence are stated in Government Code § 1151373:

Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the sort of
evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to
rely in the conduct of serious affairs. . .

The California Evidence Code states: “If weaker and less satisfactory evidence is offered
when it was within the power of the party to produce stronger and more satisfactory
evidence, the evidence offered should be viewed with distrust.”74

A variety of times throughout the voluminous documentation produced, the owner
produced illegible, or partially illegible documents. Documents that were entirely
illegible are not listed on the spreadsheet and cannot be considered here. This is true
even where the owner wrote the amount charged on the receipt/invoice. Furthermore,
the owner was given four opportunities to produce legible documents.

In order to establish an allowable expense, the owner must produce the actual invoices,
proposals, or estimates along with a proof of payment. An invoice alone is not sufficient
evidence of an expense. Similarly, proof of payment alone is not sufficient; a
corresponding invoice must be provided.

The reasons that invoices or contracts are required is because these documents explain
the work done. Since the work must be to the building (and not to landscaping or
driveways) and must be for permanent installations (and not impermanent appliances),
it is imperative to view and analyze the proper documentation. Furthermore, when an
owner owns multiple pieces of property, the invoices allow analysis as to whether or not
the cost in question was expended on the property in question. This is particularly true
where, as here, the owner testified he was doing a remodeljob on his home during some
portion of the time period he did work on the subject building. Still further, the owner in

2 HRRRB Decision, T04-0158, Ulman v. Breen & Orton
7 Regulations, § 8.22.110(E)(4)
™ Evidence Code, § 412

16

065



this case testified that multiple items purchased in the numerous Home Depot receipts
provided were actually for his personal use.

The reason that proof of payment is required is because evidence of invoices alone do
not establish that a bill has been paid. It is common knowledge that many invoices are
renegotiated after work is done. Without evidence of both an invoice and proof of
payment, the costs are not credited here.

b. Spreadsheet information:

Attached to this Hearing Decision as Exhibit “A”, is a spreadsheet documenting all
invoices and/or proof of payment provided by the owner that were legible.

The spreadsheet has a column for “invoice” and a column for “proof of payment”. Where
there was a discrepancy between the invoice amount and the proof of payment, the
lower figure was included in the spreadsheet in the column “allowable amount”.

Additionally, there is a section on the spreadsheet entitled “cost removed.” Where there
is either not an invoice or a proof of payment, the allowable amount is listed as “zero”
without a notation in the “cost removed” category. However, for any other reason that a
cost was removed, the cost removed is listed in the “cost removed” column and then
explained in the “reason for not granting” column.

In each case, where specific items were subtracted, a 9% tax for that particular charge
was added to the total price that was then subtracted from the receipt price. Since this
case had costs expended over a 13-year period (2004-2017), the tax rate changed
multiple times. It would have been onerous to figure out the tax rate separately as to
each receipt. Therefore, a 9% tax was added to any cost item removed from the Home
Depot or other vendor receipts.

Additionally, there is a column in the spreadsheet that lists the reasons for the denial of
each listed cost.

c¢. The work must be done on the building itself and must be a permanent
installation

' In certain circumstances in this case the owner has produced invoices that are not for
work done to rehabilitate the building; but instead are for other costs related to the
project. For example, the work for the concrete work performed outside the building is
not allowed. Neither is the cost of any landscaping. In order for a cost to be eligible as a
substantial rehabilitation cost it must be for work done on the structure of the building.
This is especially true because the calculation is based on the square footage of the
building and does not include the square footage of the landscaped area, the driveway,
or the parking area.

The same is true for appliances that are not built in to the building. The purchase of a
refrigerator is not a structural improvement. Therefore, costs expended for removable

17

066



appliances are not allowable cost items. On the other hand, built in appliances like
washer/dryers, dishwashers and stoves are allowable expenses.

Additionally, the owner produced many receipts which documented the purchase of
tools, water, Kingsford charcoal, and lightbulbs. Tools that are not “used up” in the
course of construction are not allowed as an expense as they are not installed in the
building, they belong to the owner (or its workers) and are a cost of doing business.
Where it was clear that the tool purchased was for something that would likely get used
up in the course of construction, like a drill bit, it was allowed. However, where it is a
cost for wet dry vacuum, kneepads, a Makita drill, a hose reel, and the like, the costs
were removed. Additionally, the cost of water and snacks for the workers are not a cost
to the building. Neither is the cost of charcoal. Finally, lightbulbs are not built into the
building and are not an allowable expenses. Whenever these costs were found on the
many Home Depot and other vendor receipts, they were removed (and are listed on the
spreadsheet in the cost removed column.)

d. The owner established the costs shown below

i. Permiis and Fees (Exhibits 29 and 30)

The owner provided evidence showing expenses paid for permits received related to this
project. Where he had invoices and proof of payment, the payments were allowed,
provided that it was for work done to the building. For example, the permit cost to
remove the garage was not allowed, as it was not a cost for the building.

Additionally, the bond processing fee, related to the performance bond required by the
City, is not an allowable cost, as it is not related to the project, but instead is related to
the owner’s financial situation. Still further, where the document was unreadable, or no
invoice was provided, the cost was not cons1dered This includes the proof of payment of
$2,500 to the City of Oakland where no invoice was included.

According to the spreadsheet, the owner proved $6,490.27 in allowable expenditures on
permit fees.

ii. Professional Expenses (Exhibit 3)

The owner provided invoices from William Coburn, the architect showing invoice
charges of $10,100. He produced proof of payment showing payments to Coburn
totaling $900. The payment amount is allowed.

Additionally, the while the owner testified that the “unnamed” invoice was from Tom
Hemenway, it is much more likely that the cost of choosing cabinetry would be done by
an interior designer than a construction engineer. Since there is a check payable to
Carol Arnold in the same amount of the invoice on December 19, 2014, three days after
this invoice was dated, this amount is allowed.

In this category, the owner established $3,310 in allowable expenditures.

18

067



iii. Foundation Expenses (Exhibit 4)

The spreadsheet shows allowable expenses in this category of $5,619.57. Where there
was no proof of payment, the cost was not allowed.

iv. Plumbing Expenses (Exhibits 5, 45 and 46)

For those legible invoices provided by the owner, the owner established costs of
$11,305.97 in this category. This does not include the cost of any tools, or any invoices
for which he did not provide proof of payment. See spreadsheet for details.

v. Electrical Expenses (Exhibits 6 and 18a)

In this category, the owner established proof of invoices and payments to vendors
totaling $4,221.27 for electrical expenses on the project. Note that duplicate receipts
were removed.

vi. Tile and Flooring Expenses (Exhibits 7)

In this category, some of the owner’s documentation was entirely unreadable and those
costs are not listed on the spreadsheet at all. Additionally, where there was no proof of
payment, the cost was not allowed. Here, the owner produced an estimate for hard wood
floors. There was no documentation to show that the estimate was paid.

The owner established invoices and proof of payments of $6,493.94 in this category.

vii. Sewer Lateral (Exhibit 8)

The owner did not produce a permit for the sewer lateral. Therefore, this cost is denied.
A second reason the cost is denied is that there was no invoice from Drainline
Plumbing.

viii. Dirt Removal (Exhibit 9)

The owner testified that that all the costs in this category were for the work done on the
lot, exterior to the building for the retaining walls, parking area and landscaping. This is
not an allowable expense in a substantial rehabilitation project and is therefore not
considered here.

ix. Painting Expenses (Exhibit 10)

The owner produced multiple invoices in this category that are undated. Undated
expenses cannot be considered because the owner must establish that the costs were
expended within the time frame that the work was being done. In this category the
owner produced allowable invoices and proof of payment of $537.33.

19

068



x. Windows, Doors and Stairs (Exhibit 11)

In this category, the owner produced invoices and proof of payment showing costs spent
of $26,029.30. :

xi. Utility Expenses (Exhibit 12)

The utility expenses for which the owner produced proof of payment, dates and invoices
amounted to $1,246.18. These costs are allowed.

xii. Framing and Wood Expenses (Exhibits 13-17)
The owner produced invoices and proof of payment totaling $45,633.01 in this category.

xiii. Labor Expenses (Exhibits 18-22)

The owner produced no invoices for any labor expenses that are shown in this category.
With no invoices, none of these costs are allowed. This is especially true in this case
because there was a substantial amount of work done outside the building to build the
concrete retaining walls and to do irrigation, and without the ability to parse an invoice
into allowable costs and not allowable costs, there is no way to tell the costs expended
for the outdoor work. Additionally, the owner testified that at some point in this
construction project he did work on his own home. Without an invoice showing that the
labor costs were for this location, the owner has not established his burden of proof that
the costs were expended on this project. These costs are not listed on the spreadsheet at
all and are denied.

xiv. Steel Handrail (Exhibit 23)
It is more likely than not that the steel handrail was exterior to the building, and
therefore, not an allowable expense. The owner did produce one allowable expense with
this Exhibit. Therefore, the owner is credited with $462.411n this category.

xv. Bathroom and Lighting Fixtures (Exhibits 24-26)

For those none duplicative invoices for which the owner has proof of payment and an
invoice, and the invoices are dated, the owner has proven allowable expenditures of

$7,465.70 in this category.

xvi. Insulation (Exhibit 27)

The owner established proof of payment and invoices totaling $2,074.80 in this
category.

/1]

20

069



xvii. Appliances (Exhibit 28)

Those installed and non-removable appliances for which the owner has shown invoices
and proof of payment are $6,409.66.

xviii. Miscellaneous Expenses (Exhibits 31, 33-42, 48-52)

In this category, non-readable or undated expenses were not considered. Additionally, -
within each invoice, a deduction was made for the costs of charcoal, food, water,
lightbulbs, and landscaping expenses. Still further, tools that do not appear to be the
kind of tools that get “used up” in the course of a construction project, were removed.
This included for example, a Makita drill, an auger kit, and a hose reel.

Furthermore, the owner included two costs in his Home Depot receipts that were
considerably past the finaled permit date. These costs were not included. (See

spreadsheet for details). Finally, in several circumstances the owner produced duplicate
receipts. The duplicates were removed.

The owner established allowable costs in this category totaling $36,355.38.

xix. Cabinets and Marble (Exhibit 32)

The owner established allowable costs in this category totaling $34,678.58.

xx. Surveying Costs (Exhibit 43)

The owner established allowable costs in this category totaling $1,750.

xxi. Concrete Costs (Exhibits 44 and 49)

The owner produced evidence of concrete costs expended in October of 2006, when the
permit records show the slab was embedded, and additional costs in January of 2007.
While the owner testified that all concrete work was for the exterior walls, it appears
that some of the concrete work was actually for the foundation, and this cost is allowed.
Any cost spent on the exterior walls, as noted above, is not allowed.

The owner established $2,436 of allowable costs in this category.

xxii. House Moving (Exhibit 47)

The owner established $7,604.55 in allowable costs in this category.

/11
/1]

21

070



xxiii. Additional Labor Expenses (Exhibits 53-54)

As noted above, the owner produced a list of other labor expenses that he paid by check,
in addition to those listed above. Any non-invoiced labor expense is not allowed. These
checks are not listed in the spreadsheet and are not allowed here.

xxiv: Package of checks (Exhibit 55)

As noted above, the owner produced a large (165 page) packet of bank statement
information in which he highlighted many checks and payments made in the course of
this project. Only those checks for which the owner has produced invoices are listed on
the spreadsheet and are included here.

Summary:

The chart below summarizes the allowable costs expended:

Permits and Fees $ 6,490.27 Framing and Wood | $45,633.01
Professional Services | $ 3,310.00 Steel $ 462.41
Handrail /Other
Foundation $ 5,619.57 Bathroom/Fixtures | $ 7,465.70
Plumbing $11,305.97 Insulation $ 2,074.80
Electrical | $ 4,221.27 Appliances $ 6,409.66
Tile and Flooring $ 6,493.94 Miscellaneous $36,355.38
Sewer Lateral 0 Cabinets $34,678.58
Dirt Removal 0 Surveying Costs $ 1,750.00
Painting $ 537.33 Concrete $ 2,436.00
Windows/Doors $26,029.30 House Moving $ 7,604.55
Utility Expenses $ 1,246.18 TOTAL $210,123.93

The owner has provided invoices and proof of payment that he spent $210,123.93. This
amount is not above the necessary sum of $331,149 and, therefore, even if the work
had been performed within two years of receipt of the permits, the building
has not been “substantially rehabilitated.” For this reason and because the work was not
performed in two years of the initial permit and there was no good cause for the
extension, the rental units in the building are not exempt from the Rent Ordinance.

The owner’s claim is denied.
ORDER
1. Petition T17-0018 is denied.

2. The owner did not perform the work in a 2-year period and there was no good cause
for the work to be extended over a 13-year period.

22

071



3. Even if there was good cause for the work to extend over a 13-year period, the owner
did not provide sufficient evidence to establish that he spent the threshold amount of
$331,149 to qualify for the substantial rehabilitation exemption.

4. Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed
appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be
received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the decision. The date of
service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is
closed on the last day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

VZ\ / 7/ y g/)
Dated: February 26, 2018 / /%(/é\///(/i/( //Z/[/ i ST,

Barbara M. Cohen
Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

23
072



ST 40 T a8ed
STO0-LT1 ‘s3ueua] A zeAyeys

WV UQIYX3
L1°d ‘03 09°€1T$ 09°€TTS 09°€ETTS SHwIRd puepjeg 40 Aud S102/02/S
6zt °d
7 i 2'99Z spwIagd puepjeo jo A ST0Z/ST/T
iee 4y ter d foe TT°992$ 2T°99T$ 779928 /st/
-d alep siyy
‘scxa mm -dog X3 S6'29T$ uo sywIRd 32.Y3 Y3 40} 58°88Y$ |S6°TITS S6°29T$ suwad puepjeo jo Aa v102/0€/6
o Sune103 €80T # Ho2Yd Aq pied
— aiep siyy
e M -d“0g %3 S6°Z9T$ uo sywsad 32.Y3 Y3 10} S8°88Y$ |S6°ZITS S6°Z9T$ suud puepeo jo A ¥102/0€/6
Suneloy €80T # MO3Yd Aq pied
J 23ep siyy
'66 3 ‘71 *d ‘0E X3 S6°Z9T$ uo sywdd 33.Y3 A1 J0j S8°88YS |S6°TITS S6°29T$ sy puepjeQ jo A v102/0€/6
SuljeIo} €80T # o3y Aq pred
901 *d
- juswAed smoys 210AY| o €8T spwiad puepieo jo A3 v10zZ/€2/9
‘¢ x3 ‘0T d 08 X3 AS €82$ y | Ov'€82% ov'€82$
L°d0E X3 £L9°8VT$ JudwAed smoys ad10Au] L9°8¥TS £L9°8VT$ sywid puepeo jo Ao 0102/€/9
9d0g X3 oL TS JuawAed sMoys d10Au]| 0L TS 0L71ZYr$ sHwdd puepieo jo Ao 0102/S/T
d
i mvm “doa | 3uissad0id puog  (8T1°688$ 00'8v2$ udwhed smoys 310U} ST LET'TS 8T'LETTS sywIRd puepieQ jo Ay 6002/02/sS
61 "d ‘6Z "xa @D10AUL ON 00°0$ @D}0AUl ON 00°005°Z$ e/u 1s0daQ JO ILdYID puepjeo jo A3 ©002/6/9
TOT d
JioAut 0| | 3J10AUL O] it efu SHWLI”, uepje 0 A;
‘s xa ‘g1 d ‘67 X3 10AUt ON 00°0$ 10AUl ON T9'ETTS /! NWIdd puepjeo jo Aan €10Z/91/8
strd
3210AU} O * 3210AUI O o e/u SHWI3 uepye 1O A 3Jjqepeasun
s a1 d ‘sz 10AU} ON 00°0$ 10AUI ON .m:w««. /! 1widd puepieo jo Ay \qep
UERS o it oz'Lees 0T L2T$ 0T L2T$ spuRd puepieo jo Aan sToz/€/t
‘0€ 3 ‘91 *d ‘67 X3 ¢ i
STd ‘623 3DI0AUI ON 00°0% 3D10AUI ON 0b'€82$ e/u SHWIdd puepieo jo A v102/€2/9
z-d
g - & SUTIEY] uepjeQ jo A
‘083 ‘b1 d ‘62 >3 TL'98E$ TL°98€$ TL°98€$ puepjeo jo Ay 9002/6/8
d ‘6z e oot ok ed X 3]gepeaun aJ10AY "8LE" efu B 13 puog 3JUBWIOND, uepjeQ jo A3
€r-d‘6zx3 e aEpea 00°0$ \gep 10AU] 00'8LE‘TS |e 33 puog H3d puepjeo jo Aan 002/6/9
AKTES] 3210AUI ON 00°0$ 3210AUI ON LT e/u sywiRd puepieo jo A zT0Z/S/v
v8-d
3o10nU1 ON ¥ 3210AUI O] "y, e/u SHwIdd uepieQ jo Ay T10Z/€2/S
‘e 11 d ‘6z A 00°0$ N T6'vLSS / puepieo ¥ /€z/
01 'd ‘623 £9'8YT$ £9'8YTS 19'8v2$ SywIdd puepjeo jo Ay 0102/0€/9
STr-d‘ss°x3 ‘TTd
B 09'8S€E 09°8S€E. suuRd puepjeo jo A v102/0€/6
‘08 %3 ‘6 d ‘67 3 09'85€$ 9'85€$ $ H /0€/
8-d ‘673 00°0$ e/u 00°€2T$ Supaauidul oyjell puepjeo jo Ain v102/€2/9
v8-d‘ssxa‘6d
y PR 29T S6°291 S6°29T SIUUER] puepeQ jo Ay T102Z/¢€2/S
05 3“2 d ‘623 S6°29T$ $ $
zed’ssx3‘ed i
X LYIST LYIST syuwidd puepeo jo &3 6002/21/S
‘g xa ‘e d ‘6z xa LYISTS $ ¢
£Ld’ssx3 ‘g d
¥ S6°29T S6°29T sywiRd puepieo jo Ao T102/52/C
‘08 X3 ‘s d ‘62 3 S6°29T$ $ $
s-d
. LL9TT LLITT spwad puepieo 3o Ao 010Z/S/T
03 'y -d ‘6z LL9TT$ $ $
€d6zxa 3uiping 3y3 03130N  [00°0$ 002L$ 00°2L$ 00'2L$ uonjjowap d3esed Joj SPWIAJ puepjeo jo Ao Y002Z/TT/€
z'd‘6zx3 3)qepeaiun 00°0$ djgepealun 3I0AU] TL €S9S efu spwIRd puepjeQ jo A3 v002/L1/€
gaded ‘sgx3‘T°d
; . 1291 spwIRd uepeo jo A 900Z/v/8
‘08 3 ‘T *d ‘67 X3 TT'919$ TZ'919$ 7919 p l 7
S994 pue s}iwidd :Aso3a1e)
DDUIPIA; M:Z:m._mv junowy 3jqemo; DA0WIY IS0 $3}0| 2wAed 40 3004, WNOWYISRIO o] JIPINOI, e
A
B 30N 40} uoseay VRIHEMA, - ) LB 43200 ON WAL J03001d | 1M 10 @d10nU] Jo04 piroid 1eq

073



ST40738eg
8T00-£T7 ‘slueU3] *A zRAyRYD

WV UQIYX3
LS'6T9'SS L9'8TE0TS 8Y°EVS'0TS :]e303gNns uonepunog
CKES] Tr18Ts Tr'I8TS . TIr'I8Ts$ uonepunoy ¥o0y od|ndedy ST0Z/1Z/v
d
‘ss .xmmmﬂ dp g 0£'896$ 0£°896% 0£°896$ uonepunog XAl Apay Aemy 3ySy s102Z/5/S
€y d
" s “T0€" & & uonepuno. XIA Apay Aemy 3ySi
‘66 xa ‘o1 *d b X3 98'LLTTS OL'TOE'ES 98°LLT'TS nepunoy N Apay Aemy 3ySry ST0Z/0E/v
it 3|qepeal Jou ep pue ’ - i
grdvoa JuswAed Jo Joosd ou 00°0$ efu £€9°718$ uonepunoy XA Apay Aemy ySiy umowjun
BEKKES] Zv'182$ pied je303 smoys ad10Aut w18 °18T$ uonepunoyj o0y oondeoy 910Z/81/L
1T °d'y g 8E'9vZ$ pied 303 sSmoys a210Au} 8E°9vTS$ 8E°9vZS$ uonepunoj }oy oojndedy 910Z/61/L
01 d‘y X3 68°StS 68°SHS 68°SbS uonepunog uoJ} 0]y v102/2/2
2jqepeai Jou ajep pue
a4 . "
e 1wswAed jo ooxd ou |000% e/u 00'00€$ uonepunog Suidwing 2)210u0) z819d umoujun
9jqepeas Jou ajep pue
d - z o
Brirag 1uawAed 30 joosd ou (0009 efu £9LYETS uonepuno4 XA ADBY ABMY 1431y umouyun
et 6E°L9TTS S9°ZY8ES 6€°LITTS uonepuno. XAl Apay Aemy 1ySt
-d ‘55 %3 ‘9-d pxg nepunoy 1IN Apay Aemy 3ySry stoz/te/t
vd'voa uawAed jo yoo.d ou 00'0$ e/u S9'E9Y'TS uonepunoy uj 1eqay S,fd v10Z/v/TT
€d'yx3 89°S9T$ pled 2303 smoys adioAul 89'S9T$ 89'S9T$ uonepunoy )0y odjndeoy $10Z/61/11T
zdya SE'EVES pied je303 smoys adioau; SE'EVES SE'EVES uonepunoy 20y odjndedy S10Z/8/T
-d“ss xw~”n g 88'TV8S 88TV 88°TV8S uonepunoy XIAI Apay Aemy 3ysiy ST0Z/S/T
sasuadx3 uonepuno4 :A10833e)
00°0TE‘ES 00°0TE‘ES 00°096°CT$ :[e301GNS SIIIAIIS [BUOISS30I
Yex 00°52S$ 00°SZS$ 00°SZS$ usisaq Jou3u] plouly joJed v102/€1/0T
-d ‘55 X3 ‘9-d ‘g X3 ! ! I
8T *d ‘sS : E0ET# 234D pue ‘a310Aul UO 3 f
3 pue §-d ‘g x3 00°s£8$ pat0u se ‘005 30 yses papnpur |0 SL8% 00°58$ usisaq JoL123u| piousy joed s10z/1/s
v-d‘ex3 3D10AUI ON 00'05t$ 00°0S¥$ Aamung j}eaq sealpuy Ss10Z/L2/t
ST plouay jose) 03 3jqeAed
k - - A
-d ‘s xa ‘¢ d ‘g x3 00°09S$ opewW SYTT JAqINu oy 00709S$ 00°09S$ 13uiqed umouun v1oz/9t/zt
JuswAhed 99TT pPue ¥9TT ‘€60T
SS°X3 ‘z-1dd ‘g~ y 7 "000" unpPaYdL uinqo) weijyy,
X3 ‘T-1dd ‘e "x3 40 3001d ing oN 000069 ‘9b0T 159 ‘€95 saquinu payy |20 006$ 00°000°TT$ Yy qoD weliim 600Z/2/9
SIINIDS |BUOISSB}O0.d :A105338D)
LZ°06V'9$ 86°620'VTS LT'€€6'9S :|e301qns sjlwiad
TZ "d ‘0€ X3 6€°555$ uawied smoys adioau] 6€°555$ 6€°5SS$ SHwIdd puepjeo jo Ao 910Z/LT/TT
gst°d it
‘S5 xa ‘0z *d ‘0g X3 €9°8LZ$ uo s}wJad 33143 2Y3 404 ££°T69 |€9°8LZ% £€9'8L2$ sHwRd puepjeQ jo Ao 910Z/02/v
3ul[e103 60VT # ¥03Yd Aq pred
gstd S an
IR, L O S SS°902$ uo syunad 33143 3Y3 40y €£°T69 [S5902S SS°90T$ SHWIRd puepieo jo A3 groz/oz/v
SS X3 ‘6T "d ‘0€ "3 3
u1je301 GOYT # YO2Yd Aq pred
31ep sy
gstd
TR §5°90Z$ uo sywiad 334Y3 3Y3 10} ££°T69 |S§90Z$ $5°902$ sywad puepjeo jo Ay 9toz/oz/vy
SS X3 ‘81 "d ‘0€ "3 3
ulje303 60%T # )29y Aq pied
. UIPIng M:_ucmuw junowy ajgemo||y IA0WIRY 1SO; Al O WnouyJepIo
4! 10N 10} uoseay 19 ) P Y 350D S9JON jJuawAed Jo jooid IOM 10 3310AU] 404 a9pinoid eq

074



ST Jo € a8e4

8T00-£T7 ‘siueua] A zeAyeyo

WV UqIYX3
v 'd ‘egT X3 66°72ZS 66'722$ 66'72Z$ 121023 siapjing a10ysheg 9T0Z/L1/T
€1-Z1 dd ‘eg1 X3 68°10Z$ 68°T0ZS 68'T0CS 18213093 s1apjing dloysAeg 910Z/9T/v
0t *d ‘egT 'x3 STOVIS ST'OVIS STOVIS [edup3f3 siapjing aJoysheg 9102/02/S
6-8 dd ‘egT "a €8'6£T$ £8°6€7$ £8'6€$ [EIRECTE] sJapjing aioysheg 910Z/52/9
9- "dd ‘egT 3 1S'LTv$ LSLTVS LSLTVS |e21129]3 s19pjing aJoysAeg . 9102/12/1
sasuadx3 jes113d3|3 :AoSa3e)
L6°SOETTS 06'CTLETTS LT06T'ETS :jezoaqns Suiquinid
9°d79y X3 87885 Juawhed smoys ad10Aul 87885 87'88$ Suiquinjd UYM pue WiniL 900Z/9/01
Ssd‘oy x3 €L°0LTS JudwAed SMOYS 310AUL €L°0LTS €L°0LTS Suiquinid Ajddns uesony 9002Z/2/8
v -d ‘op "x3 LT°OVES JuduwiAed smoys adjoAul LT°OVES LTOVES Suiquind Ajddng uesony 9002/92/9
€d‘9p X3 80°8Z$ JuawAed smoys ad10Aul 80°8Z$ 80823 3uiquinjd Ajddns ueiow 900Z/92/S
z'd‘op°x3 8Z°0LTS uawAed sMoys 2d10AUL 8Z°0LT$ 8Z°0LTS 3uiquinyd Ajddng ueiow 900Z/vZ/S
1°d‘9p X3 67°ZSTS JuswiAed smoys ad10nul 62°7STS 62°TSTS 3uiquinid Ajddng uesopy 900Z/v2/s
v1°d’‘syx3 0C'EvS JuduiAed SMOYS 210AU} 0T'EVS [I43S Buiquinid 3}YM pue inay 900Z/L2/6
€1°d 'Sy X3 LT°0LS Juawied smoys adjoAul L1°0L$ L1°0L$ Suiquinid Ajddngs ueson 900z/01/8
RS 19'8% juawAed smoys adlonuj 19'8$ 19'8$ 3uiquinid Ajddns uesopy 9002/6/8
RS V6°LES juawAed smoys adlonul v6°LES v6'LES 3uiquinid Ajddns ueso 9002/8/8
01 'd ‘Sp "3 tb'eeTé uawiAed SMOys 3s10AuL 'S8T b 69TS Suiquinig Aiddns uesom 900z/2/8
6-d‘sp-xa \6Z-8T$ IudwAed smoys ad10auL 6T'BTS 6T'8TS Suiquunig Afddns uesopy 9002/v/8
8°d‘syx3 v0'9vT$ udwiAed SMOYS ad10Aul 0'9vT$ Y0'9vT$ Suiquinjd Ajddns uesoy 9002Z/1/8
£°d‘sp°x3 9TVLTS JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul 9TYLIS 9TVLIS Suiquing Ajddns ueiowy 900Z/1€/L
9°d‘syx3 LS ‘JuawAed SMOYS 3d10AUl wiLs LS Suiquinjd Ajddng uesony 910Z/vT/L
s-d‘sy 3 L5°6$ JuawAed SMOYS 3210AU LS°6S £5'6% Suiquinjd Ajddng uesoiy 9002/s2/s
v -d ‘Sp x3 16°T2$ uawiAed SMOYs ad10Aul 16°12$ 16'TZ$ Suiquinjd Addns uesoy 900Z/vZ/S
€d’‘syx3 95°S55% JudwAed SMoYs 3d10AUI 95'555$ 95°S5S$ Suiquinjd AUYM pue niniL 900Z/vZ/v
z-d‘sy 3 00'vZ$ udwAed SMOYs 3d10AUI 0023 00'%2$ 3uiquinig 9UYM pue [iniL 9002/12/v
1-d‘sy 3 YS'IVIS JuawAhed SMOYys 2010AUL YSIVIS YSTIYIS 3uiquinid Addns uesoy 900Z/2/8
ACKES] ST'T9LS pied smoys 3210Aul STTILS ST'TILS 3uiquinid |21l BPISISOM umouxun
" mm~..‘o” h._m. Gog S°065°T$ pied smoys ad10Aul ¥S°065T$ vS°065°T$ Suiquinig 424 600z/vz/ct
61 d‘S'x3 v6'95$ pied smoys ad10Aul v6°95$ v6°95$ Suiquinjg Jo1adw3 uesuRWY 6002/Z1/11T
81'd‘s"x3 £9°0VZS pied smoys ad10Aul £9°0V2$ £9°012S Suiquinjd 494 6002/21/11T
LT d‘S°x3 judwAed joosd ON  |00°0$ efu LTLTTS Suiquinid Josadw3 ueduawy 600Z/€T/1IT
€1°d‘s"x3 €8°59$ pied SMoys 3d10Aul £8°59$ £8°59$ Suiquinid Josadw3 ueduawy 600Z/0T/1T
zrd‘sx3 TO'LTTS pred smoys adjonus T0°LTTS T0°LITS 3uiquinid EkCE] 600Z/€T/11
«d:‘g" wawded ° 4 Dloaul i 3 g 4 SJajeay J33em Spaeyony ojqe umoujun
1Ted‘sa 1ing 30 500.d ON 00'000'T$ uo pred umoys 0p0‘T$ Ajuo 00°000T$ 00°00£'T$ eay 43y paeydry ojqed f
01 'd ‘s X3 YEETS pied SMOys 3010Aul YE6TS VEBTS Suiquinjd Alddns smyjeiy 6002/0T/1T
6°d’‘sx3 96°9ST$ pied SMOys 2010AuL 96°9STS 96°9ST$ 3uiquinid Suiquinid piepueis S102/82/€
8°d‘sx3 S0'8STS pied smoys 3210Aul S0'8STS S0'8ST$ 3uiqunid Suiquinid psepuels S10Z/€2/€
gy .ﬁmha.ﬁ xa §8'98L$ pied smoys ad10Au} $8'98L$ S8'98L$ Suiquinid Josadw3 uedawy 600z/62/01T
T/a 8T sjooy YT'8TTTS £6°99% pied smoys 3ad10Aul LI'S6TTS LT'S6T'TS Suiquinjd Josadw3 ueduawy £00Z/62/0T
X3 ‘9T-p1 "dd ‘s 3 | : e ) )
gt .xmm.mnd - EL'VEYS pred smoys 3d10Au EL'VEIS €L'VE9S adid Jaddod Josadw3 uespdwy 600Z/0€/0T
v-d‘sx3 0E'SYTS pred smoys ad10Aul OE'SYTS 0E'SYIS Suiquinid 4784 010Z/v/1T
€d'sx3 09'vivs pied smoys 3d10Aul (09'tvv$ 09'¥it$ 3uiquinid 3uiquinid piepuels vioz/z/in
z'd’‘sx3 76'T0TS pied smoys 3d10Aul 26'T0TS 26'T0TS 1eISOWIdYL Ajddng auoisuyor v10z/z1/eT
-dsg qu Nﬁﬂ -degal 0T'v0S'TS LETT HoYd Aq pred 0T'V0S'TS 0C'v0S'TS Suiquinig Suiquinid piepueis v1oz/ot/et
sasuadx3 Suiquinjd :A1o08a31e)
2DUIPIAI Suguein junowy ajgemoj|y panoway 150D S910N JudwAed jo jooid onowvIep.0 Jo4 Japinoid aeq
3 10N 10} uoseay }JOM 4O DI0AU| =

075



ST Jop 38ed

8T00-L11

‘sjueus] *A zehyeyo
wV HGIYX3

00°0$ 00°00£8$ 00°00T°CTS :jejoigns suqaqg
P 00'0$ 00°00L°8$ mmmﬁ 00°00L°8$ 00°00T°ZT$
‘553 ‘1 +d ‘6 X3 3uipjing ay3 3pISINO ‘LSTT ‘€ETT ‘TTT ‘SSTT ‘TTIT JeAowas Lia Suyney Ajpuaiig umouyun
‘66L ‘EVS ‘€S S1aqUINU B
jeaowsy g :AoSares
00'0$ 00'00S‘v$ 00°0$ :]e303gNnS |RIRIET] JOMIS
zdg3 @2]0AUI ON 00°0$ 00°080%$ e/u |e1a1e] JoMmas Suiquinid auyjuieig 910Z/2/71
T°d ‘g x3 3210AUI ON 00°0$ 00'02v$ e/u |eJaje Jamas 3uiquind auijuieiq 910Z/L/T1
|esa3e1 19mas :Auo8a3e)
v6°€6v°9$ ¥6°€61°9$ S6'916'8TS :jezoigns Suniooj4 pue 3j1L
eT°d’zx3 juawhed jo joord oN [00°0$ JeW!IS2 Ue Si SIy} 0N efu TI'88ZCTS Jooj4 poompuieH auQ 1adie) ajep oN
e Mﬂﬁa .nm M o SE°09L$ £90T J2quinu yoayd Aq pred . |s£709.$ SE'09L$ 19die) 3uQ 3edied v10z/2/6
6d-L73 €L°9L2'TS £L°9L2°C$ £L°9L2°T$ IIL ajrL Woduy v10z/12/L
LdLx3 judwAed jo jooid oN |00°0$ ajgepeasun Ajjlenuip efu 06'VETS QL 31L woduwy v10Z/ve/L
9°d‘Lx3 60°tvS 60'vv$ 60'vv$ JJLL 3|11 Woduwj v102/82/9
sdLx3 VETITS VETITS YETIZS JIL a1 yodwy v10Z/11/L
vdzxa LO°OVY'TS LOOVY'TS LO°OVY'TS dlL : aj1L podwy y10Z/01/L
€-dLx3 62°8ST$ 627'8ST$ 627°85T$ L j11 woduwyj +102/52/9
zdrna T IV8S Mm“”uu_ww_u%w%mhhﬁwwhmwm_ TTIV8S TIY8S I 311 podwy v10Z/T/L
TdLx3 S8'T9LS S8°T9LS S819L$ JL )11 yodw Y10Z/12/9
sasuadx3 Suiioo)4 pue 311 :A108938)
LTTTT'YS T6°€ESTVS 16'9SCvS :]e101gns |BI13I33
£z-97°'d egT 3 88°185$ 88'T85$ 881859 121130913 siapjing aJoysieg v10Z/S/T1T
v2-€Z "dd ‘eg1 "3 ©9°68Y$ ©9°68Y$ 9°68v$ 1821130313 sJap|ing aJoysAeg STOZ/vI/v
7z 'd‘eg1 X3 98°'v92$ 98'v92$ 98'79ZS 122141233 s19p|ing 310ysheg stoz/iz/t
TZ 'd ‘egT *x3 ajednjdng 00°0$ v9°ZES 33ed1jdnp v9°CE$ v9°'S€$ 120133 siopjing aJoysAeg sToz/L/t
0z "d ‘egT "3 SE'EIVS SE'EIVS SEEIWS [CRECTE] s19pjing dJoysheg ST0Z/€2/1
61 "d ‘egT "x3 v9°SES v9'SES v9'SES 121913 siapjing asoysAeg ST0Z/L/1
81 'd ‘g1 X3 £1°85$ £1°85$ £1°'85$ 12211293 siapjing aioysheg S10Z/€2/€
L1d ‘e8T g SL°595$ S1°59S$ SL°595$ 1e2103]3 siapjing aioysheg s10z/0Z/€
91-ST "d ‘egT "q 6T'6€S$ pted smoys ad10au) 61°6€S$ 6T'6€S$ [ siapjing ai0ysheg 9102/LT/T
20UdPINg Sunuein junowy 3|gemoy|y paAoway 350D S910N jJudwAed Jo Jooid ROUYISPIO 104 Japinoid aeq
i ION 10} uosedy )40M 1O 310AU] N

076



ST Jo g aded
8T00-LT7 ‘s3ueua] “A zeAyeys

077

WV UQIYX3
8T°9VZ‘1S EL'EE6TS ZS'T68'TTS :jeoagns Anjin
SdZr 3 £9'9T€$ €9'9TES €9°9TES sadseyd Aujn anwe3 S10Z/8/0T
v-g£°dd ‘g1 X3 ST oupNe 00°0$ efu YE'SY9'0TS aul| duP3R[sen 389d ajep ou
judwAed jo joosd oN e
zdzr g 310AUI ON 00'0$ 9/ZT Jaquinu }23yd 00°00S'T$ e/u sadrey Aunn 3139d ST0Z/0T/9
‘cs .ﬁmwﬁ. anﬁ S SS'626% TSZT J2qWINU 3AYd 0T°LIT'TS SS'626% sadseyd Aymn anwe3 STOZ/€T/E
sasuadx3y Ayjun:Ai08a1e)
0€°620°92$ 0€°620°9C$ 0€°620°92$ :]e303gns 233 5100Q ‘SMOPUIA\

dm_.\M M mnm M.w = L1°202°0T$ €ST Joquinu a3y Aq pred L1°202°0T$ LT°202°0T$ SMOpUIM jodag awoH 6002/02/9
€dIT°3 65°€2L'TS 6SE€TL'TS 6S€EZL'TS SMOPUIM j0dag dwoH 6002/62/T
zd1ra 80°6£0'T$ 80°6£0T$ 80'6L0'T$ speai Jiels 10dag awoH ¥102/5/9

6Sx3‘TdTT7a 9v"vZ0'ETS 9Y'vZO'ETS 9" vZ0'ETS s100Q jodaq awoH €10Z/€/6

sasuadx3 1ooQ ‘siiels ‘smopuipp :A1o8a3e)
€€°LESS 7T°62ETS 27°62€TS :|eyoagns sunuied
ot d’or X3 L6°LTS L6°LT$ L6°LTS Sjelaew IsIA 10daQ awoH 910Z/11/€
01 d ‘0T X3 pues 00°0$ 62°¥8$ @3esn umowjun - 6T18S 67°18$ pues 10daQ dwoH 9102/82/v
6°d ‘013 YL°902$ vL°902$ vL°902$ uled SweljM-uImIays 9to0z/62/S
6°d ‘01 X3 paiep 10N 00°0$ SLLTTS SLLTTS SL°L2TS uted _ SWel|IM-uImIays umowyun
8°d ‘0T X3 pajep 10N 0003 . |ogzevs 08'L2v$ 08°LZVS uted SWeljjiM-uImIays umoujun
8°d ‘01 X3 paiep 10N 00°0$ S6'6EVS S6'6EVS S6°6EVS uied SWel|jIM-UIMIdYS umoujun
8°d 0T X3 9E°6¥$ i 9E"6VS 9E'6Y$ uled SWeljiM-umIays ¥102/8/01
£°d ‘01 X3 paiep 10N 00°0$ 06'vZS$ 06'v2S$ 06'vZS$ uled SWEljIM-UIMIaYS umouyun
9°d ‘0T X3 paiep 10N 00°0$ 0Z'L8T$ i 0Z'£81$ 0ZL8T$ uted SWeljIM-uIMIdyS umowjun
sd ‘ot X3 8L°STS 8L°ST$ 8L'STS S|eLIa3ew ISIN Jaquiny Awouody ST0Z/0T/2
v °d ‘0T X3 ££°00Z$ ££°002$ LL°002$ juted SWeljjiM-uimiays 10Z/v/01
1°d ‘0T X3 TL9v$ TL9PS TL9YS ured Swetjjim-uimiays ST0Z/v/S
sasuadx3 Sunuied :Aio8a3e)
3dU3IPIN] Jnuers junowy 3|qemoljy panoway 31s0) S9I10N JudwAed }0 Jooid RO IOP40 Jo4 Japinoid 3ajeq
JON J0j uoseay HI0/M JO DI0AU| -




ST j0 9 93ed

8T00-£17 ‘siueual ‘A zeAyeyo

WV 1GIYX3
ozd'sta 9873 judwAed smoys 3d10Aul v9°87$ v9°87$ poom 1aquiny Awouod3y 010Z/L2/L
61d ST X3 88'vS$ JudwAed smoys 3d10Aul 88'vS$ 88'1S$ poom Jaquin Awouodl 0102/92/L
8T °d ‘ST X3 6L°85€'TS JuawAed smoys 210Ul 6L°8SE'TS 6L°8SE'TS poom Jaquiny Awouody 600Z/0€/6
1°d‘'sTxa 89'SS$ JudwAed SMOYs ad10Aul 89°SS$ 89'SS$ poom Jaquin Aqysy 800Z/L1/S
91 *d ‘ST X3 pajepun 00°0$ 26°L9€$ judwAed smoys 3d10Aul 26°L9E$ 26°L9ES Jepad BUBLIODIA IS pajepun
s1-d ‘ST X3 9T SEEVS JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul 9T SEEVS 9T'SEE'VS 3uipis Jaquin Awouod3 600Z/0€/6
v1-d‘sta 62212 JudwAed smoys ad10Aul 62°71Z$ 62°2TTS poom Jaquiny Awouod3y 010Z/S1/21
€1 °d ‘ST X3 £9°96T$ JudwAed SMOYS 3d10AU} €9°96T$ €9'961$ poom Jaquin Awouod3 1102/61/2
Zrd ‘st 3 0£°9€5$ Juawied smoys 2d10Au} 0L°9ESS 0£79€S$ poom Jaquin Awouodl 0102/62/6
Trd’st 3 0€'62$ JudwAed smoys d10AU 0E'6Z$ 0€'6Z$ poom Jaquin] Awouod3 010Z/91/11
6d ‘ST 3 £9°088$ juawAed smoys ad10Aul £9°088$ 19°088$ sjeuae 1aquiny Awouod3 010Z/9/0T
g-d ‘ST X3 L8'VLS jJudwAed SMOYS 3d10AUT 18'vL$ 18'VLS poom Jaqunm Awouod3 1T02/v2/C
L°d ‘ST X3 9v°v8$ JudwAed smoys adloaul 9v"v8$ 9 v8$ poom Jaquni Awouodg 110Z/S2/1
9-d‘st 3 61°585$ Juawied smoys ad10Aul 61°S8S$ 61°S85$ poom J9quwin] Awouod3 T102/1/2
s-d‘sta 8TY9TS Judwied SMOYS 310Ul 8T'V9TS 8TY9T$ poom Jaqunt Awouod3z T102/¥/T
¥ °d ‘ST X3 16°92$ jJuawAed smoys adjoaul 16°92$ 16°92$ Suipjnows 12quiny Awouod3 010z/L/0T
€d ‘ST X3 19°T6T$ jJudwAied smoys adloaul £L9°T62$ L9°162$ . poom Jaquini Awouod3 0t0Z/L2/0T
0T pue zdd ‘st x3 LTYIES JuawAed smoys ao10aut LTYIES LTYIES poom aaquin Awouody otoz/st/ot
T°d ‘ST X3 £0°SESS judwiAed smoys 3d10Aul £0'SESS €0'SESS poom Jaquin Aqusy 0T02/92/2
81 °d PTx3 pasmBmA e il ogios v6'sL9'S$ wawhed smoys d0Au  |p6'5L9°S$ v6'5L9'S$ umowjun 1aquint Awouod3 6002/5/8
1BYM JO uonedIpul ON
LT °d 1 X3 £V°LOT'VS juswAed smoys ad10Aul EV°LOT'VS EV°LOT'VS poom Jaquing Awouodz 600z/£z/0T
91 °d ‘b1 °x3 S0°€7$ JuawAed smoys adjoAul S0'€Z$ S0'€Z9 S|eualein Jaquiny Awouod3 6002/91/0T
ST°d b1 X3 T8'E6TS 18°€61% T8°€6TS poom Jaquin Aqusy 8002/8/2
T °d ‘b1 X3 . JuawAed jo jooid oN |00°0$ efu 9Z°Tves poom Jaquini Aqusy 8002/8/2
€1°d b1 X3 10°20T$ JudwAed smoys adloAul 10°20T$ 10°Z0TS poom Jaquing Aqysy 8002/v/tT
Zrdv13 00°52Z9 00'S2Z$ TEVIVS Jepad BUBLIODIA 45 zroz/ot/eT
=
x3 ?_hmﬂ“_ s w mS s 62°22T$ uawAed smoys 3d10Aul 67°772$ 62°222% s|eualeN Jaquin Awouod3 600Z/v/8
ot "d b1 >3 USHNM””:_M”M o 00'0$ : efu £9'887% s3|3uiys Auedwo) aj3urys anels pajepun
6°d ‘b1 X3 YT TWIs uawAed smoys 3d10AUL Y2 THIS YIS poom Jaquin Awouody 1102/52/€
8 d ‘vT X3 LLEBTS Judwied smoys 010Aul LLEBTS LLEBTS poom Jaquiny Awouod3 T102/21/S
£-9°d ‘pT X3 Bre'TS judwAed smoys aoloAul '8rT'Ts Zr8reTS Sleualey Jaquiny Awouod3 T10Z/8T/€
SdpT X3 AR 2 judwAed smoys 3d10Aul rA% ) Tvhs poom Jaquin Awouod3 1102/v2/S
vdp1 X3 Ov'ITTS JuawAed smoys d1oAul ov'IITS ov'IITS poom Jaquinmy Awouod3 1102/51/9
€+d b1 X3 S9'60E$ juawAed smoys 3d10Aul S9°60€$ S9°60€$ poom Jaquiny Awouod3 1102/V1/9
T°dpT X3 pajepun 00°0$ 90°9€9$ uawiAed SMOYS 3d10Aul 90°9€9% 90°9€93$ sjelalen Buipjing 3pIsisam pajepun
. .MH ..uu — 99'v0S'TS$ Juawied smoys 3d10AuL 99°V0S'T$ 99°v0S'T$ aiempleq 1aquiny Awouodz 1102/L2/Y
8T 'd ‘€T * 86°60L$ JuawiAed smoys ad10AUL 86°60LS 86'60LS poom Jaquim Awouod3 110Z/€1/S
L1°d‘eT 3 LT'€899 JudwAed smoys 3d10Aul LT'€899 LT°€89% poom Jaquin] Awouod3 T102/S/v
9T 'd‘eT X3 Y'TLLS JuawAed smoys 3d0Aul WwTLLS M'TLLS Jeqay 22quin] Awouod3 1102/02/%
std’era SLT8TS JuawAied smoys ad10Aul SLI8TS SLT8TS Sjeuajew Jaquin Awouod3y T10Z/€/S
vI-€1 "d ‘€T X3 TTS6ES juawAed smoys 3210Aul TTS6ES TTS6ES pPoom Jaquin Awouody 1102/8/8
Z1-1T "dd ‘€T 3 LO'E0E'TS 1udwAed Smoys 3010AuL LO'E0E'TS LO'E0E'TS poom Jaquin] Awouodz 1102/6/S
01 "d ‘€T X3 YS'v29$ uawAed smoys 2d10AuL vS'v29$ vSvZ9$ poom Jaquny Awouod3 1102/v2/S
6°d ‘€1 X3 9v°ZES JuawAed smoys adjoaul 9Y°TES 9v°TES dJempleq Jaquin Awouod3 v102/91/21
£-5 dd ‘€T "x3 9T'€29'TS JudwAed smoys ad10Aul 9Z'€29'T$ 9Z'€29'TS sjeusajew Jaquin Awouod3y §102/02/S
g pue ¢ d ‘€T 'x3 [0T°9TTS jusawAed smoys adioAul 0T'9TT$ 0T°9TTS poom 12quin Awouod3 9102/6/L
vpuez-d'erx3 T TZES JuawAied sMmoys 10Aul TITZES T IZES poom Jaquiny Awouod3 9102/91/2
T-d‘eT X3 TL6TS JuawAed smoys ad10Aul TL'6T$ TL°6TS poom Jaquing Awouod3 9T0C/ST/L
sasuadx3 poo\ pue Sujwels4 :Ai03338)
3dUdpiA3 SHRUEIS junowy 3jqemojjy panowy 350D S2ION jusawAed 30 jooid WOy P10 Jo4 Japinold ajeg
0N JOj uoseady 340 10 3J10AU} o

078



ST 40 £ 98ed
8T00-LT1 ‘SIuRUa] "A ZeAyeyD

WY HAQIYX3
Ty 2ovs Tv'299CS Tv'299CS :Je303gNnS sasuadxa J3Yy10 pue jleipueH
.mmﬁwwﬂ MM 5 Suipping jo Jou23x3  |00°0$ 00°002°2$ s1oq »m““wﬂ_wﬂmw.n PR 00°002°2$ v 00°002'2$ JiespueH . SHIOM UOJ] UOISSIA 910Z/L/9
T°d‘€Z X3 Y'Z9vs pred smoys adioAul TY'Zovs TVZovs adeueig }o0y odjndesy S002Z/91/S
-s9suadxa J3Yy1o pue jiespueH [933s :Au0393e)
T0'€€9°SPS €6°218°7SS €9°€SPESS :|e3oigns poo pue Sujwely

+v1°d LT3 ZEvETS judwAed SMoys 3dioAul TEVETS TEVETS poom Jaquing Awouod3 T102/1/9
GLHAES] 98°9€7$ JudwAed SMOYS adjoAul 98°9€7$ 98°'9£7$ uonejnsuy Jaquiny Awouod3 Z102/v/€
zr-d LT £9'8€/$ JudwAed smoys 3d10Au} €9'8€L$ £9°8€L$ uonejnsut 12quiny Awouod3 2102/81/8
mdira | ST8r$ juswhed smoys 3d10nu ST'8YS ST8Y$ poom Jaquim] Aqysy 8002/LT/E
6-8°d LT3 - £9°969$ JUSWARA SMOYS 9D10AUI £9°969$ £9°969¢ POOM J3quin Awouod3 +102/62/6
LALT T9°CES JusWAed SMOYSs 3J10AUL T9°CES 19°CES SjeusieN 1aquing Awouod3 ¥102/62/6
9-dz17q 06°8EES juawAed smoys 3d10AUl 06'8EES 06°8€EE$ poom 12quin Awouod3 v102/1/0T
s-d/T X3 LLYESTS JuawiAed SMOYS 2210AUT LLVES'TS LLYES'TS Buipis 19quin] Awouod3 6002/8T/CT

vd LT3 00°£Z$ judwiAed smoys ad1oAul 00°€Z$ 00°€7$ s|elaleiN Jaquiny Awouod3 6002/v/8
gdzT "3 juawAed jo0 jooid oN |00°0$ 90I0AUI UO UM ,Uysed pied,, [e/u 86°6LES saj3uys Auedwo) 3jSuiys 3315 0102/12/9
zdTt g v6°82Z9 JudwAed sMoys 310Aul v6°822¢$ v6°8229 Suipis Jaquiny Awouod3 0102/L/6
Td ‘L1a 00°60S$ JudwAed smoys adloAul 00'60S$ 00°605$ poom Jaquing Awouod3 010Z/L/6

6z d ‘91 'x3 8T'T6TS judwAed smoys 310Aul ST'T6TS STI6TS s|elalein Jaquin Awouod3 010Z/v/8
gzd'orxa | £9°016$ juawAed smoys 3d10Aul £9°016% £9°0163 Jegay Jaquing Awouodz S10Z/2/v
9z-d ‘91 "3 3|qepeaiun d10AUl  [00°0$ 00°00S$ e/u Jepaj) BUBLIODIA JS 0102/v/8
sz d ‘91 'x3 S0°TZ6$ judwAed SMOYS 3dI0AUL S0'1Z6$ SO0'126$ si00Q J3qun] Awouod3 ST0Z/2T/2
vz d ‘9T "x3 LLYY9S judwAed SMoys 3210Aul LLYY9S LL VYOS poom Jaquny Awouod3 010Z/0T/6
gzdor 3 i 81°0899% juawAed smoys 210AUl 81°089% 8t°089% poom Jaqun Awouodg STIO0Z/€T/T
Zz°d'9T 3 S8'TES JuawAed smoys dioAut S8'TES S8'TES poom Jaquiny Awouodz ST0Z/€2/1T
TZz°d ‘9T "x3 02'642'T$ juawAed smoys 3210Aul 07°6£2°TS 0T'6L2'TS sjena1ein Jaquny Awouod3 t102/61/8
07 *d ‘9T "x3 91°958$ JudwAed smoys 3dj0Aul 91°958$ 9T°958$ Suipis Jaquiny Awouod3 0toz/12/6
61°d ‘913 SL°918$ JuawAed SMOYS 3210AUY SL°9189 SL°918$ Sjeulew Jaquin Awouod3 Y102/92/8
81 *d ‘9T *x3 B 0£°STTS judwAed Smoys 3d10Aul 0€°S2T$ 0£°s2T$ SjeualeN Jaquny Awouod3 v10Z/61/8
£1°d ‘9T X3 SL°918$ juawAed smoys adioAul SL°918$ LTLY8S poom Jaquwny Awouod3 v102/92/8
91 °d ‘9T X3 9Z'19L$ Juawied smoys 3d10Aul 9Z°19L$ 9Z'19L$ poom Jaquin Awouodg +10Z/61/8
ST °d ‘9T *x3 TELES JuswAed Smoys adloaul TELES TE°LES poom JRquin] Awouod3 v10Z/11/Y
vTd ‘91 'x3 ET°SEES uawAed smoys ad1oAul ET°SEES ET'SEES SjeusieN Jaquin Awouod3 v1oz/1T/v
€1 "d‘9T X3 69°09€$ JuswAed SMoys adloAul 69°09€$ 69°09€$ S|eualen 13quing Awouod3 ot0z/sz/6
ZT-TT "dd ‘9T *x3 6L°086$ JudwAed smoys 010Ul 61°086% 6L°086% poom J2quni Awouod3 +102/92/8
01 'd ‘9T "3 0E'TLES JuawAed smoys d10AU] OE'TLES 0E'TLES s|ealeiN Jaqum Awouod3 ¥10Z/81/9
6°d ‘91 X3 SL°186% judwAed SMOYs 3d10AUI SL°L86% SL°186$ sjeueln J9quin] Awouod3 0102/1/6
8°d ‘9T X3 6S5°'STS JuawAed SMOYS dJ10AUL 65°STS 65°STS poom saqum Aqysy 8002/0¢/€
L°d ‘9T *x3 £2°S0€$ JudwaAed SMOYS 3dloAul €2°S0€$ €T°SO0ES sjealeN 1aquing Awouod3 010Z/01/6
9°d ‘9T 3 00°Z€9$ udwAed SMOYS 310AUl 00°2€9$ 00°Z€9% poom 13quin Awouod3 v10Z/81/v
s+d ‘9T 'x3 1 S0°SLES JuawAed smoys 3210AUl SO'SLES SO'SLES sjeualeN Jaqun] Awouod3 vIoZ/vi/v
p-€ dd ‘91 "x3 L1°9£2'T$ juawAed smoys ad10Au} L1°9L2°T$ L1°9L2°T$ poom Jaquin Awouod3 YI0Z/v/T1
Td ‘9T X3 78'66% JuawAed smoys 310Aul 78'66$ 78'66% poom Jaquing Awouod3 0102/92/L
zd'stxa 95°LT$ JudwAed SMOYS D10AUI 9S°LT$ 95°LTS poom Jaquing Awouodz 600Z/01/9
T2 d ‘ST 3 80°S9$ JuawAed sMoys 2210AuL 80°59$ 80°S9$ POOM Jaquin) Awouod3 0T02/6/L

dUPIAg Junuein unowy 3jqemojy paAoway 150D S9I0N JudwAed jo Jooid AUNONIV 9RO 104 13piInoid aleq
10N 10} uoseay )IOM JO 310AU| 2

079




ST 08 aded

8T00-LT7 ‘s3ueu3L *A ZRAYRYD

» HAIYX3
01 °d ‘T€ X3 epos ©0°6L$ 86°€S JudwAed SMOys 3d10AuL Z0'€8$ 20°€8$ s|elaein 30dag awoH ST0Z/S/0T
KEE:] 60°Sv$ uawAed smoys a010AuL 60°SPS 60°SH$ S|eudaley jodaQ awoH S102/52/01T
6d‘1€%3 Sj00L 00°0$ 16°LTT$ JuawAed smoys adtoauy 16°L129 16°L12$ 5j00) 10daq awoH S10Z/81/0T
g-d‘Te X3 5|00} 00°0$ YIS JuawAed smoys ad10Aul yI'vTs$ YIvZs sjooy 10dag awoH 9102/9/€
g-d‘re 3 Z0°€9$ uawied smoys 210Ul Z0°€9$ 20°€9$ s|eualey 30dag awoH 910Z/1T/€
£°d‘TE X3 S6°99% judwAed smoys adioaus S6°99% $6°993% Sjeuaie j0dag awoH 9102/52/9
£°d1€3 leodJeyd 00°0$ 99'1Z$ luawAed smoys 3d10Aul 99°TZ$ 99'1Z$ |eodseyd j0dag awoH S102/5/¢
9d‘1e X3 VLS JuawAed smoys 2010AuL 9vL$ WLS Sjeuateny Jodag awoH 9102/0Z/v
9d ‘1" 3uidedospuey 00°0$ 0,28 JuawAed smoys ad10Aul 0L2$ 0L°T$ udpien Jodag awoH 9102/62/v
s-dre"x3 56229 JudwAed smoys ad10Aul S6°72$ S6°7Z$ sjeualen 30dag dwoH 9102/12/1
(8uidesspuey)
s+drena piES paRowisY 78'81$ T0°€0TS juawAied smoys 2d10Au] £8°TTTS £8'TZIS SjelIa3eiA pue pues 10dag awoH 9t0z/12/1
v-d‘1ea Jeodseyd 00'0$ 8ETES juawied smoys ad10AuL 8ETES 8E°ZES |ecdJeyd 10daQ dWoH S10Z/2/6
vd1e"x3 sjooy 00°0$ 69°LYS Juawiied SMoys ad10AuL 69'Lv$ 69°LvS sjooL 10dag awoHy 9102/02/1
€-d‘1e3 ZEv$ JuawAed smoys adjoAuy ZEV$ EVS sjeualeln J0dag awoH v10Z/€2/L
€-d‘1e X3 |e0dJeyd panowdy  [6£°6LTS TEEYS juswAed smoys ad10nuy TT°€22$ TI°€22S S|elaleiN 10daq awoH v102/6/6
z:dIea sqinq LS°L$ 95°L$ wdwAed smoys 3d10Au} €TSS ET'STS Sjeualey 10dag 2woH £00Z/st/L
zdteq 3uidedspuen 00°0$ St'svs JuawAed smoys 3d10AuL St'8vs Sr'8vs$ sa1jddns adeaspueq jodag awoH L00Z/62/11
1d‘1e°x3 7T9$ juswAed smoys 3dioAul 7798 9s Asy 10dag awoH 1002/11/9
1-d1EX3 ajqepeaiun 00°0$ v8°22¢ 3jqepeaun paseydind sway)  [perzzd v8'22$ umouun j0dag swoy efu
S9suadX3 SNO3UR||PISIA :A10338)
99°601'9$ 6€°27206$ 6£°2206S :|e3oigns sasuerddy
v-d8zx3 T6°096'T$ pied smoys ad10nut T6°096'TS 16°096'T$ POOH 33uey saouelddy podny ST0Z/6/T
€-d‘gza 103819311431 pIAOWY |8/°598°2$ SY'669$ pred smoys adjoaus - €T°S9SE$ £T'S9S'ES sdueyddy snouea sieag ST0Z/€T/1
€d ‘873 SLISLS pred smoys 3d10Aul SLTSLS SLISLS s2oueyddy snouep sieas ST0Z/€/€
z-d‘gzxa Jojesasiyal panoway |zz'1e8s +1°088$ pred smoys ad10nu1 9ETILTS 9ETILTS sadueyddy snouen sieag 9102/vZ/6
T°d ‘gz X3 10)esa311§2Yy 00°0$ YT'EE0'TS pred smoys ad1oau) YT EE0'TS YT'EE0TS J0jesasuyay s1eag 9102/92/1
sooueijddy :A10833e)
08'v£0CS 08'vL0°T$ 08'vL0°C$ ‘|eloigns uopejnsuj
€dzzx3 €6'V8TS pred smoys ad10nu) €6'V8TS €6'V8TS uone|nsuj 1aquiny Awouod3 z102/52/8
zd’'zx3 YT TOETS pied smoys 3d10Au} YI'TOE'TS YTTOETS uone|nsu| 13quint Awouodz TT0T/LT/€
Td2zx3 €1°885$ pred smoys ad10au} ££°885$ €1°885$ uone|nsuj Jaquiny Awouodg S102/6/2
uonejnsuj :A10831e)
0L°S9Y'LS 89°0LS6$ 0£°666'6$ :|e303qng sainixij pue woolyieg
T 93ed "9z 3 861953 86'195$ 00'1665 dJeMpJeH wooJyieg s3da5u0) yieg v10Z/S/TT
T'd’sza S0°'T9LZS pied Smoys ad10Aul S0'T9LZ$ SO'T9LZS SI0LIN 2JEMpIeH UONRIOISAY v10z/0t/2t
6°d ‘vz X3 paiep 0N 00°0% €9'v2S$ pied smoys 2d10Aul £9'vZS$ £9'YZS$ 3unysn snjd sdweq umowjun
8'd ‘bz X3 ZS°0vLS pied smoys ad10Aul TSovLS TS°0vLS 3uny3n snjd sdwey v102/5/21
£°dvZ X3 pajep 10N 00°0$ 09°TE8S 1d1903. uo ajep oN 09°T€8$ 09°T€8S 3unysn snjd sdweq umouwjun
9-d ‘vz 3 09°TE8S pred smoys dioaul 09°T£89 09°T€8$ Sunysn sn|d sdwey Y10Z/61/21
s-d‘yz 3 LY'€E08$ pied smoys ad10auy LY"€08S LY°€08S Sunysn snjd sdwey v10z/1/T
v-d ‘bz X3 ST'Y86$ pred smoys ad10Au} ST'¥86% ST'V86S Sunysn snid sdwey ¥10Z/v2/11
€°d'yz 3 68'T0LS pied smoys adjoauy 68°T0LS 68'T0LS 3unysn snjd sdweq v10Z/vZ/T1
¢-d‘vzx3 v6°08$ pied smoys ad10au) v6°08$ v6°08% 3unysr snid sdwe1 v102/S/21
T°d ‘vz X3 91ep oN 00°0$ SL'8YLS 1d1233J uo 33ep oN SL'8YLS SL'8YLS 3unysn snjd sdweq umoujun
sasuadx3 sain3xi4 pue wooJyieg :Ai0a3e)
3DUIPING Jugueso junowy 3j|qemojjy paAoway 150D S3J0N JudwAed }o jooid nouly 12p10 Jo4 Japinosd aleg
= JON 103 uoseady }4OAn JO 2d10AU) B

080



ST J06233ed

8T00-217 ‘s;ueua] ‘A zehyeys

WV HAIYX3
Z1 d ‘pE"x3 Suidedspue] 00°0$ 66°LT$ jJuawAed SMoys 3210AUL 66°L2$ 66°LTS ainue J3ANS jodag awoH 800Z/TIT/v
1T °d vE X3 61°88% JuawAed smoys 310Ul 61°88$ 61°88$ S|eualen j0daQ 2woH v10Z/81/8
11°d‘ve"x3 Y0'0ET$ udwAed smoys ad10Aul v0'0ET$ [¥0°0ET$ sjeraelN jodag awoH v102/€/6
o1 d ‘vE X3 Y9v6TS JuawAed smoys ad10AuL v9v61S$ v9'v6TS s|euaie 10daQ sWoH +102/8/6
01 d ‘ve X3 13em Y6 vvTS v6'8% JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul 88°€STS 88°€STS sjeualeiN 10dag awoH v102Z/11/6
6 d ‘pE X3 29°6T$ judwAed smoys ad10Aul 29°61$ 29'61$ SjeualeN 10d3Q 2WoH YIOZ/€T/TT
g -d ‘vg X3 6v°TIS JudwAed SMOYS 3J10AUI 6v°ZTS 6v°ZI$ sjelleN jodag awoH vI0Z/2T/TT
8-d ‘v X3 Jem TT'T9$ v6'8$ juawAed smoys 3d10Aul ST°0L$ ST°0L$ S|enaieiN 3odag awoH v10Z/1T/11
LdvEx3 Jaiem vSYTIS LY'vS JudwAed smoys ad10AUl 106219 10°62T$ SjeusleN 30d3Q 2WoH ST0Z/€/€
9-d ‘pg X3 8E'SS JudwAed SMoYS a010AUl 8€°SS 8€°S$ s|euRleN j0dag 2woH s102/L/€
s-d‘pg 3 L0°TZS juawAed SMOYs 3d10AUL L0°TTS LO'TTS S|eule jodag swoH ST0Z/¥2/T
v d ‘b€ X3 18°SS$ JudwAed smoys ad10Aul 18°SS$ 18°SS$ SjeusleN j0daQ dwoH S10Z/S/€
g-dpex3 6£°6v$ judwAed SMOYs 3310AUL 6E°6V$ 6£°6vS sjenaleN Jaqum Awouod3 600Z/v/8
zdvex3 96°09% judwAed smoys 3djoAul 96°09% 96°09$ BEIE N Jaquny Awouod3z 600Z/v/9
1 °d ‘pE X3 5579 jJuawAied smoys ad10AUL 5593 S5°9% Sjeualeln Ajddns paeyd2a0 6002/2/11
S1°d‘ge 3 v°602$ Juawied sSMoys D10AU! r'607$ Tr'60Z$ sjela1eN j0dag awoH v102/1/€
ST *d ‘€€ 'x3 £9°€9% judwAed smoys adloAul L9°€9$ L9°E9S s|elaiey j0dag 2woH ¥TO0Z/9/€
v1d‘ee X3 6EVEES JudwAed smoys 3d1oAul 6 VEES 6EVEES SlenaleN 10daqg awoH ¥102/1€/CT
v1°d ‘€€ X3 29'15$ uawhed smoys 3d10Au 29°1S$ 29'1S$ sjeaieiN jodaqg awoH s10Z/2/t1
€1 °d‘gg 3 £0°EVS zr-d’egxajonedndna  |£0'ev$ £0'EVS s|euieN Jodag awoH ¥102/s2/11
€1 "0 "EE X3 Z0ETS JuawiAed smoys ad10nul 2TO'ETS Z0'€T$ sjeuale 10dag awoH Y10Z/vZ/TT
[ASCKT] £0°EVS JuawAed sMoys a210Aul €0°EVS €0'EVS s|ealeN 30daQ awWoH vT0Z/ST/TT
ztd‘ggea L9°2ES JuawAed smoys 310Ul £9°TES L9°2E$ sjenaleiN 10dag awoH $102/92/21
TT°d ‘e X3 ZETTS JudwAed Smoys adloAul ZETTS ZETIS S|euRley 10daQ aWoH YT0Z/v2/T1
1T °d ‘€€ "3 80°62% juawAed SMoys ad10Aul 80°62% 80°67$ s|eudleAl j0dag awoH vroz/Lz/ex
o1 "d ‘g€ 3 S9'TTS JuawAed smoys ad10Aul S9TTS S9TTS sjelaieiN 3odag awoH v102/02/1T
o1 °d ‘€€ X3 S|00L 9LSY$ TT6ES JuawAed smoys ad10Aul L6'V8S L6'V8S S|eusleiN 10d3Q dWOH v10Z/LT/2T
6d‘ee"x3 0T"v08S juawiAed SMOYs 3d10AUl 0T'v08$ 0T'v08% sjenRein 30d2Q dWoH v10Z/6T/2T
6°d‘ee X3 16v81$ judwAed smoys 3d10Aul T6'v81S T6'v8T$ SjeusleiN 30d3Q dwoH S10Z/€/2
g-d‘eg 3 6v°TS uawiAed smoys ad10aul 6v°Z$ 6v°2S s|eudlen 3odag awoH s102/12/1
8d‘€e 3 SY'L1TS JudwAed sMoys 3dI0AU SY'L1TS St L1ZS S|eudleN j0dag awoH S10Z/0T/1
L-d‘sgxa [453% JuawAed smoys a210Aul TUSTS TU'STS sjelale Jodag awoH s102/62/1
Ld‘gex3 75°9% juawAed smoys ad10Aul 75'9$ 25°9% SjeusleN 10d2Q WoH ST0Z/0E/T
9-d‘ggx3a €S°LYS JuawAed SMOYs 210AUl €S°LYS £5°LYS S|eualeiN j0daQ dWOoH +¥102/0T/21
9-d‘eg 3 9b'ETTS JuawAed smoys adtoAul 9 E€2T$ 9b'€CTS SlelaleN j0dag awoH v102/91/21T
s d‘ge X3 0L°9L2$ judwiAed smoys 3d10Aul 0L°9L28 0L°9L2$ SjeLale Jodaqg awoH vioz/9t/eT
g-d‘egx3 sqinqaysn SE'LLS 6C°LS JudwAed SMOYS 2210AUl v9v8$ v9'v8$ S|euale 30d3Qg 2WoH +¥102/2/71
v d‘gg x3 09°'v8T$- 3 juawAed SMOYSs 3J10AUL 09'v8T$- 09'v8T$- SUJN3dJ 10§ NPAID j0dag awoH ST02/6/T
y-d‘ege 3 €8'TTITS JuawAed smoys ad10Aul €8'TIT'TS €8 TIT'TS sjelaieiN jodaqg awoH $102/52/11
€d‘eex3 J|qepeasun Aead  [00°0$ 7L°806% juawAed SMOYs ad10AU} 7L°806$ 7L°806$ sjeLdien j0dag swoH 3jqepeasun
€-d‘eex3 £6°692$ JudwiAed SMOYS 3J10AU} £6°692$ £6'692$ sjeualeN jodag awoH S102/6/2
KRS Ly'8TT'TS ; JudwiAed smoys d10AUl LY'8TT'TS LY'8TT'TS sjelaleN 10dag dwoH v102/1/2T
z-d‘gea 96°€86S JudwiAed SMOYs 3d10AUL 96°€869. 96°€86$ S|elRiein j0dag awoH vy10z/v/TT
1-d‘eg x3 68'v8% juawAed SMOYS 3JI0AUL 68'¥8% 68789 sjeuaieN jodag awoH vTO0Z/V/€E
T°d‘€E"x3 18°Lv$ udwAed smoys ad10Aul 18°LYS 18°LYS S|eulein 10daqQ dwoH vy10z/st/t
ST d‘IE " s jJudwAed SMOYS 310AUL LS LY'LS s|eualein jodag 2woH 1102/¥T/9
sTd‘1E°X3 ?|qepeasun 000$ peas jouued efu e/u sjelRleN jodaQg awoH £102/v2/C
v1°d ‘1€ X3 90°€STS JudwiAed SMOYS 3DI0AUL S0°€STS 90°€STS S|eudlei 10daQ dwoH €102/11/2
R TEE] 9€'ZLS JuawAed SMoys 3d10Aul 9€°TLS 9€°TLS sjelaIeIN j0daQ awoH €102/12/T
€1°d‘1e3 SE'LYTS JuawiAed SMOYS 2D10AU) SE'LYTS SELYTS Sjeua3eiN 30dag awoH £102/9T/€
€1 d‘TE X3 LL9ES juawiAed SMOYs d10AUL LL°98$ LL°98$ sjeuale 30d3g dWoH 010Z/ST/TT
FARC R TR T] d|qepeasun 00°0% peai jouued efu e/u umouwjun 10d3Qg SWoH 3|qepeaiun
zrdrexa 3]qepeasun 100°0$ peai jouued efu efu umouyun j0daqg awoH 3jqepeaiun
11-d‘TENa 81'80T$ juawAed SMOYS 3JI0AUL 8£°80T$ 8.°80TS sjeualelN jodag dwoH €10Z/T1/C
TT°d ‘1673 0Z'1S$ JuawiAed smoys ad10Aul 0Z'15$ 0Z'15$ S|eLsleiN j0d3aQ awoH €10Z/0E/1T
01 'd‘1E™3 £S°0TTS JuswiAed SMOYs 3210AU} £5°01T$ |€S0TTS Sjeuaieinl 10daQ awoH €102/€2/€
PN 3unuesn junowy 3iqemollv PaAOWAY 150D S310N juawAed }0 J00id MNOWVIPRI0 Jo4 J9pInOid a3eq
2 JON JO} uoseay _ MOAN 20 B310Au E

081



ST 40 0T 93ed

8T00-LT1 ‘SIuBUaL "A ZRAYRYD

WV HGIYX3
9-d‘9g 3 LEOVTS juawAed SMOYs 3d10AUL LEOVTS LEOVZS SjelaleiN 10daqg awoH 010Z/61/8
s'd‘9g 3 LTS judwiAed SMOYS 3210AUl LTS T LT$ Sjeuajey j0dag dwoH €102/€2/8
¥ °d ‘9€ X3 06°Lt$ JudwAed smoys 3210Aul 06°LYS 06°LV$ S|euajein 30dag dwWoH v10zZ/01/2
v-d‘9g nq sqinq pue sem  [sp'evz$ 79°L1$ JuawAed smoys ad10AuL S0°'19Z$ S0°19Z$ sjeien j0daQ awoH v102/6/0T
€-d‘9g"a 25°09T$ judwAed SMOYys 310Uy 25°09T$ 25°09T$ Jeqay 10dag awoH §002Z/L1/S
€°d‘9g 'x3 Buidedsspue 00°0$ €9°SES JuawAed smoys adioaut €9°SES £9°SES Suidesspue 30dag awoH £002/62/9
z-d‘9g "x3 (3443 JudwiAed smoys d10Au 6v°2$ 6v°CS Sjeu1eiy j0daQ dWwoH £00Z/€2/8
z-d‘9g " x3 jeodseyd 00°0$ v°z$ juawAed SMoys 3210Aul vT$ s jeodieyd j0daQg awoH £002/S/0T
T°d ‘9g X3 siuejd 00°0$ LE'8T$ juauiAed smoys ad1oAul L£°82$ LE'8Z$ sjuejd 3odag awoH £00Z/91/6
1 °d ‘9 "x3 3|qepeaiun 000$ JudWwAed SMOYS 3210AU} efu efu umoujun j0dag awoH L002/T/S
St-d‘sgx3 £SVS$ JudwAed sMmoys 3d10Au} £SVS ES'V$ SjelRlein 1aqun Awouod3z 6002/0T/9
1 d‘se g YT'LS JudwAed SMOYS dJ10AUL F2 953 v1°L$ [eauP3|3 diempieH 30y 6002/22/6
€1°d ‘se 3 8L°80T$ Juswied smoys 2d10Aul 8L°80T$ 8L°80T$ Sjeusley j0daQg 2WwoH €102/91/2
Zrd‘sgx3 8S'0ETS judwAed smoys 3d10Aul 8S°0€TS 8S°0ETS BETETE 10d3Qg swoH £102/ST/T
zr-d’sexa 95°82T$ Judwied Smoys ad10AUl 9S°8ZI$ 9S°821$ S|eusleN 3odag awoH £€10Z/ST/0T
17 'd‘se x3 SE'EVTS JudwAhed smoys d1onul SE'EVIS SEEVTS s|enaiein j0dag awoH £00Z/vZ/v
TTd’‘sex3 €8°TLIS juswAed smoys 3d1oAul E£3°TLIS E8'TLIS Y31 Jo0pIn0 0dx3 dwoH £002/S/€
0T "d 'S¢ X3 98°vESS Juawied smoys 3d10Aul 98'bESS 98'vESS sdwey snid sdwey £00Z/1€/€
ot "d ‘sg "x3 ?)qepeasun 00°0$ jJudwAed smoys a310Aul e/u e/u umouwjun jodag 2woH a)]qepeasun
6-d‘sg3 3uidedspue 00°0$ (1574 JuawAed smoys ad10Aul 0T'vTs 0T'vTs 3uidedspue 10deQ dwoH £002/T/S
6-d‘sexa 99°9Z$ JuawAed SMOYs 3d10AUL 99'92Z$ 99°9Z$ SIeLIRIRIN 10030 3WOoH 8002/£2/S
8°d’'SE"X3 96°v$ JudWAERd SMOYS 3210AUI 96'v$ 96'vS S|el3leN 10d3Q 3woH £00Z/S/L
8 -d‘sg "3 d|qepeaiun 00°0$ 88°LES JudwAed smoys ad10Aul 8LLES 8L°LES umouyun 30d3Q dwoH £00Z/22/8
£-d‘sgx3 3uidedspuey 00°0$ 66'SLS JudwAed sMoys 3210Aul 66'SL$ 66°SL$ Suidesspuey 3odaqg awoy £002/81/S
9-d‘sgx3 a|qepeasun 00°0$ 87'86$ JudwiAed smoys adlonul 82°86$ 87°86% dwng Aspaxyiag yo A 3|qepeasun
s-d‘sgx3 3|qepeasun 000$ 6S°vS JudwiAed sMoYs 3d10Aul 651S 65'v$ umouyun 3yMm pue iy 9|qepeaun
t°d‘Sex3 v8°1LS JuawAhed smoys 3d10AuUl v8'1L$ v8TLS sjeaien 10daqg awoH 0102/12/L
v °d ‘S€ X3 S8'EVS JuawiAed smoys adloAul S8'EVS S8'EVS S|euaieiN 10daQ 3woH 010Z/0T/11
€d'sea wn3 te9s 0E'T$ JuawAed SMOYs 910AUl YL YIS vLY9$ sjeuaiein 10dag awoH 6002/82/S
g€-d‘sex3 68°1S$ JudwAed smoys d10AUl 68°1S$ 68'1S$ S|eualeN 30dag awoH 6002/62/S
z-d‘sg 3 ajqepeasun 00°0$ €218 JudwAed SMOYS 3210AUI £T°TTS £TTTS umowjun j0da2Qg 2woH 9jqepeasun
z-d‘se 3 3uidedspuey 08'8€$ 80°9T$ udwiAed SMOYS 3J10AUY 88'1S$ 88'1S$ sjeuaieN J0dag awoH 010Z/81/v
Td‘sex3 Jaem v6°ETTS LT'YS judwAed smoys 3d10Au} TT'82I$ TT'8ZI$ S|euaie|N j0daQ dwoH YI0Z/1T/L
SZ°d ‘ve X3 L1'T$ JudWAed SMOYS 3JI0AUL A¥%] L1278 Sjetaien 10daq awoH Z102/1/6
ST -d ~Qm *X3 hw.mww JuawAed SMOYS D10AU} hw.mww hw.mwm Sjeuaiey uOQUQ QWOH QﬂON\.n\M
vz d ‘ve X3 08'0T$ juawAed smoys 10Ul 08°0T$ 08°0T$ sjelale uodeag pay $102/01/2
€z °d ‘ve X3 05°95$ JudwAed SMOYS 3210Aul 05°95$ 05°95$ 1e3uay Juawdinb3 00531 STO0Z/TE/T
2z d‘ve"xa 86°08T$ JuawiAed smoys d10AuL 86°081$ 86°08T$ sjeuaiein 10dag awoH v102/€/9
zz°d ‘ve X3 sjooL €983 19°2E$ Judwhed smoys adjoAul 0E'19$ 0E'19$ Sjeuaey 1odag awoH v10Z/L1/9
Tz d vE X3 ISTITS JuauiAed SMOYs 310U IS TTTS ISTITS Sjela3eiN 10daQg dWoH ¥10Z/91/9
Tz °d ‘vE X3 3uidedsspuen 00°0$ LT0LS JudwAed smoys adioaul LT0LS LT0LS Suidedspueq 30d3Qg 2woH ¥102/ST/€
0z "d ‘pe X3 dlqepeasun 00°0$ 96'80T$ udwAed smoys d10Au} 96'80T$ 96°80T$ umowyun 30d3Q dwoH v102/12/9
07 'd ‘ve X3 sjoo) 00°0$ 96'80T$ juawied smoys 310Ul 96'80T$ 96'80T$ sjooL j0dag swoH v102Z/€2/L
6T °d ‘v X3 LS JuswAed smoys 3d1oAul LS LS sjeudiey j0daq swoH v10Z/€/TT
61 "d ‘v X3 £8°9T$ JudwAed SMOYS d10AUL £8°9T$ £8°9T$ S|enaie|n 10d3Q awoH v1oz/€t/6
8T d ‘ve X3 wits judwAed SMOYSs 3djoAul W LT$ LiTs sjeuale j0dag awoH v10Z/52/6
L1 d ‘pg X3 IS JUDWIABG SMOYS IDI0AUL TTTS TS SjeeN jodag awoH v10Z/v2/6
£1°d v 3 ¥9'63 uawAhed smoys adjoAut v9°6$ v9°6$ sjetsleN 10daQ WoH v102/92/6
91 "d ‘bg "x3 sjoog 00°0$ 8765 JuawAed SMOYS 3J10AUL ¥8°26$ ¥8°26$ sjool Ajddns gH ¥102/62/0T
ST °d ‘vE X3 15°93% JudwAed smoys 10AUI 15°9$ 15°9% sjeualeN j0dag awoH ¥102/92/8
ST "d ‘bE X3 £9'8$ JuswAed smoys ad10Aul £9°8$ £€9'8$ BETEE jodag awoH v102/L2/8
v1-d pex3 18°SZ$ JudwAed smoys d10Aul 18°ST$ 18'ST$ BEIEEN 10dag awoH v10Z/£2/8
v1°d ‘bE X3 SjooL €S°9TTS T10°6%S JuduwiAed smoys 310Aul ¥5°S9TS S'S9TS SjeuaieN 30dag awoH v102/2/6
€1 °d ‘bE X3 90°€S$ JudwAed SMOYS 3J10AUL 90°€S$ 90°€S$ sjeua1ein j0dag awoH $102/91/8
€1 'd ‘vE X3 Jajem €0°0€S v6°89 juawiAed SMOYS 3010AUL L6°8ES L6°8ES sjersleN 10d3Q dwoH v10Z/11/8
2T d ‘bvE 3 Sujdesspuen 00'0$ €8°€S$ JudwAed SMoys ad10Aul £€8°€S$ €8°€S$ aInue 12335 j0dag awoH 800Z/T1/v
DU3PIA] 3unuein Junowy 3jqemoj|y paAoway 350D S3j0N JuswAed jo jooid whowy P10 104 Japinoad aeq
9 10N J0j uoseay ¥4O/M 10 3DI0AU} -

082



STJoTT aded

8T00-LT7 ‘swueud) ‘A zeAyeys

W HAIYXI
vd’‘gexa 1a1eM 78'8L$ v6'8$ JuawAed smoys 2d10AUY 92718 9L°L8% s|eualen 10daQ awoH ST0Z/22/Y
pvdgex3 1985 JuawAed smoys ad10Aul 1983 198 sjeta3elN 30dag awoH S102/9/5
€d 8¢ X3 |eodey) €S'6ETS 99°12$ JudwAed smoys 3010Au 6T'T9TS 6TI9TS sjelalen jodag awoH ST0Z/€2/Y
€d‘ge 3 9T°0vTS judwAed smoYs 3d10AuL 9T'0VTS 9T°0b1S sjeulen 10daQ awoH S102/8/v
zd’gg "x3 v5'85$ JudwAed SMOYS JDI0AUI v585$ S'85$ s|eLalen 10dag awoH $102/92/S
zd ‘8e X3 v 0€S JudwAed smoys 3dioAul v'0€$ v 0ES slenate 30daQ dwWoH S102Z/02/S
Td ‘8 X3 OV 19€$ JudwAed SMOYs 3d10AUL Ov'T9ES OV T9€$ S|euajein 30dag awoH S10Z/6/v
Td‘8e"x3 €€°972$ Juawied smoys 3310AuL ££'922$ ££'922$ sleuaein 10daq dwoH ST0Z/v/v
91 d ‘€ "x3 i _M_v_w“ﬂ:s 00°0$ 0L°65$ judwAed smoys dioAul 0L65$ 0L°6S$ 3uidesspue| 10dag 2woH ; £00Z/vZ/1T
91 °d‘Lg X3 d)qepeasun 00°0$ 0S°Sv$ JudwAed SMOYS d10AUY 05°'Sv$ 05°Sb$ umouwjun J0daQ awoH £00Z/1/v
stdzexa pos 88°59$ OLIES JudwAed SMoys 3210AuL 8S°L6$ 85'L6$ sjealen 10daQ dWoH 0102/1/6
ST °d‘2€°x3 d)lqepeaiun 00°0$ LS°TES JuawAed smoys 3310AUl LS'TES LS'TES umouyun J0dag dwoH 010Z/01/2
v1°d e X3 Suidesspuen 0003 00°LES JuawAed smoys adioAul 00°LES 00°LE$ Suidedspueq jodaq awoH £00Z/12/L
vi-diLexa 8S°ZES JuawAed SMoys ad10AuL 85°ZES 85°CES BEIEEN 10dag awoH £002/22/S
€1°d ‘L3 v8°€$ JuawAed sMmoys ad10Aul v8'ES V8'ES SjealeiN 10dag awoH T10Z/8/%
[ACHTET] 5°99$ JuawAed SMoys 3210AUL 5°99$ ¥599$ sjeldieiN j0dag dwoH 0102/91/2
Zrd g3 Sypeus T6'v2ES 09T JudwiAed SMOYS 3210AUI 1S°92€$ 15°92€$ S|euale 30dag awoH 010Z/L1/9
TTdLE"X3 S|00L 00°0$ v9°'SLS JudwiAed sMmoys 3dI0Aul v9°SL$ v9°SLS SjooL 10dag awoH 1102/8/%
Trd2e°xa a|qepeaiun 00°0$ JudwiAed SMOYS 310AUL e/u efu umowjun jodaQg swoH djqepedlun
ot -d‘zg 3 dlqepeaiun 00°0$ v ISYS Juawihed smoys 2210AU] v ISYS TV ISPS umoujun 10030 3WOH 010Z/22/9
6°dLE X3 .nw.Sm JudwAed SMOYS 3D10AUL Hw.s% ﬂw.ow% SjeuleN HOQUO SWOH HHON\QN\W
6°dLE 3 ST'68$ JuawAed SMOYS 3210AUl ST'689 ST°68% Sjeuslen 10d3Qg 2woH 0102/1/L
g-dLe"x3 98°6$ JuswAed SMOYS 3d10AUL 98°6$ 98°6$ SjeuRlen 30daQg awoH 6002/12/6
8-d‘LEX3 01'8$ JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul 01°8L$ 01°8L$ sleuale|n 10daq awoH 6002/22/6
L-dLe"x3 TTEIVS JuawAed smoys 3210AUL TT6TIYS TT6TIYS sjenaen jodaq awoH 6002/L1/6
L-d L3 8£°99L$ uawiAed smoys adioaul 8L99L$ 8£°99L$ sietieN 3odag awoH 600Z/v/6
9-d‘sg X3 TISIES juauwiAed SMOYs 3dI0AUL TT'STES TT°STES SleualeN jodag awoH 6002/L1/6
9-d‘Lg"x3 S6'v9C9 JuauiAed smoys adloAul S6'v92$ S6v9Z$ Sleualein 10daQ awoH 600Z/11/6
sdzexa 128673 judwAed smoys ad10Aul 12°8629 12°8629 Jaquin 10dag awoH 0102/€2/¢
s d’re3 ¥8°'STS JuawAed smoys 310Ul V8°STS 8°STS sjelaelN Jodaqg awoH 1102/v2/S
v-dLex3 YTTES juawAed smoys dd1oAul YT TES VTTES |e3uay Juswdinb3 [e3uay dinb3 ziaH vioz/zt/it
€-dLex3 vO'ETS JudwAed smoys 3d10AUl Y0°ETS YO'ET$ S|eudlen j0daq awoH v102/81/2T
€dLex3 SE'SS juawiAed smoys adioaul SE°SS SE'SS sjeualey jodaQg awoH s10z/0Z/S
zdzexa 621$ JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul 62°1$ 62T$ sjealein 30daQ awoH s10Z/€2/S
zdrexa FEICITY 8T°0TS v6'8$ JuawAed SMOYs 3J10AUL T°6T$ TU6TS sjeualeN j0daq awoH sT0Z/vT/E
1-d‘2e3 TS°6VS$ Juawied smoys adjoauy TS°6VS$ S°6VS$ sjenajeN 10daQ dwWoH stoz/tz/t
1-d2ex3 8EBES Juduihed smoys 3210AUl 8EBES 8EBES sjeralelN 10daQ dWoH ST0Z/0T/v
91 "d ‘9€ "x3 T0°LTYS juatuAed smoys 3d10AuUl T0°LTYS TOLZYS SjelaleN 30daq dwoH v10Z/S/v
91 "d ‘9g "x3 0€'69% JuawiAed smoys adloaul 0£°69% 0£°69% sjelaieiN 10dag awoH vI0Z/v1/Y
ST "d ‘9€ X3 €2°0Z1$ JudwiAed smoys 3210Au] €T021$ £2°02T$ sjealeN J0daqg dwoH YI0Z/v1/Y
T *d ‘9€ 'x3 3|qepealun 00'0$ 82°998% JuswAed SMoys 3d10AUL 82°998% 82°998% umoujun jodag awoH ?|qepeasun
v1°d ‘9g 3 90°'v8$ JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul 90'8$ 9089 Jaquim 30daqg dwoH Y10Z/1€/€
€1 °d '9g X3 ST'0£$ JudLWARG SMOYS 3J10AUI ST'0E$ ST'0E$ uied 10daq 2woH v102/6/v
€1 °d ‘98 'x3 09°248$ juawAed smoys 3d10Aul 09'2/8% 09°2/8$ Jaquiny j0dag awoH vioz/t/y
21 "d ‘9g '3 €8'81$ JuaLWARd SMOYS 3D10AU] £8°8T$ £8°8T$ sjelaleN j0d3Q swoH v10Z/12/v
T1°d ‘9g "x3 SET0TS Juawihed smoys adloAul SE'TOTS SETOTS sjeule j0dag swoH v102/€2/9
T1°d ‘98 "x3 191eM Ly'S8$ LTv$ uawAed smoys 3d10Aul 19°68$ 9°68$ slelaleiN 10d3Q dWoH v10Z/22/L
01 'd ‘9 3 sjooy 00°0$ 18°8TIS 1udwAed smoys d10AU 18'8TTS 18°8TTS sjooL 10d3Q dwoH vT02/€/9
01 "d '9¢ X3 90°68$ juduiAed sMoys 3210Aul 90°68% 90'68$ s|eraleiN ‘J0dag awoH ¥102/¥2/9
6 d ‘9¢ 'x3 9L°1Z$ juawAed smoys ad10Aul 9L°TTS 9L°1Z$ sjeuleN 30daqg awoH £10Z/€/8
6 'd ‘9€ 'x3 99°€Z$ juawAed smoys adioaul 99°€T$ 99'€T$ sjed3eN j0daQg swoH €102/ST/L
8 "d ‘o€ X3 86612 JuduAed sMoys ad10Aul 86°6TZS 86'612$ sjeuaien 10dag awoH €102/L1/8
8°d ‘9g 3 00'vSTS udwAed SMOYS 310AUl 00°pSTS 00'vSTS SjelRleN 10dag awoH £102/61/8
L°d ‘9€ "x3 €8'I8$ JuawAed smoys ad10Aul £€8°18% £8°18$ SjeualeN jodag awoH otoz/t/e
£°d ‘9g "x3 3|qepeaiun 00°0$ 06°L9$ Juawided smoys adtoaul 06°£9% 06°L9% umouyun jodag 2woH ajqepeaun
32uaping Supueis junowy 3jqemojiy paAoway 150D SION JudwAed jo jooid oWV 19pJ0 Jo4 Japinoid aeq
) JON 10} uoseay HIOM JO DDI0AU] N

083



ST 0 7T 93ed

8T00-LT7 ‘sjueud] "A zeAyeyo

WV HAIYX3
9-d’ov 3 £9'59% udwAed smoys 3d10AuL £9°59$ £9°59$ sjetaieN 10dag awoH 910Z/ST/TT
9-d ‘oY X3 (02°Z19% judwiAed smoys adloaul 02°C19% 0Z°TI9% J9]edH sen jodag sawoH 9102/6/2T
s'dov 3 3uidedspue] LTSS 20°LES eaguelpAy sapnjoul v2°889 v£'889$ sjeRleIN 30dag awoH 9102/92/6
s-d‘oyx3 88°917$ uawied smoys a310Aul 88°9TZ$ 88°9TZ$ SjeudleN jodag awoH 9102/92/6
vdov X3 T9°LS$ JudwAed smoys ad10Aul 19°L5$ 19°L5$ S|eule 10daq dWwoH 910Z/22/T
vdov-x3 88°€TS juawAed SMoys 3210AuUl 88°€TS$ 88°E€TS$ SjeudleN j0daQg 2woH 9T0Z/01/0T
€-dov 3 Jwad 3sod syyuow € |00°0$ £T°2E$ juawAed smoys adioaul £T°ZE$ £1°2E$ sjeuaey jodag awoH L1oz/T/y
e€doyxa Bwaad 3sod syzuow € |00°0$ SY'€S$ JudwAed smoys 3210Au) SY'Es$ SY'Ess sjeualen 30da@ awoH L102/¥1/Y
¢ doy a3 LS'T6TS JuawAed smoys adjonul LS'TETS LS'T6TS s|eualeN jodag awoH 910Z/0€/1T
z-dov 3 88°SS$ juawAed smoys 3210Aul 88°SS5$ 88°SS$ sjel1eiN jodag awioH 910Z/0£/6
1-d‘ov 3 ?jqepeaiun 00°0$ SLLYTS 9)qepea.sun paseydund swdY| |G 7/PTS SLLYTS umoupun 10daQg awoH 9102/L/2T
Z1°d‘6€ X3 €5°6TS JudwAed smoys a10AUI £S°6T$ £S'6TS spullg Jodaq awoH 9102/€1/0T
21 d ‘6€ X3 ET'EEES JudwiAed smoys ad10AuL ET'EEES ET'EEES spulig 10dag awoH 910Z/91/11T
11 °d ‘6€ 3 vI°LOVS JuawAed smoys ad10Aul vI'L0v$ YT LOVS spulg 30dag awoH 9102/8/01
11 d ‘6€ X3 3uideospue 00°0% 85°95$ syuejd 85°95$ 85°95$ sjueld j0daQ awoH 9102/9/0T
ot 'd ‘6€ "3 3uidesspuen 00'0$ YT 19$ sjueid YT 19$ YT 19$ syueld 10d3Q aWoH 910Z/61/L
01 "d ‘6€ X3 Suidedspuey 00°0% 6L°0LTS syueyd 6L°0LTS 6L°0LTS swuejd 10da@ awoH 910Z/61/L
6°d ‘6 X3 ?jqepeaiun 00°0$ a|qepeaun efu efu dwng dwing Asje)i9g ?|qepeasun
gd‘6g"xa vS'8TS JuawAed SMOYS 3510AUL ¥S'81$ ¥S'81$ SjelieIN 10daq awoH 9102/8/21
8'd6E"3 | 2€°82T$ JuswiAed smoys 3d10AU LE'BTTS LE'BITS S|eualein 10d3Q dWOH 910Z/1/21T
£°d‘6E "3 £€°9€$ JudwiAed Smoys 3d10Aul £E°9ES €€°9E$ S|eualein j0daQ SwWoH £102/€/T
£°d‘6€X3 €8'vZ$ JudwAed SMOYs 3d10AUl £8'YTS €8'vTS Sjeualen 10dag awoH 910Z/vT/L
9-d'6 3 SETS UsWARd SMOUS SDI0AU!__[SE'TYS SETr$ sleuaie 30daq SuioH Lroz/g/t
9°d ‘6€ X3 ETVES uawhed smoys 3d10Aul ETVES ETYES sjelsa1eIN 10daQ 3WoH £10Z/92/1
5-d‘6ex3 80'VES judwAed SMOYS 3d10AUl 80°VES 80'vES s|elaeN j0daQ 3WoH Lroz/ez/t
s-d‘6ex3 vZ'802$ juawied smoys ad10Aul ¥2°8079 2'8029 S|eualeN 10dag awoH £102/€2/1
v°d‘6E 3 25°'8% Juawied smoys adloAul 75°8% 75°8% S|euale N j0daQ awoH 9102/82/S
v'd‘sea Sv'zTs judwAed smoys adjoaul Ssv'zes St'zes s|eualeN 10daqg dwoH 9102/2/L
€°d 63 26°09$ uawAed SMOYS 3d10Au! 26°09$ 26°09% Sjeuslen 10d3Q WOH LT0Z/91/1
z'd‘6e"3 v:m_mw.““._mmuﬂﬂ: e 00°0$ S9°62$ |eodJeyd /anuew 1331s S9°62$ S9'62$ SjeusleN 10dag awoH 9102/92/S
z-d‘6e X3 Suidesspue] 00°0% S5°9$ Suidedspuey S5°9% §5°9% SjelajelN 1odaQ awoH 9102/9/L
1°d‘6E X3 Suidesspuey 00°0$ L6°TS$ diey 16'25$ 16'25$ SjenaleiN 10daq aWoH 910Z/91/L
T°d‘6E X3 Suidesspuey 00°0% SE'097$ duidedspue Jje SE°092$ SE092$ Sleaiein 10daQ 3woH 910Z/81/L
st d‘ge 3 3)jqepeaiun 00°0$ 3|gepeasun e/u e/u umouyun ur] usA ¥102/ST/2T
pT d‘8E X3 3|qepeasun 0003 ajqepeaun efu efu dwng dwing AsjaxJag 3|qepeaiun
y1 d‘gE X3 3|qepeaiun 00°0$ 3)jqepeasun efu e/u dwng dwnq Asjayiag ?|qepeaiun
c1d‘ge"q 6T°v9$ JudwAed smoys dloAul 61°v9$ 61°v9$ sjeualeN Jodaq dwoH 910Z/L/T1T
€1.d ‘8¢ X3 (oeA Aap3am) sjool  [00°0$ 6v°€S$ juawAed smoys ad10AU! 6v°€SS 6V°€SS Sjeuole 10d3Q dWoH 9102Z/St/TT
7rd‘ge X3 T9°0VTS- punjay 19°0VT$- 19°0VTS- Sjea1e|N 10daQ dWoH S102/€/€
Z1d‘8e'x3 0L'YS$ uawAed smoys adj0AuL 0LYS$ 0L°YS$ sjelialeN 10d3Q awoH S10Z/12/€
11 d ‘8€ X3 8°97% JuduwiAed SMOYS D10AUL 78°92$ 78929 SjeuaieiN 10daQ awoH ST0Z/T1/€
TTd‘gE X3 90°L$ JuawAed smoys ad10Aul 90°L$ 90°L$ sjelsale N 10dag swoH STO0Z/€T/E
01 d ‘8¢ X3 86°6L$ JuawAed smoys 310Ul 86'6L$ 86°6L$ sjelaieiN J0dag dwoH S10Z/St/€
o1 d ‘g 'x3 VEEVS JudwiAed smoys 2d10AuL VEEYS YEEVS BRI 10daQ 2woH ST0Z/TT/E
6d‘g8e X3 SETES JuawiAed SMOYS 32j0AUL SE'TES SE'TES S|eualein 10dag dwoH S102Z/8Z/€
6d‘ge X3 spedaauy 8°'SZ$ TI'8ES JudwAed SMOYS 210Ul £6°€9$ £6'€9$ s|euaiein jodag awoH ST0Z/9Z/€
gd‘ge X3 28'621$ uawAeRd SMOYS 310AUI 78'6219 78'621$ s|elaieiN j0daq awoH S102/92/2
£d‘8E X3 8TYIS JuduiAed smoys 2d10AuL 8TYTS 8TYIS sjeraleN 10daq 3woH s102Z/12/S
£d’'gE X3 €E0ES JuswAed smoys ad10Aul €E°0ES EE°0ES sjealeN 10daQ awoH ST0Z/9T/S
9d ‘g€ 'x3 SL°0Z$ JuawAed SMOYs 3dI0AUI SL°0T$ SL°0T$ sjelaieiN j0dag dWoH S102/8/S
9d‘ge X3 09°6$ JudwAed SMOYS 10AU] 09°6% 09'6$ sjeuaieiN j0daQ dwoH ST0Z/2T/S
sd‘ge "x3 131em v0°ZES v6'6$ JuawAed SMOYS 3J10AUl 86°TYS 86°TYS S|eldlen j0d3Q swoH s10Z/v/S
sd‘gg "x3 9TETS JuUdWiA_d SMOYS 3210AUL 9T €T$ 9TETS sjelley jodag awoH S102/6T/S
3DU3PIA3 3uguess junowy 3|qemoj|y panoway 350D S3I0N JuawAed }o jooid nomy R0 104 19pinoid aeq
b JON 10} uosedy 40/ 10 3D10AU] ?

084



ST 40 €T aded

810011 ‘S3UBU3L A ZeAyRYD

WY HGIYX3
zd‘gyxa ¥0°S05$ juawAed smoys 3d10AuL $0°S0S$ 0°S0S$ SjeualeN 2UYM pue ni) £00Z/9T/1T
Td '8y X3 99°T¥0'TS juawAed SMOYs 210AUL 99°TY0'TS 99'Tv0'TS sjeuale|n AuYM pue nay L00Z/€T/1T
01°d‘zv X3 1t°89$ JuawiAed smoys d10Aul 1v°89$ 15°'89$ sjenaleN 10dag dwoH £00z/62/S
01 "d ‘zv °x3 Suidesspueq 00°0$ Ir°L9$ Juidesspueq L9% wL9s Suidesspue j0daQg sawoH 3|qepeasun
6°d‘zy X3 Suideospuey 00°0$ 0€°7Z$ 3uidedospue 0€'72$ 0€'ZZ$ 3uideospuey 30daq dwoH £00Z/1€/S
g8dzy X3 sodesansq ST°LTS £€'TS JudwAed smoys 3d10AUl 81°82$ 8v°82$ sjeualeN jodag awoH 100Z/2/6
g-d‘zy-x3 3)jqepeaiun 00°0$ 3jqepeasun efu efu 3|qepeaiuf jodag awoH ajqepeaiun
A KIES] 90°L6% judwAed smoys adioAul 90°L6$ 90°26$ sjenaieN jodag dwoH £00Z/0€/S
L£°d 2y 3 3lqepealun 00°0$ a|gepeasun e/u e/u 3|qepeasun 30daQ awoH 1002/9/L
9 dra S|qepeaiun 0008 a|qepeaiun efu efu 3|qepeasun j0dag awoH L00Z/12/v
s-d ey 3 3jqepeasun 00°0$ a|qepeaiun e/fu e/u a|qepeasun jodaq awoH £00Z/€/0T
sdzy'x3 3)qepeaiun 000$ 9|qepeasun e/u efu a|qepeaiufn jodag awoH 3jqepeaiun
ydzy 3 a|qepeaiun 00°0$ 3jqepeaun e/u efu 3jqepeaiun j0dag awoH £00Z/0E/€
€-dzy X3 a|qepeasun 00°0$ ajgepeaiun efu e/u 9|qepeaun j0daQg awoH £L00z/L/9
€dzva aedlidnp 00'0$ 85°9€$ 9°d ‘Tp "x3 Jo jedyydng 85°9£$ 85°9€$ S|euaiein 10daQ dWoH 110Z/81/T1
zdra 3uidesspue 0003 TLTITS 3uidedspue LUTITS LTITS Suidedspuey 10da@ dWoH £002/6/9
zdw a3 Buidesspue] 00°0% TTITTS Juidesspuen TTITTS TTITTS 3uideospuer j0dag awoH £002/02/L
1°dZv X3 3uidesspue] 00°0$ ve9vs Juidesspue] vE9YS YEIYS Buidesspue] jodag awoH £L00Z/9T/L
1-d Ty X3 S9°€$ udwAed SMOYS 3210AUI S9'€$ S9'€ES S|eudleiN 10daq dWoH £002/€1/L
0T d‘Iv X3 ?)qepeaaun 00°0$ ?|qepeatun efu efu umowjun jodaQg 2woH 0T0Z/LT/TT
6°d ‘It A 08°€S JudwAed SMOYS 3JI0AUL 08°€$ 08°€S SjeueIN J3quing Awouod3 T102/vT/E
8°d Iy 3 Suidesspue] 00°0$ LTESS Buidesspuey LTESS LTESS Suidesspue] 10d2Q dWOH £002/S/01
8d‘Ip X3 Buidesspue 00°0$ S6'6TTS Buidesspue S6°6TTS S6'6TTS Suidedspuey 10d3Q dWoH £002/82/1
£°d Ty X3 3uidedspue 00°0$ T0'9€$ 3uidedspue T09€$ T0'9€$ 3uidesspuey jodag dwoH £002/L/8
L£°d1p X3 £0°92$ uaWAed SMOYS 2010AUL £0°9Z$ £0°92$ s|eualen 30d2q 9WoH £002/22/6
9°d Ty X3 £5°66$ JuawAed SMOYs 2d10AUY £5°66$ £5°66$ S|eudIeIN 10daQ dWoH 0z/Le/€
9°d Ty X3 85°9ES uawiAed SMOYS 3210AUL 85°9€$ 85°9€$ S|enaleln 10dag awoH T10Z/81/21T
Sv-dd ‘Tv 3 20°L0TS JuaWwAed SMOYS 210AU 20°L0T$ 20°L0T$ jejuay Juawdinby jejuay dinb3 zuaH st0z/12/v
€dIvpa 6L°0LES JuawAed SMOYS 3210AUI 6L°0LES 6L°0LES sjeualeiN 10d3Q dWoH S10Z/82/%
€dIv X3 LTLS judwAed SMOYS 3210AUl LS wTLS BEIE R j0daQ swoH s10Z/L2/v
z°dIv 3 9T'Z$ JuawAed smoys 3d1oAul 9T°Z$ 9T°2$ sjenalely Ajddns pseyaio £002/v1/6
1dTr g £2°565$ JuawAed smoys ad10Aul LT'S65S LT'S65$ sjeale 10daqg awoH ST0Z/81/0T
81 d ‘ov X3 3uidedspuey 00'0$ £T'8Y$ 3uidesspue £T'8Y$ £T8YS 3uidesspuey j0dag awoH £00Z/¥1/L
81 d ‘ov )3 TTYTS JuawiAed SMOYS dd10AUL TTvT$ TTYes SleualeN 10daqg awoH 1002/22/8
L1 °d oy 3 9.8 juawiAed smoys 3d10Aul 9L°T$ 9L°T$ sajdels 10daQ awoH T102/92/¢
[1d‘ov X3 LT°6S judwAed Smoys 3210Aul LT'6$ LT°6$ sjeualey j0dag awoH 102/82/€
91 "d ‘Op *x3 3210AUI ON 00°0$ 00°002$ efu sse|9 ssejdsadng 910Z/v1/1T
sTd‘ov 3 0z°9L$ JudwAed SMOYS J10AU! 0Z°9L$ 02°9L$ s{etaieN 10daq awoH 9102/0€/L
st -d ‘ov "3 sjqepeaun 00°0$ 3jqepeasun efu efu umouyun jodaq awoH ajqepeasun
v1 "d ‘ov 3 Suidesspue 00'0$ 88°SSTS Suidesspue 88°SSTS |88°ssT$ Suideospuey 30daqg awoH 9102/02/L
1 d ‘ov X3 3uidedspueq 00'0$ £8°6S9 3uidedspuey £8°65$ £8°65$ Suidesspue 30d2@g dwoH 9toz/€e/L
e1+d‘opx3 Suideaspuey 00°0$ 6Y°SLTS judwAed smoys a310Aul 6v°SLZ$ 6v°SLTS sjenaien jodaq awoH ?|qepeaiun
pue 31ep 3jqepeasun
€1d ‘ov X3 YIS 1uduwiAed SMOYs 3d10AuUl YTHT$ YI'vT$ s|euajein 1odaQ awoH 910Z/9T/v
z1d‘ov X3 98°€0TS 1udwiAed SMOYS 910AUY 98°€0T$ 98°€0T$ S|eaeln 10daqg awoH 9102/82/S
zrd‘ov X3 sadesanaq €L°9T$ 86'€S sadesanaq sapnpul TL02$ 14702 sjeuaeln 10dag awoH 9102/0€/S
11 °d‘ov 3 YS'ELTS juawiAed smoys ad10Aul YS'ELTS PSELTS sjenaleiN Jodaqg 3woH 9102/11/9
11 °d ‘oF X3 5|00} LT°TE$ LTS Y31Pjiom JO 3500 sapnpul  [89°6HS 89°6v$ s|eraieiNl 30dag awoH 9102/12/1
01 °d ‘0¥ 'x3 ZI°8TS juduiAed SMoys 2310AuL 8TS TT'8TS BEIE T j0dag awoH 910Z/ST/Yv
ot d‘ov X3 z9'8v$ juawAed smoys 3dioAul 79'8v$ 79'8v$ sjelaleN 10daQ dwWoH 9102/ST/v
6°d oy X3 6€98T$ uawAed SMOYS 3d10AUL 6€°98T$ 6£°98T$ sjenaieiN 10dag awoH 910z/22/1
6'dova sa3esanaq 6L°SETS 86°€$ saesanaq sapnjoul LL6ETS LL'6ETS sjeualein j0dag awoH 910Z/91/v
8°d‘0ov X3 TS'19$ juawiAed smoys adloAul 1Sv9$ TSv9% sjel21elN 10dag awoH 910Z/02/L
g-d‘ov X3 sadeianaq - ST'19% 86'€$ s93e49A9q SapNjoul £2'59$ £2°59$ s[elaleN 10dag awoH 910¢Z/€2/L
L-d‘ov X3 06°VETS jJudwAed SMOYS 3D10AUL 06°VETS 06'VETS S|eudleiAl jodag swoH 9102/82/6
£d‘ov 3 9E'VS juawAed smoys 2310Aul 9EvS 9E'vS S|elIRRAl j0dag awoH 910Z/0€/L
DUBPIAT Junuer junowy 3jqemojly paAOwWY 350D S3I0N juswAed }o jooid UV RE0 Jo4 JapInosd 3jeq
5 ION 40} uoseay ¥IOM 10 3D!10AU} g

085



ST 40 ¥T 93ed
8T00-LT1 ‘s3ueua] “A zeAyeyo

WV HGIYX3
8S5°8L9VES 8S5°8L9VES 8S°EVT'SES :|e303gns 3|qJe pue sysuiqe)
.m«mm.ﬂxw :M w~w mn.“m 0000S°L$ 68TT pue ZSTT SJaquinu 3oay) 00°00S'L$ 00°005'L$ anueln 3)11-jea/a3e3s UaP|OD sT0Z/s/t
“ce .,mm.wﬂ. aa.N = 8S°8LY°T$ SYTT Jaquinu ay) 8S'8LY'TS 8S8LYTS aquesn aj11-jeq/a3e3s Uap|on v10Z/81/CT
0zt 'd ‘s X3 Y1/S/2T uo TETT Jaquinu
“p pue T *dd ‘26 g 0000LvT$ P32 Aq pred 0oL ZT$ Jeuonippe 00°00L°vT$ 00°59Z°ST$ spuIqe) Jauige) wispo Y10Z/€/1T
snjd ‘pied 000‘ZT$ SMOYS 3d10AU] =
3|quelAl pue s3auiqe) :AioSa3e)
8€°SSE9ES €v°992'stS 65°0T6°SHS ‘|e303qns snoaue|dds|n

€dzsx3 6E°LES JuswiAed smoys ad10Aul 6E°LES 6€°LES s|enaleiN Jaquini Aqysy 800Z/9/8

2d 253 a3eandnp 0008 90°0TL‘T$ ua_wuoh,mo\wn\.\n“wn“u Sy - |000TLTS 90°0TL'T$ sjeLRIey 1aquiny Aqysy 8002/9/8

1°dZs 3 81°069$ JudwAed smoys ad10Aul 81°069$ 81°069$ sjeuaen Jaquin Aqysy 8002Z/L/1
€1°d ‘IS 3 08°91T$ juawAed smoys ao10Aul 08'9TT$ 08°91T$ sjeLa3ely Jaquing Aqusy £00z/z1/TT
A ETES] L8'TETS uawAed smoys d10Aul L8'TETS L8'TETS sjeualeN Jaquing Aqysy 800Z/Z1/11

TT°d ‘153 90°0TL'T$ JuawiAed SMoys ad1oAul 90°0TL'T$ 90°0TL'TS Sjeualeln Jaquin Aqysy 8002/L/8
0t *d ‘15 °x3 6V°90T$ JuauiAed smoys adloaul 6v°90TS 61°90T$ Sjelle Jaqun Aqysy 800Z/81/9
6'd ‘1573 0L'TZS JuawAed SMOYs 2d10AUL 0L1Z$ 0L1Z$ Sjeuaein Jaquim Aqysy 800Z/11/9
8°d ‘15" X3 V8 EETS JuawAed smoys 3d10Aul ¥8'EETS V8'EETS Sleualein Jaquim Aqysy 8002/82/S
L°d'153 96°0ZT$ udwiAed SMOYS 3d10AUL 96°0ZT$ 96°0Z1$ sjelaley Jaquint Aqysy 8002/S2/v
9°d‘15°x3 85°€$ JudwAed SMOYs adioAuL 85°€$ 85°€$ sjelalein 9UYM pue niniL 800Z/z2/v
S-v°dd ‘75 °x3 SE'TSETS juswAed smoys adjoAul SETSETS SETSETS S|euajeln Jaquni Aqysy 800Z/12/v
€d157a LIVEES juawAed smoys ad10Au L9'VEES L9VEES Sleualen Jaquin Aqysy 800Z/T1/€
2d1s7q vS'vLTS JuduiAed SMOYs d10AU] YSvLTS SIS S|eualeln Jaquing Aqysy 8002/02/2

1d153 £6°€8$ Juawied smoys ad10Aul €6°€8% £6°€8S slelalen Jaquin Aqysy 8002/5/T
S "d‘0s 3 L9°Tv$ JudwAed SMOYs d10AU} L9°Tv$ L9°TY$ sjelajen UYM pue ninay 800Z/1/0T
¥ °d ‘05 X3 8E'68Y$ JudwAed SMoys 3d10Aul 8E'68Y$ 8E'68YS Sjelale|n Jaquin Aqysy 800Z/1/0T
€-d‘0s 3 6E'TLES uawihed smoys ad10aul 6ETLES 6ETLES sjeuaieln 3UYM pue [inuy 8002/L1/6
z'd‘0s 3 Y SYES JudwiAed smoys d10AuL v SYES vb'Sves sjeuaiein SUYM pue ninJL 8002/L2/8
T°d‘0s 3 £6°85$ JuswAed SMoYs 3d10AUL €6°8S9 £€6°8S$ Sjeualen Jaquing Awouod3 8002/21/9

paseydund sem jeym
Ld 6y x3 30 uonedipui ou pue 0003 efu 9T'v8$ umouyun sjeuae panddy £00Z/8T/L
juswAed j0 jooud on

9°d ‘6 X3 LT°€89% JuauiAed SMOYS 310AU) L1°€89% L1°€89% Sjeualein SUYM pue nmay £00Z/L2/1T
sd‘6y q vZ'LST$ JuawAed Smoys 2010AUL vZLSTS vTLST$ sjenaleN Jaquing Aqusy £00Z/€2/11T
vd 6y X3 652193 JuauwiAed SMOYS 3010AUl 65°719% 65°219$ Sjeualein 3UYM pue NiniL £002/0Z/11T
€°d 6y 'x3 31ed1]dnp 00°0$ +0°S05$ 2 *d ‘gp "x3 yo 3jedyydng ©0°S0S$ v0°S0S$ s|elalen ?Yym pue niniy £00Z/9T/11

zd‘6v 3 L1213 JudwAed smoys 2d10AUL LrL1e8 LTL12$ sjelaeN SYM pue 3naL £00Z/8/9

1 °d ‘6 X3 91°885'TS uauiAed SMOYs ad10Aul 9t'88S'TS 9v°88S'T$ S|eliale N 1aquin Aqysy £002/2/T

sd gy x3 91°99% JuduAed SMOYS ad10AUl 91°99$ 91°99% sjelalein SUYM pue 1iniy £00Z/s/2
vd gy x3 26°65€$ JuawAed SMOYs adjoAul 26°6S€S 26°65€$ sjeLaleN 2UYM pue 11y £00Z/s/eT
€d‘sy X3 6E'E6ES JuswiAed smoys adloAul 6E'E6ES 6E'E6ES s|elaleiN SUYM pue [iniy £00Z/¥T/TT

UIPIA] Suguein junowy 3jqemojjy paaoway 150D S910N judwAed jo Jooid PInoUy 19PI0 Jo4 Japinoid aleqg
= JION 10} uoseay Y10\ 10 3DI0AU) °

086



ST 40 ST aded
8T00-L17 ‘sjueua] ‘A zeAyeyo

u¥. HAIYX3
€6°€2101TS S3ISN3dX3 318VMOTIV V101
SS'H09'LS SS'v09'2S v9"v01‘6$ :|e303GNS 3|qBIA pue s3duIqe)
‘g5 xa M.M ‘b %3 02'559'1$ TS9Z Joquinu ipayd Aq pred 0T'SS9'T$ 62°SS9'T$ anop asnoy RLPENG 900¢/0E(9
€11 d
‘se g .ﬁmﬁ.a e SE'B9ES T99Z s2qwinu o3y Aq pred SE'BIES SE'89ES SO 3sNOH SUYM pue 3nJ) 9002/€T/L
Lpue sdd ‘ss (005°z$)
23 ‘gz dd 2y X3 00°000°S$ 2292 pue (0002$)LT9T ‘(00S$) 00°000°S$ 00°005'9$ 3AOW 3SNOH Suinop asnoH siadoy 900Z/ST/€
£SST sioquinu }ayd Aq pred
ozd 3 90/z/01 : :
‘65 x3 T d ‘s X3 00°T8S$ uo 9722 squinu oy Aq pied 00°18S$ 00°18S$ SAOW 3snoH Suidwing 332.10u0) A3ja)Iag 900z/z/0t
3uinop asnoH :Aio3a3e)
00°9€'2$ 00°S8L'V$ 00°96£9% :]e303gNS S3507) 93315U0)
-d‘6y - 2Uiping o3 JoLispio pue . S|j2M JOLIAIX3 JO efu X 74 % 932.0U0d XiAl Apeay puepjeQ /Asjais
0T d’ey X3 JuswiAed o Jooud oN 00°0$ 1Y 113) 4 / 0S'VLITS 2! IN Apeay puepjeo/Asjexieg £00Z/st/T
Siee .wH.M_ ‘6t 3 Suipjing 03 J0L91X3  |00°0$ 00°6vE‘TS S|jem JOLIDIXD 404 00°6¥E‘ZS 00'6Y€CS )310uU0d X1 Apeay puepjeQ/Aajeyiag £00Z/91/1
90/L1/0T
palep ££/Z Jaquinu Hoayd
zz93ed 5§ pue 90/91/0T paiep xiAl Apeay
o — et It A
X3 ‘21 dd ‘b 3 00°9€v'Z$ Kojoniag 03 8727 Jquinu spayd 00°9€¥2$ 05°2482$ 932.0uU0) XAl Apeay puepjeo/Asjaxyiag 9002/2/01
Pa3pno.d JaumQ -31ep awes
UO S2J10AUI OM ] "UOIIEPUNO} 104
$150)) 9313.10u0) :Al033a3e)
00°0SL'TS$ 00052 00'0SL‘TS$ ‘|e303gns s3s0) SuiAaning
sy dd ey 3 00°002°T$ 00°002'T$ 00°00Z'T$ Asning Aiepunog %e3Q maspuy 5002/8/%
1€ 29ed ‘'sg 80/61/11 paiep
¥ 2 ¥ A Ae, 0!
3 ‘g-z dd ‘gy >3 00°0ST$ 6T # yo3up paonpoid Jaumo 00°00v$ 00°0ST$ Suikaming MUDWIIH Sewoy} £002/11/L
9007 J0 jaquwajdas pue isndny
gpuetdd ‘eyx3 00°00¥$ woJ4 0ST$ 403 TOLT PUE 00VS 40} 00'059$ 00°00v$ 3uikaning Aemuaway sewoy) 9002Z/€/8
0892 # %22Yd pasnpoud JaumQ
$350) SulAsnung :AjoSaze)
JUIPIA; Sunuein unowy 3|qemo BA0WY 350 & junowy 19pi0 5
PIA3 10N 10} uoseay 3 7 319 v p: Y 350D S2IO0N juawAed o jJooid OM 10 32108 104 3pInOId eqg

087



City of Oakland

Bureau of Building
Construction Valuation®
For Building Permits’
Effective January 1, 2017

Planning and Building Department
Dalziel Administration Building

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza - 2nd Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

510-238-3891
Construction Level Ground Hillside Construction® Marshall & Swift December 2016
Occ. _[Description” Type |New " |Remodel New Remodel Section pg (Class/type)
R3 . |Single Family Residence Vi $236.52 $122,99| - -. $307.48 - $159.89 Section 12 pg 25 (Cle)
- |Duplex/Townhouse - Vi $196.12] - $101.98]  $254.95 $132.58 Seclion 12 pg 31 (Cle)
- |[Factory/Manufactured home- wr $73.45 $38.19 ~$95.49[. - - $49.65] .  -Section 63 pg 9 (Exc)
.- |Finished Habitable Basement Conversion ey -$12558] $65.30] . $163.25] . $84.89]  Section 12pg 26 (CDS/g):
- . |Gonvert.non-habitable to habitable . . M N/A . $125.58 - . NIK .$163.25 Seclion 12.pg 26 (CDS/g)
—-|Partition Walls (s.t.) 2V - NA “§17.23] - . N/A|  $22.39] -~ Section52 pg 1(6"Wall)
-|Foundation Upgrade ( 1.f.) G $113.10 O NA|[ . $147.03]. . - - -NA| Section’51pg 2(R/24x72)
Patio/Porch Roof BN - $28.60[ $14.87|" . -$37.18 $19.33] ~ _Section 66 pg 2 (Wood) .-
- -. |Ground Level Decks - Vit .$18.53 . $9.63 .. $24.08{. . $12.62 Seclion 66 pg 2 (100sf/avg)
. |Elevated Decks & Balconies - N T 8$3443] . 47750 944.36[ . $23.07| Seclion 66.pg-2 (100sf+1 slory)
Ui - -|Garage -V - 94373 §22.74 $56.85 "$29.56|  Section 12 pg 35 (C/ab00) -
.__{Carport - ; iV $35.75 -$1859] | $46.48 $24.17} Seclion 12 pg 35 (D/adcar)
- -. |Retaining wall (s. f) W .} - . $37.05 .. NAl - . $48.17 .. NA| . Seclion 55 pg 3 (12'reinf.h)
R2 " [Apartment (>2 unils) | &l '$195.00]  © $101.40]°  $253.50 - -$131.82] - Seclion 11 pg 18 (B/g)
o g il $175.50 $91.26 $228.15 $118.64 Section.11 pg 18 (Cmill/g)-.
by - $148.20 . $77.06]° . $192.66 $100.18 -Section 11 pg 18 (D/g) -
Non-Resmﬁentla Occupancy
A Church/Auditorium 1 &1l $310.62 $161.52 403.81 $209.98 Seclion 16 pg 9 (B/g)
11! $223.28 $116.10 290.26 $150.93 Saction 16 pg 9 (B/a)
V $207.48 $107.89 269.72 $140.26 Seclion 16 pg 9 (S/g)
A Restaurant 1& I $265.33 $137.97 $344.93 '$179.36 Section 13 pg 14 (A-Blg)
g Il $204.36 $106.27 $265.67 $138,15 Section 13 pg 14 (Clg)
Y $191.89 $99.78 $249.46 $129.72 Section 13 pg 14 (Dfg)-
B Restaurant <50 occupancy cany $170.35 ~ $88.58 $221.46 $115.16 Section 13 pg 17 (C/a)
B Bank 1& 11 $265.32 $137.96 $344.91 $179.35 Seclion 15 pg 21 (B/a)
i $214.05 $111.30 $278.26 $144.69 Seclion 15 pg 21 (Cla)
\4 $201.29 $104.67 $261.68 $136.07 Section 15 pg 21 (D/a)
B Medical Office &1l $298.29 $155.11 $387.77 $201.64 Section 15 pg 22 (Alg)
[} $288.82 $150.19 $375.47 $195.24|  ~ Seclion 15 pg 22 (B/g)
\ $235.95 $122.69 $306.74 $1569.50 Seclion 15 pg 22 (C/g)
B Office 1&1 $196.25 $102.05 $§255.12 $132.66 Section 15 pg 17 (B/a)
1 $142.04 $73.86 $184.65 $96.02 Seclion 15 pg 17 (C/a)
\ 134.30 $69.84 . $174.59 $90:79 Section 15 pg 17 (D/a)
E School 1 &1l $255.80 $133.02 332.54 $172,92 Section 18 pg 14 (A-B/g)
I $200.51 $104.27 $260.67 $135.55 Section 18 pg 14 (C/g)
Vv $193.21 $100.47 $251.17 $130.61 Seclion 18 pg 14 (D/g)
H Repair Garage 1& Il $218.37 $113.55 $283.89 5147.62| Seclion 14 pg 33 (MSG 527C/e)
) in $211.86 $110.17 $275.42 $143.22| Section 14 pg 33 (MLG 423C/e)
\ $203.87 $106.01 5265.03 $137.81| Seclion 14 pg 33 (MLG 423D/e)
| Care Facilities / Institutional 1& 1l 220.73 5114.78 $286.95 $149.21 Section 15 pg 22 (B/a)
i 1] $178.89 $93.02 $232.56 $120.93 Section 15 pg 22 (C/a)
Vv $170.63 $88.73  $221.81 115.34 Section 15 pg 22 (D/a)
M. Market (Retail sales) 1&11 170.77 $88.80! $222,00 3115.44 Section 13 pg 26 (A/g)
m - $137.49 $71.49 $178.73 $92.94] . Section 13 pg 26 (C/g)
. v $130.20 $67.70 $169.25 -$88.01 Sectlon 13 pg 26 (D/g)
S Industrial plant 1& 11 186.23 $96.84 $242.09 $125.89 Seclion 14 pg 15 (B/a)
i 1] 145.89 $75.86 $189.65 98.62 Section 14 pg 15 (C/a)
Vv - $130.25 $67.73 $169.32 88.05 Seclion 14 pg 15 (D/a)
S Warshouse 1&l $115.30 $59.95 $149.89 $77.94 ~ Seclion 14 pg 26 (A/g)
I} 108.60 $56.47 $141.18 $73.41 Saction 14 pg 26 (B/g)
‘V $106.52 $55.39 $138.48 $72.01 Saction 14 pg 26 (Cmilllg)
S Parking Garage 1&l $91.53{" $47.60 $118.99 $61.88 Sectlon 14 pg 34 (Alg)

' Cosl per square foot, unless noted otherwise. (Lf. = linear fool; s.f. = square foot); includes 1.3 regional multiplier (see Sece. 99 pg 6 December 2016 Marshall & Swif)
? Hillside construction = slope >20%; muliply by additional 1.3 multiplier
* Remodel Function of New Conslruction Is a 0.52 multiplier,

‘ Separals structures or occupancles valued separalely.

® Separale fees assessed for E/P/M permils, R.O.W. improvemenls, Fire Prevention Bureau, Grading Permils, lechnology enhancement, records management Excav. & Shoring,

Z\GOUNTER\FEES\Valuation Gulde - Marshall & Swift\Building valuation 1-1-2017

Q%{M/é’;@i f% ¥

088




PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number L.17-0018

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy of it in a sealed
envelope in a City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250
Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Owner

Frank & Fred Ghahyaz
5825 St. Paul Court
Oakland, CA 94618

Tenant

Andrew Barinov
517 Oakland Ave
Oakland, CA 94611

Tenant

Curtis Cho

519 Oakland Ave
Oakland, CA 94611

Tenant

Dan Klos

517 Oakland Ave
Oakland, CA 94611

Tenant

Joshua Encarnacion
517 Oakland Ave
Oakland, CA 94611

089



Tenant

Maurice Wilkins
517 Oakland Ave
Oakland, CA 94611

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection

~ receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S.Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on February 26, 2018 in Oakland, CA.

/,//24/(/ M/U/D(/ﬂwﬂm

Barbara M. Cohen
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

090



R

CITY OF OAKILLAND

NG,
AN

RSV

X4
XX Oakland, CA 94612

. (510) 238-3721
CITY OF OAKLAND

l RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
N/ 250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

For date stamp.

Appellant’s Name
Faramarz Tabatabai-Ghahyaz

= Owner

—

Property Address (Include Unit Number)
517-519 Oakland Avenue, Oakland, California 94618

| Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices)
9825 St. Paul Court, Oakland, California 94618

Case Number
L17-0018

Date of Decision appealed

February 26, 2018

Name of Representative (if any)
Isaac Jacobson, McLaughlin Sanchez LLP

Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)
605 Market Street, Suite 300, San Francisco,

California 94105, (415) 655-9753

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As partof the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly

explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) LI The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board

decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

U The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,

b)
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)
¢) [ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).
d) [ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
Statement as to what law is violated.)
e) [l The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)
For more information phone (510) 238-3721.
Rev. 6/22/17

091



e
-

f) B I'was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or xespond to the petitioner’s claim. (I
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may zssuaa
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this grozmd:only :
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You nust specifically state why you havébeen
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your clairn.) o

h) [ Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal. )'

Submissions to the Board are limited to 25 pages from each party. Please number attached pages consecuz‘zvely
Number of pages attached:

You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing party(ie) or your appeal may be dismissed,

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on
w14 f/ I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or
deposited it w1th a commer01al carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all
postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Raug Dan Klos and Maurice Wilkins
e 517 Oakland Avenue

CtwSteZiv  |6akjand, California, 94618

fame Curtis Choi and Cassandra Choi
Address 519 Oakland Avenue

Citv.StateZin | §akland, Califcphia, 94618

o %

SIGNATWELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/22/17

092



IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

This appeal must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program, 250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313,
Oakland, California 94612, not later than 5:00 P.M. on the 20th calendar day after the date the decision
was mailed to you as shown on the proof of service attached to the decision. If the last day to file is a
weekend or holiday, the time to file the document is extended to the next business day.

Rev. 6/22/17

Appeals filed late without good cause will be dismissed.

You must provide all of the information required or your appeal cannot be processed and may be
dismissed.

Any supporting argument or documentation to be considered by the Board must be received by the
Rent Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the
appeal.

Any response to the appeal by the other party must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program
with a proof of service on opposing party within 35 days of filing the appeal.

The Board will not consider new claims. All claims, except as to jurisdiction, must have been made
in the petition, response, or at the hearing. )

The Board will not consider new evidence at the appeal hearing without specific approval.

You must sign and date this form or your appeal will not be processed.

The entire case record is available to the Board, but sections ofaudio recordings must be pre-
designated to Rent Adjustment Staff,

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

093



\OOO\]O\LI]J&UJI\)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
23
26
27
28

Owner, Faramarz Tabatabai- Ghahyaz (“Owner”), hereby appeals the City of Oakland’s
Housing and Community Development Department, Rent Adjustment Program’s (“Rent
Adjustment Program”) February 28, 2018, decision denying Owner’s petition for certificate of
exemption based on substantial rehabilitation, filed F ebruary 1, 2017 (the “Petition”), because
Owner was denied a sufficient opportunity to present his claim.

Owner filed the Petition without the assistance of an attorney and without prior experience
petitioning at the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program, or any other similar administrative
proceeding. Owner lacked sophistication to adequately address the hearing officer’s questions
and concerns about certain expenses and the reason for the various delays completing the project.
Because Owner lacked the skill and knowhow to effectively present his case, the Petition was
denied despite the existence of evidence that would have satisfied many, if not all, of the hearing
officer’s concerns regarding Owner’s Petition. Unless the Rent Adjustment Program considers
the attached documents, Owner will suffer undue prejudice that could have been avoided if
Owner had competent representation when he initially filed the Petition.

I.  Evidence Demonstrating Good Cause for Work Exceeding Two Years.

Oakland Municipal Code Rules and Regulations section 8.22.03 0, states that “[i]n order to
qualify for the substantial habilitation exemption, the rehabilitation work must be completed
within a two (2) year period after the issuance of the building permit for the work unless the
Owner demonstrates good cause for the work exceeding two (2) years.” Here, Owner can
demonstrate good cause due to financial hardship.

Owner took out the first permits in 2006. Shortly thereafter his business suffered under
the depressed economy. Owner received a notice of default for his primary residence at 840
Reliez Station Road in Lafayette in 2006. It was sold at auction in 2010. A true and correct copy
of the Notice of Trustee’s Sale is attached hereto, pages 4-6. In June of 2009, Owner filed for
Bankruptcy, which was finalized in August of the same year. A true and correct copy of Owner’s
Chapter 13 Plan is attached hereto, page 7. Owner fell behind on his pfoperty taxes from 2006
through 2011, and finally paid the amount owed, $65,613.40, in July of 2014. A true and correct

copy of the Certificate of Redemption of Tax Defaulted Property is attached hereto, page 8.

1

OWNER’S APPEAL OF THE FEBRUARY 28,2018, DECISION O 94




[y

SH T R LR T LR S T
e e D R L S BT Tl el i el & e

\O oo 3 (@)Y W B W [\

Throughout his financial troubles, Owner could not get financing due to his bankruptcy
and had to pay cash, which he often borrowed from friends and family, to keep the permits valid
and the project alive.

Owner requests that the Rent Adjustment Program find that his financial hardship, which
he suffered throughout this project, was good cause justifying his delay, and therefore grant his
petition for certificate of exemption.

II.  Evidence That Owner Met the Requirement that He Spend at least 50% of the Basic

Cost of New Construction.

The hearing officer’s decision credited Owner with $210,123.93 of allowable costs
expended, $121,025.07 short of the $331,149.00 required to qualify for the exemptioﬁ. The
hearing officer found that a significant portion of Owner’s expenses were not adequately proven
by the evidence presented. Significantly, the hearing officer gave no credit for any labor
performed for the project, which Owner’ paid for in cash and checks and did not receive invoices
or receipts. The following documents attached in numerical order evidence payments in the
amount of $194,386.34, which were not credited towards allowable costs expended in the
February 28, 2018, decision denying the Petition, the amount of which qualifies the property for
the requested exemption:

a. Declaration of Edgar Perreira and invoice for labor performed hauling dirt and
debris for the excavation of the parking area and retaining walls between 2013 and
2016 in the amount of $12,100. Pages 9-10.

b. Declaration of Jaime Villasenor and attached checks for labor performed laying
interior tiling and hardwood floors, installing sheetrock, doors, and windows, and
work on the exterior walls of the property between 2014 and 2016 in the amount of
$87,319. Pages 11-15.

¢. Checks for payments to Carlos Mendoza, the laborer who laid the foundation and

installed the wood framing on the property from 2006 through 2007 in the amount

of $70,122.00. Pages 16-20.

2

OWNER'’S APPEAL OF THE FEBRUARY 28,2018, DECISION O 9 5




Mo - I | VIR S N B S N5 1 i

L I N N O N O T N T O T e e S
OO\]O\U‘I-D-W[\)P—\O\OOO\]O\(J“I-PUJN'—‘O

ITI.

the architect for the project, stating that Owner paid him $10,000 for the plans for

the property. Pages 21-22.

. Proposal and proof of payment in 2016 to Drainline Plumbing for a sewe;}flateiral )

T

line in the amount of $4,200.00. Pages 23-24. =

Invoice and proof of payment to PG&E in2014 for gas connection for t}i’é)‘ adczied

unit in the amount of $10,645.34. Page 25. :

s
L

Conclusion

Based on the preceding submission of documents, which were not considered by the

hearing officer when rendering the February 28, 2018, decision denying the Petition, Owner

respectfully request that the Rent Adjustment Program enter a decision granting the petition for

certificate of exemption based on substantial rehabilitation, filed February 1, 2017.

Dated: March 19, 2018

3

d. Invoice dated June 2, 2004, and letter dated March 13, 2018, from William Coburn,

T

OWNER’S APPEAL OF THE FEBRUARY 28, 2018, DECISION O 9 6




RECORDING REQUESTED BY
And When Recorded Mail To:

CAL-WESTERN RECONVEYANCE CORPORATION
525 EAST MAIN STREET

P.O. BOX 22004

EL CAION CA 92022-9004

Ay

APN 238—070«013

T

N 0 S X R &

Trustee Sale No. 1200411-15 Space Above This Line For Recorder’s Use
NOTICE OF TRUSTEE’S SALE
LOAN NO: XXXXXX6568 - TRA:14002

REF: GHAHYAZ, FARMARZ,
Property Address: 846 RELIEZ S

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER:

YOU ARE IN DEFAULT UNDER A DEED OF TRUST, DATED January 25, 2006. UNLESS YOU
TAKE ACTION TO PROTECT YOUR PROPERTY, IT MAY BE SOLD AT A PUBLIC SALE. IF
YOU NEED AN EXPLANATION OF THE NATURE OF THE PROCEEDING AGAINST YOU, YOU
SHOULD CONTACT A LAWYER

On July 22,2010, 'at 1:30pm, CAL-WESTERN RECONVEYANCE CORPORATION, as duly
appointed trustee under and pursuant to Deed of Trust recorded February 10, 2006, as Inst. No..2006-
004395300, in book XX, page XX, of Official Records in the office of the County Recorder of
CONTRA COSTA County, State of CALIFORNIA executed by:

FARAMARZ TABATABAT GHAHYAZ, AN UNMARRIED PERSON

WILLSELL-AT-PUBLICAUCTION TO HIGHEST BIDDER FOR CASH, CASHIER’S CHECK.
DRAWN ON A STATE OR NATIONAL BANK, A CHECK DRAWN BY A STATE OR FEDERAL
CREDIT UNION, OR A CHECK DRAWN BY A STATE OR FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN
ASSOCIATION, SAVINGS ASSOCIATION, OR SAVINGS BANK SPECIFIED IN SECTION 5102
OF THE FINANCIAL CODE AND AUTHORIZED TO DO BUSINESS IN THIS STATE:

AT THE COURT STREET ENTRANCE TO THE COUNTY COURTHOUSE,
725 COURY STREET . _
MARTINEZ CALIFORNIA

all right, title and interest conveyed to and now held by it under said Deed of Trust in the property
situated in said County and State described as:

COMPLETELY DESCRIBED IN SAID DEED OF TRUST

NOS.DOC. Rev 05/11/10 Page 1 of 2



NOTICE OF TRUSTEE’S SALE
Trustee Sales No. 1200411-15

The street address and othér common designation, if any, of the real property described above is
purported to be:

840 RELIEZ STATION ROAD

LAFAYETTE CA 94549

The undersigned Trustee disclaims any liability for any incorrectness of the street address and other
common designation, if any, shown herein.

Said sale will be held, but without covenant or warranty, express or implied, xegarding title, possession,
condition, or encumbrances, including fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee and of the trusts created
by said Deed of Trust, to pay the remaining principal sums of the note(s) secured by said Deed of Trust.
The total amount of the unpaid balance of the obligation secured by the property to be sold-and reasonable
estimated costs, expenses and advances at the time of the initial publication of the Notice of Sale is:
$1,003,735.59.

If the Trustee is unable to convey title for any reason, the successful bidder's sole and exclusive
remedy shall be the return of monies paid to the Trustee, and the successful bidder shall have no
further recourse.

The beneficiary under said Deed of Trust heretofore executed and delivered to the undersigned a wiitten
Declaration of Default and Demand for Sale, and a writteri Notice of Default aid Eléction to Sell. The
undersigned caused said Notice of Default and Election to Sell to be recorded in the county where the:real
property is located.

Regarding the property that is the subject of this notice of sale, the "mortgage loan servicer" as
defined in Civil Code § 2923.53(k)(3), declares that it has obtained from the Commissioner a-final
or temporary order of exem ption pursuant to Civil Code section 2923.53 and that the ‘exemption is
current and valid on the date this notice of sale is recorded. The time frame for giving a notice of
sale specified in Civil Code Section 2923.52 subdivision (a) does not apply to this notice of sale
pursuant to Civil Code Sections 2923.52. See Attached Declaration.

FOR SALES INFORMATION: Mon — Fri 9:00am to 4:00pm (619)590-1221
CAL-WESTERN RECONVEYANCE CORPORATION

525 EAST MAIN STREET

P.O. BOX 22004

EL CAJON CA 92022-9004

Dated: June 15, 2010 CAL-WESTERN RECONVEYANCE CORPORATION

By: S/Authorized Signature

Autharized Signature

NOS.DOC - Rev 05/11/10 Page 2 0f2 -




e

CALIFORNIA DECLARATION

L John Kennerty , of America’s Servicing Company

- ("Morngage Loan Servicer”), declare under penalty of perjury, under the Jaws of the State
of California, that the following is true and correct:

The Mortgage Loan Servicer _X__hasor’___ hasnot obtamed from.the Commlssmner
of Corporation & final or temporary order of exel exemption pursuant to California Civil code
Section 2923.53 that is current and valid on the date the accompanying Notice of Sale is

filed.

AND/OR
The timeframe for giving Notice of Sale specified in subdivision (é) of Civil Code

Section 2923.52 ___doesor X ___does not apply pursuant to Section 2923.52 or
297355, - s b : i

0770312009 pon mill, South Carolina
DATE AND PLACE

iz8 /] Cos rosdobin

Name of Bighor Title and/or Position

John Kennerty




R e

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA  __

ALEE LA

In re: Case No. 09-45602-RN 13
FARAMARZ TABATABAI-GHAHYAZ :

Debtor(s). Pt ;
L. The future earnings of the debtor(s) are submitted to the supervision and control of the trustee, and the debtor(s)
will pay to the Trustee the sum of § 1,700.00  each month for 60 months.
Debtor(s) elect a voluntary wage order.

IR

1

From the payments received, the Trustee will make disbursements in accordance with the Distribution Guidelines as
follows:

(a) On allowed claims for expenses of administration required by 11 USC §507.

(b) On allowed secured clairns, which shall be treated and valued as follows:

: ¢ confirmation  Post FEstimated s
§506  Non §306 Name o, el Koot gg?%{ i Morge (’i'}g’fn‘ifg)
WMC Mortgage Corp. $500,000  $ 920,000 100,000
Bank of the West 60,000
IRS 20,000
CA State Fran Tax Bd. 10,000
Alameda Tax 1,000
City of Oakland 800

With respect to secured claims per §506, valuation stated shall bind unless a timely objection 1o confirmation is filed. With »resduect 10 non
§506 secured claims as referenced in §1323, the claim, to the extent allowed, shall control. If an interest rate is not specified, 5/6% per
month (10% per annum) will be paid, A secured creditor shall retain its lien ttil the earlier of the pavment of the underlyving debt
determined under non-bankruptey law or discharge under section §1328.

(¢) On allowed priority wnsecured claims in the order prescribed by 11 USC § 507. Priority claims shall be paid in full except
to the extent allowed otherwise under 11 U.8.C. § 1322(a)(4) _ ‘
(d) On allowed general unsecured claims the debtor(s) estimate(s) the general unsecured claims will be paid _none %.

3 The following executory contracts are rejected. The debtor(s) waive the protections of the automatic stay provided in [}
US.C. § 362 to enable the affected creditor to obtain possession and dispose of its collateral without further order of the:court.
Any allowed unsecured claim for damages resulting from rejection will be paid under paragraph 2(d).

4. The debtor(s) will pay directly the following fully secured creditors and lessors:

Name Monthly Payment Name Momhly Payment
WMC Mortgage Corp. $ 1,900
Bank of the West 3,500

5. The date this case was confirmed will be the effective date of the plan

6. The debtor(s) elect to have property of the estate revest in the debtor(s) upon plan confirmation. Once the property revests, the
debtor(s) may sell or refinance real or personal property without further order of the court, upon approval of the Chapter 13
Trustee.

7. The debtor(s) further propose pursuant to 11-USC § 1322(b):

LvE w0

Dated:  August 6, 2009 FARAMARZ TABATABAI-GHAHYAZ :
{Debtor) (Debtor)

ND Cal., Oakland Division Model Chapter 13 Plan Puge 1 of2

Rev. W72005
| 0o




J COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

CERTIFICATE OF REDEMPTION OF TAX DEFAULTED PROPERTY

SSESSED TO: . pASSRSSE
TABATABAIGHAHYAZ FARAMARAZ & FEREIDOUN YEAR-DE
840 RELIEZ STATION RD TAX DEFAULT AM
LAFAYETTE CA : 94549 STTUS: &

AID BY:
TABATABAIGHAHYAZ FARAMARAZ & FEREIDOUN

&

5825 8T PAUL CT
OAKLAND CA 94618

EDEMPTION AMOUNT:

TAXES AND DELINQUENT
ASSESSMENTS  + PENALTY + ©C@ST +
2006/07 5,917 .94 591,78 10.00
2007/08 5, 956.50 595. 64 10.00
2008709 6,113.80 oll .38 10.00
2009/10 6,581,02 658.10 10.00

2010/11 7,993.10 799.80 10.00

TOTAL OF ABOVE

INTEREST/FEE ON INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS
PARTIES OF INTEREST NOTICE FEE
RECORDING FEE | :

STATE REDEMPTION FEE

TOTAL AMOUNT PAID TO REDEEM

i OFFICE OF THE TREASURER AND TAX COLLECTOR
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 1221 OAK STREET, OAKLAND,

DATE PAID

OUNT
OAKTA

Ca 94612

FAULT NO. 2006707 - 657086
$6,519.72
NDEAVE

W07/

RECEIPT NUMBER 477191

REDEMPTION
PENALTIES

5,326
4,288
3,301
2,369
1,438

.14
.68
A5
.16
<75

TOTAL

10,241

52,592,

13,009

155

10,850.
10,036.

9,618.
il

82
6.3
28

74

66

.00
.00
00

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT 1 HAVE RECEIVED FROM THE PERSON NAMED ABOVE THE SUM OF

$65,613.40 WHICH IS THE AMOUNT REQUIRED TO REDEEM THE ABOVE DESCRIBED

PROPERTY .

DONALD R. WHITE

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR



AN B W N

g

1,EDGAR PEREIRA, DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

i T am an adult over the age of 18. 1 make this declaration in support of
Owner/Appellant Faramarz Tabatabai-Ghahyaz’s (“Ghahyaz”) appeal of the February 26, 2018,
decision in the above tifled action, I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this

declaration. If called as a witness, | could and would testify competently as follows.

2. I work for Friendly Hauling Trash Removal, located in Richmond, California.
B During or about 2013, Ghahyaz hired me to work on the subject property located at

517-519 Oakland Avenue, in the City of Oakland, California 94611.

4. Specifically, Ghahyaz hired me haul away dirt and debris caused by the excavation
for the parking area and retaining walls.

5, I began work on the subject property in or about 2013 and [ completed the work in
2016, which is when 1 received my final payment frorn Ghahyaz.

6. I did create invoices for this project at the time, but 1 understand that they may not
have been dated.

1. Ghahyaz paid me $12,100 for the above referenced work I completed for the subject
property.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that all of the
foregoing is true and correct, and that this declaration was executed on March 10 iti Oakland,

California.

/""i/ r/’

. EDGAR-PEREIRA, Declarant

I

LANDLORD'S MEMORANDUM [N RESPONSE TO TENANT PETTIION

102




S alN
o i . .
e BT oib e (27
i
RppY . APE AP
oy o oams 0 WOILAINSIE 5 | awadns _ﬁmmém
m v Sl Aaaos| _ONMAON0 Y segb
—

OB H& X St 2, 07 T 9002,
e %ﬁv&%&\‘u\% Q&Mm\ | 7 Tl \«\V\Q% %\wm% |
e %N\\\?\Q\M&\M&Qx?«%\b&& M§\&w\¢%fﬁ\ V?\Q\\.Som

224168 &

| 0103



139}

[N

I, JAIME VILLASENOR, DECLARE AS FOLLOWS:

I T am an adult over the age of 18, T make this declaration in support of
Owner/Appellant Faramarz Tabatabai-Ghahyaz’s (*Ghahyaz™) appeal of the February 26, 2018,
decision in the above titled action. I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this
declaration. If called as a witness, | could and would testify competently as follows.

2 { am self-cmployed as a carpenter and laborer working primarily on propertics and
projects within the Bay Arca.

3. During or about 2014, Ghahyaz hired me to work on the subject property located at
517-519 Qakland Avenue, in the City of Oakland, California 94611

4. Sp.eciﬁca.liy‘ Ghahyaz hired me to lay interior tling and hardwood floors, install
sheetrock, doors, and windows, and work on the exterior walls of the subject property.

4. I began work on the subject property on or about December 27, 2014, whichis when |
reccived my first payment from Ghahyaz, and 1 completed the work on or about January 23,
2016, which is when I received my final payment from Ghahyaz.

6. 1 did not create itivoices for this project at the time that | was working for Ghahyaz.
Instead, Ghahyaz paid me weekly, or bi-weekly, based on the time I spent working on the project.

7, Ghahyaz paid me $87,319 in total, for the above referenced work I completed for the
subject property.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that all of the
foregoing is true and cotrect, and that this declaration was cxccuted on March 14 in Oakland,

California.

o 2
By L ,{;m«m% edior/

<Fatme Villasenor, Declarant

LANDLORD’S MEMORANDUM IN RESPONSE TO TENANT PETITION

/) 104




AR 26

poesar 1S
. otrifen
Sexid vim vt serys
arort ccor

Py Ty s

P ersans Shubrez
# 54 Coun
SN

Tustant e JOURSTE-

toogieere  SAXOBN
Covten e

31, 018
iasossites

ferine

st
frbeireiy

ARAHE TARATRRNS GHNTAL - o 1419
-:va«nm - hl
e _._7;3_4, .

] pymaas \,ne ‘,\ LM" sq,BfS"
h\‘ua adned £ e w—""“‘ A

A,y 7070

x.un IATSBE0 3000038 3 2114

FARUATETABATAML GHANYAL YT 4
SRS e \,J L1

o ey ‘kmm—-q) . 'ng.
sl

e - (2
3 s SR A
213 18795303000083a 2r 4007
1
S
Lurreet D¥a: AUpal1E 250
st
Caydde
-
SﬁiiﬂlPM('
Dacana CA 14312
[ e——
HRAL

Pz ta tha-
q,ii h«eu_\J‘.\\\_:sI%s:m..__...

ﬁ,.s.&a? ol ni.._(_wQ‘_(aQA

] 1121189585030000838 2611 Sh

'MC "A ’»‘513
e 5 g
! bl

mﬁ‘?' E}ﬂm_j_\\k&a:el:ig 1s|,35§:"
Qa0 | ,31‘% ass
- T Y Lt 71 0

. Ay

211389581010000830 21383

P

Py

Fanon Tosstabdl Govyr
825 Sard Paz Cast
Owar

EEERY

st
Fmcat Troe

ety
rundtes -

-

fobia; vilas
waud Leoh
et

=z

Jees E_h_ |>hn ag

o e
Fasted v laenter 5242100
. 0007

ot
a3 1pa oo

Fezun Isa Qb

0 sn0f
VTS IRV Ve Jt e T O B2
TR R i
LR ) e JZ_ ﬂ
s BLF- letud frene __;é._é_. .l
L121438358) 30000838 321425
'|
R

e
Rog

T T ey

573 e P!
paieg

FATAMAAZ TAS ATABAMOHAKTAY 1448
AR l,

.
2ot

2 42,
1 2013058101C0008 30 7 Vhth

: -sr-
Cuuerr D
P—
Ceptez
5
ety
ot o
Nt 378
Foanan Tasahsbal i
4025 Soot '2ud Courl
Oana] CAMOTE
mumm TABATABAMGHAHVAZ 1158
i
SR
ot L\m.a

mjff Sﬁg

54
113093 ann,uumlsiaiuu I

Ferenigrn Teoskom Gavhyan
R et Fod Cont
i

f\/f\,_{;%i l:: .2 S 88
J i % CLCD,

oy 11131
2 5HT

Dt tiosand Grtrsr
Pt

Swvert O5n,

Supat 2016

b\mﬂwm

FARAMARZ YASATAIUSIAITAL b l 3 1449

S aly, 23,16 >
J-,YI—L—. -

mgﬁ T:«:LM

121130458£0300008 18 2

T Titalis Sy
s Santpmt
rpre

Dsen: Ot

Scoast nder
Zaonize Gar

KR I,

e e

&
ocord Type

Farron TN GRTE
5425 34 P Court
Oukcard (A 5418

418
i 172 S

\fi“n_%enor.—— sqzou §
Tl

o

FARAVATIC TASATARU GHAHVAZ
i

len,
fdealn w\ﬂxnm»x___lsa <
% Ayhm/_yq_,é__._,—mn LS

ey
w1 F plelsid fsua -

2133A7958%03000033827 %

it AN,

fptonber SN0

g, 231
ooy
15585
e " o
Teseg Ty e
e TRMTOA Gt
£a3 Sand £t Cost
Ok CA 3481
FARALASE TASATARASHAIA”
Sosmpen
SR

e
Z

s
12143895B1030000R N 241153
s
o
Tume Jugeatr, 205
it Nemtar
Csgu bta.
Enihesc
Furen engats ot
K5 S
proritriral
==
TABATASA CUAHTAT W
s ni
preeche )

ol :angQ_ZuQ

1121128958120 10000838 20117




sugmar (1 20t Cemnttam

ik qu=a\.u;Douou m 2 ian

Fer. =
11211389581 10300003 38 2 1375 {12113395810300003 36 24 1181 21 13855812030000836241 185 H

b XOKA22 AXoun: Nt
Faseary 10,2018 Cxtas s
el et
L <
e e o)
i P
= o e
7 Tandat ey Freraz), Fararan TANSEE Ghahas
S 5375 Sont i o AT ool £528 Saed P Gt
vt 3 d CA MBS 013G CA 4618 DS1nICA 412
L o £  TABAT 115
] m‘lﬂl‘ﬂwn 125 mmvmmnnu ) T e e
: Y “an 15 - R €dy s, 5y S b avavl 22 ¥,15.
= . = > - oo
Taytathe P x i o Lk =
Bavd sy —13150= | _ oﬂ'aﬁ&m s ,JS\,,&L@ (R A EeT $1500
.m%m s @mtelfmya’ﬁ&p am TnTgus, Qe : ; /";‘f o=
5 s e ook > (Y7 : __&ﬁ&__ .7
—ib Z OV ey o7 Q- E 5 (el (/7 (L ,2
51F.. &m- A . 875 ; @AY AY
I

Curniye gm0 Gl ol g CoTedGat
ezt romctineta o e
3.“‘-‘“’.\\-? Cophin Datn Aerth + 201
e b ‘ﬁlrl
2
a_u-m i &
i proory
Frrr:l =5 e Ty
eve Tabdlve Saergaz e Tebambad Gty : araner Tabeebadihenaz e VslelotaCrans
sz Seat P eitod Sevt e o 225 Ssied Court
Hie S : i Lo
- - - _ e =
FAAMAE UEATAS LD AINAZ 1200 ARAAT ASTAAL GHAIVAE i s A TARATARS AT 1210
SRR o et T s e
i i S 2043 A
2 F15 ; - ity 2 v
Tay tathe G
ORkre et .,‘agemu {480 g \»\ A 20
Ora] en.m\.n[\ 3&“‘\«%{#%/@? aE S .
17 5.;'-:.-.155-;27;. cp = ......m.m e
‘J i j 'C ( 2 ( 2 B /’7 / -‘# ( ““’7
nu 58 nouunma-u._a £ 3 e G ( “717“ o (‘w S Ten e l/"f"é&“' w121
3 F 33000838 20 1211 214184560300C0R38 2 17 3 121 i3a3506030000a 35 2
{
R ]
; i
Cuet e fantame Curees T August 19,20t A 11,2015

" FARAMNAZT GIAIVAZ 170

AR ) i
e e wasesey aadp= (2o g
N 12 2 S
G ae v/ "a 1oV 55 P10 =
S e ciae Faiwman Fobsaisbsi Ghatma Foramarz Tataahn GNahyxz G
; 5525 St Pad Contt 5825 Sort Fad o e thak Hear e, 5=
m«’ {(:CI-Q(G'H s {rriard CA MBS CexansCA 24018 BaukofAmerica %
25

fopow (<

> 0

P

SRR s BB A Sieny. = e

PATAMAR TABATAZAL GHANTAX © 122 FARAMARZ TABATAZAL OHAHYAZ.
ey porry

= m: : l
Ra vwrch.30,15 T cwac i) 1\‘3!-} IS . l

FAUMURZ TABATASAY GHAKYAZ.
Zsenns.

el ey o es

_ﬁfmﬁé&mﬁ shoe
=700,

m : -

> == SEF_AAk 40 T p
'vlElliﬂq’ﬂ"ﬂiﬂDﬂD&iﬂi"l 112143AR50 ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂnﬂlﬂb‘lili 13124 1389581030000038 2412 30° ¥

Cument sy a1, 6

FAMAS 172
Wi e i JL,,N*U nney
_s930%

Formear 3vaann Graym S b Gy

1975 St
OsuaytA 915'1
£ I'Ii-Di'l!i awu
 TARAYASALOHAHTAZ 3
it : 2 AL ADATACA GHATAL
s o T R

Syen Vifless. 13T o g o -. .. e
me"h fooy e %92 o &fﬁ@sﬁi‘j‘ﬁw
Fo 517 a!? PR .u(. 7 : :ﬁ;Z»QJ Qa

1#1211389581030000K30 2, 123 auuuuaaeaﬂatu




At 0703

Avqust 11 2Ng
Axout Kumdae BIC7H VY MOORNG
Lo taic ry 08 1015 ar 1 13
e SIHOCEIITHY i
Feeod Gatn U2y 0% 2245
Fortad v 1 mons
P
Facore e
Faaman Taoaubai s,
faran] Pa?‘!l::‘;v\.!ﬂl ;:?\??;vmwn\n. ;:rvs:}mn:(nmm ;:5,?:’,;‘::?“
Qsfensca s Duirea Zoksend CASATR Oniderc CA 54818
F oo & = Y= DS
-xmp.‘l""“““"‘ "z 1242 FARAMARZ TAMATABALGHANYAL 1248 ! pnsa eansaciumz 1oy f
e e prty 5 s spm M e
(e W.Yus) 5045 _’_'%SZ.LLi:‘ L
Dot «, P = 24
; mﬁ—l 3 Y Jodne wllarer. A MMM\‘ 13729
¥ ; i &Apymic% =S o
L ey VAl g) Q | e o>
- oo -_".' o Nz o.
A21438usaN0s o 4 S | e § ™ et 5 =
T2 5030000828 w2 432643895 muununll'l“! 3 1112113695840300C0838 % 1 251 =
i
i
Cumm O A 11 NG Cuered O Cumaaive Cured Oie
i’xm A A ex: Actos omtes
Costins va Cooon b Say e
e tastder s
d D Vi > Cela.
Frves i toonoe Fasnd an Hesmoe
Ao Bk AL Aot
Rewvd T Racyd Tpa. Racend Ty
Fatpran, mu«rmv-,-x Fara22 Tasdabs Ghavyer . Faamar [astes (Manar Faanda Taanbaisihainas
6 Sare ot C w‘%r-l’ i Court. 2873 Saird P3d Coval 1475 Sewd Pad Cast
L) Oaand CAMStA Gav: 4019
e s e = o Crprcan T es— - — — cropre ey
¢ S
EARALANL TARATARA-GIAHTAY = 175 FARAVIATZ TABATAAS GHANTAL nﬁi’. ARALAT TABATABAL CHANTAZ
B M,?,J;;,; . b & 3,5 pcer s8¢
oy wi V&1~ oyt ta (| [lose. 0= \¢ 3
§ Loy ﬂdimc slosear: . __13)é duegcgaune wllaserar: 51,6/ ,“,_ 2 W &S_AAG_
ol S el ot Zog 0 2 | Qnea Hiotriond £x bnded o g2 0
g op <7 0 = i - e ssa-u.. 4 _ __a%g-__:r_
s % A0 it gea: oL @M@.%_ 7l : P v ‘%t o
ax.mu;nuu)nunna)n!ﬂas‘l L »'12\l;n‘zsm:umauuazsznnﬂ 2 421330950103000CA3A #1 26

Aoyt y 20

Pastaia i
Foueg e N.cber
e 58

Rustnt Ty
Fasman Tassubsaanyer
bk ol
Varef TA 14643
o e
T
el e
S

Pegtatke
Ol
<,

UE-

Sl

[

Y

Fyamn TS ety

SN

Cuerant Gaw:

il\laqsux.umnnns!uz:'\uua

111211389 585010000838 213 25

SawiCis i comizn CemmOve  Amanior
o
Ky z0u
2 B vt
sesCox 34
et
b
Heserd hgo fy B9
Cansuice Teoaiataoa Taoatess oo Fovracn TebREN s
5025 Sert Pad 2t Pttty Srssenraacen
Duiur (4 54318 Ooans ARS8 eyt
s vanar P vemaraon crnmz 102 i o
T Lo A T AT Lo AN TARATAE QTN .
SSRAINE, i R S i
.S VCR : : AV VI

%ﬁﬁ‘ e I/zlllauaar, -s3820: SR _Sadvae Villecosion, .. _ls /Aw - _BM[/ 51505-
e Wous ian 8 5. e ix Aumtesh 455 o msad = m =

sl =23 il .~ () b 22;3
= = ) -

“:‘ (1} L\‘B”‘Fﬁlﬁ JDGUEL;‘!I;;%QC‘:Q‘ = : ey MMZ _f—Z

11211339 5810300COR 1077303 2513015540 300N0B30 281061

Curen D e 01,2018

St W10

upad vt s0ne

Jronway
122 A
2500

Fomiced amn: K

. w0l e s T a0

Feeess Tyrar St
[y Tubetas Ohy: e Tabaobai Shatipaz Faransrz Tetuleos Ghatyar
Saed Pad Coint i i 5525 Seted Pacs Ceart
SanamAsiers Daxend CAS4SIE Oeand CASAS1D
N s,
PRI T ST ot ARAUAT YA A,l“uxa«mu 1040 FAUMARE LTS AU
PrrExven] _fug, M Py o er

il B—.‘P'Je‘: a
ﬁhﬂgm s /230" Bz s;»so“
g&-« am

e e

11121118958¢0300008 182 \CL?

11211159561030000R 30 21 10,9

#1211389581030000A38 21056

1447




EEEHE Cursetidae Augats: 2ot [

s

Arzess Hurdes,
CazraaOits

o
Ran Rt SEAT0 F;‘:“"‘"-"W
.
s Ren e
Ty s erc Tebatabs Graryax P imcan
s i : 2
"d‘Y’J\-ANQI! ,&_,S.r( x :ﬂ eXiond CA 518
FATARAZ TASATALA GHA AT 0 - AR TASATARA TR 1083 AR ATAA T 1078
et Sefs3 el oo
7-24 - L)
o
Tyt gz gatne vlla spune s 16,3” el é“““& xi\\.\ass;s.ov s
_9 tous By ifsonn 858 Touath S Q. Tuhwlad.‘%%c‘% ES
s Bt . et ’) B Py
S ol ‘ZQ(ZQ, S Z.al: s AQ B d e 2 27
. - o S slkﬁ s £
i BQEGLD!EUUDE!E ll‘ lDEI @ 121138958:030000838 2+ 1063 y C}Ellilﬂsﬂhogmnﬂﬂlﬂgln 2] 12121 13A956¢03GO00B3B 2107
)
CLann Ows Avpeet 1 2049
300002
ook
224
Opob 14, 200
e O
Eh e
fe)
an 7 TakanksLhaliar e v Faama f@&\l\'m’vﬂl
srrees furm e v ran o pan s
fireheiagr T i) A At
A“YAIAKW”’/“ 3 ‘WQ 1098 1
ALY IBATAALGHAE
ZTAATAB SARANLTATATARN GHIAZ Loz TRAZ TR Jose

OWARES 31 Sep /é,/,z R bt _3 ? 3041 e abalos

fzw‘aamﬁx\aw ez e _ais0? ”’%&‘ﬂ“‘h@ e
sndne e \Jx[s%;- ox DA P E TN W P B Hoeatitn &
et 2 0
o NG J(*

S 7070 Sl )
SEEO id e, ’{—_C.. ¢ o tlod gav: oA ST T 3 <iE
hid H“’“"Umﬂ”f’h“"m"? : £1211389581030000838 2¢ 1098 ETE -)ﬂfxsm.n)unn 2838103 Frel)3a95811030000838 241017

Cutere DY RIS Coms Lesr g 18 2690 : e ML 23
42537 !v:! 3
tessatis ora feand Lo, .
£237 o
et e ansed o
Heexa Yopu Feer Tpe R0 e
b Linds: Faaem TapsREs Ghatas vort Tazatsas Grohys Sarame Toeamta G
5355 S ho Ot 2323 3t Pand Court erpatcan 5625 SsniPas Ozt
nn\w\ﬂ ACa1y liang C6 04518 Qacand CA 5318 DekisAd CA 94518
f
mgﬂw&wﬂ ‘ 1108 mﬂmymvmmmx
SheRe ocl; 3,4 SRR
LM\\. st,qso’
LE=0 LE Alle:
5 foven
i - g
I e 7
-0 P e G1F aoldad fioa re 5 hea
21330358103000083) zs-nua 'lzuinwsu-.muums)swun 12 113A958603000003A 24 3é1 471 13B9561030000838 21 b2k
Rome -

4 o =)
Curst g e 11,2008 Aanitoes P At A H CuretDes Auge 1A
seortauen B it NoaE Sloner Ancnetthamr B
Cats e Goea n 014 e Dat ecamba: 27 791 Drenméee 22,264
dem N i ORI
Sared (2 LW") 2 00328 FoeThe 22, 2018 Dicssmtar 204
Sordian uner thse Patackan hunear S18772
228800 et
ot o el . Kozt Ty Recem T
Farsmyz TioXahd Ghabyaz, Faaman Tanstaba Granyar ¢ Fsaman Taxvahy "\v-m Fermng VabetadaSindngr
2375 S P C 5978 Sand Pacd £625 Sontideud Cou 5225 Sl Pad Cout
Ot D3I CA 04513 i Dukend CAMOIR Ondace CA G610
— e
AR TADATASAL UMY e e 1663 A AT AL
S

rodreeny
e

J oo
/.2-9'1.{4 5 Shceich sl

w
FA gd"'m

.,Ja : B J.uwﬁép&n an Ow ¥ 3

I Y. Pt - -
= i R < c F e ZL;-(
ng Sl ..2( ( 3 -C ,(%_m i
L Z! 51 G- (Z:l 3 57 re S \{‘) _q,_ o Al 10" “‘{4»
-uuhnﬂsn‘.umucuamu:ﬁz n:rﬁtal\q;nnaanﬁlsnwnn.a | 1323138950 iouuuﬂzamn £121438758503G000A3n 241 150"

Paytatte \;
Orzod s
g Ho!

IR e




]

N
kY
P - our .. o il B REERE ST
2 mrnnma
e
-
8 Cagln Ui
__Pyy Thowaaed Oteihndsid 4nd 0N0T
m"?ﬂn.&‘
thmoid, OA 24281
"’" 8 2Warkar
S \ OLCIAS ETA
i  J
¥
‘\' & . .
A VIR 2606
Pty :
Anenaes
Frte ___tatloasendoral $24200 . ¢
T, i 88 et Sadeieneent__gom ©
ol o NegaTiEE *
o1 2 i
BT, S et EQ i &mﬁg {
) = x o
Cntlae 2.2 Wisdat
#OR 24NA® L EL AL ARSF OLAOVI T 5 #
v
'
\ : %
T
!
' AR !
) A A (-
) l
fahor ___ Gatlon endesa] $ _‘es070.0 |
T Thauyand Ted (0407 wr
cnbs Mendoza e &:
797 5th Sireel ]
Reshavarid, SA 84301 W:@Z m: .
o,
Bartas 21 Rockae {
EHRVEE TONE TR ST R (N NV 4 P RS i
s sl B s GRS Sk i s ik
G ]
{
‘-\ <
=i e T %
@ SR 24v0
H
82008 i
—_—
g‘;‘. Garlos Martaza ,{

Four Hondsed s 0300’ ~ O iU
=t idealbii o
Guaing fhendoza o SR,

7 4
Riatwmond, CR 94BN

llahr!dﬁwlﬂndhu{wk
FOU 26dle 0421108,

ALSEIUANND iy

widinga

nasm Yy
-, IS ION e
% gtk 5 - SRUGADAT 1), PFAIRL 1] Srepehy, Faugy
g Niate § - etopTay by "t.:‘:
| ST .

'
i

S
-
X .
= i i 13 ;
!
i,
origee g
B goolhadora] $.4,78040 } !
Ord Thoadins Shely ad IH1° gy : S
'"."l :
Calos Moo 3
Wd ﬂ HSOY i
Y su oo M
WETLLE ANEIL IR LD {20

v
e Sy
i
B
i
e vy
b

YA LAN PBRAT DL L

et oo

z
. i
w87 STl B . PV
*",r e i
R i
i
~r !
RS cuospuraz srgme ||
Ono Thiehrtard 2yn Vinetict and VIO ey e i
uth’sml;&um 78 ai
Rl Shoamms M@Tﬁ ELE |
aadby 2 geder -
L TU PR IR R ST DO I INUPE FL I
v




f

\
A
\
! /
k! ~ ! :
s - i 7
260>
ot ! i i T P o
e 4 ——'Q“m—-! : i SIREIOW AR 029 e
TRt cutesMonsue L i $o2800 1! EA o R T L R
= = e H b EE =
T S iomd S b ed aqd SHiROETTTTTm “""‘“"J""“‘"“ T e ig 1{3}"!7?,'&@‘ g’h\ﬂ iméﬂ %0815 95 gty
7 ; 8 : : (2419 dig g;
ﬂﬁrw E ! o ol
: . 10T HEGOTARLE [ TE——
- i i Ll (et speg— <jem
Ptanettde DEVIED % " aeozmm i iy
" o ovesanm e o - - : : A
A [ U e
e
-~ .‘.
: . : :
) §
2
)
!
« ; .
5 - 4
": t 2 &
\ < N -
. 5 ! I ;
B IR 2496 | B S e :
m}ﬁ‘??’- T e ! 24 |
_imzeed ;
= i 717 LI
3 Gevios Mandozal $ _To0006 it ¥
B ? 1. e §_1.658.00
- Hitrn Fhimdred And QR O0 el B cafetiandor] - - 3 f |
s ST .«
gatas endozt a: : e Thocaap Sty HueATes Sing Ehis d GHOpmrm it T s 1
Astmad, GA 34801 ’@@T@DLE s ot al
S I
3 14
T Getnd b Warkar o S ;
SUG2RSAR ] 1140 363 TE GLOD 112 ' 3
A0 2RSAR 1] 1346 36R T GO0 1Y ! W bades bUWarket 7 !
e et e i e R o e 42 e WE@ G B g ALLNART D TLEN R H
N B e s SR SOl el el el H5
' ‘e
i
28 b3
S I ‘ SRR T s e e e R e e b Gy
fn s 3
200s Rz e o L
- _rames | . emmgd
o Oarlns Marpza], i’ ) Mendapal r$ 4,104.01 H
Mﬂminﬂmﬂ(mmeﬂ$mm‘%—-$w___: 7 s S0 = 2 - i i
l\“\\ $! Dne Thounard O e srd RS0 Yina, 3 3
Calds Mandorn g | b
70 Stent SR In Hendorz 8’ .
A L CA s ?ﬂ A, 3R A
P a ) i /).r foift
- e s, Shasam b ;\CL ]MEELOW@@ ['%
Qatfac &2 Warkes 1 o :
e Cazlis. & ¢ Warkes
A0 dsgom 'lxglu.mn-'fn INATRS ST > AMQIGAGE R 2Nk 2ERBT QLOEREAT
’ - .

2 i \ ;
s R . T y k :
: ’ o asiLasu e 5 gOAS s e, P B
e ; : o 3
@ Wrnr 2 : .
et ] i i ® e, b

e

'Siréet’
“I-ond CA mﬁ,

J : .

(i 2

a7 e ".‘ 5 i : loa il : &

& X e BT HGOTeL: * B o T HEGOTMBLE |

My, .““.” < :
. ¥ ;
- V - m.nl)u”. : o5 ks & Wk
R ‘ £ 250 W 4EBINIRSAR BN EREY S ;
v
‘ .



&
y <
Ftomte b 2784 .}
eon
H
t
~
e H
e Mendozl H
Thiee TRousand Ome Huaeed PRy vl TIT50° !
Calog #endora :
RT3t ST'zet !
Ristrmond, C4 24931 .
Coct ARG e 1428 A, Ut
v
f
¥

Yot Thosbmd Fuei Forhfow i '
Gaios Handora < i
797 2th Strocy
Rishmond, G4 3401 :
2 ondoes 1ilakae i
POO2TRIY qiRRALEAAT ;
.

AL ey,
oS
TRERIGL

P
Bas Carlos Mendoral

_ Tro Thorats Fov Wuratsed FAghty dad
£ Galas ifandozy
757 Bih Synes
Ristmacan, SA 2481
= Culac 2 Mtk
rice

. i i

£ R 76 |

AN o

e g |

i

Bte_ camuonana 202000 1 I
Ry Thorard Tuseedy Nir 2y GUAKY o f

7 sk

Mendaza
Hret

™ Sates 2 2Wedkee

G376 2 LRt ALOM LS 2 i

e WO iEeeAL
1

i

‘:‘
A & R ouniig g ol R PP STy 3 - S~ )
7 "‘M" e
"l“fl‘”‘ﬁ{l& " 2 n::\.;?-@-w 2712
¥iazoc ! :

»

1

2t wm_us_“_m_-m
93 Hrousand Fuaty e 09/10¢" abes

7"739!5!1‘:
Riatmond, G 84501,
E17T Qallnid Ava :
K EP A PadlbrLdagan 0L} 370 :
G
i
:
<
", fs
!
H
¥
B '
One Th ’
Cafay dstlora
757 0th Streer
Risizacd, Gh- 380t
Larkon 2 2Warkas ;
MUZT I HAIYARIAL 040U 4137+
.
v
S o
e am !
(0r008 1 =
=007 lendoryf
o Tisnth Fie ‘\—“\-\ 3 £
e g .maqrmly.n..,,,me.‘m....‘w.mﬁf_‘um 1
P T e VO ik
727.31i Sty At
Rintamond Oa deay IR N a-
- HOT NEGOTIABLE
Caeiria b3 Yeyge s trs s
; W02 2Xoke ) RIS LT OLND L} g7, :
\ ) l
'v‘ W

B zaroua,, v |
R !
!

Chins Menc
07 91 St
hinemi, GA Sdaar
Eo3
“adat €2 Woder
ML SRAT 023 ¢ gt I DI e : )




5 % ...
%
: - ey Raneslig B e Ry
;
w0 L
waz2007 i i
—_—
i O
e __Gnfas Hrodma| & 2960 I
Yoot Thusand Fis Hridied — |
T T e, et %
Cat 'M'rvhl: ] 5
EHE T
@i, CA 58501 ,{ﬁw’}&? '13;4,-,;3_]““ j’{l”“l }’: [é :
s BTN D R :

Gatios & 24%iser
FOIVG A KA\ 482104, DLATLS 12w

2804

28007

v RnE thulos Meadnzul §_"®0.00
Flve Hunrred and 0071907 H anusas
ett 5
Rishimnd, GA 34201 M")‘j}-‘ QO fg‘ =l
Materiol For ST Qaklopd Ava
FONINUe QIENG e Qhan iy

|
1
i
1
a

Cgee s e nea

rarjid- e Hrrrrtred-Forin
Cg}ni Hﬂnhk(u "
Rdrinnyad, CA 439 . &

| Gartoa 4’2 Worler 3 i
Fﬂﬂﬂﬂh}v b3S ILEAEE 0 DLaAG V12 .

& gl ﬁ ""‘“‘““.‘;fm 2819
#i&"ﬂ’w o svidor !
% gﬁa Cirfos Mandoxa] & “2400.00 ! [
s Vit it Four Kiodred o 33150 Py I
P 5!
l A AMEEP NIRRT, 7
Fshurard, Th 34304 M@ M' lD ;L‘:;

= carlen & Lorker
20013 e 2 LA B IRATG OLOREY 2

Yoo s : i

2 5 iTAs
En
v At b

-
=, :
e IS HERGEET
SL AL A L A
S vea
B, 4508
e
Cen BRI, alitlaerm nuaclizte
: ‘e .
: 4 g . i
: 0 0
G s -
et i

i

~ .
v _Galos Huduwia] 3600 i
lw"l'munsvd Thes 2. S0 L I i
ih Stri 8
'e\shvm.d Chasas H
o0 :
Sarlag B % Wekar i
JBO2TPTC GAVLLAIREAR D400 e H

R R

«
-
‘
K
. m -‘:1 TR RS ah 2, DA, ¥
e (=
:
\\ - & .
5215 RY d704 ¢
Uit e
2801
&ﬁ_ﬂﬁﬁuﬂxﬂ = $ 8000
Y Ong thousand P 45 WOy o
Galox Mmiu-a
ﬂsw\md AU




-

Lo

A7 €100V B6IIANITN > wnd EG0x
MMz

1085870 Py
1345 g (8l
F16q] s
U (9 G Saig AR L RIY
Fropsnsoine G

e,

Pyl
TR TR

20 113




@MN@* 7 ey

HEW wr  SPUWNOHIRTRTP I = ¢
%Z%mw%h O RT £ P COBlm
pl 8|7 ALY AVE

score . DBIA®  EBOWTIN- /-ﬂzﬁjﬁg |
e uAE O % o PROPEIMPY

o1 PO DL cotrvade

MEWMBUENGLE  ERPENGES
e e ENeEa

FROVINCTUON o,
e g s
e Fee .

Pess T eNgewer  Eloon

%Zﬁfﬁ

et
e

WILLIAM P, COBURN, arcHiTECT

wpcoburn@pacbell.net
1224 Center St. Oakland CA 94807

(510)893-8826  FAX (510) 465-2637

11



MWARG+ 1%, 2{9/5;

o WM TS MY ConNeELN |
Re: 517 ofrLLend e . '

s ks @ lovipieM figAT  BRIVEEN TXE
Fp CF TUNE 2 Zett- Arp NGRS W8
BEENE OpTATNAL, AT Bunone  feR
Mo Giche PP A PTRL OF
Fponl PR ARUATIEAAUORT  SERVICES

P e REMOJELINE 2 [NPDITION S RENENATION/
AT e FRoegH

ROPETFLALT  SUBMITTRD

bl T (G

WILLIAM COBURN ARCHITECTS

wpcoburn@pacbell.net

1224 Center Street, Oakland, CA 94607
(510) 893-8826  FAX (510) 465-2637

L U5



LZED-09€ (008) - SINMOS SSINISNT SIA33Y YM-LE Wiog
Aq € ‘ouswesnes ‘0go9z .xog 'Oy ‘preog asuasp ajeys
N pauBi SI01IBRUO) “ensiBay 2yl 0y paatajes o Aew soprenuod
TVLOL . N . X : ' Buluesuod> suopssnb Auy ‘uonejola pabsjie ayy ayep
. . o8 | RFY OVINIZYId TUANBY 290 IDI0ANI 40 SAVQ 05 ¥a 14y | SUD 40 siesk i upyym PeI} 39 3snw s1as4ep feanionss oy »L
- IDNYIVE SIDNYIVE QIYdNN NO HLN ! VY IHL Y GIDUVHD 38 TIIMALIYNIS ¥ Bujureyiad uossjwio o e uaze e Buppsenbas yupepdwos

LN0Jp Awjo 3uy) u ki
533 sRaulo13v Buipnyoy ‘UoNd3(j03 Joj sabivyd 3jquuosvat Aod 0132460 J3y)any \E% %«Q&Co@om v ‘uopejoja pabiajje 2 jo sep sy jo sieak Anoj uim
-biuasaid Uo auibs 10y Abd 0} 92160 PUD A101304s1305s an0qo pabubys [puzoWl pup awlpy ayipuy|, | pajy si uojssjwio o e jusjed e Bujpieh-aa jujejduiod e
QNT ‘NAAOQ %01 ‘A@1e|paww; 9240 Ino suoyd sses|d ‘Kem Aue ul ‘Kloydeysnesun 3} sa03denU0d Jsujebe syuejdwod wumm~umw>:~ 03 uopdpsin{
S[92|ALSS §) 133303 s|U) Aesio Joydeysjyes Bufyikiaas puy nok 31 pue ‘qof ay) eAes| usUIIOM
210J3q JUBLUSIL)S JOGE| PUE [RLDIEW SUILUEXS O) Pa1sanbal Al nj1dadsal a1e noA adinsas Aoy | sey  yopym pieog asusdim 9je3s ,Si03enuo0d 3y Aq
-dBjsiies anjosqe noA sA|6 0y sh 8]qeUS 0) pue ‘S3A[asino pue ‘Usuyiom sy ‘nok 3os101d 03

.anhoc_m:o_umzﬁ.wwcmﬁ&_mfoa m>m:8nE_:UWLwE:mEmu_Emm nmmm,zo._,mnum:oo._.vw«a.:mﬂt:mvam:wu:ou Em_havmn_scw.. m._.mmﬂ_angmwl
NOILITdNOD NOdN %06 ‘NMOQJ %01 .

QSk*: 130184 LOVYLNOD

wuswdinba pue soqej‘[ersreursyiwiad

IM® @snoy Jo Jno buiiod uoi auuod

i3yjoue Joj 33245uU0d 3i0W no OWBP 03 BARY I ulew A3id 843 03 uohdBUUOD jeuly ino ayew Usyl [lIm jjemapis puiyaq yno uespd
Aem omy uoa 3ses e lreisul i adid 1amas panoidde 8pod aueieindjod £ | -13s jo 308 xoide ¥sinqadid pue poyjyaw Ssajydua] syl asn
uayy jim-uopdauuod urew £33 o3 ‘HOL UMop s1eARIXD UYL [N EXT }jneydse jo uojydes 3n> mes pue 133435 0} 3n0 06 usy} fji1sey
1ajem ssed o} sjqe Bujaq Jou 1omos 943 }J0 195 JJo 0) op Jamss Bupsixe Jo uojpas Yauaay usdo usyi jjimemapis Jo puiyaq oy 81 Aq
"HOL "xolde 3snoy jo Joulod je 9}242U03 Jo U0IBS IND> Mes 3Sa1J [Jia ‘pauniojiaod ag 03 x;o?ﬁq_gc__om 3y} ssodoad apy
QINHOLYId YHOM / QISN TYHILYW

Abcﬂtm\s IB3A G) )
TUS USSP ST Tersye Tomas— ‘G343QHO MYOM i Aiessadau ays yaym buoe

syjied pue sjeusiew

SY 9M /| - NOILYZHOHLOY SYOM

diz . e’puepjeg PIEIS pue 415 — - 9] \E\ JI Sied ysiulg /1ess xoudy

Ay puEMEQ LIS HSSOIPPY 9TSB-STE(OLE)  -ouoydapal

piedays peyy 0L paniwgng jesodoly wod'lewbedaursws e

oloz/sg/oL  alva i | WO>IST210adSIaMISSSA[ YOI MMM

v W
iy

oo rews@durquindaurjuresp rewy

. IALNVHYVM HVIA BT

6LL6-89L (ST6) * £688-996 (01S) g
" $62600T "ON asuadl] 33e1g erurojjEn SPSP6 eD pIemALy 100138 Tead L6LYT

amﬁﬂ



Current Date: May 24, 2017

: Current Date: May 24, 2017 ~—
Account Number: 300008382 o .
. | Account Number: 300008382
Capture Date: December 08, 2016 Capture Date: November 30, 2016
ftern Number: 5250006816954 lterri Number: 5250006811733
Posted Date: December ob, 2010 Posted Date: November 30, 2016
Posted ltem Number: 6816954 Posted ltem Number: 6811733
Amount: 4,080.00 ; % :
R dTyoe: Debit ; Amount: 420.00
ecord Type: e Record Type: Debit
Faramarz Tabatabai-Ghahyaz Faramarz Tabatabai-Ghahyaz
5825 Saint Paul Court : >
i 5825 Saint Paul Court
QOakiand CA 94618 i Oakland CA 94618

..wzwgywm_._.>m3>m>ﬂ.m§_._§m_
5826, SAINT PAUL., : L

m>w>a>mm§w5>mw*.m:>¢§m
5825 SAINTPAUL .. . B
OAKLAND, TA 84818 s

! Pay.icthe
$ Order of.

e ; , 2000 POWELL STHEET, " R .
: FVJLLE, CALIEGRNIA 54608, ~ w

O os!

“Dollars xop ..

L
', . 2000 POWELL STREE " SUITE |15 * Mm Fys

EMERYVJLLE, CALIFORNIA.
’
m.on\mEMnNP .

2 LIAGEANOI0000B3BANEEAE 5

-

- <rédo
f 2i211389582030000838 2

PLLAE

s :
. vi Ay, o+ i 3
g T PECINE § 2
: b2 .z =
IS & :
i 7 5
- x = ..m W
<9 B E
z
i
W o =
bog
o - - .
d




i1l

Current Date; March 14, 2018 REFERENCES: %‘ .M Nmnwumm\. nM.uW and (2>
Hotieatn : B ectric Compan: i
Account Number: 300008382 Conma X i - pany
Capture Date: Decomber 22, 2014 [l
tem Number: 5250006104072 PR
Posted Date: Oecember 22, 2014 Gax
Posted lem Number: 6104072 Customer Construction Paym
Amount 1064534 yment Coupen
Record Typs. Debit 5437635 4
ype Ingtallation Project: $17 DAKLAND AVE 8
y 4 Location: 517 CAKLAND AVE. O, :
Service Facility instatiotion Gont a3 idontifiod on 5000 55266 555296 - OAKLAND. 94611 h wan
Faramarz Tabatabal-Ghahyaz ‘ _E‘N:nsunﬂ m>nu>n_ﬂ.ac Ly <
5825 Saint Paul Court St Total Amount Due: $10.645.34
OsiiandCAgee1s (Tom Service Costs subject o Allowance) 3000 sep3z 482932 ——_
% 'ake Checks payable to: "PGEE™ " . g
Losc Racidential Allownnce 5000 $2,51000 $2,510.00 or "Pacific Gas and Efactric' :
Excons Rovldontiol Servico charpe: 30.00 $2,41932 3241832 Mall this coupon, payment, and signed SACAC form to: :
Inspeciion fee(o) - PGAE Only: . 5000 - $0.00 S0.00 wwwm m“ivvo DEPARTMENT H
4 OX 397340
Velue of Franchise Trenching. Conduil and Subslructure: S000 5545484 Sacramonto, CA 95898-7340
¢ Othar Non-Refundable Charge 56,00 540,00
FARAMARZ TABATABAI-GHANYAZ Y fol= < A= 1142 Sub Total: . 5000 S8314.16
® G i
'DAKLAND, CA 9011 e FTGC (Tox)~ $5.00 $2.544.98 Gbdaa Safety is our No.1 priority at Pacific Gas and Electric Company. Go to
- Dec15,1% i e . T oE.com to find tips, checklists and resourcos on safoty aroung
Farlathe = 3y Olher Costs not subject 10 ITCC: 3000 $86.23 58623 and ity, and y und gas
o ¢
Order of Ta %/ E . w_p $ 10,645 . 0..04-05-055 Lin Extension Costs - Resldertial. 50.00 520000 £200.00
E@ A5 Qe Mymyénmuﬂvn_g}uﬁ = : Less Value of Franchise Trenching, Condui and ‘
] s poeens @ 5 Substructuros by Applicant: ~o0e 5000 o0 Notification # 108851812
Ty e : Su Total; 5000 e S11606.34 Zontract #: 1182695
" i i y m 0 Leas Engineoring Deposit and/or Other Cradits: $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 Zlactric Project #:
E.Mw&maﬁ\.nﬁNk S E.k&_ - ARE -
ﬁ. 4 213389SB030000838 2 bk Totl Non-Retundable Paymant: s106053¢ 3as Project #: 31100345
¥ yau hove any questions, Contact me at ($70) 8527323 or by emall ot ACY@pge.com
A We thank you for your business
Sineoraly. -
) s S : Bt oy
; S e E: Austin Cha
5 i s
LSt
MMNM WM Pacific Gas and Eloctric Company * bicutne Tim, C s 2o 3
GESESS
: SRR
5 D90 B
; o —ZollP
5 EXA 2 ;
_ _ : | AR
e | Sageletd i
2 : . i . il k 1008518126
i N ; foeon1o12e & S

TRANSMISSION VERIFICATfON REPURT

TIME
NAE,
FaX
T’ i
CER. H 1 DDOABIABE ST

18/30/2814 12:38

10/3C 12:20
4372144

09: 98727

82

o
MODE STANDARD
ECM

COMMENTS:

FAX

ﬂ_llmm,..&w&&l;, cheng.. PN Frark. h«&\m\%z. —
5% m\onr\wu\hlpz%w FAX:  5/0-652-2972- . ._

PO iy 3T 250, PO 50484037 .
DATE: oc T\ 30, \.\ : PAGES {incLuoma coveRanecT):

SUBIECT: o0/ Gas meter- NRD\A?,‘ For SIF nﬁv\?& Ao ! .

CcommenTs:
Y A you SO mauch For g \m\\ b vﬁ“rﬂ,._\
oo . g Fo hare any oHer— &znvm\ﬂ.)
Plesse 1aF e boneass .

[rand  Ghelps




CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case Nos.: T17-0421

Case Name: Nanos v. Jerez

Property Address:

Parties: Scott Nanos
Owen Jerez
Clifford Fried

OWNER APPEAL:

Activity

Tenant Petition filed
Owner Response filed

Order to Vacate and
Set New Hearing Date issued

Amended Hearing Decision issued
Owner Appeal filed

Owner Supporting Documentation filed

1921 26th Avenue, #6, Oakland, CA

(Tenant)
(Property Owner)
(Property Owner Representative)

Date
July 19, 2017

September 20, 2017

March 16, 2018
May 1, 2018
May 23, 2018

June 7, 2018

119



712812017 ' Rent Adjustment Program

%W@ City of
= ” Oakland

Rent Adjusfment
Program

SEASEAT I b0

Home - T17-1054 -» Submitted Petition Form

Il

A0

JUL 19 2017

S TMENT PROGRAM
RENT ADJUSTMENT
OAKLAND

Petition type Tenant

Applicant and Property Information

Applicant Info Dévid ScottNanos,

1921 26th ave, unit 6
Oakland, California 94601
T 6096513306
scott.nanos@gmail.com

Representative Michael Astanehe,
Tobener Ravenscroft Law Firm,
21 Masonic Ave, suite A,
San Francisco, California 94118
T 415 463 8106
mastanehe@tobenerlaw.com

Property owner Owen Jerez,
1921 26th avenue property LLC,
201 13th:st#323563, ,
Oakland, California 94612
T

Property manager Owen Jerez,
1921 26th avenue property LLC,

120

https://rap.oaklandnet.com/#/ViewPetition 174



7/28/2017 . Rent Adjustment Program

201 13th st#32. 3,
Oakland, California 94612
T
Number of units 17
Type of unit you rent Apartment, Room or Live-work
Are you current on your rent? Yes

Grounds for Petition

i) My property owner is providing me with fewer housing services than | previously received or is
charging me for services originally paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing
services is considered an increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adjustment based on a
decrease in housing services.)

Rent Increases

When did you move into the unit? 3/1/2014
Initial monthly rent $1200
When did the property owner first 12/15/2015

provide you with a written NOTICE TO
TENANTS of the existence of the Rent
Adjustment Program (RAP NOTICE)?

Did the property owner provide you with Yes
a RAP Notice, a written notice of the

existence of the Rent Adjustment

Program?

s your rent subsidized or controlled by No
any government agency, including HUD

121

https://rap.oaklandnet.com/#/ViewPetition 2/4



7/28/2017
(Section 8)?

Have you ever filed a petition for your
rental unit?

Rent Adjustment Program

No

Description of loss of service and problems

The housing services | am being
provided have decreased.

Are you being charged for a service
originally provided to you by the
property owner?

What is the estimated dollar value of the
lost service or problem?

" Reduced Service description

httos://ran.oaklandnet.com/#/ViewPetition

Yes

Yes

700

The servicel have lost is the second bedroom of
my two bedroom apartment. My younger
brother, Sean Nanos and |, moved into this
apartmentin March 2014. In June 2017, he
moved out due to receiving a promotion in his
company that requires him to relocate to Los
Angeles. | have been trying to complete a one-
for-one transfer request to move my partner and

- our nine month old daughter into my spare

bedroom, which has remained vacant since
June 2017.My landlord has been unreasonably
refusing my transfer request, imposing thirteen
different requirements on my partner, including
a minimumincome of over $18,000/year, even
though | have explained that she is a full-time
mother to our nine month old daughter.
Although I've done my best to be compliant, and
to complete as many requirements as possible,
the situation has escalated and my landlord has
made it clear that if he even sees my partner
around or inside the premises, he will take
aggressive action to evict me for trying to
illegally move her into the unit. | have since
provided him with documentation anq] 29

3/4



7/28/2017

Date loss of this service began

Loss of service documentary evidence

Are you claiming any serious problems
with the condition of your unit?

Problem documentary evidence

Rent Adjustment Program

photographs pr« ing that she is living elsewhere
but he has refused to contact me or make any
effort to reach a resolution. After receiving a
three day notice to cure or quit on thursday, July
13,2017, | have made constant and numerous
attempts tocontact him since friday, July 14,
2017, in hopes of reaching a peaceful
resolution. But | have not received any
communication whatsoever, and it is now 4:45
pm on Wednesday, July 19, 2017. Since June
2017 | have been covering all rent and utility
payments on the apartment. | have tried
attaching documentation but have been
unsuccessful, please contact the law offices of
Tobener Ravenscroft for more information and
documentation regarding this issue.

2017/6/1

No

Additional Documentation

https://rap.oaklandnet.com/#/ViewPetition

123

4/4



CITY OF OAKLAND
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

P.O. Box 70243

Oakland, CA 94612-0243
(510) 238-3721

For date stamp.

PROP

) a0 a7

’RTY'QWN}ER

Please Fill Qut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information

may result in your response being r

ejected or delayed.

CASENUMBERT - |77 —0O4 2\ /T’l7_. 05+ online. case 4t

Your Name
92.1 26t~ Avenve.

Property, LLC

Complete Address (with zip code)

Telephone:

54-24 Sunol Bl p4(} 510-485-912877

Pleasanion, CA a4y,

Your Representative’s Name (if any)

Complete Address (with zip code)

Email:

my pro perty mnmm’—w\ad'
(A Y] e A
Telephone:

Email:

Tenant(s) Name(s)

Davidl Scott-Nanos

Complete Address (with zip code)

421 2tk Avenve
Oalt\and, Ca_ Q40|

Property Address (If the property has more
1921 26t Avenve.

than one address, list all addresses)

Total number of units on
property

i

Oak\and , Co. HLO|

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes D/No [ Lic. Number; OO/ é ?Z ‘f‘é
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. Ifit is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes & No O APN: OZ.Q =0 737"

The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition
or Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

Date on which you acquired the building: |@/ _ZZL__ZOII-i-

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes [1 No IS?/

Type of unit (Circle One): House / Condominiumy| room, or live-work

L. JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s) |

box for each increase greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition.
For the detailed text of these justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.

Rev. 3/28/17

1

124

005-C0



Board Regulations. You can get additional information and copies of the Ordinance and
Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510) 238-3721.

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification checked on the
following table, you must attach organized documentary evidence demonstrating your entitlement
to the increase. This documentation may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices.
Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair, legal, accounting and management
expenses, will not usually be allowed.

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured Debt Fair
Contested (deferred Housing Improvements  Repair Service Return
Increase annual Service Costs Costs
increases )
N 49 O O O O O O
Y, fg 0 0 O | 0
VN O m O m O O

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the
correct information in this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s
petition will be considered correct

The tenant moved into the rental unit on A p (& ) i 1 ; 20[ L"

o 5 g : ! oc
The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $ l’ 200 /month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes No I don’t know

3/1*\_—/2014—

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes __y/ No

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given?

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective NOTICE” with the notice
(mo./day/year) From To of rent increase?
$
10/2. /Zo,k 12/ /M,,q 5 1,220.40|% 1,244 .8| w’ ONo
$ o|$ es [ONo
_le/zmc; 12/, /2018] " 1,2.00.° |,220. 40
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo
$ $ OYes ONo
2

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17 -

125



g

1. EXEMPTION

If you claim that your property is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakland Municipal Code
Chapter 8.22), please check one or more of the grounds:

O The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental
Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins,
please answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit or building?

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire
building?

IO R B

O The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or
authority other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

O The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after
January 1, 1983.

O On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, or
boarding house less than 30 days.

[0  The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new construction.

O The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational
institution.

O The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of the units
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year.

IV. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

If the petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position regarding the
tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing services. If you need more space attach a separate sheet. Submit

any documents, photographs or other tangible evidence that supports your position. Py 4 Se. See. attach ed.

V. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all
statements made in this Response are true and that all of the documents attached hereto

are true copies of the originals.

9-15- 2017

Property Own Signature Date

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

126



A
9
7

IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
Time to File

This form must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), P.O. Box 70243, Oakland,
CA 94612-0243, within 35 days after a copy of the tenant petition was mailed to you. Timely
mailing as shown by a postmark does not suffice. The date of mailing is shown on the Proof of
Service attached to the response documents mailed to you. If the RAP office is closed on the last
day to file, the time to file is extended to the next day the office is open.

You can date-stamp and drop your Response in the Rent Adjustment drop box at the Housing
Assistance Center.. The Housing Assistance Center is open Monday through Friday, except
holidays, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

File Review

You should have received a copy of the petition (and claim of decreased housing services) filed
by your tenant. When the RAP Online Petitioning System is available, you will be able to view the
response and attachments by logging in and accessing your case files. If you would like to review the
attachments in person, please call the Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721 to
make an appointment.

Mediation Program

Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an agreement with your
tenant. In mediation, the parties discuss the situation with someone not involved in the dispute,
discuss the relative strengths and weaknesses of the parties’ case, and consider their needs in the
situation. Your tenant may have agreed to mediate his/her complaints by signing the mediation
section in the copy of the petition mailed to you. If the tenant signed for mediation and if you
also agree to mediation, a mediation session will be scheduled before the hearing with a RAP

staff member trained in mediation.

If the tenant did not sign for mediation, you may want to discuss that option with them. You and
your tenant may agree to have your case mediated at any time before the hearing by submitted a
written request signed by both of you. If you and the tenant agree to a non-staff mediator, please
call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees charged by a non-staff mediator are the
responsibility of the parties that participate. You may bring a friend, representative or attorney
to the mediation session. Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree and after your
response has been filed with the RAP.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation and the tenant has already agreed to
mediation on their petition, sign below.

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff member at no charge.

Property Owner’s Signature , Date

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 3/28/17

127



Property Owner Response:

Mr. Nanos and his lawyer have been attempting to intimidate, harass and extort the
landlord into adding a person (Francis Mead) to the lease although the person does not
appear to qualify due to lack of income and employment. The candidate stated that she
met the income requirements on the rental application submitted but she has failed to
provide proof of this income so that we can process the application. Mr. Nanos had
actually moved Francis Mead, child and all of their furniture into the apartment and
stated that she was now an occupant before starting the known process of adding a
person to the lease, thus breaking the covenants of his lease for which he was noticed.
He disputed the need to go through any process and stated that if | simply do not allow
Francis Mead to be added to the lease, that he will call his father, get a lawyer, etc. He
proceeded to do just that, we received a threatening letter from his father and an even
more threatening and ominous letter from his lawyer. Mr. Nanos has demonstrated an
incredible lack of cooperation to resolve this matter by any means formal or informal. In
addition, he has been actively harassing the landlord, negatively talking about the
landlord to tenants, prospective tenants both verbally and through social media to
further his case that the landlord is a "P.0.S. slumlord” and other expletives. He has
caused us significant damage and costs both monetary and to our reputation, due to his
recalcitrance over the years regarding smoking, curbing his cat, feeding feral animals,
wantonly vandalizing the property (repeatedly removing bug screens from windows to
allow cats in and out of his apartment), paying the rent late (over 20 times late in 36
months). Despite all of this, we are still willing to process the application if he would
provide the necessary information that is common to every multi-family building in
Oakland. In this case, the applicant needs to provide proof of the employment income
specified in the rental application of $1500.00 per month. We have numerous emails
requesting this information and it has not been provided. We have suggested that he
submit another candidate but he is unwilling to cooperate with us. We have clear proof
that Mr. Nanos and his lawyer wantonly ignored the signed lease agreement on file and
the process for a one for one tenant replacement and only changed course (removing
Robin Meade from occupying the apartment) after we repeatedly pointed to the lease
agreement and presented several official notices. Mr. Nanos and his lawyer Michael
Astanehe's conduct during these matters can only be described as indefensible,
unprofessional, and lacking any due regard for the truth. In one of his threats, Mr.
Astanehe stated that his client has been conducting his own investigation into the
private matters of each of our tenants in 1921 26th Avenue and that he has discovered
"proof" that the Landlord treats other tenants differently than him and that he will present
this unless we immediately allow Francis Mead into the building and onto the lease. |
stated that we seek to treat all tenants the same and that if we are aware of any
violation, that we address it immediately. | asked them to please provide information
about these situations and that we would seek to resolve them, he did not cooperate
and stated that he would provide this information “at the rent board hearing". Last, we
asked Mr. Nanos to please stop befriending tenants with the intent of getting ahold of
confidential details about their tenancy and to use portions of that information to
thregten the landlord with legal action unless we do as he says.

128



We have documentation on everything stated on this letter and we will be pulling
together all needed supporting documentation in advance of the hearing date. We_ very
much hope that the City of Oakland RAP can simply ask Mr. Nanos to please provide
the missing information in order to process the one for one tenant replacement
requested. Thank you.

Attachments Provided:

RAP Form signed by Tenant on 3/14/2014

RAP Form provided to Tenant on 10/16/2015 with notice of change of terms of tenancy
RAP Form provided to Tenant on 10/21/2016 with notice of change of terms of tenancy

Application to Rent for Francis Mead stating monthly income of $1500 per month that
was signed by her on 6/26/2017 representing this information to be true and correct.

129



2o BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-0243

O gommunity and Economic Davelopment Agency

Rent Adjustment Program FAX ég:g; 322}3;3}
TOD (510) 238-3254
NOTICE 10 TENANTS OF RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
° The City of Qakland has a Residential Rent Adjustment Program ("RAP™) (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland Municipal

Sedro nt : cd under section 8, most single
taib dwellings and condonviniums and some other ty pes of units, For more information on which units are covered, call the

RAP office. This Program limits rent increases and some changes in terms of tenancy for covered residential rental property

° You have a right wo file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual general rent
Encnmsc (the CPY increase). A landlond can increase rent more than the CPJ mate, but with some limits, for: capital
improvements, operating expense increases, debt service, and deterred annual rent increases. You can also complain about
other v iolations of the Rent Adjustment Ordinance. The landlord must provide you with a written summary of the
reasons for any increase greater than the CP1 rate if you TeQuest one in writing.

° If there is a decrease in the housing senices provided to you, this may be considered an increase in your rent, A
decresse in housing senvice includes substantial problems with the condition of a unit. -
° To contest 8 rent increase, you must tile a petition with the RAP using the Rent Program’s form, within sixty (60)

days after first revein ing Written notice of the RAP or within sixty (60) days of receiving a notice of rent increase or change in

temms of tenancy, whichever is later. You can obtain information and the petition formss from the Rent Adjustment Program
office or online at JAvwaw oaklan m/Qov enthed/rentboar ant.htm

° 1T y0u ontest a rent increase, JOu must pay your rent, with the contestedincrease, until you file a petition. After you
file your petition, you may pay only the portion of the increase due to the CPI Rent Adjustment percentage if the CPI
increase amount has been stated on the notice of rent increase. If it has not been stated scparately, you may pay only the rent
you were paying before the notice of rent increase. If the increase is approved and you did not pay the increase as noticed,
you will owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the date it would have beeneffective under the notice.

s Eviction controls arc in effect in the City of Oakland (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance, OM.C, 8.22.200, et

seq.). You cannot be arbitrarily evicted if Your rental unit is covered by the Just Couse for Eviction Ordinance. For more
information call the Rent Adjustment Office.

Oshland charges landlords a Rent Program Service Fee of $30 per unit per year. Ifthe landlord pays the fee on time, the
tandlond is entitled to get half of the fee ($15) per unit from you. The $15 you psy for the annual fee is not part of the rent.

The Nuisance Eviction Ordinance (O.M.C. Chapter 8.23) may require that a tenant who commits or permits certsin illepal
&ts in the Rental Unit or on the land on which the unit is located or in the common areas of the rental complex must be
evicted. If the owner does not evict, the City Attomey may do so.

JENANTS' SMOKING POLI Y DISCLOSURE

°  Smoking (circle one) IS or mitted in Unit 6 | the unit you plan to rent.
®  Smoking (circle one) IS oIS NOT bemitted in other units of y our building, (I both smoking and non-smoking
units exist in the tenant’s building, attach a list of units in which smoling is permitted.) =

®  Smoking is PROHIBI : rimon areas. both indoors and outdoors.
®  There (circle one) IS o ignfted outdoor smoki

RORR ARM) TREMNBORHT P LIRS, FRE (510) 2383721 SRERBIZK,
La Notificacion del Derecho del Inquilino esta disponible en espaiol. Si desca una copia, llame al {510) 238-3721.

On Tho3ng Baiio quyean 161 cuda ngddsi thued trong Oakland naoy cudng col baéng tiedngMiesit. Nea coll
moat badn sao, xin goli {510) 238-3721. ;

Page 35 of 25 Approved By: Tenant Initials epant Initials _&&

Generated by CamScannegp



N N WSET ¥ O

Oct 16,2015

** NOTICE TO CHANGE TERMS OF TENANCY **

To :

David Nanos

1921 26th Avenue 06
Oakland, CA 94601

Dear David Nanos ,

You are hereby notified that that the terms of tenancy under which you occupy the above
described premises is to be changed.

It has been twelve months or more since your rental rate was reviewed and or adjusted
based on the cost of living and other economic factors. In order to keep up with the
operating costs at the property and to offset city, county, and state taxes that have been
charged to the property for services enjoyed by the tenants, your rental rate will be
changed as follows:

Effective, 12/1/2015 your base rent will be increased by $20.40 per
month, from $1,200.00 per month, to $1,220.40 per month,
payable in advance.

As a reminder, the City of Oakland has a Residential Rent Arbitration Ordinance
(RRAO) which sets forth certain guidelines for annual rent increases for rentals
within the City.

Should you have any questions about the propriety of the subject rent increase,
please don't hesitate to contact our office at (510) 594-7600 for information about
the allowed increase under local Ordinance #9980 and addenda. While we have
provided this information to your previously, we have attached a duplicate copy of
the ordinance summary herewith for your reference. It is the express intention of
the property owner that the balance of any allowed rent increases under the
Ordinance are banked under provisions of the RRAO and can be added to any future
increases and transferred to any future property owners.

OJ/”:\

Owner/ gént

A
1

This notice was served by the Owner/Manager in the following manner (check those
which apply): ) : ~ e

by personal delivery to the tenant,
, by leaving a copy with someone on the premises other than the tenant,

by mailing

by posting.
The Lapham Company , I\ A\ELEE
4844 Telegraph Avenue il
Oakland, CA 94609 ~ OCT 15 2015

(510) 594-7600



Please

Refer to

Your
Lease
_.>

CITY oF OAKLAND

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043
Department of Housing and Community Development .. TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181

TDD (510) 238-3254

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

o Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidized
units, most single family dwellings, condominiums and some other types of units: For more information
on which units are covered, contact the RAP office.

e You have a right to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual
general rent increase (“CPI increase”). An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits,
for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases (“banking”).
No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. The owner must provide you with a written summary of the
reasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing. If the owner decreases
your housing services, this may be an increase in your rent. Decreased housing services include substantial
problems with the condition of a unit. ;

e To contest a rent increase, you must file a petition with the RAP within sixty (60) days of whichever is
Jater: (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this Notice
To Tenants. Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP office: 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, 6™ F1., Oakland, CA 94612 or: http://www.oaklandnet.com/government/hcd/rentboard/tenant.html

e If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition.
After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you have
to pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rent
you were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you will
owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase.

e Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance and Regulations, O.M.C. 8.22)
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office.

e Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the

‘owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the annual fee is not part of the rent.
Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the tenant portion of the fee.

TEN ANT.S’ SM O KING P O LICY
= DISCLOSURE :

= Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in Unit , the unit you intend to rent.

Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in other units of your building. (If both smoking and non-smoking units
exist in tenant’s building, attach a list of units in which smoking is permitted.)

= There (circle one) IS or IS NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. Tt is located at

I received a copy of this notice on
(Date) (Tenant’s signature)

SR (B ) SRR AN B G T URA, FBUE (510) 238-3720 RINEIA.

La Notificacién del Derecho del Inquilino esté disponible en espafiol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721.
Ba(in Thodng Balio quyean 18ii culia ngdogi thued trong Oakland nagy cudng coll baéng tiedng Vieat. Ned colt moét
bafin sao, xin goii (510) 238-3721.

132



3

7 4

CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROG
SUPPLEMENT REQUIRED WITH NOTICE INCREASING RENT OR CHANGING
TERMS OF TENANCY

Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program that limits rent increases.

A rental property owner may increase rent only once every 12 months. A tenant who receives a
rent increase above an annual amount (CPI Rent Adjustment) may petition the Rent Adjustment
Program to require the owner to justify the amount of the increase in excess of the CPI Rent

- Adjustment. A tenant must file the petition within 60 days of the owner's serving the rent
increase notice or the tenant gives up the right to contest the increase.

When a rent increase exceeds the CPI amount allowed, a tenant may request a summary of the
justifications for the rent increase from the owner. The request must be made in writing within 30
days of receipt of the notice of increase. The owner must provide a written response within 15
days of thie tenant serving the request for the summary or the increase notice is invalid.

The tenant and the owner are encouraged to communicate with each other to resolve their
differences without the need for filing a petition.

The current annual increase allowed is 1.7 %.

This notice provides limited information. For further information, contact the Rent Adjustment
Program at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 5th Floor, Oakland CA 94612 - (510) 238-3721.

Optional by owner: If you file a petition with the Rent Program on the petition is decided by the
Rent Adjustment Program. This amount is $

PROOF OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, being at least 18 years of age, declare under penalty of perjury that I served
this rent increase; you must pay the amount of the increase equal to the CPI Rent Adjustment
until the Change of Terms of Tenancy and Supplemental Notice, of which this is a true copy, on
the above mentioned Tenant in Possession in the manner(s) indicated below:

[ ]On I handed the Notice to the tenant .

S
[

[t handed the Notice to a person of suitable age and discretion at the tenant’s residence /
business on ' sl

[ 11 posted the Notice in a conspicuous place at the tenants residence on

X1 sent by 1% class mail a true copy of the Notice to the tenant at his place of residence on
October 19, 2015.

Executed October 19, 2015 at Oakland, CA

See Reverse

133




\P52-% 0 \J

Oct 21,2016

** NOTICE TO CHANGE TERMS OF TENANCY **

To :

David Nanos

1921 26th Avenue 06
Oakland, CA 94601

Dear David Nanos ,

You are hereby notified that that the terms of tenancy underwhich you occupy the above
described premises is to be changed.

It has been twelve months or more since your rental rate was reviewed and or adjusted
based on the cost of living and other economic factors. In order to keep up with the
operating costs at the property and to offset city, county, and state taxes that have been
charged to the property for services enjoyed by the tenants, your rental rate will be
changed as follows:

Effective, 12/1/2016 your base rent will be increased by $24.41 per
month, from $1,220.40 per month, to $1,244.81 per month,
payable in advance.

As a reminder, the City of Oakland has a Residential Rent Arbitration Ordinance
(RRAO) which sets forth certain guidelines for annual rent increases for rentals
within the City.

Should you have any questions about the propriety of the subject rent increase,
please don't hesitate to contact our office at (510) 594-7600 for information about
the allowed increase under local Ordinance #9980 and addenda. While we have
provided this information to your previously, we have attached a duplicate copy of
the ordinance stiimmary herewith for your reference. It is the express intention of
the property owner that the balance of any allowed rent increases under the
Ordinance are banked under provisions of the RRAO and can be added to any future
increases and transferred to any future property owners.

Owner/Agent)

This notice was served by the Owner/Manager in the following manner (check those
which apply): |

by personal delivery to the tenant,

by leaving a copy with someone on the premises other than the tenant,
by mailing

by posting.

The Lapham Company
4844 Telegraph Avenue
Oakland, CA 94609
(510) 594-7600

=

T
oot
=
e
e,

P
D
-~
Faa
Lo
oD
<D
==

—d
=
=2
et
[;—.- s
eyl
)

Jezn

134



Please

Refer to

Your
Lease

CITY oF OAKLAND

P.O. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043 :

Department of Housing and Community Development . TEL (510) 238-3721.

Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254

NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

o Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) that limits rent increases (Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland
Municipal Code) and covers most residential rental units built before 1983. It does not apply to subsidized
units, most single family dwellings, condominiums and some other types of units. For more information
on which units are covered, contact the RAP office.

o You have aright to file a petition with the RAP to contest a rent increase that is greater than the annual
general rent increase (“CPI increase”). An owner can increase rent more than the CPI rate, but with limits,
for: capital improvements, operating expense increases, and deferred annual rent increases (“banking”).
No annual rent increase may exceed 10%. The owner must provide you with a written summary of the
reasons for any increase greater than the CPI rate if you request one in writing. If the owner decreases
your housing services, this may be an increase in your rent. Decreased housing services include substantial
problems with the condition of a unit. : .

e To contest atent increase, you must file a petition with the RAP within sixty (60) days of whichever is
later: (1) the date the owner served the rent increase notice; or (2) the date you first received this Notice
To Tenants. Information and the petition forms are available from the RAP office: 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, 6™ Fl., Oakland, CA 94612 or: ht_gp://www.oaklandnet.com/government/hcd/rentboard/tenant.html

o If you contest a rent increase, you must pay your rent with the contested increase until you file a petition.
After your petition is filed, if the rent increase notice separately states the amount of the CPI rate, you have
to pay your rent plus the CPI increase. If the CPI rate has not been stated separately, you may pay the rent
you were paying before the rent increase notice. If the increase is approved and you did not pay it you will
owe the amount of the increase retroactive to the effective date of increase.

e Oakland has eviction controls (the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinanceand Regulations, OM.C. 8.22)
which limit the grounds for evictions in covered units. For more information contact the RAP office.

e Oakland charges owners a Rent Program Service Fee per unit per year. If the fee is paid on time, the
owner is entitled to get half of the fee from you. Your payment for the annual fee is not part of the rent.
Tenants in subsidized units are not required to pay the tenant portion of the fee.

JENANTS’ SMOKING PO LICY
DISCLOSURE
Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NO"I“ permitted in Unit_ , the unityou intend to rent.
Smoking (circle one) IS or IS NOT permitted in other units of your building, (If both smoking and non-smoking units

exist in tenant’s building, attach a list of units in which smoking is permitted,)
s There (circle one) IS or IS NOT a designated outdoor smoking area. It is located at

1 received a copy of this notice on

(Date) . (Tenant’s signature)

WRERE (R M) TSR B E MG P XURE, FEE (510)238-3721 SRELEIAR,

La Notificacién del Derecho del Inquilino estd disponible en espafiol. Si desea una copia, llame al (510) 238-3721.
Ba(in ThoAng Balio quyean 16ii culia ngd6gi thued trong Oakland nagy cudng coli baéng tieéng Vieit. Ned coll modt
balin sao, xin goii (510) 238-3721. '

Effective 8/1/14

e o e £Av AdAditiAnAl Dant Infraaca Infarmatinn =



R H

CITY O O..&LAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROG1csM
SUPPLEMENT REQUIRED WITH NOTICE INCREASING RENT OR CHANGING
TERMS OF TENANCY

Oakland has a Rent Adjustment Program that limits rent increases.

A rental property owner may increase rent only once every 12 months. A tenant who receives a
rent increase above an annual amount (CPI Rent Adjustment) may petition the Rent Adjustment
Program to require the owner to justify the amount of the increase in excess of the CPI Rent
Adjustment. A tenant must file the petition within 60 days of the owner's serving the rent
increase notice or the tenant gives up the right to contest the increase.

When a rent increase exceeds the CPI amount allowed, a tenant may request a summary of the
justifications for the rent increase from the owner. The request must be made in writing within 30
days of receipt of the notice of increase. The owner must provide a written response within 15
days of the tenant serving the request for the summary or the increase notice is invalid.

The tenant and the owner are encouraged to communicate with each other to resolve their
differences without the need for filing a petition. :

The current annual increase allowed is 2.0 %.

This notice provides limited information. For further information, contact the Rent Adjustment
Program at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 5th Floor, Oakland CA 94612 - (510) 238-3721.

Optidnal by owner: If you file a petition with the Rent Program on the petition is decided by the
Rent Adjustment Program. This amount is $

PROOF OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, being at least 18 years of age, declare under penalty of perjury that I served
this rent increase, you must pay the amount of the increase equal to the CPI Rent Adjustment
until the Change of Terms of Tenancy and Supplemental Notice, of which this is a true copy, on
the above mentioned Tenant in Possession in the manner(s) indicated below:

[ ]on , I handed the Notice to the tenant .

[_]1 handed the Notice*to a person of suitable age and discretion at the tenant’s residence /
business on

[1I posted the Notice in a conspicuous place-'at the tenant's residence on

X1 sent by 1% class mail a true copy of the Notice to the tenant at his place of residence on
October 25th, 2016

Executed October 25th, 2016 at Oakland, CA.

i

See Reverse

136



i seciions must He compiersd

vu/

each ogoupant 18 years of age or older.

ITY NUMBER

 ZIP CODE

OVNERY ZGT‘ p’iO-\'L‘ NO

narae (_l’q\ oy old
Fax plgee -

ZIP CODE
S 7
T4

GGR NAME sy,  OWNERMORPHONENO.
VY Plep@¥¥izs (sle) 849 -19977
i
R0 a YIuGig
NAME I
M, ?) AT “(1\ o’k e d\,% a‘f‘“— 2y : I
J\.O\(‘/\q\\,q\r\c\——\/\Q.OC'\ l
1 WILL YCU SESCRIBE 3 1 WILL YOU HAVE DESCRIBE
| navepels? : N T 1 quid filied \‘\, [@]
| i TRl furniture?
5 Yaw €0 ARRYS 4’1 SR Employer S : , 5 1 Wy S‘t'\"_af"QC[
 or source of income T2z Ay . s 8 Li Vel _ rame ‘(\(\}‘ i) l"«\Q an j_q‘]\/“. ” U tvuvny |
[Howlorgwith , ¢ Supervisor's ’:mpoyer
i this employer BoMe av Phone# ( ¢{b) 6Loh-50G (?J‘\ address : o
i Name of your A e = City, State Oa \<la r C &
| supervisor R P 3
B| Prior sulbstiuie tzalney and aftey Employer o a\<\ q Nd W e\ Ay by
‘occuoa'con A ; -7Q‘f\oo\ Proaraw vt ed (WY nams A The \QJCI D VLA
: O = e g0
, Howiongwith & | Supervisor's 5 Employer | 000 cad w Sut
| ihis employer b Uiav 4 Phone# (510) $79 — %ZOO address - VD( aa lnkt//}qv\ol A 7 qm,7
I f vou : City. State a ( al\
g:‘jme¢'y°~fa_«>,\n o ( aq v vy o O AL gidl o € A 34(007
| superviser
: Check One - 4 5 i
Current gross income Please list ALL of your financial obligation:
S \500 PER 3 week X month O Year ¥ gations below
( _Name of your bank Branch or Address JI Account Number

C WA SO

LI0E(R™ Sk, Oalcland ienecking PANVWNARLASWIE
C/)LIC(OO(/ savings

i

California Apartment Association Approved Form
www.caaiel.org

Form 3.0 Revised 1,02 © 2002 Al Rights Reserved
Page [ of 2

'UNAUTHORIZED REPRODUCTION
jo B NK~FORMS |s ILLEGAL




Address ! Phone City

O\ 1o™M ave L (0T ©5\3*0bi pakiawd

sy Mead LSTANalen la Av e [@91o el |Stocktan  [Mom
o T relal e o Ligehry B e ol
it | Length of
Personal Roferences: |  Phono ,V,F,_Ac;"'r;im;n@_..,, l _Occupation |
B f\SQV&VDV\C\ | (0 7T R-0370 | T Ueav s l yeachi ov
1

; 2 = L
zMatVowd . Jewessamt Gopv e Y Ean o [Rels Tacheg
Huomabier Loae C\(\Y\'\\)S\ UV rodet 00 CYUN SaV vear 2007 ticense# |

der Make » Year License #
Stner motor ve
Have you ever filed for bankruptcy? No Have you ever been evicted or asked to move? N o

Have you ever been convicled for selling, distributing or manufactunng illegai drugs? \\) o

i Applicant represents thatall the above statements are true and correct and hereby authorizes verification of the above items including, but not limited to,
| the obtaining of a credit report and agrees to fumish additional credit references upon request. Applicant consents to allovs owner/manager to disclose
tenancy information to previous or subsequent owners/managers.

Cwmer will require a payment of § , which is to be used to screen Applicant withregards to credit history and other background
information. The amount charged is itemized as follows:
4. Actual cost of credit report, unlawful detainer (eviction) search, and/or other screening reporis S
2. Cost to obtain, process and verify screening information (may include staff time and other soft costs) $
3. Total fee charged (cannot exceed $30 per applicant, which may be adjusted annually with the CPlas of1-1-98) $
The undersigned makes application to rent housing accommodations designated as:

970 ™ ave Oax\and \ CA

Apt.No._(p Located at
the rent forwhichis $ per and upon approval of this application agrees to sign a rental or lease agreement
and lo pay all sums due. including required security deposit of S_ , before occupancy.
@[ U [\]
Date Applicant (signature required)

CALIFORNIA APARTMENT ASSOCIATION CODE FOR EQUAL HOUSING OPPORTUNITY
The California Aparlment Associalion supports the spirit and intent of all local, state and federal fair housing laws for all residents without regard to color, race, religion,

sex. marital status, mental or physical disability, age, familial status, sexual orientation, or national origin.
The California Apartment Asscciation reaffims its belief that equal opportunity can best be accomplished through effective leadership, education, and the mutual
cooperation of owners, managers, and the public. >
Therefore. as members of the California Apartment Association, we agree to abide by the following provisions of this Code for Equal Housing Opportunity:
. We agree that in the rental, lease, sale, purchase. or exchange of real property, owners and their employees have the responsibility to offer housing

accommodations to all persons on an equal basis s : : .
We agree to set and implement fair and reasonable rental housing rules and guidelines and will provide equal and consistent services throughout our residents’

lenancy. - % A ; 2 o -
We agree thal we have no right or responsibility to volunteer information regarding the racial, creed, or ethnic composition of any neighborhood, and we do not

engage n any behavior or action that would result in “steering.” o - g
We agree not to print, display, or circulate any statement or advertisement that indicates any preference, limitations, or discrimination in the rental or sale of housing.

tion Approved Form

ifornia Apartment
wwwLcaanel.org
Form 3.0 Revised 102 © 2002 Al Rights Reserved

Page 2 of 2

Y



CITY oF OAKLAND

250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313
OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721

Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254

ORDER TO VACATE HEARING DECISION AND SET NEW

HEARING DATE
CASE NUMBER: T17-0421, Nanos v. Jerez
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1921 26th Avenue, Apt 6, Oakland, CA
PARTIES: Scott Nanos, Tenant

Owen Jerez, Owner

BACKGROUND

On December 12, 2017, a Hearing was held in the above referenced case. No
owner filed documents were in the file at the time of the Hearing. After the Hearing was
held, on the same day of the Hearing, documents were received from the owner. The
documents filed by the owner, substantially overlapped with the documents produced
by the tenant prior to the Hearing, which were admitted into evidence at the Hearing.

The owner has appealed the Hearing Decision in part based on a claim that there
was relevant information in his filed documents that was not considered at the Hearing.
Therefore, it is appropriate to reopen the Hearing to determine whether the documents
were filed in a timely manner, and whether there is relevant information in those
documents that should be considered in the Hearing Decision.

Good cause appearing, it is hereby ordered that the prior Hearing
Decision is vacated, and a new Hearing is scheduled to determine when the previously
filed Owner documents were sent by the Owner to the RAP, and to determine if any of
the Owner documents should be added as Exhibits in this matter. If any new documents
are admitted, the parties will be given an opportunity to comment on these documents
and they will be considered by the Hearing Officer in rendering a new decision. The
testimony and the evidence will be limited to these questions. No new evidence may be
filed by either party.

139



The Hearing in your case will begin:

Date: April 4, 2018
Time: 10:00 a.m. :
Place: 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Ste. #5313, Oakland, CA 94612

Dated: March 16, 2018 /&M/ W // UL\\\\

Bafbara M. Cohen
Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

140

——



PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number T17-0421

I'am a resident of the State of California at least cighteen years of age. I am not a party to the R_esidential Rent
Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business address is
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy of it in a sealed envelope in a
City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza,
Suite 5313, Sth Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Order To Vacate Hearing Decision & Set New Hearing Date

Owner

Owen Jerez

1921 26th Ave Property LLC/Jerez Owen
201 13th St #32353

Oakland, CA 94612

1921 26th Ave Property, LLC
5424 Sunol Blvd. #10146
Pleasanton, CA 94566

Owner Representative

Clifford Fried, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant

David Scott Nanos
1921 26th Ave #6
Oakland, CA 94601

Tenant Representative

Tobener Ravenscroft Law Firm/Michael Astanehe
21 Masonic Ave #A

San Francisco, CA 94118

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.
Executed on Mar 19, 2018 in Oakland, CA.

Iy PP
& zi

,f“ I —
. o arhie
L 2

Maxme Visaya,” /
Oakland Rent/ Agw stment Program

141



CITY oF OAKLAND

- 250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721

Rent Adjustment Program ' : FAX (510) 238-6181
» : TDD (510) 238-3254

AMENDED HEARING DECISION

CASE NUMBER: T17-0421, Nanos v. Jerez
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1921 26t Avenue, Apt. 6
DATES OF HEARING: December 12, 2017, April 19, 2018
DATE OF DECISION: May 1, 2018
APPEARANCES: -  Scott Nanos, Tenant (all dates)
: Owen Jerez, Owner (all dates)
Alexis Espare, Witness for Owner (all dates)

Clifford Fried, Attorney for Owner (4/19/18)
Elizabeth Hart, Observer (4/19/18)

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The tenant’s petition is granted. The legal rent for the unitis set forth in the Order
below.

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES

The tenant filed a petition on July 19, 2017, claiming decreased housing services
associated with the loss of use of the second bedroom in his unit.

The owner filed a timely response to the tenant petition on September 20. 2017, denying
that the tenant’s housing services had decreased.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

This case was initially heard on December 12, 2017. At the time the Hearing was held,
the file contained a series of documents filed by the tenant. No owner documents were
in the file. The Hearing was held and the owner was asked questions about whether he
had proof of payment of the Rent Program Service fee and the Oakland Business tax and

142



the owner replied that he had provided those to the RAP already. In light of the fact that
the City of Oakland had just been on strike, the owner’s testimony was believed and the
owner was fully allowed to participate in the Hearing. He gave testimony and provided
argument.

During the course of the Hearing, the owner did not mention that he had filed
documents with the RAP that were not being discussed at the Hearing. The Hearing
concluded.

On December 12, 2017, after the Hearing was over, a group of documents filed by the
Owner were provided to the Hearing Officer. The Hearing Officer looked through the
documents briefly, and determined that the documentation was substantially similar to
those documents filed by the tenant and used as Exhibits at the Hearing. Therefore no
additional Hearing was scheduled.

A Hearing Decision in this case was issued on February 6, 2018, upholding the tenant
petition. The owner appealed that decision, and his appeal was based in part on the
failure to consider the documents he had filed.

In light of the Appeal, an Order to Vacate Hearing Decision and Set New Hearing Date
was issued on March 19, 2018. The new hearing was set tospecifically determine:

“when the previously filed Owner documents were sent by the Owner to the RAP,
and to determine if any of the Owner documents should be added as Exhibits in
this matter. If any new documents are admitted, the parties will be given an
opportunity to comment on these documents and they will be considered by the
Hearing Officer in rendering a new decision. The testimony and the evidence
will be limited to these questions. No new evidence may be filed by
either party.” Emphasis added.

At the Hearing on April 19, 2018, the owner produced a claimed “copy” of the
documents previously filed by the owner, with numbers inthe bottom right corner of
each document. Contrary to the specific direction that no new evidence may be filed by
either party, this set of documents included two documents that were not included in
the owner’s original submission.* Those documents were not admitted into evidence as
they were not a part of the original submission and pertained to events that occurred
after the original Hearing. The documents that were and were not admitted into
evidence are discussed in the evidence section below.

This Decision is an entirely new decision and sets out a new appeal period.
The prior appeal filed by the owner had been vacated when the Order to
Vacate Hearing Decision and Set New Hearing Date was served on the
parties.

/1]

! Pages 82 and 83

2
143



THE ISSUES

1. When, if ever, was the tenant provided with a Notice to Tenants of the Rent
Adjustment Program (RAP Notice)?

2. What claims can be raised by the tenant?

3. Has the tenant suffered a decrease in housing services?

4. What, if any, restitution is owed between the parties and how does it affect the rent?

EVIDENCE
Rental History: The tenant testified that he moved into the 2 bedroom subject unit in

April of 2014, with his brother, at an initial rent of $1,200 a month. His brother moved
out of the unit in June of 2017. The tenant’s current rent is $1,244.81 a month.

The tenant produced a lease, dated March 14, 2014, signed by both him and his brother
Sean, documenting the terms of the agreement. A RAP Notice was attached to the lease,
and was signed by the tenant on March 14, 2014.2

Decreased Housing Services:

Prior to the Hearing, the tenant submitted documents relating to claims associated with
his cat, as well as documents associated with the loss of use of the bedroom. (See below
regarding why claims were limited to the loss of the bedroom.)

Testimony from Hearing on December 12, 2017

Loss of the bedroom: The tenant testified that before his brother moved out, he
asked the owner for approval to allow Frances Mead, his partner and the mother of his
child, and his young child, to move in. He sent a letter to the owner on June 14, 2017,
requesting that Ms. Mead be allowed to move in.3 The owner refused to allow Ms. Mead
and the child to move in, because Ms. Mead did not meet the minimum income
requirements.

After asking the owner to allow Ms. Mead to move in, Ms. Mead had a housing crisis and
had to leave her unit, and moved in temporarily as a guest while waiting for a response
from the owner.

On or about June 21, 2017, the tenant received a Notice to Cease both about smoking
and the presence of a cat, and about allowing another person to occupy the premises
without consent.4 Additionally, on July 12, 2017, a Three Day Notice to Quit was served
on the tenant based on the presence of Ms. Mead in the unit.5 After receipt of the Notice
to Cease and the Three Day Notice, Ms. Mead left the premises on July 13, 2017.

2 Exhibit 11. All documents referred to in this Hearing Decision were admitted into evidence without objection.
3 Exhibit 1
4 Exhibit 2
5 Exhibit 6

3
144



The tenant further testified that he has been paying the rent on his own since his brother
moved out. Even when his brother was living there, he paid the vast majority of the rent.

The tenant further testified that in June of 2017, Frances Mead filled out an application
to rent and provided proof of her past income. Because Ms. Mead recently had a baby,

she is now not earning much money because her primary responsibility is caring for the
baby.

The owner testified that during the time Ms. Mead was living in the unit, he did not
process her rental application because they do not take applications from someone
staying on the premises without permission. Once she moved out, the application was
processed and she was denied because her income qualifications do not match his
requirements.

Alexis, the owner’s employee, testified that after receipt of the application by Ms. Mead,
he determined that the documents she provided did not qualify her for the income
necessary to take over the co-tenant’s responsibility.

The owner testified that after Ms. Mead did not qualify, he informed the tenant that if he
could qualify for the unit by himself, that the tenant could re-apply and the owner would
allow the tenant to take over the entire rental. The owner claimed that the tenant
informed the owner that he and Ms. Mead were receiving income help from their
parents, and could not qualify alone. Additionally, for the tenant to qualify alone, he
would have to earn more than $1,200 x 3 x 12, or $43,200 annually. For each to reside
in the unit and for Ms. Mead to be accepted as a co-tenant, they would each have to earn
at least V2 of that amount.6 The owner does not allow the tenants to cumulatively earn
the correct amount. Either one person needs to qualify alone, or both individuals need
to qualify at V2 of the required annual income. This is because if the second person is
added to the rental agreement, that person would have rights to the apartment.

The tenant contented that the owner imposed 13 different requirements before he would
approve Ms. Mead as a co-tenant, and she passed all but one of the thirteen. Those
requirements were that the prospective tenant was required to fill out a rental
application; provide government identification; proof of income; earn a minimum
income of $18,672 annually; have a clean eviction record; have a clean bankruptcy
record; have a clean collections record; have no co-signors; have no government
assistance; have no pets; be a non-smoker, provide a notarized letter from the tenant’s
brother that he was requested removal from the lease; and pay a $35 credit report fee.
However, he further argued that his lease states only that “Tenant will not assign or
sublet Premises or any part thereof without the prior written consent of Landlord” and
does not impose these additional restrictions.” Additionally, he contends that the

6 Note that this is a different amount than stated in a June 15, 2017, letter written by Jerez to the tenant, in which he
said that the prospective roommate would have to earn an amount equal to the current rent ($1200), multiplied by Y2,
multiplied by 2.5, multiplied by 12. This amount equals $18,000 annually. See June 15, 2017, letter from Jerez to
Nanos, Exhibit 2.

7 See Exhibit 11, page 6 of 25

4
145



owner’s failure to allow Ms. Mead to move in violated the Just Cause requirement that
an owner not unreasonably withhold approval of a subtenant.

The owner contended that the tenant’s claim is not really a claim of decreased housing
services and that he is not unreasonably withholding consent, because he has the right
to set policy for his rental units and that he applies this same policy to all of his tenants.

Testimony from Hearing on April 19, 2018

At the Hearing, the owner’s documentation was reviewed. Those documents that were
previously admitted into evidence in the prior Hearing, were not admitted again.
Additionally, the owner’s summary of events (pages 2-5 of his submitted documents)
were not admitted into evidence because he had already testified as to his version of the
events and the document was simply a summary of the already provided testimony. The
owner produced other emails (Exhibits 12-29) which were written between the owner
and the tenant, about the tenant’s request to have Ms. Mead move in. These emails were
supplementary to the already filed documents admitted into evidence as Exhibits 1-6
and simply highlight the information already in the record: the tenant wished Ms. Mead
to move in and the owner would only allow her to move inif she met the financial
requirements of a tenant. For example, Exhibit 15, an email from the owner to the
tenant states: “We do not agree to adding anyone to leases unless we go through the
specified tenant screening process. Communicated to you in a letter.”

Additionally, Mr. Jerez testified that he would only allow Ms. Mead to move in, if Ms.
Mead was able to establish the income necessary for a tenant to move in. He never
received proof that Ms. Mead had adequate income to qualify to move into the unit. The
reason he has a minimum income requirement is because income standards are
imperative to be sure that accepted tenants have enough income to afford the rent. His
business practice is based on advice he has read in journals and other landlord
documentation he has read over the years.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

When, if ever, was the tenant provided with a RAP Notice?

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance requires an owner to serve the RAP Notice at the start
of a tenancy 8 and together with any notice of rent increase or change in the terms of a
tenancy.9 An owner can cure the failure to give notice at the start of the tenancy, but
may not raise the rent until 6 months after the first RAP Notice is given.1

The evidence established that the tenant was given a RAP Notice when he signed his
lease in March of 2014. '

8 0.M.C. § 8.22.060(A)
9 0.M.C. § 8.22.070(H)(1)(A)
100.M.C.§ 8.22.060 (C)

5
146



What claims can be raised by the tenant?

Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in housing services is
considered to be an increase in rentt* and may be corrected by a rent adjustment.
However, in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing services must be
the loss of a service that seriously affects the habitability of a unit or one that was
provided at the beginning of the tenancy that is no longer being provided.

The tenant has the burden of proof with respect to each claim.

In order to bring a claim of decreased housing services, the tenant is required to provide
a list or a description of his claims when the petition is filed. 0.M.C. § 8.22.070 (F).
Here the tenant filed a list of decreased housing services with his petition related to the
failure of the owner to allow a one-to-one transfer requestto move in Ms. Mead and
their daughter. No other issues were raised with the tenant petition.

In filing his documents prior to the Hearing, the tenant also produced evidence
concerning problems with his comfort animal and problems related to harassment.
Because the Ordinance requires a tenant to provide a list of all claims, and because
allowing any other claim to go forward would deny the owner the due process right to
know and understand the claims against him, only that issue that was on the Tenant
Petition was considered at the Hearing.

Has the tenant suffered a decrease in housing services?

The owner has refused the tenant’s request for a one-to-one replacement of Frances
Mead (and his newborn daughter) to move in and replace his brother, who moved out in
July of 2017. The tenant has consistently been able to pay rent in every month since his
brother moved out, even though he is the only person wholives in the unit. While the
tenant admitted that his income alone would not satisfy the owner’s “formula” for
allowable rentals, the evidence is uncontested that the tenant has paid rent in every
month.13, 14

“Housing services” are defined in the Ordinance to mean “all services provided by the
Owner related to the use or occupancy of a Covered Unit.”s This reasonably includes the

' 0.M.C. § 8.22.070(F)

2Z0.M.C. § 8.22.110(E)

13 The owner and tenant provided conflicting testimony about whether or not the tenant has been late paying rent.
The issue of late rent payments is not relevant to this claim and is not detailed here. It is sufficient to say that on the
only ledger in evidence, Exhibit 9, no late fees are charged to this tenant. This ledger came from the time that
Lapham Property was managing the property, and predates this dispute.

14 The fact that the tenant has requested to move in two people (Ms. Mead and their child) does not impact the
requirement for a one-to-one replacement. The child is a minor and does not count as one of the individuals subject
to the one to one replacement.

5 OM.C. § 8.22.020

6
147



rights permitted to the tenant by agreement to have a specific number of occupants or a
roommate to share the cost of the rental.16

The tenant rented a two bedroom apartment with his brother. His brother moved out
and he reasonably wishes to live with his partner, who is the mother of his child, and his
child. He does not wish to live with any other roommate. As such, the actions of the
owner in refusing to allow Ms. Mead to move-in, are denying him the use of the second
bedroom in his apartment.

It is not a requirement of the law that the owner approve Ms. Mead as a co-tenant, with
the same rights and responsibilities that Mr. Nanos has. This is what the owner wants to
do in requiring that Ms. Mead meet the same requirements to move-in as if she were an
original tenant. The owner can allow Ms. Mead to move inas a subtenant. All the
responsibilities of the paying of rent would continue on Mr. Nanos’ shoulders, as is the
case now with his brother’s absence. Additionally, the lease signed by the parties when
the tenant moved in, does not require that a subtenant satisfy the many requirements
set forth by the owner in order to approve Ms. Mead. It simply states that the tenant
cannot move someone in without prior written consent.

Failing to consent to the reasonable request to move in Ms. Mead, who satisfies all but
one of the 13 requirements set forth by the owner, is unreasonable. Therefore, the owner
has decreased the tenant’s housing services.

The owner has argued that this case is bound by the case Gottfried v. Beacon Properties
T16-0727. In that case the Hearing Officer held that the tenants’ claims that the owner
would not agree to replacement roommates “is essentially a claim for damages, which is
beyond the jurisdiction of a Rent Control agency.” The Hearing Officer cited Larson v.
City and County of San Francisco, 192 Cal. App.4th 1263 (2011). In Larson the Court
invalidated a statute seeking to broaden the Rent Board’s ability to grant rent reductions
for a landlord’s act of influencing or attempt to influence atenant to vacate through
fraud, intimidation or coercion. It was deemed invalid because any such rent reduction
would not be quantifiable or restitutive in character, as is required for an administrative
agency. The Hearing Officer mistakenly relied on Larson to invalidate that part of the
tenants’ claims and the decision in Gottfried is not persuasive. Unlike in Larson the
owner’s acts here are quantifiable and the calculation discussed below is meant to
provide restitution to the tenant.

The owner additionally cited a statute governing mobile home parks (Civil Code §
798.74) and the Code of Federal Regulations relating to screening for families on
Section 8. See 24 CFR 982.307. Neither of these statutes relate to the claim at issue

here.

ke Additionally, the Just Cause for Eviction Ordinance requires that “a landlord shall not endeavor to recover
possession of a rental unit as a result of subletting of the rental unit by the tenant if the landlord has unreasonably
withheld the right to sublet following a written request by the tenants, so long as the tenant continues to reside in the
rental unit and the sublet constitutes a one-for-one replacement of the departing tenants.” O.M.C. § 8.22.360(A)(2).

7

148



Because the tenant is being required to pay for a two bedreoom unit, while the owner
withholds the consent for Ms. Mead to move in, the tenant has lost the use of 1/3 of the
value of his apartment. The tenant still has the use of his bedroom, the kitchen, living
room and bathroom. Therefore a 1/3 reduction is reasonable.

The tenant’s rent is currently $1,244.81 a month. The tenant is entitled to a rent
decrease of 1/3 of that amount, or $414.90, for a total monthly rent of $829.91, effective
June 1, 2018, until the owner consents to allow Ms. Mead to move-in. Additionally, the
tenant has overpaid rent in all months since August of 2018.77:18

What, if any, restitution is owed between the parties and how does it affect
the rent?

The chart below calculates the rent overpayments. In all months since August of 2017,
the tenant has paid rent of $1,244.81, an overpayment of $414.90 a month. He has
overpaid a total of $4,149.

OVERPAID RENT

Max
Monthly Monthly Difference
From To Rent paid Rent per month | No. Months Sub-total
1-Aug-17 31-May-18 $1,244.81 $829.91 $41490 10 $  4,149.00
s 2 -

| TOTAL OVERPAID RENT $  4,149.00

RESTITUTION
MONTHLYRENT =~ $829.91
TOTAL TO BE REPAID TO TENANT §  4,149.00
, TOTAL AS PERCENT OF MONTHLY RENT 500%
AMORTIZEDOVER 12 MO. BY REG.IS $  345.75

An overpayment of this size is normally adjusted over a period of 12 months.*9 For now

$345.75 a month is subtracted from the current legal rent of $829.91, for a total rent of

$484.16 a month. From June of 2018 through May of 2019, the tenant’s rent is $484.16
a month. The rent reverts to $829.91 a month in June of 2019, if the owner continues to
deny Ms. Mead the right to move-in.

However, should the owner allow Ms. Mead to move in (as either a subtenant or a
cotenant), the owner can increase the rent by $414.90 a month. In order to increase

17 Since the letter from his brother requesting to be taken off the lease was dated July 17, 2017, and Ms. Mead’s
application was signed on June 26, 2017, it is reasonable for there to be a one month delay in approving the move-in

request.
18 There was no testimony at the second day of Hearing as to whether the tenant has continued to pay full rent since

the prior Hearing Decision was appealed and then vacated. It is assumed thatthe tenant has been paying full rent. If
the tenant has paid less than full rent, the parties can adjust the amount owed accordingly.
19 Regulations, Section 8.22.110(F)

8

149



the rent after allowing Ms. Mead to move in, the owner must provide the
necessary notice pursuant to Civil Code § 827.

Additionally, if the owner wishes to pay the tenant the restitution in one
lump sum, he has the authority to do so. If the owner pays the tenant restitution,
the tenant must stop deducting the restitution.

ORDER
1. Petition T17-0421 is granted.

2. The tenant’s base rent is $1,244.81. Before consideration of restitution, the tenant’s
base rent is reduced by 1/3, to $829.91, based on the owner’s unreasonable withholding
of consent to allow Ms. Mead to move-in to the unit.

3. Due to past decreased services, the tenant is owed restitution of $4,149. This
overpayment is adjusted by a rent decrease for the next 12 months in the amount of

$345.75 a month.

4. The tenant’s rent for the months of June 2018 through May 2019 is $484.16 per
month. The rent reverts to $829.91 a month in June of 2019 (if the owner continues to
deny Ms. Mead the right to move-in.)

5. If the owner wishes to, he can repay the restitution owed to the tenant at any time. If
he does so, the monthly decrease for restitution ends at the time the tenant is provided
restitution.

6. If the owner allows Ms. Mead to move-in, he can increase the rent by $414.90 a
month. In order to increase the rent, the owner must provide the necessary
notice pursuant to Civil Code § 827.

7. Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed
appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be
received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the decision. The date of
service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is
closed on the last day to file, the appeal may b Jiled on the next busin 7 day.

/

Dated: May 1, 2018 /};Z//// Z%/j’ Bl i i
B%rbaraM Cohen

Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

SN

150



PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number T17-0421

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential Regt
Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business address is
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy of it in a sealed envelope in a
City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza,
Suite 5313, S5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Amended Hearing Decision

Owner ,

1921 26th Ave Property LLC/Jerez Owen
201 13th St #32353

Oakland, CA 94612

1921 26th Ave Property, LLC
5424 Sunol Blvd. #10146
Pleasanton, CA 94566

Owner Representative

Clifford Fried, Fried & Williams LLP
1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant

David Scott Nanos
1921 26th Ave #6
Oakland, CA 94601

Tenant Representative

Tobener Ravenscroft Law Firm/Michael Astanehe
21 Masonic Ave #A

San Francisco, CA 94118

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for
mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be
deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage
thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct.
Executed on May 3, 2018 in Oakland, CA.

Maxine Visaya
Oakland Rent Adjustment Pfogram

151



CITY OF OAKLAND For daeamp. ~ 20 1] 2:
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

(\ Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

CITY oF OAKLAND

"l
P
e

APPEAL

Appellant’s Name
1921 - 26th Ave. Property LLC / Owen Jerez X] Owner [ Tenant

Property Address (Include Unit Number)
1921 - 26th Avenue, Apt. 6
Oakland, CA 94601

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) - Case Number

c/o Clifford E. Fried, Fried & Williams LLP T17-0421

1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor e

QOakland, CA 94612 Date of Decision appealed
May 1, 2018

Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)
Fried & WilliamsLLP

Clifford E. Fried, Esq. SBN 118288 :
izt 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor
1z Ha Oakland, CA 94612

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a) [ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

b) [ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

c) I The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) Kl The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.)

e) &1 The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (Inyour explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)
For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/22/17

152




f) [J I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the pétitioner’s claimy (In?: 1, i,
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investuent. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) [ Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board are limited to 25 pages from each party. Please number attached pages consecutively.
Number of pages attached: 4 .

You must serve a copy of vour appeal on the opposing party(ies) or your appeal may be dismissed.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on
Ma\? 1% 2048 ,1placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or
deposited it with a commercial carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all

postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Name ;
i David Scott Nanos

Addre
Laares 1921 - 26th Ave. #6

City, State Zip
e Oakland, CA 94601

Name

Address

City, State Zip

05222018
Clifford E Fried - designated representative
SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/22/17

153



City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program, Case No. T17-0421
Appeal of Landlord 1921 — 26t Avenue LLC/Owen Jerez
Date of Hearing Decision: May 1, 2018

GROUNDS FOR APPEALING THE DECISION

2)a) The Decision Is Inconsistent with the Oakland Municipal Code, RAP
Regulations, or Prior Decisions of the RAP Board.

The tenant petitioned for a decrease in housing services claiming the loss of one
bedroom in his two-bedroom apartment. See Petition and Hearing Decision. However,
there is nothing stopping the tenant from using the second bedroom. There is no
substantial evidence that the owner eliminated or reduced a bedroom at the premises.
What the tenant is really arguing is that the landlord’s refusal to allow a particular
person to occupy the unit, based on lack of income and employment, is a decrease in
housing services.

Both Oakland Municipal Code, Section 8.22.040, and RAP Regulation 8.22.020 define
housing services as:

“all services provided by the owner related to the use or occupancy
of a covered unit, including, but not limited to, insurance, repairs,
maintenance, painting, utilities, heat, water, elevator service, laundry
facilities, janitorial service, refuse removal, furnishings, parking,
security service, and employee services.”

Consent to, or approval for, a request for a replacement roommate or for permission to
sublease to a particular person is not an elimination or reduction of a housing service for
which a rent reduction can be awarded. Nor are the owner's standards of approval of a

subtenant a housing service.

The Decision of the Hearing Officer in this case is inconsistent with Oakland’s laws
because the right to sublet to a particular person and the approval of a proposed
roommate is not a “service” as that term is used in the Oakland Municipal Code.

Prior RAP decisions hold that in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in
housing services must either be the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at
the start of the tenancy or a violation of the housing or building code which seriously
affects the habitability of the tenant’s unit. In our case, there has been no elimination or
reduction of any service. Lack of habitability was not raised by the tenant in this case.
There is nothing prohibiting a qualified roommate or subtenant from applying for
occupancy in the second bedroom of tenant’s unit. Therefore, there has been no
elimination or reduction in a housing setrvice. :

154



2)b) The Decision Is Inconsistent with Decisions Issued By Other Hearing =~~~
Officers. g BAY 93

A Hearing Decision in the matter of T16-0727, Gottfried, et al., v. Beacon Properties
(decided on October 11, 2017) held that a tenant’s claim for decreased housing
services, based on the landlord’s denial of consent for replacement roommates was
beyond the jurisdiction of the RAP.

The facts in T16-0727 are the same as the facts in our case and establish a precedent
for the issue being presented in this appeal. In T16-0727, the tenants filed a petition
which alleged that their housing services had been decreased based on an increased
criteria for replacement roommates. The issue, as phrased by Hearing Officer Kasdin in
that matter was: “[h]ave the tenants’ housing services been decreased and, if so, by
what percentage of the total housing services that are provided by the owner?” Hearing
Officer Kasdin ruled that “[t]he tenants’ contention is essentially a claim for damages,
which is beyond the jurisdiction of a Rent Control agency’ citing Larson v. City & County
of San Francisco (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th 1263. The claim for decreased housing
services, due to the landlord’s denial of consent to the new housemates, was denied.

Our case and the Gottfried case are very similar. This main issue is the same in both
cases. And in both case there was no testimony that the landlord had changed their
screening requirements or made them more stringent for the tenant who was denied
consent to sublet. In both cases, there was testimony that the Landlord had approved
of prior applicants. And in both cases, the tenants acknowledged that the refused
candidates were below the Landlord’s announced standards.

The hearing decision in Gottfried established that the RAP lacks jurisdiction to hear and
rule on a dispute over whether or not the landlord unreasonably withheld consent.
Hearing officer Kasdin got it right on this issue.

2)c) The Decision Raises New Policy Issues That Have Not Been Decided by the
Board.

It appears that the Rent Adjustment Program Board has never ruled on the following
issues:

O Whether or not consent to, or approval for, a request to sublet is a “housing
service”.

O Whether or not the RAP has jurisdiction to hear a dispute over a landlord’s
refusal to consent to, or approve, a request to sublet.

0 /f consent to a request to sublet is a housing service and the RAP.does have
jurisdiction to adjudicate disputes over the reasonableness of a landlord’s denial of
consent, what standards are to be applied by the Hearing Officer?

155



0O Whether the owner’s denial of a particular proposed subtenant, but nota. . .
denial of the general right to sublet under the rental agreement, is a reductionin- =~
housing service warranting a reduction in rent.

There is nothing the RAP’s published index of cases that discloses these issues have
ever been addressed by the Board. See
http://www2.o0aklandnet.com/oakca1/groups/ceda/documents/agenda/oak048285.pdf

The RAP Board should not allow the RAP to be deciding landlord-tenant disputes over
the reasonableness of a landlord’s lack of consent to either a request to sublet or a
request for replacement of roommates. This issue is best left to the courts which have
subpoena power, afford the parties the right to discovery, and can award damages for
breach of contract or issue rulings in unlawful detainer actions (in the event the tenant
ignores the lack of consent and subleases in breach of the rental agreement). The RAP
currently has its hands full with hearing the proliferation of landlord petitions for rent
increases due to a recent change in the law. Allowing the RAP to decide issues which
have traditionally been the domain of the civil courts will only exacerbate the backlog of
cases currently being experience at the RAP.

2)d) The Decision Violates Federal, State, or Local Law.

The Hearing Decision violates Article VI, section 1, of the California Constitution and the
holdings in Larson v. City & County of San Francisco, McHugh v. Santa Monica Rent
Control Bd., and Harris v. Capital Growth. ‘

In Larson v. City & County of San Francisco (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th 1263, 1283., the
California Court of Appeal for the First District (the same Appellate District that creates
binding legal authority for the RAP) concluded that:

“the decrease in housing services provisions added to the City's
Rent Ordinance . . . are an attempt to bypass the judicial system
and impermissibly endow the Board with judicial power
constitutionally reserved to the judiciary. As such, . . . [parts of the
Ordinance] are facially invalid under the judicial powers clause to
the extent they empower the Board to order rent reductions.”

Article VI, section 1, of the California Constitution provides: "[t]he judicial power of this
State is vested in the Supreme Court, courts of appeal, and superior courts i dCal,
Const., art. VI, § 1.) "[A]gencies not vested by the Constitution with judicial powers may
not exercise such powers."

McHugh v. Santa Monica Rent Control Bd. (1989) 49 Cal.3d 348, 356 held that an
administrative agency may constitutionally hold hearings, determine facts,

apply the law to those facts, and order relief — including certain types of monetary relief
— so long as (i) such activities are authorized by statute or legislation and are
reasonably necessary to effectuate the administrative agency's primary, legitimate
regulatory purposes, and (i) the "essential" judicial power (i.e., the power to make

3

156



enforceable, binding judgments) remains ultimately in the courts, through review of
agency determinations. /d. at p. 372. LA R0

Harris v. Capital Growth stands for the proposition that a tenant’s ability to pay rent is of
paramount importance in the landlord-tenant relationship. In our case, the Hearing
Officer didn’t think that the proposed subtenant’s lack of income, a job, or bank account
was relevant.

2)e) The Decision Is Not Supported by Substantial Evidence.

There is no finding based on substantial evidence that the tenant lost the use of his
second bedroom. The Hearing Officer cites to no evidence or reason as to why the
owner acted unreasonably refusing to consent to Ms. Mead’s subletting and occupancy.

There is no evidence in the record establishing that the owner acted unreasonably in
withholding consent to a change in roommates or a request to sublet. The only evidence
concerning the reasonableness of the owner’s lack of consent came from the owner
who testified that a subtenant’s income and ability to pay rent is the primary factor in
deciding whether give consent. The evidence at the hearing was that the proposed
subtenant and roommate had no income or employment.

The Hearing Officer also failed to consider the tenant’s refusal to cooperate with the
Landlord to process the application for the proposed roommate and subtenant (Ms.
Mead). The finding that Ms. Mead satisfies all but one of the 13 requirements set forth
by the Owner is not supported by substantial evidence. The evidence shows that:

. Mead failed to provide proof of income as she signed for in the application
. Mead failed to respond to a TransUnion Tenant Screening

. The Owner was not able to receive a credit report

. The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had evictions

_The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had any bankruptcies
_The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had a criminal history

. The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had collections

~NOoO oA WN -

There is evidence in the record showing that 7 of 13 of the landlord’s requirements were
not satisfied and thus the Decision is not supported by substantial evidence. The RAP
should not be determining the reasonableness of a landlord’s refusal or failure to
approve a tenant’s request for a replacement roommate or subtenant. The RAP Hearing
Officers are not educated or trained to make management decisions for landlords and
they have no business making rulings simply because they personally would have given
consent to a request for a new roommate or tenant.

Also, there is no evidence in the record concerning the value of the tenant’s reduced
housing service. The tenant failed to meet his burden of proof with regard to a reduction
in housing services. The Hearing Officer's decision to reduce the tenant’s rent by 1/3 is
arbitrary and capricious and not based on substantial evidence.

4

157



PROOF OF SERVICE BY FIRST-CLASS MAIL

I declare that I am a resident of or employed in the County of Alameda, State of
California. T am over the age of eighteen years and am not a party this action. My
residence or business address is 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor, Oakland, CA 94612.

On the date below, I served the attached, concerning the action known as (Nanos v. Jerez,
Rent Board No. T17-0421):

APPEAL

on the parties herein in said action, by placing the envelope for collection and mailing
following our ordinary business practices. I am readily familiar with this business'
practice for collecting and processing correspondence for mailing with the United States
Postal Service. On the same day that correspondence is placed for collection and mailing,
it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service in a
sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid.

The envelope was addressed, sealed and placed for collection and mailing, following this
business' ordinary business practices, from Oakland, California, as follows:

David Scott Nanos
1921 26" Ave. Apt. 6
Oakland, CA 94601

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct, and this declaration was executed on May 23, 2018, at
Oakland, California.

o =
Fabione Lope7z \//
R
£ G

158



. ot
RENT ARS :
Clifford E. Fried, Esq. SBN 118288 Wi _" DM f.
Fried & Williams LLP BN =T P fie 36
1901 Harrison Street, 14t Floor
Oakland, CA 94612
Telephone: 510-625-0100
Email: cfried@friedwilliams.com

Representative for Owner and Appellant

City of Oakland
Rent Adjustment Program

Case No. T17-0421

Appeal of Owner 1921 — 26"
Avenue LLC/Owen Jerez

Inre 1921 26t Avenue, Oakland

APPELLANT’S SUPPORTING ARGUMENT AND DOCUMENTATION TO BE
CONSIDERED BY THE BOARD ON APPEAL

Owners and Appellants 1921 — 26t Avenue LLC/Owen Jerez hereby submit the
following supporting argument and documentation, pursuant to RAP Regulations,
Sec.8.22.120A.2, in support of the Appeal filed on May 23, 2018.

A. Introduction

This is not a case of an owner denying a tenant the right to sublet where the
rental agreement permits subletting. It is also not a case of an owner denying a tenant
the right to have a replacement roommate where the law permits replacement
roommates. There is no evidence in the record that the owner denied the tenant the
right to sublet or to have a replacement roommate or that the tenant lost the use of his

second bedroom.

159



QECEIVED

7Y

. . RENT ARSI

The Hearing Decision sets up the contention of the tenant who claims

“decreased housing services associated with the 1084 bofliss bf theé léé&i d bedroom in
his unit.” Hearing Decision at page 1.

This is a case where a proposed subtenant and replacement roommate applied
to occupy the premises but did not qualify due to lack of ANY income and employment.
And while the Hearing Decision implies that the owner refused to rent to the tenant's
proposed subtenant and roommate, that is not what the record shows. What the record
shows is that the proposed subtenant and roommate refused or could not complete the
owner’s application process. And before the application process could be completed,
the tenant filed a petition for a decrease in housing services which claimed the loss of a
bedroom at the premises.

The Hearing Officer questioned the RAP’s jurisdiction to even hear this Petition
and make a decision. Recording of Hearing (First Session on 12/12/2017) at 00:25:50. It
is unclear why jurisdiction was taken and a decision issued because no housing service
was decreased.

B. Consent to, or approval for, a request for a replacement roommate or for
permission to sublease to a particular person is not an elimination or reduction of
a housing service for which a rent reduction can be awarded.

Both Oakland Municipal Code, Section 8.22.040, and RAP Regulation 8.22.020
define housing services as:

“all services provided by the owner related to the use or occupancy of a
covered unit, including, but not limited to, insurance, repairs,
maintenance, painting, utilities, heat, water, elevator service, laundry
facilities, janitorial service, refuse removal, furnishings, parking, security
service, and employee services.”

In her Decision, the Hearing Officer quotes this definition but purposely omits
the part of the sentence that provides the examples of “insurance, repairs,
maintenance, painting, utilities, heat, water, elevator service, laundry facilities,
janitorial service, refuse removal, furnishings, parking, security service, and employee
services.” See Hearing Decision at page 6. This omission and misquote was done
deflect attention from the fact that denying consent to a requested sublet or roommate
is conspicuously absent from the definition of housing services.

And while the Hearing officer may argue that the examples contained in the
definition are just examples and are not exclusive, the examples in the definition are
very important. They provide guidance to owners, tenants and the RAP of what should

be included as a housing service.

There is a big difference between withholding consent to allow a sublet and
services such as “insurance, repairs, maintenance, painting, utilities, heat, water,
elevator service, laundry facilities, janitorial service, refuse removal, furnishings,

2

160



parking, security service, and employee services.” The formérhas J;cédo with the
tal services.

exercise of rights under the rental agreement a@@iﬁ@féﬁgr aﬁfé bt

Dictionary.com defines “services” as “the supplying or supplier of utilities or
commodities, as water, electricity, or gas, required or demanded by the public; the
providing or provider of accommodation and activities required by the public, as
maintenance, repair, etc.”. This definition corroborates the examples contained in the
RAP definition of housing services. This definition does not support an argument that
the failure to consent to, or approval for, a request for areplacement roommate or for
permission to sublease to a particular person, is a housing service.

And even if the dictionary definition of services supports a right to sublet, the
owner in this case did not deny the tenant the right to sublet; the owner merely
insisted on its right to have a completed application process and a qualified applicant
before giving consent to a particular person. Had the applicant been employed and
had an income or savings, she would have been approved.

The right to sublet, and the owner’s process of reviewing applications and
exercising its right to reject an applicant is not a housing service. It is a legal,
intangible, concept more like an attorney’s provision in a rental agreement. An owner
is permitted to give a change in terms of tenancy to remove an attorney’s fee provision
from a rental agreement without any claim that it is a reduction in housing services.
Likewise, an owner should be permitted to reasonably reject an applicant for subletting
or replacement roommate without concern of the RAP imposing a rent reduction.

C. The Decision Violates Federal, State, or Local Law.

1. The Hearing Decision Imposes an Unconstitutional Taking of Property
Without Just Compensation.

The Hearing Officer granted the petition ruling that until the owner agrees to
permit one particular applicant to sublease and become a roommate, a rent reduction
for reducing housing services will be in place. This ruling is an unconstitutional taking of
property because it forces an owner to allow an occupation of its property without the
owner’s consent and without the payment of just compensation to the owner (actually,
the Decision imposes a penalty on the owner for the taking).

The Decision forces an unqualified subtenant to take possession of the owner’s
property. If and when the original tenant vacates, the owner will be stuck with a tenant
who cannot pay the rent. The owner will then be forced to file an expensive and lengthy
unlawful detainer action to recover possession of its property.

There is a reason for the process of reviewing applications for proposed
subtenants and roommates: so that the owner can make a reasonable determination of
the creditworthiness and risks involved with the applicant, and then to accept or reject
the applicant. If this were not the purpose of the application process, then why even
have a law that says the owner cannot unreasonably withhold consent? The law would

3

161



I

just say “Owner shall never decline a tenant ;re'ql‘lljest to sublet ofradd replacement

"

roommates.” srig N =T P W ob

2. The Hearing Decision violates Article VI, section 1, of the California
Constitution and the holdings in Larson v. City & County of San Francisco,
McHugh v. Santa Monica Rent Control Bd. and Harris v. Capital Growth.

In Larson v. City & County of San Francisco, the California Court of Appeal for
the First District (the same Appellate District that creates binding legal authority for the
RAP) concluded that:

“the decrease in housing services provisions added to the City's Rent
Ordinance . . . are an attempt to bypass the judicial system and
impermissibly endow the Board with judicial power constitutionally
reserved to the judiciary. As such, . . . [parts of the Ordinance] are
facially invalid under the judicial powers clause to the extent they
empower the Board to order rent reductions.” Larson v. City & County
of San Francisco (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th 1263, 1283.

Article VI, section 1, of the California Constitution provides: "[t]he judicial power
of this State is vested in the Supreme Court, courts of appeal, and superior courts ...."
(Cal. Const., art. VI, § 1.) "[Algencies not vested by the Constitution with judicial powers
may not exercise such powers."

McHugh v. Santa Monica Rent Control Bd. (1989) 49 Cal.3d 348, 356 held that
an administrative agency may constitutionally hold hearings, determine facts,
apply the law to those facts, and order relief — including certain types of monetary relief
— so long as (i) such activities are authorized by statute or legislation and are
reasonably necessary to effectuate the administrative agency's primary, legitimate
regulatory purposes, and (ii) the "essential” judicial power (i.e., the power to make
enforceable, binding judgments) remains ultimately in the courts, through review of
agency determinations. Id. at p. 372.

The Hearing Decision ordered a rent reduction by making a judicial
determination, unsupported by facts, that the owner unreasonably withheld consent to a
request for a replacement roommate or subtenant. There is nothing in the Oakland
Municipal Code or the RAP Regulations that permit the RAP to determine the
reasonableness of an owner's consent to a particular request to sublet or for a
replacement roommate. By exercising the power to second guess the owner’s decision
to have an income and employment criteria and to reject an unqualified applicant, the
Hearing Officer improperly exercised a judicial power to award declaratory relief to the
tenant in this case.

162



)
7

fe R

D. The Decision ls Inconsistent with Decisions Issued by éthgr Hearing Officers.
i JUN -7 PH i 36
_ A Hearing Decision in the matter of T16-0727, Gottfried, et éi V. Be’acbn"’é
Properties (decided on October 11, 2017) held that a tenant's claim for decreased
housing services, based on the owner’s denial of consent for replacement roommates

was beyond the jurisdiction of the RAP.

The facts in T16-0727 are very similar to the factsin our case and establish a
precedent for the issue being presented in this appeal: whether the RAP has jurisdiction
to hear decrease in housing services petition based on the owner’s lack of consent to a
proposed new roommate.

Hearing Officer Kasdin ruled that “[t]he tenants’ contention is essentially a claim
for damages, which is beyond the jurisdiction of a Rent Control agency” citing Larson v.
City & County of San Francisco (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th 1263. The claim for decreased
housing services, due to the owner’s denial of consent to the new housemates, was
denied.

The hearing decision in Gottfried established that the RAP lacks jurisdiction to
hear and rule on a dispute over whether the owner unreasonably withheld consent to a
proposed roommate or subtenant.

There is no legal reason for a Hearing Officer to make a ruling that is inconsistent
with Mr. Kasdin’s decision. Hearing officer Kasdin got it right.

E. The Decision Raises New Policy Issues That Have Not Been Decided by the
Board.

It does not appear that the Rent Adjustment Program Board has ever ruled on
the following issues:

O Whether or not consent to a request to sublet or have a replacement
roommate is a “housing service”.

0O Whether or not the RAP has jurisdiction to hear a dispute over a owner’s
refusal to consent to a request to sublet or roommate.

O If consent to a request to sublet is a housing service and the RAP does have
jurisdiction to adjudicate disputes over the reasonableness of a owner’s denial of
consent to a particular applicant, what standards are to be applied by the Hearing
Officer.

O Whether the owner’s denial of a particular proposed subtenant, but not a
denial of the general right to sublet under the rental agreement, is a reduction in
housing service warranting a reduction in rent.

The RAP Board should not allow the RAP to decide owner-tenant disputes over
the reasonableness of a owner’s lack of consent to either a request to sublet or a

5

163



request for replacement of roommates. This issue is best left to the courts which have
subpoena power, afford the parties the right to discolfefy,@nd ¢afdwarddamages for
breach of contract or issue rulings in unlawful detainer actions (in the event the tenant
ignores the lack of consent and subleases in breach of the rental agreement). The RAP
currently has its hands full with hearing the proliferation petitions filed due to recent
changes in the law. Allowing the RAP to decide issues which have traditionally been the
domain of the civil courts will only exacerbate the backlog of cases currently being
experience at the RAP.

Given the backlog of cases at the RAP, and the amount of time it takes to have a
Petition heard and finally decided, the RAP should not be looking for ways to expand its
jurisdiction. It should be working to reduce its backlog of work. It should be working to
do what it does best: reviewing improper rent increases and reduction in traditional
housing services such as those actually described in Oakland Municipal Code, Section
8.22.040 and RAP Regulation 8.22.020.

F. The Decision Is Not Supported by Substantial Evidence.

RERT ARZT

The tenant in this case contends that he lost the use of the second bedroom in
his unit because the owner would not approve of the applicant or give consent. There
is no substantial evidence that the owner’s conduct caused a loss of a bedroom. The
tenant testified that he doesn’t use the second bedroom. But that is the tenant’s
choice. The tenant still has access to the second bedroom and can keep his
possession there, exercise there, do his art there, and put his child there, etc. Most
importantly, the tenant is free to have a different person, one who has a job and
income, and can submit a complete application for the owner’s review. Because the
tenant has access to and can use his second bedroom, there can be no reduction in
housing services that warrants a rent reduction.

There is NO evidence in the record establishing that the owner acted
unreasonably in withholding consent to a change in roommates or a request to sublet.

Proving the absence of substantial evidence is usually difficult for the appellant.
But in our case, it is very easy because there was NO evidence submitted to prove that

the owner acted unreasonably.

The record shows that the Hearing Officer ignored the facts that the proposed
subtenant and roommate lacked employment, income, or savings. The tenant provided
NO evidence that the proposed applicant was qualified. Yet, the Hearing Officer made a
finding that the owner acted unreasonably because the applicant satisfied all but one of
the alleged 13 requirements of the owner. It appears that the Hearing Officer believed
that the owner actually imposed 13 different requirements before he would approve the
applicant; but there was no actual evidence of 13 different requirements, just a letter
from the tenant’s lawyer arguing that there were 13 requirements. In fact, there were
only 3 requirements (See Exhibit 24, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A)

164



and the applicant was denied because she failed to provide sufficient proof of income
and employment. WIS -1

The owner testified at the hearing that the most important criteria for accepting or
rejecting an application is the income and employment of the applicant. Recording of
Hearing (First Session on 12/12/2017) at 00:18:00. The Hearing Decision seems to
concede the fact that the applicant had no job or income. Hearing Decision at page 4.
The Decision downplays the lack of income by saying the applicant recently had a baby
and doesn’t have much income. However, the facts are that the applicant’s income in
prior years was almost non-existent and the applicant currently has no income.
Recording of Hearing (First Session on 12/12/2017) at 00:10:30. The Hearing Officer
ignored the facts. Recording of Hearing (First Session on 12/12/2017) at 00:18:00 to
00:21:30.

Harris v. Capital Growth stands for the proposition that a tenant’s ability to pay
rent is of paramount importance. And, In the case of Giebeler v. M & B Associates (9th
Cir. 2003) 343 F.3d 1143, 1157 the court expressed the considerable interest in a
owner having a minimum income requirement: '

g 31, N
ﬁ‘f e x}ﬁ

“The record reveals that, as one would expect, the purpose of M & B's
minimum income requirement is to ensure that tenants have sufficient
income to pay rent consistently and promptly. This interest is, of
course, considerable.”

Both public and private housing providers recognize the paramount importance
of an applicant having sufficient income so that the rental obligation can be paid during
the course of the tenancy. See the Federal Government’s position on ability of Section
8 applicants to pay rent. Exhibit B hereto. And see the California Apartment
Association’s emphasis on income of applicants. Exhibit C hereto. Income
requirements are the first and foremost screening criteria when it comes to accepting
or rejecting an applicant. The owner is this case acted reasonably and consistently with
industry standards of practice.

In our case, the Hearing Officer didn’t think that the proposed subtenant’s lack of
income, a job, or bank account was relevant to the reasonableness of the owner’s
rejection of the applicant. The Decision is not supported by any facts showing that the
owner acted unreasonably. Unreasonableness on the part of the owner cannot even be
implied from the facts that are in the record. The only unreasonableness is the
conclusions reached in the Hearing Decision itself.

The only evidence concerning the reasonableness of the owner’s lack of consent
came from the owner himself who testified that a subtenant’s income and ability to pay
rent are the primary factors in deciding whether to consent.

Furthermore, the Hearing Officer failed to consider the tenant’s refusal to
cooperate with the owner’s application process. The finding that Ms. Mead satisfies all

165



y substantial

but one of the alleged 13 requirements of the Owner is not éupporfed
evidence. The evidence shows that: B JUN-T PM 436
1. Mead failed to provide proof of income as she signed for in the application
2. Mead failed to respond to a TransUnion Tenant Screening

3. The Owner was not able to receive a credit report

4. The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had evictions

5. The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had any bankruptcies
6. The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had a criminal history
7. The Owner was not able to confirm if the applicant had collections

The record shows these 7 of 13 alleged requirements were not satisfied and thus
the Decision is not supported by substantial evidence. The Decision further exemplifies
how the RAP should not be determining the reasonableness of a owner’s refusal or
failure to approve a tenant’s request for a replacement roommate or subtenant. The
RAP Hearing Officers are not educated or trained to make management decisions for
owners and they have no business making rulings simply because they personally
would have approved of a request for a new roommate or tenant.

The Hearing Officer also concluded that “the tenant has lost the use of 1/3 of the
value of his apartment . . . [t]herefore a 1/3 reduction is reasonable.” Hearing Decision
at page 8. Yet, there is no evidence in the record concerning the value of the tenant's
reduced housing service. The tenant failed to meet his burden of proof regarding a
reduction in housing services. The Hearing Officer’s decision to reduce the tenant’s rent
by 1/3 is arbitrary and capricious and not based on substantial evidence.

As the Hearing Officer points out in the Hearing Decision,

“Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in
housing services is considered to be an increase in rent and may be
corrected by a rent adjustment. However, in order to justify a
decrease in rent, a decrease in housing services must be the loss of
a service that seriously affects the habitability of a unit or one that
was provided at the beginning of the tenancy that is no longer being
provided.” Hearing Decision at page 6.

First of all, all the tenant did was file a Petition claiming the loss of his second
bedroom. There is no claim or finding that the premises is uninhabitable.

Second, there is no evidence that at the beginning of the tenancy the tenant
and his brother had a right for Ms. Mead to rent, sublease, or occupy the premises.
The rental agreement only gave the tenant and his brother the right to rent and
occupy. Granted the rental agreement gives the tenant the right to sublease--a right
which the owner never tried to take away—but there is nothing in the rental agreement
that the owner must allow Ms. Mead, in particular, to rent, sublease or occupy the
premises. The Owner never stopped providing the tenant with the right to sublet.

8

166



CITY OF 1
REMT ARUITRATH

Thus, any refusal to approve Ms. Mead as an occupant cannot be'a reductlon in
housing services because the tenant never had a rifHt fghave M. Mead occupy the

premises at the beginning of the tenancy.

G. Conclusion

The Hearing Decision in this case is incorrect as amatter of law. The Hearing
Officer substituted her opinion for what is reasonable and ignored the evidence and
common sense to arrive at a Decision that defies logic and the law. A Hearing Officer
cannot be judge and an expert witness defining the bounds of reasonableness for
approving what is essentially a rental application. It is understandable how Hearing
Officers could do this: they have don’t have to face the future reality that there will be a
tenant occupying the property who has no income and cannot pay the rent should the
original occupant under the rental agreement vacate.

The Appeal should be granted and the Tenant’s Petition denied on appeal
without any remand.

Date: June 07, 2018 Fried & William LLP

al %// s

&Y A\//\ -

Clifford E. Fried,
Designated Representative for
Owner and Appellant

167



LHES IR Y 0]
UL JUN-T PM 4237

E'KV\‘\ b.(+ l %

from:  Property Management <mypropertymanagementcloud@gmail.com>

to:  Scott Nanos <scott.nanos@gmail.com>

date:  Thu, Jun 29, 2017 at 6:22 PM
subject:  Rental Application Process has started

mailed-  gmail.com
by:

Mr Nanos,

After we have consulted with legal counsel, we will be processing the submitted application for a 1 for 1
replacement of Sean Nanos on your existing lease agreement. Since you have started to cooperate with us, we
will be accepting your rent payment without reservations.

The first step requires us to settle any and all issues regarding the prior tenant that is being replaced. This is
necessary in order to make sure Sean Nanos rights are protected. Please see list of requirements below for us

to proceed:

1) A notarized original letter from Sean Nanos requesting that he be taken off the lease agreement and p
replaced by X (applicants name). The letter also needs to state that he waives his right to his portion
of the security deposit that he placed on the unit at the time the lease agreement was signed. This is standard

for all 1 for 1 replacements.

2) We need the ID and or drivers license of the applicant and proof of income. Proof may be in the form of pay
stubs, W-2, or any form that can provide proof of income (bank account balance, receipts, etc). Standard for all

applications.

3) Once the above items are received, the applicant will need to respond to a TransUnion Screening email and
pay the $35.00 processing fee charged by TransUnion. Again, standard for all applications.

As a reminder, these are the minimum requirements needed for qualification. They are specified in the
attachment we sent you several days ago. They are the same for every new application since ownership

change.

We wish you success with this application and thank you for your cooperation, we hope it will be a hew
beginning for our relationship.

The Management.

EXHIBIT ‘ o

7 ;3 JER_000024
168



Code of Federal Regulations, § 982.307 Tenant screening re'Sections."

, . 00NN T py g, .
(a) PHA option and owner responsibility. o BTERUY T W 37

(1) The PHA has no liability or responsibility to the owner or other persons for

the family's behavior or suitability for tenancy. However, the PHA may opt to screen
applicants for family behavior or suitability for tenancy. The PHA must conduct any such
screening of applicants in accordance with policies stated in the PHA administrative plan.

(2) The owner is responsible for screening and selection of the family to occupy
the owner's unit. At or before PHA approval of the tenancy, the PHA must inform
the owner that screening and selection for tenancy is the responsibility of the owner.

(3) The owner is responsible for screening of families on
the basis of their tenancy histories.

An owner may consider a family's background with
respect to such factors as:

(i) Payment of rent and utility bills;

(ii) Caring for a unit and premises;

(iii) Respecting the rights of other residents to the peaceful enjoyment of their
housing;

(iv) Drug-related criminal activity or other criminal activity that is a threat to the
health, safety or property of others; and

(v) Compliance with other essential conditions of tenancy.
(b) PHA information about tenant.
(1) The PHA must give the owner:
(i) The family's current and prior address (as shown in the PHA records); and

(ii) The name and address (if known to the PHA) of the landlord at the family's current
and prior address.

(2) When a family wants to lease a dwelling unit, the PHA may offer the owner other
information in the PHA possession, about the family, including information about the
tenancy history of family members, or about drug-trafficking by family members.

(3) The PHA must give the family a statement of the PHA policy on providing information
to owners. The statement must be included in the information packet that is given to

a family selected to participate in the program. The PHA policy must provide that

the PHA will give the same types of information to all families and to all owners.

(4) In cases involving a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, 24 CFR part 5, subpart L (Protection for Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating
Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking) applies.

(Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under control number 2577-0169)

[ 60 FR 34695, July 3, 1995, as amended at 60 FR 45661, Sept. 1, 1995; 61 FR 27163, May
30, 1996; 64 FR 26645, May 14, 1999; 64 FR 49658, Sept. 14, 1999; 73 FR 72344, Nov.
28, 2008; 75 FR 66263, Oct. 27, 2010; 81 FR 80816, Nov. 16, 2016]

EXHIBIT B

169



4/17/2018 Developing Appropriate Screening Crileria fo Jidents

CALIFORN fm PA RTMENT ASSC

Screening: Establishing Criteria

Developing Appropriate Screening Criteria

Prior to offering residential property for rent, every owner and manager should
develop written screening criteria that will be applied consistently to all
applicants. Criteria should include minimum income requirements, credit,
employment, and other objective criteria. Appropriate screening criteria will

help rental property owners attract qualified applicants and quickly identity
applicants who do not qualify. A property owner who establishes appropriate
screening criteria should find, more often than not, that he or she ends up with
tenants who pay rent on time and who adhere to house rules and

policies. Consistent application of these criteria, including renting to the first
applicant who qualifies, will protect against claims of discrimination. This paper
does not set model screening guidelines for owners - that is a business decision for
each individual property owner or management company. Instead it provides

an overview of the legal, practical, and ethical considerations that should be
addressed by an owner in the development and application of screening criteria.
CAA recommends that owners have their written screening policies reviewed by an |

attorney prior to implementation.

PURPOSE OF SCREENING CRITERIA ¢y C-\

170

aibnnia Baniném2 0009 1/8



41712018 ) Developing Appropriate Screening Crieria fc jidents

" The purpose of written screemng criteria is to ensure that ownerrrs have( an objective
means to determine whether an applicant qualifies for a pane il Ani ENE)
and managers who rely on “gut instinct” or other subjectiygignifierin ggtgan?ce
costly mistakes, as the “nice” residents fail to pay rent on time (or at all), damage
the unit, and disrupt the quiet enjoyment of other residents. An owner who
provides written screening criteria to each prospective resident, may encourage
those individuals with poor credit or problematic rental history to look elsewhere.

Objective screening criteria allows the owner to evaluate the risk posed by a
particular applicant. Some flexibility is possible, as long as it is justified and
documented. For example, an owner could choose to require tenants who are on
the lower end of the minimum income standard to have a higher credit score, or
pay a larger deposit. Similarly, an applicant with an unacceptable eviction history,
who participates in a program for homeless veterans, could be considered to pose
less risk if the program assists with security deposits and utility bills; and
guarantees coverage of unpaid rent and move-out repairs. Any deviation from a
property’s standard screening criteria should be reviewed by an attorney prior

to implementation and the basis for the deviation well-documented.

CONSISTENT APPLICATION OF SCREENING CRITERIA

Consistent application of screening criteria is essential to (1) ensure that all
residents meet the standards and (2) avoid fair housing claims. This means that
owners should rent to the first applicant who meets the screening criteria, rather
than the one who seems “best” qualified. Treat all applicants in the same way from
the fiist contact on the telephone to the in-person meetings. Written selection
criteria should be provided to each and every applicant or may be attached to all
rental applications or posted in the office for everyone to see. The date and time of
receijt should be noted on each application. The applications should be processed
in theorder received. The first qualified applicant should be accepted.

CHAIGES TO SCREENING CRITERIA
EXHIBIT Q ”L

171

2/8

htbnmc om et el Ja mba i lia il m mAanaamina AribAriA D riné—=2Q209)



4/117/2018 j Developing Appropriate Screening Criteria fo ;;idents
~ A change in property ownership or economic conditions mayresult in a change in
screening criteria. It is critically important to documentfé§ r3‘}""}L1<511W1ges and retain

) : : RENT ARBITRATIDN PEOERA
them in case of any complaint that may arise.

Q1B JUN =T PM 4: 37

A. Common Screening Criteria

Mm%xm\x

fncome Requirements. Owners et i reaiten applicants to

have a combined groﬁss»mcome at least “X” times the monthly rent (or equivalent
ﬁnanc1é“ﬂ“as'5éts) For example: If the unit rent for $1000/month, owners could
require an income of 3 times the rent i.e., $3000/per month. This amount should be
appropriate based on the age, location, and condition of the property and

the demographics of the area. If you find that too great a percentage of prospective
applicants fail the income standard, it may be that the expectation is too high.
Similarly, if you have many qualified applicants you may consider making your
criteria more stringent.

e Combined Income: If you allow married couples to combine their income
to meet the income requirement, by law, you must also allow unmarried
couples/roommates to do the same.

e Source of Income: California law does not allow property owners to
discriminate based on an applicant’s source of income. Income from sources
such as AFDC, SSI, etc., must be considered when determining whether the
applicant meets the minimum income standard. In addition,
some applicants may have grants, investment accounts, or other sources of
income, but may not be employed. All legal financial resources need to be
treated equally. (California law, however, does not require owners/managers
to participate in the federal Section 8 program.)

e Proof of Income: An applicant’s potential sources include bank records, an
offer of employment, income tax returns, proof of ongoing income from a
legal settlement, contract employment, government subsidy, divorce decree,

or maintenance. }
EXHIDIT {: -

httna:llraanat nralkkhiactahlichina-erraanina.critaria/?nrint=38922

172

3/8



4/17/2018 } Developing Appropriate Screening ‘Criteria fo |dents

o For more information see: CAA’s Industry Insi IHSlg}_l_LS_CrgQI_I_ILIg Criteria,
Credit Checks, Notices of Denial and Advgr @:ACto

R :
[http://caanet.org/kb/screening-developing-appropriate- screenlng crlter'la(]

JUN=T PM 4:37

Credit Requirements. There are a variety of potential disclosures that may, based
on an owner’s screening criteria, disqualify an applicant, including insufficient
income, too many obligations for the income (i.e., debt to income ratio), unpaid
collection accounts, a pattern of late payments or non-sufficient funds (NSF)
checks, and bankruptcies.

® Questions to Consider:

o How do you define “good credit”? Be specific.

o Will a FICO score be acceptable? (See note below)

o Will past due payments on medical bills be an exception?

o Will you take into consideration the number of credit check inquiries
completed prior to yours?

o How will you handle those new to our country? Immigrants, resident
workers, or foreign students may well be good risks, but they have no
conventional credit track record.

Note: A FICO score is a credit score developed by Fair Isaac & Co. Rental
property owners and other business owners use credit scores to
determine the likelihood that credit users will pay their bills.

Credit scores are calculated by using scoring models and mathematical
tables that assign points for different pieces of information that best
predict future credit performance. There are three FICO scores
computed by data provided by each of the three bureaus. Some property
managers use one of these three scores, while others may average the
scores from the three bureaus.

Landlord References — Rental History — Eviction History £ C ?
173

httne'/lraana t nrnllchlactahlichinn.erraanina.critaria/?nrint=320792 4/8




4/17/2018 Developing Appropriate Scréening Criteria fo ; sidents

‘¢ Questions to Consider: &
RENT ARBITRATIS
o How will you address: ‘ 018 JUN -7 PM 4,:37
= No rental history
Gaps in rental history
® Incomplete rental history
m Disparities between information provided by the applicant and
information provided by previous landlords (e.g. rental
payment amounts, named occupants on the lease).
m Negative information from previous landlords
m Eviction filings or judgments
= Unverifiable addresses or inconsistency with residence history
in the credit report |
m Landlords who are members of the applicant’s family.

Lack of Rental History Due to Homeownership. If an applicant previously
owned his or her own home and does not have recent rental tenancies to verify, ask
for proof that a mortgage was paid regularly. A consumer credit report should also
show whether mortgage payments were missed or paid late.

Eviction History. A number of property owners are currently involved in litigation
over tenant screening reports that provide information about unlawful detainer
actions. The following resources provide more information on this issue and can be
found here: CAA’s Industry Insight “Screening Criteria, Credit Checks, Notices of
Denial and Adverse Action” (nttp://caanet.org/kb/screening-developing-appropriate-screening-criteria/]

4. Criminal Background Checks: As information about criminal background

becomes more readily available, many owners and managers are adding

criminal background checks to their screening process for prospective

residents. As with any other screening criteria, an owner’s standards must be

narrowly tailored to avoid illegal discrimination. Excluding every applicant with

any criminal background, without regard toee .ognse’s relationship to the
EXHET N o 174

hHna llnnanat arnlldnlnctahlichina anraanina aritaria [Dnrint=22027 5/8



4/17/2018

? Developing Appropriate Screening Criteria fo 3 idents
7

apphcant s ability to meet tenancy obligations is llkely to run afoul of fair

housing laws. CAA has developed a separate backgrggg@@g{pg

the pros and cons and suggests questions and issues W}ﬁle}n?érs 'should
discuss with their counsel concerning criminal background checks.

B. Additional Requirements

The following information addresses the use of the property by residents rather
than screening criteria applied by the property owner. Many owners find it helpful
to provide to prospective tenants the policies and the rules for the property during

the screening process.

httinae

1

HAannan s

Occupancy Standards. Setting an occupancy limit that is too strict may run
afoul of fair housing laws. The State Department of Fair Employment and
Housing has historically used a 2 persons per bedroom + 1 additional person
for the unit as guidance for enforcement actions. This means that 5 persons
should be allowed to live in a two-bedroom apartment. See CAA’s Industry,

e O e e e s e e e )

[http://caanet.org/kb/occupancy-standards-federal-state-local/]

. Pets. Property owners may prohibit pets or set restrictions based on species,

breed, size, etc. However, owners may not refuse to rent to a disabled person
who has a service animal nor may the owner refuse to rent to an individual
who trains and has a service animal. In some cases it may be a reasonable
accommodation to allow a disabled person tohave a “companion” animal
that may not otherwise qualify as a “service animal.” See_CAA’s Industry,
Insight “When is a Pet Not a Pet? — Accommodating Persons with

Disabilities.”

[http: //caanet.or‘g/kb/pets—companion-animals—Det-not—net-accommodating-persons~disabilities-caa—white—paper/]

. Smoking. Owners of residential rental property may designate some or all

of the property as “nonsmoking.” See CAA’s Industry Insight “Tobacco

Smoking at Residential Rental Properties
[http://caanet. org/kb/smoking-rental—proner‘tv-caa-white—naoer‘/]” al’ld CAA’S FOI‘m 34.0 = SmOke‘

Free Lease Addendum [http://caanet.or g[kb[smokl g- mﬁ @et’—for‘m—m—eﬂ_

..... A 175

(PO SRR A T U IUPUEUPRORDRVS SRSV FS 7 P PRI Y Yo Yo Yo} RIR -



4/17/12018

Developing Appropriate Screening Criteria fo 1dents

4. Parking, Guests, and Other Policies. Many other gypes of restrictions on

use of the property can be addressed in an owmr‘smdsé f‘pﬂes It is helpful
to prospective residents for a property ownerm;yg{;g\ﬂflepgiﬁgg.;m'ih
information up front about what type of parking is or is not available.
Restrictions on guest are also permissible but cannot be “unreasonable.” For
more information see: CAA’s Industry Insight “When Does a Guest Become a

RESIdent” [http://caanet.org/kb/room-mates-co-tenants/]J.

C. Other Resources

e CAA offers applicant screening services, including credit checks and eviction

history. Screening can be performed immediately (online) for instant
results. Contact your local Chapter or Division.

CAA Form 3.0 — Application to Rent rnttp://caanet.ore/kb/application-to:rent-form-3-6/1=
Owners should provide an Application to Rent form to all applicants. CAA’s
form includes a space for the applicant to sign, which grants

written permission needed for the owner to perform a credit check.

Use CAA Form 3.0-R — Application to Rent with Receipt Attached

It/ feaanet. ore/ib/applicsen-rent-seheanin reas reanfor rorn-s-0.n/1 OF CAA Form 3.5 ~ Receipf
for Tenant Screening and/or Credit Checking Fees

[httiss/ cainet ore i recelpt -tenantssereandiis andors enedie: chéckane-esc-ror-3-5/], If OWners.charge an
application fee. California law limits the fee owners may charge a
prospective resident to cover the cost of screening. The fee cannot be
greater than the actual out-of-pocket costs of gathering information on

the applicant. The initial law provided that in no case, however, can the
amount of the application fee charged by the owner be greater than $30 per
applicant. This fee may be adjusted annually by the owner commensurate
with an increase in the Consumer Price Index. If the owner

charges applicants a fee to obtain a credit report, applicants are entitled to a
copy of the report if they request it. If a credit check is not run and the
prospective tenant has paid a fee to the property owner, the owner must
return the fee to the applicant. e C -1’

176

“ At AAAAA 72



f?' e i

PROOF OF SERVICE BY PRIQHITYMATL:

I declare that T am a resident of or employed in the CABbuUE ATanfilid:State of
California. I am over the age of eighteen years and am not a party this action. My
residence or business address is 1901 Harrison Street, 14th Floor, Oakland, CA 94612.

On May 14, 2018, I served the attached, concerning the action known as 1921-26%
Avenue LLC v. Nanos, Oakland Rent Board Petition T17-0421

APPELLANT’S SUPPORTING ARGUMENT AND DOCUMENTATION
TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE BOARD ON APPEAL

on the parties herein in said action, by placing the envelope for collection and mailing
following our ordinary business practices. I am readily familiar with this business'
practice for collecting and processing correspondence for mailing with the United States
Postal Service. On the same day that correspondence is placed for collection and mailing,
it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service in
a sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid.

The envelope was addressed, sealed and placed for collection and mailing, following this
business' ordinary business practices, from Oakland, California, as follows:

David Scott Nanos
1921-26™ Avenue #6
Oakland, CA 94601

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing is true and correct, and this declaration was executed on June 7, 2018, at

Oakland, California.

4/ g

Fabienne Lopg7

177



	HRRRB Agenda 1.10.2019
	HRRRB Agenda Packet 01.10.2019 REGULAR
	board packet 1
	board packet 2




